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To,

The Department of Corporate Services,
The BSE Limited,

P. ). Towers,

Dalal Street,

Mumbai- 400 001

Ref: Scrip Code: 531358
Sub: Annual Report for the Financial Year 2020-21 and Notice convening the 28th AGM.
Dear Madam,

As required under Regulation 30 and Regulation 34{1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we submit herewith the Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year
2020-21 along with the Notice convening the 28" Annual General Meeting ("AGM") scheduled to be held on
Thursday, September 23, 2021 at 03.00 p.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing/ Other Audio Visual Means in
accordance with relevant circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and SEBI.

In compliance with the aforesaid circulars, the Annual Report along with the Notice of the AGM has been sent
only by electronic mode to those shareholders whose e-mail address is registered with the Company/ Registrar
and Transfer Agent of the Company /Depository Participants.

The Annual Report along with the Notice of the AGM for the Financial Year 2020-21 is also available on the
website of the Company at www.choiceindia.com.

Request you to kindly take the above information on your record.
Thanking You,
Yours Truly,

For Choice International Limite

( ma Shah) X
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Choice International Limited

Choice House, Shree Shakambhari Corporate Park, Plot No.156-158, J.B. Nagar, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 099.
Tel.: +91-22-6707 9999 Email ID:-info@choiceindia.com Website:-www.choiceindia.com CIN No. L67190MH1953PLC071117
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WE CARE

Vaccination Drive
At Choice House

OUR
VISION &
MISSION

JAAS

To become “The Institution of Choice”
by delivering the best services and
innovative products, for clients across
the Globe, tor business partners and
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DearStakeholders,

Az wa start a new year, | would like to thank all the stakeholders, Board of Dhirectors,
employess and investors who believed in me and my vision and shall conaider my
appointmentasthe Chairman af the Comgparry at the 28th Anmual Genaral Mestimg,

LEtte r FrD l I - & tew years agao | sawa dream to become the leading finanaal services frm in the country

. ; L and now | can proudly say that we have reached that level that | ence hoped ta achieve.
C h a I r m a n \ ; J This weuld have bean an impossible task without the help and suppon of my colleague,
business partner and mora thaen that my fiend Kamal Poddar, our Managing director and
allmy colleagues of the "Choice Panvaar”,

A very famous life quote that | truly befieve in, "Great things take tme" and this |s
absolutely true in our case. We as a group are growing and giving ocur best foot forward
always. The growth that once seemed unattainable is now within our reach. With
constart hard work and determination of each and every person of the "Chowge
Farvaar”, we can dare (o drsam higher and achieve many more impossible tasks.

“Chaice” aims to become a fintech company and build a robust ecosystem for our
custorers and 1o ald in thelr end 1o end linancial Jenarmissy, Thues oL a5 a whole 1%
aexpansding geographically and has successhlly added many busimess assacites under
its umbralla. Aloneg with this, we are pleasad with the financial growth of yourgroup aswe
are grawing organically and inorganically. We aim to continue this growth in the coming
years and the goal s to make Choice oneof the best finsncial services fiem i the country.

“Growth is never by mera chance; it is the result of torces working together” and
therefore, we hawe always believed in team work and working towards one comman
gpoal, The COVID-19 pandemic has taught us 1o light our valnesabalities and stand g
against difficulties. Our vision 1o become "Sarvasresth” will always be oor top most
priority and we promise to grow your company in the future and put our best foot
farward always,

With best wishes,
Thanking You,

CA SUNIL PATODIA

CHAIRMAN

Sd/-

SUNIL KUMAR PATODLA
Champman

D Mo Q07519487

1 | _____________________________________________________| 1 —— | [
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From
Managing
Director's
Desk

Mr. Kamal Poddar

WA MAGING T

Dear Stakeholders,

The world has soon & turparound in tho last
financial year due to COVID-19 and most of the
aconomies have witnessad the rmost difficult tines
historically, But with strong determimation and
utmaost strength we haver all stoad firm and faced
these unprecedentad tines.

A this YT B bsesn cdif®icud for EAEF T, | werauled
lika to take this opportunity and thank each and
every employes and our stakeholders for your
immense support, 1§ s because of your hardwork
and uneonchitienal faith that we have been able
achisve our goalsfor the past yoar

|'ean piro u.:H"l say that we have F‘I"I.'-H'I-‘VIHL"Li o hEEFl
guraelves rmotivated during thess haod timaes and
hawe given the best services to all our stakeholders,
We have handied all the key operations smoothly
by working at 25-30% capacity and rest from home
Alrmest the entjce YA w ithaout |1.1:|1||;'1-|'-_-|'i||r:| thes rJd':,-
rr:-d.ul,l n;lnmhnn:. '|"l.l'1:| {1k pr:ﬂ 1,|‘|4'. sarmt 1o continoen
tor tha nexstfinancial year as wall

In the financial year Z2020-2021, the grodp has
done meally well in terms of business and financials
We have managed to clock in a growth of 35% Yo
in our revenue with a growth of 25% Yol in ouwr
bottom line, This was passible only through ow
n”irinnl::-lr in busine=ss and maAnaging our
operations wall,

Frarm the businass perspective, | can proudly say
that surequity broking business has achleved new
heights this year and we now belong tothe Tog 25
braking houses i the country. We expect this Bull
rian b contive far the fext thrse yEars wehinch will
aid our future growth, As lar as tho other
businesses our concermed, they are picking up
steadily and we hope to cladk in a hundred percem
ggrovthin revenuein tha cormang tinancial year.

Letiest Tearm Waiiagjirg Directoi

Chatoe geoup now can be synonymously knownasa
Fintech company aswe have managed tolaunch new
fintach products in this financial year and have mary
mare in the prpedine for the coming year which can
bz s m the sosd mag wiich forms the part of the
report. We have lbunched a new fintech product for
our customers called Alphabes {for long term
imeestors] and are in process of aunching muottiple
products like I5MO5, efilex, SPARK, Credue and
".:J[_:t|111|:1 n s UESCOATIING yesrs Chiice is 41 the
fothold for a very strong year ahead and we hopa o
launch a fintech ecesystem for our customers
wagigtingg therm in theirend-to-end financal journey,

We believe our employees are our strength and we
have made all elors 1o provide the best working
infrastruciure and suppon 1o them, This yedr we
haver decided 1o provide flnancial security 1o all its
employees jn case of an unfortunate incident with
the member. Under this, the Group shall bear the
expenses of their children's education till
graduation for ehildren balow 18 YEITE ol agper. b
additicn ta this, the family shall get the last drown
salary of the deceased employee fill 12 months.

| take this opportunity to thank all cur stokehcldors
fartheir faith in cur Company and further appeal for
their confinued support in achieving our vision. of
being "harvasrestha®

With bast wishes,
Thanking You,

Sd/f-

KAMAL PODDAR
Managing Director
DN Ne: 01518700

Dﬂl— 1 | [

CHOICE INTERMATIONAL LIMITED | ANNLUAL REFORT 2027

CHOCE INTERNATRONAL LIMITED | AMRAIAL REPCHET 2001



Board of Directors

Mri. Hamlata Poddar Mr. Kanhalyalal Ber
whila nnovation ntlfuxes _:'—ﬁ.f‘.j'_';h PREF) weiiliee Dliroets

n the system, i's the leadership that
distinguishes vou from being a METOO

ric]
-,

& B -ﬂl'ﬁqa-;m

¥ S

Ch Aoy Ke|rbwal

Mr. Ashak Kumar Thakur
Ewecuitied Dirascion {

e prerclent Leaek
CA SUNIL PATODIA CAKAMAL PODDAR
MNorn axecutivie and

h‘.ll SO LIl oGir
Non Independent Chairmar

CA Subodh Kumar Agrawal
I

\
CA Sudhs Bhumshan

Mr. Sandeep Singh
REs FETR TR AT PR AT | Indepanden
Dareecd

Diecior
-_———— e




Corporate
'ﬂfﬁrmatlon C5 Karishma Shah

T 4 - T ] -
LOMpany seciaelanry

CA Manoj Singhania

L Faat NaErw i3l L ITTCE

Register And Share Registered Statutory
BANKERS Transfer Agent Office Auditors

AXIS | PNE | ICICH |HDFC | INDLUSINI M5, Link Intime India Pt Litd CHOICE HOUSE Mis. De

Acdress: C 101, 247 Park, LB.5 Marg, Shiee Shakambhan Corparate Charierad

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES STEP-DOWN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES ) 3 Park, J. B. Nagar, Andheri (east) Murmdsai

Mumbua - 4§

s (l - N Bk Pt B ) - = r B =
Juirty i 0 I = TROrdAIE JeTVIOes Ve L R x Mo 022 - 4918 040 Phone Mo - +9 &10T-IeRe SECRETARLAL ALIDITORS

. B LAl Achnsors Frvel el * Lhowce Wealth Management Private Limited fiwrarw linkintime co._ind Fax Ma.; +91-D . W/s. B.M Mimani & Asscociates LLP

* Choice Consultancy Services Private Lirmitsdg s Chowo Hetal Solitions Privato Lomited ] a E ol SRLEe Practicing Company Secrotaries

¢ Choice Finsery Private. Limitod o Chowea Tech Lab Saolutions Private Limirec Walbmite choicaindia,e Thars

& L heon Portdolio r\."l.ll'..ll_.ll"lll AE Seervices Prevate [mmateel




- i TR q: Tl
ORPORATE OVERVIEW

*Cholce Group® an and 1o end Financial service conglameris through its mallipde subsidlanas ofers financal sprdioes across &l plathorms

cateding to Rortndl & Instifutionsd Client, Lorparales , Stale B Central Government Authorities

Tha groiup suctasstully has created a Fintech sco systom which combines all its sarvices under e Faof fow all s financial prodaocts

FinAMNCIAL SUMMARY B HIGHLIEGH 15

The highlichi | tha Compamy's Sandzlons & Comolideod Financial Resufiz ar= incomporated below

Particulars Consolidated Standalone

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,

2021 2020 2021 2020

Aevanie
Heagwiiin Iroem & I raeans 18 874 35 TEHE 2 0 BE5.R3 BTSN
Crtheisy (e 7T L% RE =091 2619

Total Rewenis 17.581.88 1343188 BaATA 202,08

Espanias
s uf GAH.43 PR R
I i . I " =5 4 193180 £ i 0 Hi 4 ¥
a 1 1545 75 128 Ié ¥ I 1
il IS At & Aumortisem oy e 0874 LR f1.3% ra.03
o) Adminirative & Othor Expanses 1,603.31 18920 P17 799 4!

Total Enpenies 1520003 11,601,652 s52g.89 H05. 04

Mot Profit befors Tax 228156 1.8230.35 F27.8% 29632

Lax bmpesvigis

Ty = L 5
a I t Tas ! i 4R B F
E = ’ AL §5
g 2.0
a T .-
il | e {404 5 i1 fa c.2n T e

Total Tax Expanse &10.55 577.25 A5 a8

Met Prafit Afer Tax 1471.00 124311 230.20 19744

BOG rd Re po r‘l. Criaer Ceamprahasios v Income 3638 138,60 044 (1 ety
Total Incoma 1707.328 137801 F30-53 1590.048

Dasr Mombat Paid Up Equity Share Capital 2856.83 2000.48 285683 2000 .48
Agporyns oechkpding Revaluston Reserms as por Balanos Shaat 19.2TA 19 15, 149 &4 1207237 10,432 54

1. i 778 [ % | o7 w9

7. Dbt 511 LA o7o 093
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PERFORMANMCE HIGHLIGHTS
Consolldated Ananclal Performance

Thae Consalidated gross incoms of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2027 is ¥ 17,581.58 Lakhs as agaimst 13,421 88
Lakhs in the previous yess. Conasslidated net profit doring the year
under review (s T TAT1.00 Lakhs as compared o @ 1243.17 Lakhs in
e previous year,

Consolidated Financial statements for the financial year endad March
31, 201 have been prapaned in accordance with Section 133 of the
CompaniasAct, 200 3 {the “Act”) read with rules mada thereundar and
Indian Accounting Standards (the “Ind 457 110. The Consolidatad
Financials reflect the cumulative perdformance of the Company
mgnﬁnrwirhﬁ.-nn-.nrin-u::ul:r:ll;[i:.r,l GONTIRaIES,

Standalone Financial Performancs

Thes total gross income of the Campany far the financial year ended
March 31, 2021 on stasdaloms s © 864674 Lakhs a2 sgainat § 90208
Lakka i the previows year, The Company reported a net prafit of ©
220,20 Lakhs for the yaar ended March 31, 2021 as compased fo tha
MNet Profit of € 197 42 Lakhs in the previousyear

Pursuantto the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the Annual Report
of the Company, cofdaining, inbter alia, it's Standalene snd ihe
consolidated financial statemants, along with the ralavant documeants
and separate awditad inancial statemants tor each of tha subsidiaries
ane gvailalle on the Website of the Campany wwechoiceindia.oom
undarthe Invastors Relstion™tah,

CIVIDEND

Considering the existing economic situation, thie Board of Directars of
tne Company has decided to sateguard the resources to sugment owr
long term growth, the Board hence has not recommendad the
Dhvidend for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021,

The datadls of the Unclaimed f Unpaid Dividend padaining to the
pravious year's ving in the unpaid acoount llable to bae transterred to
the inwestor Education & Protection Fend = detailed in the Corporata
Governanca Report forming part of this Report

RESERVES

The Board of Directors of the Company has decided 1o retain the
entire amowunt of the Prafit for FY 20-21 inthe Profit & Loss account.

COVID: 1% FANDEMIC

It has bean mors than ona & half year since *COVID 197 pandamic
infiltrated tha Human Socety, beaving each one ol us in griel. Alter thae
first wave of the on-going pandamis thers was a subsaguant lifting of
tho Mation -wids Lockdown preseming the contred ower an-gaing
acthve cases, Howssear, sitwations got datenorated even more in the
manth af March & Aprid 2021, leaving us in the lurmoil followed agasn
with the State Lackdawns.

But it is shways believed that, even the worst times teaches you the best
krssans of e Simitarky the pandemic SO0 9 has foneees redormied the
aperational synengies ofhow the ongasizations acmss the workd opesate.
The Pandemic has by no chaice transferred the working culture from
bazing Manual i Digital, the crganisations acess has entared o to the
sphare of an "Chgital Era . Likewise your Company too have by sll
maans have transformed thair Scope of Servics into an gamud of Rigital
Fancial services under one gablewith least human ssterference.
Further the Pamdemic has also infrodwcad the “Work from Home
"palcy . in thia interast of tho amployons of thr COMTIEANY | Your

campany too has adogted the policy for the safety & security of our
nrnl::-!-nyq-e-li..

Wa are burther glad to inform you that the Business activities of the
Coanpany & ita Subsidiaries have not been halted at any point tirme,
Tha Mana.gamnn! of yaur Cump.an'.l dao not anticipate arny migcdium to
lestvg terrn risk in the Company's abdity to continue &£ a going concerm
and maesting its Rabifities, An elaborative narathon on the impact of
COMID - 19 s detailed in nobes to the Financial Stdemanis.

MATERIAL CHAMGES AFFECTING THE COMPANY

11 Asdetailed in the previcus report, the company was awaiting the
Voluntary Cancellation of Az *NBFC * status on transferring ifs
entire * MBFC Business® to s Subsidiary Campany M4, Choste
Fniseny Private Limited

On Movember 25, 2020 the company was in receipt of
communication from the “Reserse Bank of India® detailing the
order of Voluntary Cancellation of owr "NBFC ° status with effect
fream Chetobyer 2%, 2030

On cancellation of our *"NBFC® status the company M Choice
Intarmational LUimited is acting as & "Holding Company * to
its warious subajciaries.

2] The Company on approval of its Members dated Decamber 23,
2013 & on raceipt of the In Principal approval from the sxchange
dated Decamber 24, 2009, the Company on Januang 02, 2020 had
aliptted 19800000 Equity Warrants a3t a price of Rs. 51/ Par
wrarrants ta he converted inta sguivalant number of Equity within
18 Months of allotment on Preferential Basis |

Oin the receipt of the entire consideration amount, the Warranis
e copverted in 1o eguivalent nurmbser of Equity shares in
trénches. As on the date of report, there are no outstanding
wrarrants o b convartad into Equity,

3] TheBoard of Director's ot thesr Mecting held on June 25, 2081 has
approved the reising of Funds on Right lssee basis ameunting to
Rs, 60 Crarms, . For inhusing the additional capital through Fight
lssue basis, the Company need to incraase the Authorised Capital
of tha Company,

Yewur Board seeks the approval fram the Mombers for Increass in
the Authorsed Capital of the Comparny from Bs, 40, 10,00, 0600
{ Rupaas Forly Crores Tan Lakh |:.\n|:,|I ] dwided in to 410,00, 000
Ecpuity Shees of Rs, 10/ each ta Bs. 50, 10,006,000/ | Rupess Fifty
Crores Ten Lakh only J divided into 5,10.00,000 Equity Shares of
= 10 wach,

Resalution seeking approval of the Members farms part of the
Maticatathe 28th Annual General Mesting of the Company.

4] The Company MYS. Choioe international Limited had applied to
the Company M's. Paramone Concepts Limited to reclassify it
status from "Promaoter Category” to "Public Categaory ° The
request for reclassification was further placed belore the
exchange by the company Més Pasamone Concepts Lmited
whith was approvad by the exchange BSE Limited on March 31,
2021.

The Company do not stand as 3 Promotar to the Company M/s.
Paramone Concepts Limited With effect from Masch 31, 2021,

51 Pesst the Financial Year end, Mis. Choice Equity Broking Private
Limited “"CEBPL our wholly pwnad Subsidiary has enterad in to
thr agreament with Fromaters and Shaseholders of M/s. Escons
Securities Limded "ESLY subssdeary of Mz Escons Limited a
renpwned Business Houss localed at Mational Capital RBegran,
listed on BSE B NSE for acoumsition of ESL, which &= mainly in
Broking biminess,

1'||—
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Bss, Escorts Securities Limited an Unlisted Public Company,
incorporated inthe year 1996 is a praminent player in the Broking
Industry since last two decades headquarterad in *Dalhi®,

&) Dwiring theYear undar review, our stepdown subsidiary Mes. Chosce
Wealth Private Limited had acquired the “Mutua | Fund” Distribution
Business of "Bank Bazar®, The acquisition of Mutual Fund
Distribution process of "Bank Bazar™ shall enabie our product ®
brvestica” to rapidly grow s AUM and number of dients and push
ingelf to the category of large Mutual Ferd Irvestment Platform with
camplate foous on wealth creation loris clents.

T The applicatan al owr subsidisry Compamy WS Chowe Equaly
Broking Private Limited “"CEBPL” to-acqube an "IREA” Registered
company has been transferrad in the name of M/s. Cholce
Irternational Limited, thea .apr_ll.l:arir_m for a4 quinmg an "IRCIA™
Registerad Company is panding  now with tha “lnsurance &
Developrment Astanty ol India (IRA YA the namo of M Chaoice
Intarnational Limited | the appeoal af which s soon seaited

B)  During tha Yoar undar revies, the Bogstrar & Shane Transtor Agont of
the Company bis. Sharno Dynamics nedia Pt Lbd Bas besan margend in
to el Lirnk Iritinme boelie Pyt Lt with effect froan Aug 3 1, 2020,

RTA Datails;

Website; htipsdtwwa linkmtms oo in

Emadl: mthalpdesk@inkintime.coin

Address: © 1017, 247 Park, LB.5 Marg, Vikheoly [Wasi), Membal -
A000ES.

Contact Ma! 022 - 4918 62710 Fax Mod 022 - 491 8 40&0

Rraaiad Mgt ':'.h'r:d.,.".'
i

There are ne other material chenges or commitments affecting
the Fimancial position of the Company which have occurred
durineg the end of the inancial pear and tha date of the mpa.

SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED CAPITAL:

Ag on Masch 37, 2021 the Authagsed Capital of the Company is Ra
&0,10,00, 000 | Rupess Farty Crares Ten Lakhs Ondy 1 divided inta 4,
10, G0, OO Eg iy Shires of Re 100 each

Hevsiaar the same is 10 be increased by Ba, 10000, 000004 § Bupees
Tan Crores Ondy ) subjact to tha approval af the mambers in the
proposed Annual General Meeting scheduled 1o be held on
Septembar 23, 2021,

PAIDLIP CAPTTAL:

fson March 31, 2001 the lssund | Subscribed & Paid up Capital of the
Cesimypiry on scoount of conwersion af Wairants in to Bguity was
increasad from Re. 20, 00,48.000¢ | Rupeas Twenly Croms Forty Eight
Fhowsand oy ) dividend i 10 200,04 800 Equity Shares 1o Bs
28, 56,82, 7 30¢-{ Rupeasas Twanty Eight Croras Fifty Sis Lakdhs Exghty Two
Fhowsand Seven Hundred Thirty Onby | dividend in o 2,85 48,273
Equity Shares of Re 10/ each

As ondats of tha report. on conversion otall the outstanding Warranis
in ta Eqjuity , thio kssood, Paid up & Subscnbod Capitalof the Company
wag further increasad to Ra. 39,80 48, 000/ Rupess Thirty Mine Croras
Eighty Lakhs Fory Eight Thousand) dwided in to 3.98.04,800 Equity
Shiares of Rs, 10/ each

The Datalls of Change In Capital Structure during the Year are a3 foll ows:
Diatails of Equity Share Capital of M/, Choice International Limitad: 15IN Mo: INE10ZEDT014

Particulars Diate of

Sllomant

Plumleas of Currulative Maovimibial Capita

aa Allattad Total

i Erguity Shides a1 the Bpari |08, 2030
beginning of the Year

z Coryarsion of Warrants Dacember 14, 2020
inta Equaty

3 Comyarsion af Warrants Janiany 14, 2025

i b Erqueity

4 Cornarsion ol Warrants March 17,2021
Inta Equity

5 Corvarsion ol Warrants Al 17, 20219
irvto Eqqudty

f Corversion ofWarrants June 17, 3021
im o Eqyuity

! Coryersion of Warrants Juipne 25,2027
it Epuaty

20004800 2O0048000
2663473 22648273 2E6EA2TI0
2550000 25218273 252182730
350000 SA568273 JELABE2 30
Ja409ay 7 B262 J201HZ430
236538 35254800 352548000
4550000 FYa0dB00 IPEDSA0G0

A on data of the repor, there & e no cubitanding Wasrants to be converted in to Equity Shares of the Company, The abova all otted shares hava
breien Listad & Traded an BS5E Limited as on the date of the Report, except the last trench dated June 25, 2021 for which the the approval s

awaitad.

—HE
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DEBENTURES uplcaded on the website of the Company wew.choiceindia.com

The Debertures issied by the Company inits previous Fingncial Years,
have boen duly redoemod by the Company on maly payrmant al
Prircapal B the Interast amount. Howeser the Company on e
waritication shall iranstor tho lunds to the legal claimant of & decoagod
Dabenture Holder holding Sevan Debentures of face value of Rupees
Oine Lakh eachwith scorued Interest themby.

DEPOSITS

Dhufing the wear under review, the Company bas not accopted any
Public D posits nor thers ara any cwtstanding Public Deposits during
the Yaar anded March 31, 2021.

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

Inaceordance with the apolicshls provisions of Companies Act, 2013
read with Investor Education and protection Fund { Accounting, Audit,
Transior and Refund ) Rules, 2004 [ * 1IEPF Rules™) |, all unclaimod
dividends are reguired to be transferred by the Company to the IEPF
Laftor complotion of sevan (7] Years , Further according 1o IEPF Rules
the dhares on which dividesd has pol been claimed by tha
sharshalders for seven {7) consecutive years or more shall be
transforred o the domisl sccount ol the [EPF authonty. The details
relating to amount of dividend transferred to the IEPF  and
correspanding shares on which dividend were unclaimied for sedeens
(7} consecuthve years | are prowded in the Gensrsl Shamholders
Infarmation secticn of this Annual Repont

FINANCIALACCOUNTING

As mandated by the Minstry of Corporate Affairs, the Financial
Sratements for the Year ended on March 31, 2021 has been prapanad
in accordance with Provisions of the Soc 133 of the Companies Ad,
2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as amendad
from time 1o time, Tha astimates and |udgemants mlating to the
Financial Statemants are mbde on g prudent basis, sooas 1o refect in a
e and fair mannar, the form and sebstance of transsctions and
raasonably prasont the Compaery's stato of affair, Profit snd cash flow
ferthe Yoear ended March 31, 2021,

SUBSIDIARY COMPAMIES
Financial Performance:

Pursuant ta Section 129 [ 2iof the Companies Adl, 201 3the Consolid ated
hnaneial Statements of the Company and ity subsidiasies are peepaied
in-accordance with the ralevant Accounting Standznd soecified under
Soctitan 133 af thio Act, read with Bude Tol the Companies ] Accounls)
Rules, 2014, forms & Part ofthe Annual Report.

Pursuant 1o the provisions of the said section, a statement contaning
the salient fostures of the linancial stsloments of the Company's
subsidiartes, Jaint Ventures & Assooates in Form ADC -7 K glven in
tha Anewsal Raport,

In accordance with Section 134 of the Companies A, 2013 the
Financral Ssatements of the Subsidiary Companies are available for
inspction by tha Mambaers at the Registored Oftice of the Cormpany
duging Hoesness Hours on all days esicept Saturdays , Sundays and
Pubilic Hedicays up to tha date-of the Annual Ganaral Meeting ® AGM"
Any member desinous of obtaming & eopy of the said Financial
Statarments may write to the Company Secratary at tha Registerad
Oiffice ol the Camparry.

The Finsocial Statements nclueding the Consobidsted Fnancial
Statements. Separste Audited Financisl statements along with other
relewant docurments reguired 1o be attached to this repod hoee besn

The detall of Matenal Changes in the Operationsd Mature of the
beusiness af the Subsidiarios during the Financial Yaar 2020-21 hava
beeen highlighted down below, The impact of such chanaes, if any has
bean adequately desclosed in the Financial Staternonts, As on March
31,2021 the Company has? Subsidiariesinitsgroup cutofwhich 4
are step down subsidiaries, Al the Financial services oflared by the
group” Cholce® are conducted throuah each of its subsidiary
Crampany,
Dotails of the Subsidiarias:
1} M=, Choice Equity Broking Private Limited - Whaolly owned
Subsidiary
Thia Sacurities Broking Businass along with Depository Paricipant
Businosa & Distribution Sefvicos are routed throough owr
gulbsicliary M's Choice Equity Broking Private Limited ("CEBPL"},
"CEBPL" is @ Mamber Broker with N3E BSE, MSEL ICEX, NCDEX,
MCK apd a Dapository Particspant with COSL & MSDL,

Post the Financial Year end, the company "CEBPL” has entered in
to the agresmant with Promoters and Shamhbolders of Mis. Eszorts
Securites Limited “ESL" subsidiary of M5, Escorts Limited a
ranowned Business Housa located at Delhi to acguwre "E5L" a
praminenst plager in the Broking Industry sinee last bwo decades.
The sald acquisition on obiaining the necessary statutory
cloarances shall load to increase in clientela’s of the groop
“Choice”. The group's Broking segment its getting is fest stronger
byin:mﬂ;ing it PAN India Presencs,

Diuirireg thi Year wnder review, the Subssdiory has been awarded
for putstanding Ressarch b the Commadity Sagment by the *
Mational Commodity & Derivatives Exchange Limited " NCOHER™)

b spite of the difficuli busimess emorenment, the subsidisry
continues o de wall as the Gress Reyanue of the Company far FY
2021 stondat ¥ 11,063.91 Lakhs (Previous Yoar; 2 5,594.60 Lakhs}
Dwring the year under review, the subsidisny mada Profit Before
o oo §.2, 064,28 Lakhs (Provious Year: Prolis § 907 58 Lakhs),

2) Mis, Cholee Finsery Private Limited - Subsidisny

The *MBFC " Business of the group is cafried out theaugh aur
subsidiary M5, Choice Fnsory Private Limited, M/s. Choico
Finaery Private Limited® had secured il Registraton a5 an
“Man- Depasit Taking Mon- Banking Financial Compang” with
effact fiam Janwary 12, 2018

Ason March 31, 2021 the Company holds, 4. 246% stake in the
“Cheice Finsany® B tha balance 5. 74% stake is held by M/5. Chowxa
Equity Broking Private Limited which s the whally owned
subssidiary of the Company,

Crear a period of thres vears the Boan Book has increased by 156%
from & 96.C rares i Do § 246 Crams n 2071

The Gioss Revenue of the sobsbicdeny for FY 2027 stood at ©
2935 28 Lakhes [Previowes Year § 151576 Lakhs) The Comgomy
recanded Prafit after Tax of € 971,68 Lakhs (Previous Year: Profit €
134.4% Lakhs]

I M5 Choice Portfolio Management Services Private Limited -
Subsidi
The Portfalba Monagoment Serdices of the grouwp is catered 1o tha
cliants through our Sehsidiaryg M. Chaice Pertiolio Managament
Sardices Privata Limited 2 SEB] Regestarod Portfolio Managars.
The Cornparty B Choice Intermational Limited holds 52,67 %
stika in the Company MYs. Cholce Portiolio Mansgement Sensces
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Private Limited & the balanics 47, 3%% stake i held by M. Choice
Equity Broking Private’ Limited which Is the wholly owned
subsidiary of the Campany,

Cuiring the year under Review, the Company registerad a lossof 1
5.77 Lakhs, with a dacline in Revenusto{ 41.06 Lakhs for the FY
2021 3z Compared to Pravious Year 44,73 Lakhs,

4} M5, Cholce Capital Advisors Private Limited - Wholly Owned
Subsidiary

hie: Cholce Capital Advisors Private Limited ["Chorce Capital
Advisors') s @ SEB| registered category-l machant bankar,
offering services such as 1PO advisory, valuations, corporale
linance atc, The Investmeant Banking & Merchant Banking services
of the growp ar calored throwgh our wholly owned Subssdiacy
“Chioice Capital Adyvesars”

The subsidiary rieported a dedine in Gross Revenie 1o § 15752
Lakhs for the FY 2021 as compared 1o previous Year: § 2RITS
Lakhs, Howewar the Company regastersd a Profit aftor Tax of &
1247 Lakhs as compared 1o Previous Year: £10, 44 Lakhs,

5} M/s. Choice Consultancy Sorvices Private Limited - Whelly
Owined Subsidiary

The group opst#es s Infrastructore conscltancy  business
throwgh ils whally ownod  subeidiary  Choice Consultancy
Services Private Limited ("CCS5PLY) . The subsidiary is
distinguished consuftant  In tha sectors such @5 Road,
Higghwatays and Bridges Deselopment, Water Management,
Aftordable Houwsing, Solid Waste Management, Puldic Financial
Refarms, Urban  Devefopment ard  sustain ability, infesmation
Technology, E-laaming, Smart Education et

The various Joint ventures inifiasted by the company as on March
31, 3027 K as o date of the report ane as fallows:

il Thowghts Consuliants daipar P Ln Y with Chaice Consultancy
Sansmas PL

il WEC Consdlting Private IV with Chaice Consultsncy Seivices
Private Limibed

i}y Infra Doy Comsultants in 2 with Choice Consuftancy Servicas
Pt Liel

) CCSPLIBRI

vl Samakit Learning Management Private Limibed

Further a5 on date of the raport, B Compary & partnering bao
LLP'S namely "Choice Soft Skills Trainings LLP* & *Choice Soence
Edubab LLP " tor conducting its Busingss modal ot smart Edhacation

The Gross Revenue of the subsidiary  for FY 2021 stood at ¥
363080 Lakhs {Previows Yaair § 230641 Lakhs) The Company
exrmad & Profit after Taw of €747 50 Lakhs [Previous Year: § 47 52
Lakhs).

&) Mz ChoiceWaalth Private Limitad - Step Down Subsidiary

Dwring the Year under roview, the ceme of our step dewn
Subsidiary Company was changed from Més. Choice Wealth
Mamagamant Private Limited 1o M ® Chaice Wealth Private
Lemited”™ pursuant to circelar lssued by “Association of Mutual
Funds of India® or * AMFI" directing the Muiual Fund Distributors
bo amendf sncdily thekr nemes as per thair eiveular dofed Chetobeer
20, 2020 boaring No, AMFLECIR-192020.21, The changes in names
of the Company ac aformaid doss not changes the fegal status or
constitution of the Company, ner does It alect any righis o
obligations of the Campany, mar dees it change the Main Ohjoect

7}
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The group provides its mubseal fund distnbution services through
ity subsidiary M/s, Choics Wealth Private Limited, The Company
M5, Chioice Wealth Private Limited [Choice Waalth) is registenad
with the “Assocation of Mutuad Fands of fndia® [AMFL as 3 Mutual
Furd Gistrabutar amd = enpanelbed with vanows Moteal Fund
Houses o distributathair sensces tothe end dients

Entire Shareholding of the company M, Choice Wealth Private
Litmitesed 15 heled by M. Chdee Equity Broking Private Limited our
whally owned Subsidiary.

Ciring tha Year under raview, our step down subssdiany Mis.
Chaice Wealth Private Limited had acguired the “Mutual Fund®
Distribution Business of "Bank Bazar®, The acquisition.of Mutual
Fund Distribution precess of “Bank Barar®™ shall enabsle our
product © lwestica®  to rapidly grow its AUM and number of
cliants and . push itsell 1o the category of lege Mulual Fund
lwestiment Platform with complets{oous-an wealthcreatson for it
cliants,

The Groes Bewanue of the subsidiary for FY 2021 stood st € 85,08
0 Lakhs (Previows Yo § 48 Lakhs). During the year undar revisw,
this company incumsd & Loss of § 5290 Lokhs [Prevous Yeer Loks
of & 154,25 Lakhs).

b5, Cholce Corporate Services Private Umited - Step Daown
Subsidiary

Thagriup provides s "Retadl Loan Distribution™ servicas through
vt sl choven subbsidiary M. Chirice Corposate Seraces Private
Limitad * The sehadiary strives an providing its cents speadiar
disbirsement  of Loans lrem the Bank ol the promisng Interest
rates,

Entire Sharoholding of the company Mis. Choke Corporate
Services Private Limited is held by M/s. Choice Equity Broking

Private Limitad owr wholly ownied Subsidian.

Tho Gross Revenue of the Company for 7Y 2027 stood a8 § 29.66
Lakhg (Previous Yoar; § 51.35 Lakhs), The Company eamed a prodit
ciff (76 Lakhs (Prowous Year Less of 151,92 Lakhs).

M.z, Choice Tech Lab Solutions Private Limited - Step Down
Subsidiary

Chaice Tech Lab Solutions Private Limitex! {Chaoice Tech ak) our
step down subsidiary is the Technology srm of the group
“Chowa”, The Subsidlary has been instrumental in shaping the
group as a “Fintech® Financial Hub, The details of the
“Aipphications” developed by the subsidiary  for conearting the
sarvices of the groep inte” Fin Tech * modal is detailed below in
the Manacpement Discwtasan L Anubysis Repor forming part of this
Rizpon

Entire Shaseholding of the company W5 Choice Tech Lab
Sedutions Privale Limited i held by M Choice Equity Broking
Private Lirnited curwholly owned Sobsidiary.

Tho Gross Service Revenue of the Compadey for FY 2027 staod a1l
DI008 Lakhs (Prewous Years & 907 BS Lakhsh The Compooy
registened profit off20,33 (Previous Year: Frofitofl € B84 Lakhs).

Choloe Redadl Solutlons Private Limited - Step Down Sulbssldiary

To widen our Matwork, the group has created an online platform
whora wa thall on Board Busmoss Associates throwgh our onfing
platfemms named " Choice Cannact " for Cistribution of ouws group
RarYices

—l'ld
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Director & Key
Managerial Person

Brief Profile of the Board of Directars of the Company as
onMarch 31,2021 & as onthe date of the Report:

1 Mi. Suntl Kumar Patodia- Won Execiutive MNon

Independent Charman
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4] M Hemlsta Paddar - Mon Executive Director
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Mr Kanhaivatal Berwal
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Independent Director
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Mr. Subodh Kumar Agrawal - Additiona

Independant Director

sidacd BSE & MNSE a6 an Arbtiator in Capidtal Market cas

Mz, Sudha Bhushan
Lsrector

Mr. Sandesp Singh
Director
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CHAMNGE IN DIRECTORSHIP DURING THEYEAR

During the year undar raview, Mr. Bharat Kumar Shah (Din Mo
OF393863) the Independent Dinector of the Carmpany resigned fram
the Office of Directarship with effect from Decambar 08, 2020 dus ta
his prei-tccugstson.

Dhurringg the Year under review Mr Subodh Kumes Agrawal (DIN MNo:
D0553914) was appointed as Additional Mon Executiva -
Indepanden Derector with effect from Movembes 70, 2021

Furtteer, diuring the year undar raview Ms. Sudha Bhushan | DIM Na,
O FA0E | B M Sandeep Singh (DI Mo 028148440 were appainioed
a5 Additicnal Mon - Exacutive Independent Director with affact from
February 12, 2021,

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN OF THE COMPANY

On the recommandation of the MNomination’ and Remuneration
Committes & on the approval of the Board of Dicectars of (e
Company, Mr. Sunil Kumar Patodia aur founder Promoter has beaen
inductied on the Board as Mon Exscutive Non Indepsendent Chairman
atthe Company with stfect from August 13, 2021,

Resolution seaking approval al b appemtment lorms pant of the
notice of the 285 Annual General Meating of the Company,

RETIREMENT BY ROTATION & SUBSEQUENT
REAPPOINTMENT

In accordance with the Provisions of Section 152 & athar Applicabie
provvizions if any of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companias
tappointment and Qualfication of Dirsctors] Rules 2014( Including
Aty atatody modifeatans) o re-anstmentls] theeesf far he tine
biaing In force ) and the Articles of Association of the Company , Mr
Ajary Kedriwal Executive Disectar [ DIN Mo 2 030518471 able o retine
bey rodation at the ensuing Amndsd General Mosting and being sligibla
affared himaeli for reappaintimsmt

The Board oommends hes re - eppostmant bor consideraton of
Membars af the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Comipany. Appropriate resolutions for his e - appointment 5 being
placed for the approval of the Members along with ks Brief Resume
and othar redated information has been placed in the Motics
conwening the 28th Annual General Maating of the Company,

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT

Dhating thes Financial Year 2020-27; the board pursssnt to section 1613
af the Companies Act . appoirtsd Mr. Subodh Kurmar Agrawal | DIN
Mo o HOE53916) as an Additional Nan- Exscutive Indegpendent
Disector with effect from Mosembier 10, 2020, appointed Mr, Sandeap
Simgh {0 Mo, 02614440) as an Additional Mon - exsculive
Indepandent Ciractor with effect from February 12, 2021, appointad
M Suchlsa Bhashan {DIN Mo, 01748008Y | as an Additional Non -
gxpouive Independent Directer with elact from Fabruary 12, 2021,
subjecttothe approval of Membess of the Comparny.

Thee required resolution seeking approval for the appomimeant of thea
above mentioned Chrectors s included in the MNotice convening thie
2Bth Annual General Mesting. The Initial term of appointment of Mr,
Subodh Kumar Agrawal as an Indeapendant Dirclor shall be five years
affective from November 10, 2020 and initial teym of appointment of
Mz Sudha Bhushan & Mr. Sandeep Singh a5 an Indopandent
Direcios's shall be five yaars effective fiom Felbruary 12, 2021,

The Board s of the opinion that Mr, Subodh Kumar Agrawal , Ms. Sudha
Bhushan & Mr. Sendeep Swgh are peears ol integrity with hegh beeel of
ethical standardsalong with massave experience InourFinancial Industry

The Company s in receipt of 4 nobice from a mamber signifying his

intentonto proposethe candidature ofthe above mentioned Directar's
farthe Crifice to act as the Deawctar,

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR'S REAPPOINTMENT

M Ashiek Kumar Thakeor {DIN Ne. 02573 226 B Mr, Kanharyalal Berval
(DM Mo, 07535424 the existing Independent Directors of the
Company hava complatsd their one tarm al five years serving as-an
Independent Deector of the Campianm.

Your Board has recommended ther Re - appointmient for o second
torm ot five yearswith effect from July 14, 2021 subject to the approval
of the mombers inthe 28th Annual Gerserad Moating af the Company

The required resaluton seeking appeoval for the Reapgointmeem of
the sboye mentioned both Deecor's s Incleded In the MNotce
convaning the 280 Annual Genaral Maating

The Company is in eceipt of 4 notice from a membear signifying his
intention to propase the candidature of the above mentioned bath
the Director'sforthe Cffice to act as the Directaor

INDEPENDENTDIRECTOR'S DECLARATION

The Independant Directors have submitted a declaration of
indnpendenca, stating that thay maeat the critana of independence
provadad undar section 149061 of the Act & regulation 1411 blod the
Listing regudations.

The Indepandant Dirgctors have afsa confirmaed that they have
camplied with the Company's Code of Business Conduct & Ethics. In
termns of Regulation 25i8) of the Listing Requlations, the indepandeant
Crirectors have confirmed that they ani not sware of any cicumstances
or situstion, which exist or may be reascnebly anticipated, that could
Imipair or impact thedr sbility 1o dischange thew duties

In terms of requirements ol the Listing Regulations, the Board has
idontified corn skills,. exportise and competencies of the Directors in
thiz comext of the Company's businesses for effective functioning,
which are detaded in the Corporate Governance Report,

In torms of Section 150 of the Act read with rule & of the Companies
{Appointment and Qualiicatien of Directors) Rules | 2098 as
amendad | the namse of all the Independent Dector of the Company
hava: been induded in the data bank maintained by tha Indian
Inatitute of Corporate Affars

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONMNEL {KMP)

Thie lellowng are nemed personnel e the KMPS of the Compary as
on March 31, 202 1 as per Sac 203 of the Compantas Act, 2013

110 Kamal Poddas -8Managing Cireto

21N Ajay Eejriwal -Executive Directar

1M Manoj Singhania - Chisd Fenancial Officar
4)Ms. Karishmma Shah - Company Sacratang

MUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BCARD

Five meatings of the Board of Dirachors wara hald during the Faandial
Wear 2020-71. Tha details of tha maatings of tho Board of Rirectors of
the Company durng the Finanscial Year 2020-21 are given in thie
Corporate Governance Repon which forms part of this Annual Repor,
The Compiany has compitiod with the applicable Sacrotasial Standamds
{nsued bry 1has Inatitude of Company Secrstanes of indla.

COMMITTEES OF THEBOARD
The Baapd of Drirectors has the iolkaving Cormmittees ason Mach 31, 2021
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N Audit Commities

M Momination & Remeneraton Commites

iy Stakeholder Relationship Committes

IV} Corparata Social Responsibifity Commities

Thee dletails af the above mentoned committes along with thas
Composition, Mumber of Mestings, held and attendance at the
maratings ara providad in tha Corposate Governance Beport

For the smooth arficulation of par operational & peocadural part ; the
Company had constitubed varous nternal Committess consisting of
the Executive; Indapendant Diractor of the Companies along with the
imeisheemant of the Sanior Level Mansgomient in the Commilbes (o
i ymnesth sparations of the Comgany, the detslls of the Cammiitess
constituted by the Company are as follows

ilFinance Committes

i) Investment Cormmittes

lii) Securities Alloiment Commities

The mestings of the above mentioned Committeses are hald at
Regular Intarvals and decisians undertaken are the set of collactive
pople on the conzent of the mapority of the members af e
Committes, Tha resolutions wnderdaken by the Committeas s
warifiad by the Board in theirsubsequent Mastings

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY &COMMITTEE

The Board af Dhrectors has famed & poboy which lays down @
framework in elation to emunaration of Dectoss, Key Managerial
Porsonnagl and Senior Management of the Company, The Policy
bromdly lays down the gueding principdes, philoscply and the basis of
payment of remunsration,

The palicy also provides the oritera for determiming Qualifications,
poditve attribuwtes and Indepesdence of Directors and  crteria for
agpoltment of Key Managesiol Personnel, Seanios Managermant and
parlormance evaluation which are considered by thie Momination and
Remunoration Committen and tha Board of Directon while making
selection of the candidates.

The Compamy has a Momination and Remuneration Comemetes (MRC],
which & responsibla for feemulating the criteria Far agpaintmant of
Directers on the Board of the Compsany and persons holding Senior
Management positions in the Company indluding thesr remuneration
and othar matrers.as provicdked undar Saction 178 of the Compansss Act,

(F0E pnd the Usting Regulabans, The rode of the NRC Commiiee

encompasses conducting 3 gap analysis to fefresh the Board on-a
perindic ‘basis, including sach time & Diractors appointmant or ra-
appaintment & rsguired,  The NREC Committeo & sbe responsible for
revigwing the Profiles of Potentisl candidates the requined,
compsrtances and dus dilgence and meeting of potential candidatas
jpric b making recommandations of theis naminstics to the Board.

Critaria for Determining Qualifications, Positive Attributes and
Indapendence of a Diractor:

Iri teermms of the Provesions of Section 1 7B{3) of the Act, and Regulation
1% ot the Listing Regulations, the MRC has formulated the criteria for
datermining qualifications, positive altnbares and indepandence of
Directors, thie key features of wiich aee o fallowe:

Cualifications: The Boad Mormination process encourageas dewersity of
thought, saperience, knowladgs, age and gender, | also ensures that
tha Board hasan appropriste blond o functional and industry expartise,

Positive Attributes Apart from the duties of Diroctars as preseribod in
the At the Dhrecioes ane expected o demonstrale high standards of
ethical behaviour, communications. skills and independent
judgemant. The Direciors are axpacted i abide by the respactive
code ol conduct as applicable 1o theem.

F: r.l

Independence: & director will be considered independent if ¢ she
reets the ¢nitena kasd down In section 14% (4} of the Act, the Rules
frames thersunderand Regulation T4 1iklofthe Listing Regulations,

Evaluation Process: Choice Imtermaticnal Limited bofeves invalee forits
staksholders through athical process and integrity, The Board playsa
wary imponant rels in anouring the Compaing's performancs ta monitar
and privide limaly inputs to enbanca the Company's Perdormance amd
it it dlirection far growith, Hence it i portant that eeesy individual
Board Memberaffactively contribites in the Board deliberations.

At "Chioee” we follow annual evaluation farour Key Manageral Persons

and other sbgible employess Including the senior management team,

A process sculpted an this methicd has besn designiad for evatuation of

Darectors undor this procoas, the company managemant will;

» Formuiate the poocess for evalusting and rating Dirgctors

® Digrsagn the eyaluation termplate £ questionnaine and implemsentation
process

= Poarieylow of each Director

s Analyse ipodback received romeaach Dimcior

* Weighting the Evaluatian summary of each Director.

Ky Eviadluation Criteria:

s Agtondance and contribution ot Board and Committen maestings

# Histher stalure, sppropriate mest of expertise, skills, bahanour,
expanence, lsadershipoguelities,

= Sensa of sobriety and understanding of business, strategic
direction to align company's valug and standands.

= Hig/her knowledge ol finsnce, sccosunts, legal, invesiment,
miarketing, fodeign exchange’ hadoing, intemal controfls, ek
management, ‘assessment-and mitigation, buskness operasions,
processes and Corporate Governance

* Hiz'har abdlity to create a perdormanca culture that drives vatue
creation and a high guality of debate with rmbost and probing
discirssions.

= Effective decisions makinig ability to respond posithvely and
constructively to implemsnt the same to encourags mare
Lranspameasty.

s Open chanrels af comrmunicstion with executive masagement and
cther colleagus on Board to mazntazn high standards of irtegeity
and probity,

* Racngniza tha rols which hafsha is aspacied to play, intarnat Board
Refationships to make decimions abjoctimaly and collactively in tha
beat nbereat of thie Company b achisve crganizational successes
and harmondzing the Board,

s Hisfhar ghobal presence, ratlonal, physical and mstal fitness,
broader thinking, vision o corporato social rospornsibllity otc

& (uality of decigion msking & understanding Rracial statemants
and busingss performancs, raisng of finance, best source of
finance, working capdtal requiremaent, forex deslings, geopalitecs,
human resaurces atc.

= Histhnr ability to monitor the perdormance of managemuent and
satisly hirmeell wath integrity of the financiel controls and systems in
place by ensuning right level of contact with external stakefrolders.

* Hisfher contnbuticn to enhance owverall brand image of the
Company.

Criteria for Determining Remuneration of Director's, Key Managerial
Personnel and Particulars of Employees:

The Remunaration paid to the Dirsctors is in sccordance with the
Momination & Remunsration Policy formulatod in accordancs with
section 178 of the At and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulatkons
lincluding any statutosy Modificetionis) o re enactment{s) thareof for
theatime baing infonce.
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. Pilicy con prevantion of Sexual Haresemant atWork Place

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY /VIGIL MECHAMNISM

The Company has a robust wigil mechansm through #s Whistie
Blawer Pedicy approved and adoplad by the Board of Diraciors of the
Company in compliance with the provisions of Section 177 of tha
Compamnies Al & Regulaton 27 of the Listing Regulations

Thse Conparny had i place the strecture 10 rep ot genuine Concadng o
arievancas & to provide adeguate satequants against victimization of
parsans, The Whistle Blower Policy has been posted on website of the
Compuany www.choiceindia com

Thee Cosmnpany's Vgl Mechaniam allews the Directors and employees
o report thelr concerns about unethical behaviour acteal or
suspacted fraud or viclation of the code of Conduct. The palicy alsa
provides protection to the employess and business associates who
rapart unathical practices anr‘-‘irrva—gul'.arirma.

During the Year undar review thare are no Complasne’ reporting s
reepved by the Company in the said mechaniaen Tod thie Company and
torits subsidianss.

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT
ATWORKPLACE

As per the requirement of the Sexual Harmasment of wormen @t Work
place {Prevention . Prohibiton  and Redressal § Act, 2013, the
Companry has fermulsted 3 palicy on prevention, prohibition and
risglresaal of sexual harssment at work place in ling with the provisions
of the Al and the Rules framed thereunder for. preventson and
redrazzal of Complaing of Sevual Harassmant 58 work place.,

Thnf:nmpan':,l has cnm_rllu:d wath provisions relating to the constitutian
al the Inigmal Cormmittes wnder the Sexual Harassment o Wemean at
‘Woark Place | Prevention, Prohibaion & Redressal Ao, 201 3.

Duiring the Financial Year 2020-21, no cases o the matura of Saxusl
harassment wara rapartod at amy work place of the Compary or any of
ite subichipning,

CORPORATESOCIAL RESPOMSIBILITY

Your company woluitarly has adopted C3R Policy to shosdder its
raspansthility towards the society and also continued a CSR
Cormmittee o ascertain the activibes taken by the Company in the baal
interest of the socisty although the company does not fall b the mine
of applicabdity of Section 125 afthe {:nmpnﬂ:inﬁ Act 2013

‘Within the ambit of the proasions of the Company Acts | 2013, tha
company loouses in the following major areas lor the  soological
development of the Sacsety andenvironmeant gnd thusbeing desirous
to make theward a batter place to swrvive and sustain:

s Hunger, Povarty, Malnutrtion & Haalth

e Eclucaticn

= Gender Eguality

¢ SuppartingRural Development

& Enauring Environmantal sustasnability

s Pramofing Spers asd baslthy living

RISK MANAGEMENT

Today's Husiness wodld s constantly changing B dynamics and s
gatting complax day by day | these relentlessly changing dynamics
brings along uncertain abstacias .:|H|:_n.-.1|r|g thie rn:-mr_la.ny's
perfofmance, i order 1o adopl 1o these persistent changea the
Compamy has in place a well -defined process in place o snsurs

eppropriate identification and treatment of risk

Risk management is ambedded in your company’s operational
Famework, The Enmpan:,l'-i prma-rh by articulata the Business risk is
e uative and indudes penodie review of sech risks and amesonk
far mitsgating controls and epoting mechanism of sech risks

Tha Key strategec, businass and oparational risks which are significant
in termsof thair impacts to tha overall obisctives of the Company
alaarg with the status of the mitigation plans are penodically
presented and discussed, Al significant rek am well integrated with
functional and bismess plans and are reviewed on 3 regqular basis by
thie sanior Managemant team and presentsd to the Board at Ragular
infereals.

Tha Campany trough risk management procass ams oo restrict tho

tiske wiithin the rancs af rek appaetite of the: Company. Thens are no sk
which in the apinion of the Bard threatens the ekistence af the
Company. Howaver some risk which @ sat out in the Maragameani
Driscussicn and Analysis repod forms a pertof this Annual Ropart.

INTERMNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND THEIR
ADECLACY

The Board has adopted policies and precedures for governance of
ordary and athciant conduct ol its business, including adberence to
the company's policied; seleguardog its assets | preention and
detection of frauds and eroms, accuracy and complsteness of the
scoounting records and timoly proparaticn of the accounting reconds
and timely praparationaof financal disclomones.

The Campany has o wall-defined autfay for delegation of authority
with specded limits for approval of espenditure, both capital and
revenue, The Company has workfows to ensure adherence tothe
dizlegation of autherity. The Company hisin place softwans named
“HRMS® to diligently approes the expenditure | s par the leeed of
Heerarchy set in the arganisation keeping nomind the level of
authorizations bolore approvieg any eopenditurs:

Your Compary has an dHeciee internal controd and sk mitigation
systirn, witich (3 conatently evaleated and reinforces with dstandand
operating procedures, Internal Finamcial controf systerms of the
Company hava baen desgned to provide masonabla assurmnces with
recpasds reconding and

prrovicling reliable financial and operating mlormation, complying
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with applicable Accouring Standarnds

The Audit Committes of the Board reviews the adeguacy and
sHactivenass of the inteérnal contral syStams and sugaests
impreyamant b strengthen the same, The odit Committea of the
Besgrd of Directors, statutory Awditars and the Business Heads b
panndically appraisad of the internal audit findings and cormctive
actions taken. Aodit playsa koy role in providing assurance to tho
Board of Darectors. Sigraficant sudit abservations and cormectres
actions taken by the managemeant are presented to the Adsdit
Committes of thie Board,

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY & STATEMENT

Fursuant 1o Section 134 of the Act [including any statutory
modificationis) o re- ensctrments ihereo Tor time beaing in foroe), the
Directors ol the Company Stats that;

a. in the praparation of the annual ascounts for the inascial year
ended March 31, 2021 the applcable accounting standards have
boan tollowsd along with proper sxplanaticn malating ta matenal
departures if any.

b. the Directors have selected such accounting polbcias and applisd
them eonsistently snd mode judgements and eatimates that ane
reascnable and prodent so as to give irus and fairview ol the state
al altairs of the Campany as ot March 31, 2027 and of the profits of
the Comgany tor the Rnancial Year endad March 21,2021

. prepar and sufficient cara has boon takan for maintenance of
adeguate accounting records with the provissons of the Act for
safeq |,.l:|n:||ng the assats ol the Company - and for prawvonting ancl
detacting fraud and other irmegularities.

d. the Annual socounts{ financia! statements have been prepared on
Agoing concern badis,

& dntemal fnancial control woess 0 place and that the Hnamoal
contral were adeguate and waro operating el chively

1. proper ayslems o endure complance with e provizions of all
applicabla laws and that such systams were adegquate and
apetating effectively.

EMERGY, TECHMNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGH
EXCHAMNGE

[t Company s engaged in the Business of Fnancial Services, the
operstons of the Company are nob eanengy intansive, Henca the
ifarmation reguired undes Sacton 134(m) of the A, read with this
Companios Accounts [Rules20 4 5 not apoboable tothe Company.

Th-e;ugh tha oparations of tha Company are not ol be ] intansive, this
Company promotes green ensmgy and enery saving initiatbees
ameng its employaes, Tha Campany has installed & roof top solar
penar plients ot ils conporate office

Aclopting the thamb rule of "Go Green® the Company has sdopred
Tﬂ-ﬂ;hnnlnﬂ:,r.p:ncﬁdumﬁ.nmmrnan! Pﬂp@rlasﬁwnrkmﬂ

Foreign Exchange Eamings and outgo

[haxre are o Forsign Exchange semings and autgo durmg the Yew
M FEEw,

HUMAN RESQURCE

& healthy wiork cultume is instremantal in Bringing oo the best in
employess. Human Resource plays an significant role in bridoing the
Qap batween the Managamant & their employess. Human: Resource
enriches cosdial refation within employees and inculcates a sense of
raliance and respocl amang. peoars, Your Company boliswes that
Humian Resource & important 0 the organizatio ng in ianumeralbe
amnsas, ranging trom *:hral!nn]ir_ plnnnung to company smage,

Hrwaiad Hegaort
=

Al Choice we believe that amployess are the most treasared
possassions and Cruzial Mayers for the growth and Success of the
Busifess. Employee Engagement actevitios are dane oo regulse basis
to craate a healthy anvironmiant sed fostsr happiress stworkplace

Tho Company has a stroctured induction procoss al all ecations and
manegemant development programs to upgrade skills of managers
Thia Company has continued 16 conduch various emplapas banofit,
recrestiongl, keowledge up gradateon, soft skill developments . snd
team baalding programs to anhance emplopes skills, motivation and
ir sl tefaster fiveteam sperit.

APPRECIATION S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Company's attainments would nat have besn possible without
the el of our employees in the egular course of owr Business &
speciflcally In this challenging time of COVID 19, The Board of
Directors place their sincers appreciation, for the confribution mads
by all ouremployoas.

The Eirectors ko place on recond thesr esmes gratitede for the
continusd support exdendad by the Bankars, Financial |nsttuticns,
Lasrucheers and Stakehodders for their comction and Taith rested with the
group “Chalce®,

Furthar the Directors gaprass their sincare appreciation to the all the
Regulatars of the Carmpany namely the Resores Bark of India , B5E
Limited , Secunties & Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, Registear of Companies, Depocitones, ather Geyesnment &

Regulatdry Autherities for thairon-going  support extendad by thiam
towards tha Company,

Onbahalf of the Board of Dirsctors

| 22

CHOHCE INTERNATRONAL LIMITED | AMRIAL REPCHET 2001



Anrigdise 10 Bt Hepon ':'._

i
£
n

¥
=

3

-
L

¥
-

5

CIATES! JOINT VENTURE

Staterment pursdant to Secticn 129 (3} of the Companees Act, 2013 melated to

Part "B" AS5

SE LA £A5'1055 4

0L

il

F

il

LLERE M

LEIN EET WY

ECE"ET O

5 L

9 Lri0sTEs

Lasncinte Companies and Joint Ventures

1N

TIH

11N

TiN

]3]

TiM

1]

1M

Tk

Latest audited Balance Shoet Date

EFFGERE)

e R |

PEETOSE

[T ]

PIRFREL

IEEe N’

P I8 Eal

gy an the year end

sochatesl Joind Ventures held by the
Armoaart of Investment in Associates' Jaint Werdurnss

jii. Extemtal Holding %

-
an L

= &

a E
2 =

M [ -
=

[¥5] = B

HAL O PE &I

eed LY UPY

IS er 4T &

[k T

Sia' TR

IMILEE

SFYEE

Reason why the associatas foint vontura is not consobidatod

Crescription of how thers issignificantinfluance

Metworth amrthutabde o sharehobding g per |atest sudinsd Balance Sheat

Profitd Loss for the year

Conmsidered inConselidation

MOESE BT P YT A Rl LE RN

(LT | el L RELE
liki I whBEL R L
ik | IER'¥S'aTE
Vit IR 8L

OCOITER | RObZIEER

L] Lo

M A ¥rg-]

| BER'L¥LLTE

S8R AL S0 L

| BRI DT

ELE A

1SR ZETR ol

B REL

TEA'TE LB

Mot considered in Consalidaton

HEEWE UTLE

SEQZR'PEL

LESESa Bl

BV ZLES

IhEE B R

S0 02 ST

Edfrid e

WDAEEARE)

PO EERLEL | SO ERWE | LIR VAR | BRI

SIS Er

COOTOras

L

(ki K]

[ Fifa e]}

OO0 05

DR |8

DSLELF R

B

shl

HAi

a2l

ah

Eil

FEDE VE

iy

TR R
WU

= T R LR

AL AL

=1 g REdpuas
EXu @i o)
BT

L] L]
RO E ey
PR Oty

ey MR T
] WOBLAIGYD

T 1A BRI
il il 7 )

00T 18y DN EYy
| O Oy

P14 vEnAmG
sl
STHITE N

Faliag
Eemiiintes ey
SRR RG]

B g iy
LT L

(o L0 samy (Hunoaay] sausdwon gl jo 5 3Ny Yis pEsd *pLO7 oy saiueduiosy 84140 471 beiaes jo gl uonoas-qng oo osoed 18 o1 Juensang |

SAWYIDSENS e LHvd
aumuas o] mauedwon SED0SER SFRUBIRIEGNS §0 IAUIRIES |S0URUY S J0 SR JLEBRE $) Buiumucs paweieg

L0 poday 8 1095 80i0] O3 SdnKa ULy

-4

HCE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED | ANRUAL REPCET 2031

c

CHCRCE INTERMATIONAL LIMITED | ANNUAL BEFORT 2021



Armetiie 0 Hoaigd Hepet

AOC-2

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS/ARRANGMENTS

MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES
Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section { 3] of section 134 of the Act and Rule 3] 2) of
the Compandes (Account) Rules, 2014

Form for disclosure of partioulars of contract’ arrangements enteied into by the company

with related parties refarred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain

arm langth transaction under third proviso tharets

1, Details of contracts or arangements or transaction not at arm's length basis;

Them wera no comracts oF arangemants o tansacton enterad in to during the year endad Manch 31, 2021, which wers not at arm's length bass
2. Detalle of material contracts or arrangements of transaction at arm's lenigth basis:

Mamias of the

3l Farty

WE ol

Ralationzhip

Mature of

comtracks

Durattan of

Contracts

Cillank Terms of

Contracts

by the Board

Auroaent Heaoaly

im B fincluding

Inferest tharson )
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Forrm Mo, MR-3

Seeretarial Audlt Report for the finandal yesr endled an March 31,
2021

[Purzuant bo Section204] 1 ) of the CompanesAct, 2013 and Rte No i
of thia Companins (Appointmant and Bemunaration Parsonnel) Riias,
2014]

The Members

Choica Intemational Limited

[CIM: LAT1R0MHT 89 3PLC0T1117]
Shrea Shakambhar Corporate Park,

154 1 Chakravoety Ashok Socety,

J.B. Magar, Andhe (E) Bumba -4000% 5

Wiz have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of
applicable statutory poovsians and the adherence 1o good corporate
pract:ies by Cholce Intemational Limdted hereinatier cafled ["the
Compamny™), Secretarial Audit was conducted fn a manner that
provided us a ressonable basis for svaluating the corporste
conducts/statutory compliances and axprassing our opinion tharmcon,

Based on our verificatson of the Company's bocks, papers, manute
books, fomms and returns filed and other meconds as maintained by the
Company, the infloermation provided by the Company, s aflicers,
agents and authonsed representatives during the conduct of
secrefarial audit, the expianations and clorifications givan o ws and
the reprasantations made by the Managament and considering the
relanations granted by the Ministey of Corposate Alfairs and Securitios
and Exchange Board of india warranted dus to the spread of the

Al

2P

L
Anuriguisie fo Boand Mepoan 5551
i

5. Lawd speciically applicable 1o the industry to which the
Company belangs, as sdentified and compliance whareal s
confirmed by the management, that istosay:

[ ThaRaseren Baskof India Act, 1934

(i) Rules, regulation and guidelines mseed by the Beserse Bank
of India a5 are applcabls o the Non-Banking Financisl
CompanyiMBFC)

‘We have also ésamined compliance with the applicable clauses of the
ferllowing;

la} Secretarial Standards issued by the (natitule of Company
Sacratarios of India mistad to the meatings of Board of
Darectoes and General Mestings:

{b] The SESI {Listing Obligaton and Disclosure Regquirement)
Regulstion, 2015 and listing agresment antered inta by the
Company with Stock Exchangesin India,

W have ralisd on the representation made by the Company and its
Oifficers for systems and mechansm formed by the Company arvd best
warification on random basis carmed out for complances under othar
applicable Acts, Laws and Fedgulatiors o the Company

The complanes by the Compeny of the applicable direct tax lawe,
indirect tax Lows and athar financial Laws has net bean noviawed inthis
Audit since the same have been subject 1o rewew by the other
dasignated professionals and being reliod on the mports given by
sapchdesignated prolessionals

During tha audit period, the Company has complied with the
provigions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidselines, stc. as

COMIDAY pandemic, wa hereby raport thst 0 our opinion, thie mentioned above sacept the folowing:
Chaice Equity Subsidiary CiHion Rent + 5 Yaars Loase Rant for Jusrwa 30, F0F0 1,58, 749,500 Company has dusring the audit perlod EXT/ AT ":'E financizl year [ The Coripany has debayed i teansforing the armount of
3 . ehidied an March 31, 2021 ganerafly complied sith the statutory oy 2 5
Broking Cormpuny Support Service eafflee Premises unclaimed divsdend of the financial year ended on March 31
provigions listed hereundear and also that the Cornpany has proper SE Dbt B abicr snd Briechion Fond sconam
Private Limitad harge Service Charge Board:processss and compliance-machanism in place fio the axtant, . ) ) ; e ox .
{ - I the mannerand subject to the reporting made hersinalter: i} |,1'_:-IIE tﬂ?F“”&' :;E;'“ Pr[J'_-'E'F; U|Drri]2|:1;;| "J;L' H-"-UT; of
: apostExemptad Deposit in farm and procesdin
Chaice Capital Submidiary Offien Ront + 5 Yors Lo Rent for Juer 300, 2020 32 24 400 Wa hawe examinad the books, papars, minutes' book; forms and T,::M 2050 in T M::,T_Tg Hi 1l f.; ; 9!;
resburng filed and otbees records a8 maintained by the Cormpany forth i sl Sl T RSt
3 . 2l ¥ - = 1E = Ll | [l B
L@T:_jls s Gty E_:lppnn s :H":? Fr;:sas-« financial yearended en March 21, 2021 according e the provisions of i !:mnﬂ:_r:m g \ o Fabin Kl
im “harge tervice Charge ; ; por - wring the audit pariod ender reviow, provisions of tha foliowing
. 1. Thoe Companios .ﬂu:I. 203 fthe TAca™) and the rules made regulations were riot applicable to the Company:
thassundar including any re-enactrent thasaeof A k e S ;
Chomce Consultency | Subskdiary Offloe Rant + 5 Years Leesa Ren dos Jusive 30, 200 1,08,93.000 2. The Securities Contracts [Regulation] Act, 1956 {"SCRA" and the (i Fquiﬁiﬂrliﬁf?:gulaﬁmi':gﬁﬂ :"d“ mdia (Dalisiing o
SETviCEs Company Support Sorvice alfice Premisas rules madethereunder: Ha ; . ;
Pri p— he Survice tha 3. The D i Act 1995 snd the - il bk (i} The Securities and Exdchange Board of india (Buyback ot
ivate Lirnitac Charga rvice Chargo 16 Depositonies Act, an regulatiors and bys-laws Securiias)Raculations, 2015;
' ilstinedisng (%) The Securities and Enchange Board ol India (lssue of Debt
z " I T e iGiEs ar fige Soeardl O 1ACia (195uE OF Lha
Choice Waalth Step - Down | Dice Rant + 5 Years Lease Reanf fos Juime 30 2020 494800 4. Foreign Exchange Management Act. T¥99 and the rules and Sacurities ) Regidatons, 2008
: N c : : mgularu}ns- maada tharoundar 45 the axtant of Forpign Direct ) | . )
Privato Limitod Subsidiary Support Sarvics affice Promisos4 [P {iw) The Socusities and Exchange Board of India [Employes
Seruion Srock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Company Chisrge Jefvice Lhange \e have examined the books, papers; menute books, forms and ] et R :
= i~ = 1 — = —4q T o Seheme) Guidelines 1994
refuirns filed and other racords maintainod by the Company for T & : & : i it
k ]
Chaioe Corparate Support Sendico S Yoars Zarvice Charmge Juaree 30, 2020 13,700 the financial year ended oo March 37, 2021 soccording to the i ELOT k1 m:'ha'm':!e oard af Intia {Share Base
: prowisions of Employes Banalits] Regulaticns, 2044
Seneioes Subasdiary Chargpe A . I
i, The Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) and the Rules made fwij  ThesSecwritias and Exchange Board of ndia {Regiatrars i an
Private Limited Company e G Issum and Share Transier Agents] Regulations, 19923
| ii. The Securities Contracts (Requlation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA') and g teRngy s Compinies Actand clling i cism;
Chaoice Tachlab St - Dawn | Office Fant + 5 Yiarg Lisges Rl fioe Jusive 30, 2020 2317100 tha Rules madethars undar Wefurthar raport that
Soluticns Prhvate Subskdiary Seipipart Service aflice Premises il This Depasitosies Acs, 1994 and the Requlatians and byetows - The Board of Directors of the Company Is duly consttuted with
Limited Company Charge St framped thera-under: propae balance af Exgcutive Directors: The charges in the
: Eosion Bl " T AT 1o — d compostbon of the Board of Direciors that took place during
Lo Rr':@rll 1ic i F'I_-Ig.'elhanaﬂed o I‘ b 4 A ﬁl'IlJ:: -EM;EE = tho pericd under mvies wore caried oul in compllance with
i fulairong macks there-under 1o the extent applscabdes, the prﬂuﬁlﬂniﬂfm-&hﬂ.
A mh?.t?"?ﬂ'“:lg RE?J“['_:"‘D{'{_II_"E aniﬁlﬂjyl'?aj “-'r:::nlh;?g l:”rs":é;rl « Adpuate notice = genarally given to all the Directors o
.L.'t'lr-;.:r:zgz:n ml--:xiftﬂ ;_: r;ﬂ "a:la & schedule the Board Mestings, sgenda and dotailed nobes on
3 et L . agends wers sant and thare was no formal system exists for
[a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial wasiskingy aned obstasning further information and clarifications e
.ﬁl’.quiﬂ-“lﬂrl-::-fI.‘;I"Idll:.‘hﬂﬂd!ﬂkﬂﬁﬂﬁ}ﬂi‘gmﬂﬁﬁnﬁ.m‘1. the agenda teams before the mgr:l.ting for rnganing:fu:
(b} Thie Securities and Exchange Board of inclia {Prohibition of participaticsn ot the moeting.
Insidor Trading) Regulaticrs, 2015 + Drecisions at the mestings of Board of Directors of the
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Company and Committes themol were camied out with requisite
majarity,

We hurthar report that based on the information provided and
representation mads by the Company and also on the maview of
comphances reports of the respactive depatment  duly signed by the
depastment head and Comphiance Cerilicatels) of the Managing
DirectogCompany SecrelanyCRO faken on recond by the Bosrd of
Directons of the Compary, in our opinian - system and procass asists in
the comparny regquied 1o be strengihon to commensursie with the iz
and oparations of tha Company to monitos and ensers complianoa with
theapplicablo laws, rules, regulations and guidalines,

‘W further report that during the Audit Period, the Company has pob

undartaken any speciic svent/acton that can have a major bearing an

the company’s complignce respansibiity in pusuance of the abaows

refarred taws, nilos, regulations, quidelines, standards oxcapt ag follow:

1. The confirmation of cancellation of MAFC license, ap plicaticn for
which was filed by the Company on August 20, 2018, have been
received by the Company vide RBI lettar rel No.
5021 3.001.2020-21, dated Novemnber 25, 2020

For R M Mimani & Assoclates LLP

[Company Secretaries|
[Firm Registration Mo L2017 SMHD0E300)

Manoj Mimani

(Partnar)

ACS Mo 17083

CPMNo: 11601

PR Mo 1085520

WO A0 FERIC000T TR162

Placa: Mumbal
Dsted: August 13, 2021

MNote: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which s
annaxed is “Annaaers 4" and forms an intagral part of thes repart

Annexure - A"

The Membaers
Cholce International Limited
[CiN: LAT 190OMHETIFIPLCOT 1117
Shres Shakambhan Corporate Park, 154 1 Chakravorty Ashok Society,
1. Wagar, Andhet (E] Mumbai 400099

Our Secralarial Audit Ragport of even date istobe med along with this letter;

1, Maanlensnces of sacrotacal iecoids (s the raspansiblliy ol thie managemisinl of the Company. Dur responsiblliy 5 15 express an opladon oh

these secretanial racords basad onour audit;

#. We have tollowed the awdit practices and the processes as were spprogriate to ebtain reasanable sssursnce about the correctness of the
contents of the secretarial records, The verihcation was done ontast basis fo ensure that correct facts are reflacted in secretasial reconds. We
batinve that the processes and practices, we tollowad provids a reasanable basis iorouropinian;

e b

happoning of owents plc.:

e

e hawe notverified the correctness and appropiatensss of financial records and Books of Accountz of the Company:
Where ever required, we have obtamed the Mensgement Representation about the compliance of lews, rales and megulation and

The compliance ol the prowssons of compoermte end other applicabde lws, rulas, regulatans, standards is the respoesibadity of management.

Curexzaminationwas limited to the verification of procedure entest bass;
& The Secretamsal Sudit repert is neithor an assorance as to the fulure wabilsty of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectveness with which

thia menagameant has condwcted the affairs of the Company.

For R MMimani & Associates LLF
[Company Secretaries|
[Firm Registration Mo, L2071 SMHO08300]

Sdfs

Manaf Mimani

{Partner)

ACS Mo 17083

CHPMos 11401

PREG 104854202

UMM A0 TOEIC0007T 781 62
Place: Mumbai

Diated: August 13,2021
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Secretarial Compliance Report of Choice Infermnational Limited far the year ended March 31, 2021

The Board of Directors
Choice Internatienal Limited
JCIN: LET120MHTFFIPLCOTI11T ]

Cheice Hense
Shiree Shakambhan Corporate Park,
Plod Me, 154158, 1 B. Nagar, Andhari{East), Mumbai 400057

Wi have been engaged by Choice International Limited (heraisafter
refermed to a8 The Company') wheses equity shares g Gisted with BSE
Limited {Security Code; 531358) to conduct an audit in terms of
Raguiation 244 of SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Regulmements] Regulations, 2015 as amended, ead with SEBEs
Circular o, CIRFCFDYCMD /272019 dated February 08, 2019 and to
sue Ao sl Secretans Complignce Report tharean,

It iz the responsibilty of the management of the Company o maintain
rcores, daviza propor Seslfoms 10 ansurg t.nmpl:i:nnq ol tha
prisisicng Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ("SERI
Act”), the Sacurities Contracts (Regulation)Act, 1956 ("SCRA™L and afl
appiicable Fulés, Regulotons snd cirodlesy? guidedines issued thens
wnder from time o time and o ensure that the systems are adequate
and are operating afactivaly,

Cur respansibility @ veddly compliances by the Company with
provisions of all SEBI Act, SCRA and all applicabla Rulas, Regulations
and circulars! guidelings isued there under from time to gme and
imgue arepo theraod,

Our awdit was conducted i accordance with Guesdance Mote on
Annual Secretarial Compliance Beport mssed by tho instibute of
Company Secretaries of ndia and v a mamnner which involeed such
swaminations and varifications as considerad necessary and
adeguits for the said prerpace, subject to the lenitation that doe 1o
lnckdown and social distancing guidelines issaed by the Ministry of
Homa &fairs for containmant of spread of Covid 19, the Company
s provicled registers; minuete books, forms, returns and otber
records malntained by It by slecienle maans for cur varification as
regquared for the purpeds of suanee of this repon and hoes not been
physically weribed by us, Howaser the management of the Comipany
has canfirmid that all documsnts provided by efectronic means ars
e and comect copies of anginaldecumants.

Annual Secretanal Compliance Report in the format prescited s
enclomnd herewith.

Foor B M MIMANI & ASSOCIATES LLP
|Cormpany Secretaries]

[Firm Ragistrafion Mo, L30T SMEGHEE00|
Sdt-

Manef Miinand

|Partner]

ACSHNe: 17083

CP Mo 17601

PRMo: 1065/2021

LI A0 R IC 000551958

Placa Mumbai
Diated: Jure 30, 2021

Seaatanial Compliance report of Choice Intemational Limited for the
year ended March 31, 2021
[Undar regulation 24A of tha SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requiremaents) Regulations, 2015]
‘Wehave examined:
a il tho descurnonts ancd ecords made aveslabds (ows avd axplanation
provicled by Chiolce intemational Limited [“the Ssted entity”}
b thafilngs submssons mada by thefisted entity tothestack exchanges,
e webate ofthe listed sntity,
any other docemant! filing, as may be melevant, which: has bean
rualtedd wipeon 1o make this cadification,

for the year ended on March 33, 2021 ["Rewew Period”} in reapect

ol comgliance with the provissonsof:

a the Secutities and Exchange Board of Indsa &, 1992 ("SEBD )
and tha Regelatons, cirmilars, quidalines isied thare-undsr; and

b tha Seasfios Contracts{Regulation) fct, 1956 ["SCRAT), rules made
thare-under and the Regulations, cioulars, guedalines igseed thanes
ey By thia Securitees and Exchange Board of Indsa [*SEBI®);

The specific Requlations, whose provisions and the cirdularss
guidedines ssved there-under, have been axamined, incude:

a Seouritios and Exchangs Board of India (Listing Dbligations and
Disclosura Requirements) Regulations, 201 5;

b Seourities and Exchange Board of india {(Issue of Capstal and
Cusclosure Requirements ) Regulations, 20138;

¢ Securities and Exchange Boand of india (Substantial Acquisitian
of Shanres arved Takeowers) Regulaticons, 2011;

d Socuritios and Exchange Board of India {Buyback of Secunties)
Regulations, 2018, [ Mot applicable as there was no reportable
vt during the review perlod)

& Securities and Exchange Board of india [Share Based Employes
Benefits) Regulations, 2044, [Not applicable as there was no
reportable event during tha review periad]

f Securitien and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of
Dbt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

[Mot applicable as there was no reportabla event during the

raview pariod|

g Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing o
MNon-Convartible and Redesmable Prafarence Shares)
Requlations 2013; | Mol applicable as there was no reportable
svantduringths review pariod]

h Securities and Exchange Board of ndia [Probibition of Insidar
Trading) Regulztions, 2015
and cinculars/guidelines ssued thers-under; and based an the
above exarmnation, wi hereby reporthat, during the Reviow Perod;
a  The listed entity has complied with the proviions of the sbowee

Regulations and circulors! guidelings issuad there weder.

b The fisted entity has maintained propes racords wnder the
provisions of the above Begulations and circulars!
gusdelines (ssusd there-under insodar as it appears from
iy our examination of those records.

& The followeng are the detass of acticng taken egaingt he listed
aatityd its promoters! directors! materal subsidiarias
aithar by SEBI or by Skock Exchanges (including under tha
Standartd

Oipserating Procedures issuad by SER throughvarious ciroulars) under the
aloresaid Acts! Regulations and droulars’ guidefines ssead tharp-unden

ar Action Datalls Detals of Ohssrvatans
Mo, takenby  obwolation achontaken Remarks of the
E-g.. Hines, Prischigineg Company|
warning lettar  Secretany
Wil

d - Thelisted entity has taken the followshg actions 1o comply with
the obaenmations made in previous repeets (Mot applicable, 2
them was nocbservation made in previous report, |

Foor B MMIMANE & ASSOCIATES LLP
|Company Sacrotaries|
(Firm Registrtion Meo: L2001 SMHO0EZ00]

Sdl.
Pana) Mimani

[Fartnar]
AL M 17083

CPMeo: 114601
PR Mo, 10452021
UM A0 FOGBICOO055 1958

Place: BMumbai
Crated: June 30, 2021

|
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Secretarial Audit Repont of Choice Eguity Broking Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2021

FORMNO. MR 3
SECRETARIAL ALIDIT REPORT
FORTHE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 2021

[Pursgsnt to Saction 20401 ol the Campaniies A1, 2013 and Rulo Mo 9
of the Companies (Appointment and Ramuserstion of Managerial
Parsonnel} Rules, 2014)

LECRETARIAL ALDIT REPORT
FORTHE FINAMCIALYEAR EMDED 3 15T MARCH, 2021

Ta,

The Mambers

CHOICE EQUITY BROKING PRIVATE LIMITED
LI USSP MH20TDPTC 1987 14)

Shres Shakambhari Corporate Park, 154-158,
Chakravart Ashok Society,

J.B.Magar, Andhari (East)

Mumibai - 400 059

‘We have condutted the Secretanal Audit of the compliance of
spplicable statutory provesions and the adhormnce 1o good carporate
praciices by CHOICE EQUITY BROKING PRIVATE LIMITED
{harainattar called the *Campany®). Sacratarial Audit was condfucted
in & manner that provided us & reasonable basis for evaluating the
corpemte conductsfstatutony compliances and expressing aur
apinian thenson,

Basad an our veffication of the Company's books, papers, minuts
hooks, forms and retumes filed and other reconds maintained by the
Company end also the information provided by the Company, its
afficers, sgonts and authorized rmpresentatives during the condasct of
sedratiiial awdit, we heraly repont that in oul apanion, the Company
has, during the audit pariod covering the financial yaar endad an 3150
Mareh, 2021 {"Audit Period'] complied with the stalulary provisions
listed hersunder and ateo that the Company has proper Board-
processas and complience-rmechanism i place to the axtent, in fhe
manner and subjact to the reparting rnads herejnafter;

Wie tuiyve sxamaned the books papisrs, minute books, farrms and returns
fifed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial
year mnded on 31et March, 202 1 according 1o the peonigiong of:

L The Camparmss Act, 2013 Jthe Act] end the Rules mode
themmunder;

Il The Sacurities Contracts (Reguiation) Act, 1956 {"SCRA' and the
Rulesmade tharsundar;

i, The Depostores Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws
{ramed thareunder

IV, Foreign Exchange. Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and
Rogulations made therounder 1o tha adent of Foreign Diact
lveestment, Cheersoas Direct Investreent and Exdermnal Commercal
Borrowings;

W, The fallowirg Regulstons and Guidetines preseribed andes the
Sacuites #ndd Exchangs Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI At} ta
the eutant applicabile 1o the Campany:

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial

the CompaniasAct and dealing with cliant
{Mot applicable to the Company during the Audit paricd];

® The Securities and Exchange Boeard of India {Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements] Regulations, 2015,
{Mat applicable to the Company during the Auditpeniod);
Curing the financial year, the Company is engagead in
busimess acthities which arg not sulifect tooany specific law
and hence no spacific law sapplicable to the Company.
‘We have also examined complianee with the apphcable
clauses af tha following to the extent spplicable:

3. Secretanal Standards with regard to Meeting of Board of
Dhresctors (55-1] and General Meatings (55-2) lssuad by tha
Institute of Chmpany Secrataries al ndia; and

b Securities and Eschange Board of India (Listing Obligations
ang Digclopaune Requirements] Regutations, 2015,

. The listing agreement entered into by the Company with
Steck Exchanges in India,

During the year undar raview the Company has compliod with the
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidetines, Standards, Debs
Listirg Aagrecsment abe, mentionaed abowe,

‘Wa turther raport that

The Board ol Directors of the Compary s duly constituted, The
changos in the composition of the Board of Diroctors that took placo
during the year under réviesw were carfled oul in complience with the
prrvisinns ol the Act,

Adequate notice 5 given to ali Directors to schedule tha Boasd
Meatings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent ot beast
sowan days in advancs, and acystom exists for sooking and chtaining
further information and clarfications on the agenda iterms before the
ruzeting wnd far maeanigiul participation st the measting,

As per the minutes of the mestings duly recarded and signed by the
Chairmin, the decidions of the Board were unanimaus and no
disserting views have boon recordod.

We further report that based on the information provided, received
and records maintained there anée adequate systems and processes in
the Company commansurate with the site and oparations of tho
Corrgary 1o momalor and ensure complignos with applicable laws,
rubes. mogulatonsand guidelines,

Section 185 and Section 184 is applicable to Companies according
ta the Companies Act, 2013, The Company has passad the requisite
resobullan and Tile the e-form MGT- 14 for the sama,

As informed, the Company has responded appropriately o
communication received from various statutory ¢ regulatory
sutharities mcluding inrtiating acticns for corrective messures,
whareauer found necassary,

Wiz further informed that due 1o lockdown and social distancing
gl jssued by the Ministry of Homoe 8ffaies (MHEL) wde orders far
con@Rinment of spresd of Covid-1 %, the abaove mentaned docurments,
reqistars, forms, s have not been physically verified by s a3 being
rasndained by the Company al their offices. Whils wie howe taken all
passble staps o vanfy the eoonds as made awsilshle o w by the
Covmpany throwah electronic mediam, whereyer requingd but the audit
was dona subjec to bmitstion ol availabiity of documents.

5o

Anrigmiae 2 Bl Repan o
[=orAs

Annexure - “A°
The Members
CHOICE EQUITY BROKING PRIVATE LIMITED
Mumbai

Olur Secrstarial Audit Beport af even date isto be read along with this [etber;

1. Maintenance of secretaiial records is the responsibility of the management of the Campany. Our rasporsshility s to express an oplinson on
these sacratanial records based on ourawdit;

£ Wi have fallowed the audit practices and the procesies @ wene appropriate 1o obizin reasonable assurance shout the correciness of the
contents of the secretanal records, The veribcation was donaon tastbasis to ensure that correct facts are reflected In secretarial racords, We
beedirar that tha processes and practices, we fallowed providie a reasonablo basis for ow epinion;

3 W have not verified the correctness and approgriatensass of financial records and Baoks of Accounts of the Company;

4. Whare aver regquired, we have obtained the Management Repressntation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulstion and
happening of seents ete

5. Thecompliance of the provigions of corporate and other applicatnls laws, rules, regulatons, standards = the responstbifity of management.
Churexaminatice was limited to the werification of procedure on test basis|

#. The Secratarial Audit report s neithes anagsoranoe a5t the future viabdlity of the Company fnos of the efficscy or sfectvenseds with wiich the
managerment has conducted the affairsof the Company.

For MNidi Bajaj & Azsoclates

Company Secretanies

Sdi-

Micthi Bajaj

Froprietor

ACS=Z8707 COP- 14554

LUDIMN: ADZEFOTCO007FE1 3T

Crate: 1 7th August 2021
Placo: Mumbai

.ﬁ.-cquiﬂtiu:rln'rEharn-r- and Takeowers) Regulatinns, 2EI1_1 ] For Midhi Bajaj & fAssociates
(Mot applicabla to the Company during the Auditparicd); CompanySacretanias
b, The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Prohibition of
Insicher Trading) Regulations, 2015; Sclf-
Mot applicable to the Company during the Auditperiod]; :::Ii:qq
o ; ko
&, Tha Securities and Exchange Beard of India (lssus of Capital !
and Disclosurs Rpguirements) Requlatioss, 2005 ALS- IB:ZFI:IT JCOF. 14598
(Mot applicable to the Company during the Auditperiod): LIDHN: AD2ER0TC0007 98137
d, The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an D8%8: 17thAugust, 2021
ke and Share Transfer Agents] Regulatians, 1893 regarding  Place: Mombai
2 | -______________________________________ ]| - | 3
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Secretarial Audit Repon of Choice Finsery Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2001

FORMMNO. MR 3
SECRETARIAL ALDHT REPORT
FORTHE FINANCIALYEAR ENDED 31 5T MARCH 2021

[Purswant toSaction 204(1)of the Companses Act, 200 3 and Rule Mo @
af the Companies (Appoistmant and Rermunaratian of Managsrial
Persannal] Rules, 2074)

SECRETARIAL ALUDIT REPORT
FORTHE FIMANCIALYEAR ENDED 15T MARCH, 20217

Ta,

Thie Mambers

CHOICE FINSERY PRIVATE LIMITED

(SN LT 430 MHZDTSPTCZA1908)

Shree Shakambhar Corporate Park, 154158,
Chakravarti Ashok Sociaty,

LB Magar, Andhari[East),

Mumbai - 400 0945

Wn have conducted the Secretarial Auddt of the compliance of
applicable statutory provisions and the adhemnoe o good corporate
practces by CHOICE FINSERY PRIVATE LIMITED (hersinatter called
tha "Campany”], Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manpar that
prowded us a reasonable basis for evaluating the coarporate
conducte/siatuton compliances and aspressing cur opinion thareon,

Based on our verfication of the Company’s books, papers, mimate
biooks, forma and returms filed and other recosds mamitaimed by the
Company and alse tha Informaticn provided by the Comgpany, its
officers, egents andautherized represaniaiines during the oondswest of
secratanal audit, we hereby repont that m our opinion, the Company
hias, durin.g theaudit period cnwrlngﬁu;llln:nniu.iynarmdqd on 31sl
March, 2021 "Audit Parod') complied with the stetulory prowisions
listed hersundsr and also that the Company has propss Beard-
proscesges snd compliznce-rmechanism in place to the extent, in e
manner and subject tothe reporting mades hereinatter:

We haveesamined the books, papers, minute bocks, forms and returms
filed and other records masrtained by the Company lor the finamncisl
yearendadon 312t March, 2021 sccording tothe prowvisions of:

I The Compames Act, 2013 [the Act) and the Rules made
tharasnder

I The Securities Contracts (Regulatice) &ct, 1954 PSCRA') and tha
Raglers made thareundar;

Iil, The Depostones Act, 1994 and the Regulations and Bya-laws
framesd threundor:

. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and
Regulations made thersunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Frwastment, Ouermoas Direct investmont and External Commersinl
Bormowings:

Y. The folfowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the
Sucurities and Exchange Boand of India &ct, 1992 {"SER] &ct'] 10
theextent applcabla tothe Comparny:-

a The Sacwrities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial
Acquizition of Sharesand Takeovers) Regulstions, 2017;
(Mot applicable to the Company during the Audil perod)

b The Securities and Exchange Board of Indis {Prohibition of
Inzicler Tracleng ) Regulaticns, 201 5;

{Mot applicable to the Company during the Auditperiod);

o, The Secunties and Exchange Board of India {ssue of Capital
and Discloxurn Requiremaents ) Regulations, 2009,

{ Mot applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

o, Tha Secwritias and Exchange Board of ndia [Ragistrars 1o an
Issug and Share Transdar Agemis) Begulatians, 1993 mgarding
the Companiesdot and dealing with eleent,

[Mot applicable to the Company during the Auditperiod);

&, Tha Securities and Exchange Board of Inda [Listing Obligatans
and Discinsura Reguiraments) Ragulations. 2015,
{ Mot applicabla to the Company during the Audit period];

Diuireng the financiol year, the Company & engaged in business
activitios which are not subject 1o any speciic law and hence no
specific lawis applicable tothe Company,

We have also examined compliancawith the applicable clauses
ol thie fallowing to the extent applicabile to the Compaiy;

8. Secretaral Standards with segard to Meeting of Board of
Crirmctors (535-1}and Genaral Maatings (55-2) issusd by the
Institufeof Company Secretarmes of India) and

b, Securitias and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligatons
] Dhiselosure Regquersments ) Regulateana, 2015,

. The lsting agreement entered into by the Company with
Stock Exchangeain lndia.

Cruring the wear under raview the Company has complisd with the
privvisions of the Act, Rules, Regulaticns, Guidelines, Standards, Debt
Listeng Agreemeant etc. mantioned above.

Wie lurthesr rapor that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted, The
changes in the composition of the Board of Dirmcans that ook place
during the year under review were carmied out in compliance with the
pravisions ol the Act,

Adeguate notice = gwven o all Directors 1o schedule the Boand
Muatings. agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sant at least
seven dayd In advance, and a syatem exists for seaking and obiaining
furthor information and clanfications on the agenda itorms bofore the
rmigating and for meaningiul participation at the masting.

A par the minutes of tho mestings duly mcorded and signad by the
Chairman, the deckcions of the Board were unanimous and oo
dissenting wews have boon mecorded,

W further réport that based on the information provided, recelved
and moords maintained there madnquql:n systame and processes in
the Company commenswsate with the size and cperations of the
Company o moeilor and ensum complisnoe with applicable lws,
rubes, regulationg and guidelines,

Az informed, the Company has responded appropriataly to
commupication received from various statutory [ reguletory
autharities including initiating sctions far corrective meEesures;
wheroyer found necesseny

Vg lurther informed that dee 1o lockdown and social distancing
gurldalings ssued by the Mimstry of Home Affairs (MHA) vde orders
for cortainment of spread of Covid-19, the above mentiened
chocuments, registers, forma, eic. have not been physically verified by
us, an being maintained by the Company at thair afficos. Whils wo
e takeen afl possibibe gteps tooverify the records a8 rade availoble to
us by the Company throwgh shectromic madiom, whemver requirsd
but the audit was doane subject o lmitetion of availability of
documeanis

For Micthl Bajej & Assoclates
Company Sacratarles

Salr.

Widhl Baja
Proprietor

ACS - 28907 COP- 145956
DM ADZEFOFCO00TREIZS

Gt 1 Tihy August. 2021
Placs: kismbai

5o
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Annexure - "A"

The Members
CHOICE FINSERY PRIVATE LIMITED
Mumbai

Ouir Secretarial Audit lep ot of even dete s to be pasd slong with this letter;

1.

Malntenance of secretarial records = the responsibilty of the-managemant af the Company. Our responsibility i= to srprass an opinkan on
these secretarial reconds based on aur audil:

. W heye Tollowed he audit practices and the processss as werg appropnste to obiain reasonehle pssuwronae about the comectnass of the

contars of the secratarial records, Tha werification was done on test basis o ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretanial reconds, We
belisee that the processes and practices, we followed paovide g reasonable basis Tor our apnion)

. We havee not verified the correctness and appropristeness of financial records and Books of Accownts ofthe Company;
. Whare everregquired, wa have obtained the Management Represantation about the compliance oHlaws, rules and reguistion and happening

of events ete.;

, The compliance of the prowsions of corporate and othesapplicable laws, nules, regulatons, standards is the respansibiliy of managemeant.

Cur examinatian was limited to the variflcation of procadura.on test basis;

; Thae Sacretarial Audit repar s naither an assurance as to the luturm viability of tha Cormpany oor of th efficacy o effectiveness with which the

managament has conducted the affairs of the Company,

For N Baja) & Associates
CnmpmyEnl:lIt-in:

Sl

Micthi Bajaj

Proprietor

ACS- 28907 COP- 14595

UDEN: A028907CO00T 98126

Crata: 17 th August, 2021
Place: Mumbai
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Secretarial Audit Repornt of Choice Consultancy Services Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2021

FORMMNO. MR 3
SECRETARIALALUDIT REPORT
FORTHE FINANCIALYEAR ENDED 315TMARCH 2021

[Fursuant toSection 20401 Jof the Companies Act. 2013 and RBube Mo, @

gl the Companias (Appointment and Remuneration of Managenial
Persannel ] Rules, 2094

SECRETARIAL ALUDIT REFORT
FORTHE FINANCIALYEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 20219

Ta,

Tha Mambars

CHOICE COMSULTANCY SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U7 2900MH201 0P TC198403)

Shies Shakambhan Corporate Park, 154158,
Chakravarti Ashok Sociaty,

J.B:Magar, Andheri[East),

blwemibiai - 400 09

o. The Seocurities and Exchange Board of India [Listing
Crbligaticans and Disclosure Requirements ) Requlations, 2015
[Matapplicable to the Company during the Audit period);
Diuirkre the financial year, the Compady s angeged i busineas
activitins which arm not subject to any spacific law and hance
nicr specific law is applicable o the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable

clpies of the lallowing io theextant applicable;

A, Secretanal Standards with regard to Meseting of Board of
Directars [55 1) srvd General Meslings [55:2) issued by tha
fstitute of Company Secretanies of India; and

b, Securities and Exchange Board af India (Listing Obligations
and Disctosura Reguiremants) Regulations, 2015,

£ Tha lsting agramant entered into by the Company with
Stock Exchanges.in india.

Cruring tha year under review the Compary has complied with the
provssnns of the Al Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, Dbt
Listing Agreemsnt etc. mentioned abows,

Anrigmiae 2 Bl Repan o
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The Members
CHOICE CONSULTANCY SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Mumbai

Cur Secrotarial Audd Ropart of even dato i to o read along with this et

1. Maintenance of secretarsl recosds 4 the responsibility of the mesagement of the Company, Our respomibility @ W expies an
opinion on these secretarial records based on car audit;

2. W have foliowed the audil practices and the procosses as ware appropriate fo oblain easonable assursnoo aboul the comactnass
of the contents of the secrétarlal records. The verification was done on test basis 10 enaure that correct facts are milectad in sacnetarial
racords. Wa balieva that the processas and practices, we followed provide a ressonatle basis for our opinion;

3 W have nol vetified the correctness snd appropriatenesss of financial records and Books ol Accounizsol the Company;

A Whers sver reguired, we hove oblained the Mansgement Representetion sbodt the compliance of laws, rules pnd eegulation
and happening of awents atc

5. The complisnce al the provisions ol corporate and other applicable laws, roles, regulations, standards = the responsibility
of manage ment. Cur axammation was [imited te theverification of procaduns on tast basis;

&, The Secratarial Audit report & neithar an assurance a5 1o the future viability ol the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with
which thie management has conducted the affaics of the Company,

For Nidhi Bajaj & Assoclates

We have conducisd the Secretarisl Audit of the compliance of W lurther repori that Company Secretares
appheable datutory provsions and the adherence 1o good corponite  Thy Board of Directors of the Company is duly constitutod. The
practices by CHOICE COMNSULTANCY SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED  oy5n06: in the compasition of the Board of Directors that took place
{herminafter calked the "Company™). Secetarial Audit was conducted ina during the year undar rieviow wern carned out in complianoe with the Sdi-
marll__ll'nar:lhat provided us a_reas.n:-nad:;l’e bz tor E\-aluaﬂjr?-:_:_theﬂn:-:-rparar.e provisions af the Act, Nidhi Bajaj
E:E;E;T:’E_f:‘Tarr‘;ﬁ:ﬂE:;{“;:”E:;ﬂ:::?m'?gﬂr:;mm Adoguate notice s gvon ta all Directors fo schedulo the Board Propriator
Hodks. forms and retoms Rlod: s tihes iy maiktaind by tha Maatings, a_gﬂnr_la- and detaibed notes on adenda wiere sent at Fe-asl ACS-2E907 COP. 14594
Compaty ard also the information provided by the Company, its savan days in advance, and a systam axists far seaking and ohtaining LIDHM: ADZEFOTCOO0TRETAS
aHficars, agents and authorized reprasentatives during the conductof  Tarther infarmation and clarfications on the agenda items before the Diate: 17th August, 2021
secretarial audlt, we hereby report that in sur epinion, the Company  meingand formeaninghul participation atthe masting. Placa: Mt
has, during the audit perind covering fhe financial yearendad on 315t As por tha minutes of the maetings duly recorded and signod by the '
March, 2021 {"Audit Period') compliad with the statulony provisiens  Chasrman, the decisions of the Board: were unanimous and no
listed hevgunder and also that the Company has proper Board.  dissenting views bave been reconded.
processes and cormphiance-rmechanism in place to the extent, in e ya furher reporr that basod on the information provided, receieed
mannat and subject tothe reparting mads herainatter: ant recards malntinad there am adequate systams and processes in
Win have axamingd the books, papers, minute baeks, forms and returms the Compaty commensutate with the siz and eperations of the
flied aned other reconds mamtained by the Company for the finencial  SEmPany 1o menitor 'i'“_d encura comnpliance with applicable laws,
yiar endod on Vs March, 2001 according o the provisions of; rubes, regulations and guidelnes,
) Sacton 185 and Sacthon 186 5 applicabds to Compandes according ta
I I::'mf:;;q”'ﬁ Act, 2013 (the Agt] and the Rules made the Companies Act, 30713, Tl'n.rpg-:lmpanr has papf::d the mquiEi!u
7 . : resolution and file the &-form MGT-14 for the same
. L:Fji:’;‘;‘ﬁ?ﬁ:ﬁg:?‘Mummn:‘m’1956‘ R T ard the 13 iITFIJ'I'FI_'IE"Ij., the L-E!"“-P‘in'l' has rIBI'ﬁF‘n-ndml appropriataly 1o
: coumrrmunicetion recsived from various statulary J regulatery
. The Deposirories Act. 1996 and the Regulations and Byedaws  authoritios including initiating actions for corrective measures,
framad thareanden whizrever faund necessany,
W, Foresgn Exchange Mansgement Act, 1999 and the Rubes and e further Informed that due to lockdown and social distancing
Requlations made thereunder to the adant of Foralgn Direct guidelines issued by the Minstiry of Home Sfairs {MHA ) wde ordars
Imyrstrment, Cwerseas Direct Investmient and Evboermal Cormmarcial o containment of spread of Cowid-19, the above meantioned
Bomosings: documsnts, registars, forms, o, have net boan physically varified by
W, The tollowing Regulations and Guedalines prascribed unders the U, @8 being rmakitaned by the Company at thelr offices, Whils we
Seturities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (*SEBl Acty1a  have taken all possible steps to varify tha rmoords as made availabla to
the axtant applicable to tha Compar:- us by the -Em_'npnny throwgh ebg-ctrm’:‘n: mediurm, whemer mc!uired
a. The: Secorities. anc Exchancs: Bonrd of tadss Subirstisl :Etn:xﬂ:gn?z:dﬂ wan done subject to lmitation of availability of
Acauisition of Shares and Takeowers) Regulatons, 20711,
(Mot applicableto the Company during the Audit periad) For Micth| Bajej & Associates
b. Tha Seeurifes snd Exchange Board of indis [Prohititan af  FomPanySecaetaies
Insider Trading) Regulations, 201 5 .
(Mot applicable to tha Company during the Auditperiody Hil‘.ﬂ.'H“ 2
= ;I:s Securities gnd Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital -nh:
Drsclosure Requirements ) Regulatans, 2009, i . - 14554
[Not applicable o the Company during the Audit periady i S|
d. The Securities and Exchange Bossd of India (Registrars toan  UDIN: AQZE90TCO00T 95148
Issuaand Shars Transler Agants) Begulations, | $93 regarding
thie Companies Act and dealing with client. Cratee 1 Mh August, 2021
(Mot applicable to the Company during the Audit perlod) Flace: Mumibal
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Business Rasponsibility REF—D s

The group "CHOICE® recognizes s robs as 3 Corporats Ciiren @nd
andemaum o adopt tha best practices and the hagheat standands ol
Conporate Govermance through transparency | Business ethics
accovtabillity i all (is stakabolders, Thie Company's sctiviting am
curried gul i the sound corporate culture Brvirenment. We ol
"CHOICE" ballove in scologeal dewsiopment ol aur Busingss, in ths
conatantly changing Business environmenl The group caters i o
‘Finane manaetheless thete aeo conlineEoud el !31- T
for sustainable deselopmant of all owr Business
E TR, T COMpany aSpees 1D maks ophim.s
matural ferecaey & far 11 oDaraleane Sctavtes

sl SeovicE”
H‘|,1r|,g. |l_'|'ll"'r L P

consuamgtion of

Pretace

B imancisiod by the Secunties and Exchangs Boaeid o indis | SE0T e
randated , India's top 1000 companiss. listed on BSE and NSE based
o mmarioe capitalisation e required o sabimil " Businoss Responetbidng
Regsor | BRA) along with their &nnusl Repon . Althowugh your Company
is nat in the lsague of Tog 1000 Listed Companies, Your Company

i1 Bcsmrch Megpadt 00

AL 4

volurtarily airms to sdopt the guidslines iswved by SEB] with respect 1o
Business Responsibility statement to adhers to best philosophies of
ethical princples o un & company and 1o abide to the Comporate
Goyemanos practisas in e | etter & spint

“Choice Wnbernational Limitsd® or “Cholea” your Company voluntanky
far the Financial Yem 2020 21 presenis s BRE in Gee with Mational
Voluntary Guidelines on Soclal, Enviranmantal and Econamis
RﬂﬁF.'.‘ll'l:lhﬂ'l'E'. al Busdneas (INWGa) and the BRE E-I'l-'.'|..-rr|l'rl.nrll'. el
CEAL The Busisss Redponaibility Pedormance af the Compaty
assersad anmually by the Bosed of Dereitners of the Company

The Compavy s at & weny fatdind Slage 1o adfhere 1o the megruelsteons
chyoulated lor addieing tha Baprers Bespesmashil ty Rl 1ha
Company = in the process of sdopinng srediured polxes 10 sdheis
1z the Pranciples of Busineas h'ul\.r.'ll'l'_..'ulﬂy F'F'.r\ll'.ll'l St

¥our Company beldwia in the soul of the gueidsng Principles, which
shiall lead us 1o the peth ol shouldaering our responsithifitios fowards
i society (N which we piactice

Yaiir Coimpany “Cholos iIntornational Limited” alomgwiih s subsidiaries sndstep down subsidianes are purely engaged in * Service " nduatry
the chrill b5 to make optimum ulilisation of ervironmentsl resources & adhare to the mocal principles of sodal responsibility lowards the soclety

at largein true lothel & spirt

Asper Clause 34 if j of the SEBI Listing Obligation & Didewss Requiroment Regulation, 2015

SECTION A GEMERAL INFORMATION ABCAITTH E COMPANYT

{0 g e NesnliTelatany MNTalos

LATT90MH1FFPLLOMNY

Fi Narm of thie Cormpany Choice Infernationas Limitad

3 Regisersd Addrass Cholos Honese, Shree Shakambhan Corporate Park, Plot Na 156 - 158,
1B Nagar, Andheri [ Eaad], Mumbaad - 4000599

d Walisite vewiw choicamdin cam

5 Ervimil Al ress infodbe hoscaindia com

fi Finaricial Year reported Apil 07, 202000 March 31, 2007

H Sectors ) thal the ooy S endaged in Finmsncial Sarvices

B T il ey prochucie’ SadveDes Thes Comparny & the holdaig Company Snd [hes Dusaness & Gt ut

ramuisrteracd prosedied by the company

n o submedharies | R mayos Bussnass sagment of the group compirisas

of Broking &Dtrdvtion, - Broling & Datribution, Advisory & NBFC
Bursness

r] Tobal Humbsr of locations whote Busirass aclivity a9

s uwndariaken by the company
1M M kot s servod h'.'l.hu COFT faliTy Dioeneshic
SECTION B: FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPAMNY

1 Paed wp Capetal R=. 28 55 82 TI0

| Total Tusrmdwer Re17.581 58 Lakhs

3 Tt Peodit alor Tax R 1671 DOLakim

4 Todal ypanding on C5R s perceniage of PAT (1) R 11,81 Lakbs{ On Comoladated [Lyss)

|kt 1 @cTiwitees inwhich sxpendibure o 4
phitwes hun baon incurmed

Educaticnal Programmet, Rural Developmsnt,
Environmear] Sustasability

13 _ e ——— 36

CHOICE STERMNATIOMNAL LIMITED | AMMUA REPDET 2051



Al
b=l
E-I_:";:.il Arneiins 1o o Hep=ait
SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS
1 Dpes the Company has any subsidiary Company fCompanies? Yei
Tha Compary has 5 whally owned subsidianes & 4 Step
Dot s o March 31, 20219
. Diothe Subsidiary Company’ Companies participate in the Yes
BR nitiatives of the paront Company T I Yes | than indicate the
numibarof such subsidiany campany {5,
3 Dio ey othier entity) entities| ag. Suppliers, distributoretc.) Mat applcable
that the cormpany does business with  participate inthe BR
imitiatves of the Comany ¥ If yas, then indicate the percentage
at such entity, entites Less than 309, 30.60%, Mora than &0 %)
SECTIONM D¢ BR INFORMATION
1 Detailyaf Directons responsible for BRE
a Diatails at the Director responsible fos implamentatson of
tha DR Palicy
D e 01518700
T Karnnl PFoddar
Dasignation Managing Diractor
b Datails of the BR haad
(o] (] Nn{lfapplécahioj
Pl hases] Singhaia
Diaslanaton Chief Financol Gfficar
Telephons Number O22-aT 0T
Emalil Addrass rmandg| singhanapichoiceindia.om

Primiciple swise BE Policy! Palicias
Giovormance relatod Lo BR

SECTION E: PRINCIPLE WISE PERFORMANCE

1 Principla- Wiss Performance

Fringipta 1:
ETHICS, TRANSPERAMNCY & ACCOUNTABILITY

Ej-rh:qgﬂ:ingihrq]-uq Corporate Citizen, the Company attampts to
adopt the supreme practices and the highest Stendards of Corporate
Governance through Trangparency in Business Ethics, ransparancy
andAccountabitity toits Clients, Governmant and othars.

To build the greatest Compliance culture, your Company volurntarily
embracing set of strong govemance principles and extending its
practices bayond legal Provisions.

Considering Corporate Governance as an integral part of Vigitam
Crrganization, Cholos Growp s commatted toact professionally, fairly
and with idegrity in all s demlings.

The Campuny Policy on Code of Conduct has already miantioned the
Standard on athics, transparency and accountahiity,

Code of Conduct definas tha behawviour sxpected from all the
ernployees and stakeholders and practices along with the polbicies

Includart in the: Raport
Included in the Bopon

Included inthis report

ard sy=tems lor efoctive implemaentation, Tho Company's Code af
Conduct ensuras that gl its employess, shareholders and other
stakoholdors raspoc tha rights of not only sach othoer, but alsa that of
the cormmunities inwhichthey gparate,

“Cholce” has developed 3 set of palicies, codes, and guidelines 1o
gowam its Directors, senior aobcutives, officars, amplowess (whother
pasmanaent, fiked teem o temporany pend thivd parties. Yowe Company
abs has a Whistle Blower Palicy which allows smployess to bring 1o
thee attention of the Masagerment, pramgtly and directly sy unethical
hehayiour suspected fraud or imegularity In the company practises
which is net in ling wath the Code af Conduct of the Company,
Adequate messures are In place to ansure safeguards Bgaknst
victimization for employseswho report any unethical behavior,

Ethics:
Tlaieres 4 & robust system 1o probect the confidentiality of unpubiished

prece sensitae irtoemation, The system works through procssses that
not anky ensuros compliance with tha requiremants prescribed under

CHORCE INTERMATIOMAL LIMITED [ ANNUAL BEFORT 2021
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Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibitiom of Ingider Trading)
Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time, by making tmeaty
diseleaures o steck axchanges, declptalions by designated persons,
bt alsn moves ahaad with the help of the Company's Code of
Practices and Procedures for far disclosurs of Unpubdishad Frice
Sansitive Information, The Code s applicable to those employess of
the Company, its subisidiaries and joimt wenteres, who may be deemad
e b pecess to wnpublEched price sengitive informatica

Mo Stake holders complaints with respect to the Company's code of
conductand whistla Blowsr Palicy wers recaived in the raporing year
Transparency:

Mransparency and laimess in desling with clients and cther stake
holders |5 one of the sprite of the company's practice & polxy. The

Compatty considars thal tramsluced working i sl the strata of the
organisation = the mostvital aspect of the company's growth stary,

The Company regularly through its corporate announcemant
practcn, communicates o it Mormbers B other stake holders about
any new development B wital information on the Company’s
Parformanco & growth,

Accountability:

Your Comparny's oporations ars managed by Professionals; where this

Compary has embedded tha Policy of Maker - Checker, which l=ads
1o dedine of nagligrnoe on past af any afficials of the Company,

Thie Compasy has in place the mechanism far desaling with invesiar
services & resalving the same on prionity basis, The detail of Invesior
Complain meaived during the year is provided o the Carporato
Goveingnie Report,

Princlple &
PRODLUCT LIFECYCLE SUSTANABILITY

Business should provide goods and services that are safe and
contribute to sustainability throughout their life cyda.

Choice i3 a leading irancial Services provider is entirely in catering
financial services including s subsidiaries and tharefore, it & not
engaged in any kind of manudacteing actvity o services under the
pusviaw of BRR.

Equity Broking & Distribution, Commodity Broking, Wealth
Mansgement, nvesiment Banking and Advisary | Retall Lodres,
Management Consultancy Mon- Banking Financia! Services are thie
oot areas ol business [or “Choice®,

Mot being engeged directly in any kind of menufacturing activity at
work place, the Company |5 not invoalve In any direct consumption af
awr Matarial Also, your company encourages paparass working and
eftiraly focesing on technalogy advancament,

Prinecijle 3

EMPLOYEES WELLBEING

Business should promote the well -being of all smployees

*Ermployeas are the grissbes! assel of the company’, coridering
which, your Company glves the primany Importance to hoalth and
w=afaty b its employems.

Du-rlng the outbreak af the pandamic COWVIE - 19, the company nat
only focuses an health and safety of ds employees. bt by all possible
means have ired to accommodate their employess by encouraging
tisem with our “Work from Policy © & slso by providing Financisl ardsto
1ive pears nnaed

Thie Chedter group has in 8 054 employess a5 part of Chelce Ganily,
during the ongosng pandemc best utilzation of Bime was done by

e

Anrigmiae 2 Bl Repan '_';I r--"'
¥

conducting Webinaron segular basis to update & rain the employess
with changing Business modulas & mgulaticns,

The Company on regular basis conducts, induclion programmas for
thie new armployees, to tuber and train them on the Company ‘s Wision &
Missicn | the Working sirategies, pofices adapted by the Company,
the besingss conducted by the company, the Code of conduct
adopted by the Company, the availability of Whistle Blower
Mechanzm of the Compary , the pobicy on sesual hatassment ede,

The Company appreciaies the sffons taken by the smplogses in
writinig the Growth story of the Company. Tha Company strives not
onhy to brain the emplogee for their business needs but at a large the
employess: are i all framed for the Development of their oversll
pur:nnqlii'.'.

This Company did nat recamne any complaint relating to child labour,
torced |abour, imvaluntary labour or sewual harassment during the
yaar 2020 3§ and are not pending as of March 312021

Pﬁndpln-ﬂi:
STAKEHOLDER ENAGAEMENT

Busineds should respect th interest of, and b response tovwands afl
stakaholtders, sspecially those who are disadvantaged, vulnarabls
airyed rmargind i sec

Your Company understands that the stakeholder engagemant is the
greatest source of input for its development activities and it also
broadens the harlzen for Improving the Company’s sustalnability
parformance.

Cheice Group interacts with stakshelders requently thraughvariaus
modes and ensures prompl sctions to mest stakeholder
expectations,

Employess: Fair pay and aqual apportunity is what every amployea at
workplace strives for, “Choice”™ seryes the same to its employess, The

Ramuneration practices ars based on menlt withowt regard to the
person’sathnis backgreaund o gender discriminatian.

Sharghalders and Investors

Your Campany regularly snterscts with s Shareholders and investorn
by keeping results, announcement, annual repors, updates an
Company Websites and other transaction spacific Disdhosuras in
prubdic domam,

Anmual Ganaral Meeting gives the shamhalders as well a5 Company
o cammunicate with sach other, Shareholders can directly address
the Board of Directors and the Management dusing the meating and
Board Marmbsers can absa directly engage with the shareholders
durlng the Masting.

& specific a-mail address has been desigrated for Shaehaolders for
thair griovances, il any. Alio, continueus offads aro made by your

company to resalya the Sharehokler's complaints: on ifmmediate
basiz,

Clients

Baziricy thie prowidir of Fingocial Services, Your Caompany e reduined to
b xped st with sach ancl evary change in the pohicy and proceduras
by thie statutoey authorites and neods 1o disseminste the sama to the
chient. Your Company constantly working on technology

wdvancament by understanding the nesds of its dients and kssping
therminforrmed about amy policy change or procedural change.

Stock Exchange
Baing the Listed Company on BSE Limited, your company abides by

the guidelines as stated by Stock Exchangs and made afl the
disclosuresand repading inlime bounded mannerio the Exchange.

—lﬂﬂ
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Businesses should suppoit and respect the protection of human
Il-th‘f.. Yo Coer R S P Frid i Comrma e 1o Labi e and |,|.h|1.|.|:1| wily
in alf of ity actvon andinter sctions with all 5l it slak ehed dpis

Thia group diows nol hsee any 1.-|.'IDI\.H-||: padipy o i an lli.lhh LTI
strictly follows and comply with ol ftatues wisch smbodies the
principles of human rights such ac prevention of Child Labou
B aventon of saxusl haratamaent Scpend et SpEnadt ofs e tumilren
et . Justice and Fairmess B imbibad in the Comgeamy s (abaic 1o
ensure Taarmess, cmparhality and conuilency N I oedabions
Tharefora, the group i3 commitied o a worl environmant in which sl
mdiniduals are reated with respect and dignity and has decided 1o
wiphodd Brue busman nighis of sl its employees

Primdple &

"Environmaent is amiracle we depand ugpon

Businasses sheiild respait and maka afforts 1o protect end redtore
the enviranment

Thl:Hrl:]h it i nat relevant 1o the l.':::ll”lqu"' givan tha natise of its
business, your Company has slways sthnowledged the need fo
efdcnent prolacian and practices Lowards s el onmentally
rasponsible oorporate citizen,
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OUR UPCOMING SERVICE

INSURANCE BROKING
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OURCURRENT SERVICES

Chaoice group, throwgh its multiple subsidianies, ofers financial services across all platforms catering to retail and
institutional clients, corporates and stale and central governments. The services are bifurcated into Retail services
{B2C) and Institutional Services (B2B & B2G). The B2C services include Equity & commodity broking, Wealth
Services and NBFC Services. The B2B services comprise of Management consulting, Investment Banking and
government services ke Infrastructure Consulting and Government Advisory.

The detad discussion on sach segment forms part of this report :

Qur

Qur *Re’rcil Institutional
Services Services

« Mutual Fund Distribution

* Research insights of funds &
there performance

» Assistance from certified
investmentWaalth Counsalar

= [PLY
= FPO)

il « Right lssue
—

+ Private Placement

i » Debt Syndication

[
I
T

cad

EE

Equity & Infrastructure
* Online Trading via Cnmmodi'q,r Consulting
Vs sib Services et & Government
maobile application & Infrastructure Advi
ViSO
* Assistance in $ Consultancy 1y
implamenting — s Urban Development
trading strategies Consultancy
» Dadicated Research Team * Solid Waste Management
NBFC Activity s E-learring
* Loan against Property * Smart Education
= Loan against Securities
= Business Loan
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OURRETAILSERVICES
&) Equity & Commadity Broking

The group’s Equity & Commodity Broking Business s provided
bsidiary M. Choice Equity Broking Private

i redermad 1o @s "Choice Brioking

r|||.,;\-5.|_:|'l FEOILF 5L Limited

inclustrial Facts for FY 20:21:
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Ohir Services
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COMPANY REPORTS
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Benefits :

= Easy Inwestmeni portfolio - online (Mobile AppfWeb) and offfine (Vi &t
Brarch/Ovsr tha call)

e Weekly bulletin dadly reports on Equity & Commoditios Markel

& Dedicated Research team ‘.'r._-rm.._;. technmal & lundaments! esaarch oved
thie comiperins & miarkat with more than 7 5% susonss rako

& Hulk & Block Deals

¢ Company has davelopead for its emplovess a in howss back end soliwarns
"Newron™ - The application grovides an accuratio view of tha businass with

comprehensie repons, real-time updates, analytics inskghts & Visual reports.

= Tha most adveniurnus bengfit of this application i it reduces the cperation
time by 4%
= PO LIP & CPlapdates

e Curmant Market Flighlights, Technscal Buyout
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Total Revenus - ¥OY Rs. in Lakhs

12,000
10,000 =
CAGR-32.39% _—

8,000 —
6,000
4,000
2,000

0

FY 2018-19 EY 2015-20 EY 2020-21

Revenue Rsin Lakhs 5 877 7,754 10,301

Fovonua rom Dporation of tha compeny basincraased by 752 7% over the poriod of 3 years, It has increased by 32 .85 YO
*Revenue has been considerad alter eliminating the wmpact of Inwertongds Falevalua

Brokerage Revenue (7 In Lakh)

9.,000.00
.i--d- ‘
8,000.00 i
.-"--P-
7,000.00 e
CAGR - 53.88 "-"E-#"

6,000,00 —r—
5,000.00 =
4,000.00
3,000.00
2,000.00
1,000.00

0.00

201819 20719-20 2020-21

Brokerage Rs in Lakhs 352983 &,004.78 8.358.73

Hrokerage of the compamy has icreased axponeitially by 237 times ower the parsad af 3 Years, it has incraasad by 3956 YaY,
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PET { ¥ in Lakhs)

2 hiM)

- "-*
o
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LA =] o
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1,501 it
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FY 2819 FY A 9.20 ¥ i
KR T 1,045 2 08

W OPET | T b Lashtin]

& Coomspssny han peemind o PET o 2 2208 Lakke i FY 202021

+ PET ol the compairy has mceasad by 113% Y0

* PET has b comssdsmad afvar slirmisatiog the s ol
rrveibarg s Falr vahps

Finance Cost{  in Lakhs)

1. 2THAEHY

| PEI0CHY
HODLH)
fCHITHY
A1 EHY
AHAHY
FIR-9 AOTR-20 AUAMI-2E
gr el A FIdd i

B Financs Sowd ¥ b Lokla)

& Finanoo Coaxl of the compady has dooreasad suponentunslly by 28 00%
ansize thin poresdd of 3 gaark

& Hechuitiog o tbe Fnares oos) s diis 86 fepagisand il Lisans B sieong
working cophsl Cycle

Mo. of Clients

BRI ]
2.50.000
2,06 000
1.50.000
1,6 D{HD

D

Fy 2017 Pyt Fy xy Fy 2020 FMat
14,259 31,995 LAeH53 1,95.985F 241535

B Mo onl Trecds | o Lakla)

¢ Tortal Murribee of CHant of the cormpany has momatad by
15 tirmis ovedir the poned of & yeark

¢ Total Cliants as on March'27 is 241,535 as compared to
16,257 in FY 201447

M.II'H"\-IIH‘Iﬁ Diseuasec & Aaulyvats ey k

EBIDTA (% in Lakhs)

3,503

-
. 4k T

1,000 T L
2,500 gERT
#Eak i
1,500 =
1,000

B L]

FY 2018 19 FY 190 FY 20201
417 1912 1072

W BT A LT s Lakdis)

& ERICYEA, For FY 2020-27 3 3072

= ERIEATA has bean Increasad by 1149% sver tha pericd of 1 yieaes and &1 YO
"ERIDTA has been considarad afiee ple TG thr impact cf

IivgEnilarry & Faie walise

Mo. of Trades { in Lakhs)

RO

a0
a4l
a0
a0 I
i

Fic | ¥ TR o ¥y o I 1 vy L I o Iy I b Fis | 2T A

a1 4] | o ot

31 01 24 a1l

3T 33T LT 39 AA SRS AT.2S A3OT  Ta24

B Mool Tradaes | in Lekkbe)

Fhienbiog of Trades has baen incrossod significamly disiveg las B qustors

Tratizs ane inceaneed by 9% a6 comparad

Mo.of Ap's

1,B00
1,600
1,400

1, FEH3

Ter CF af 2020

1,80
B0
2]
A0
i (K] I

Fr 27 Fe20f8  Fy 2019 FY 220 Fy

513 ra4 gl

B207 1, &12

= Titnl Murmber o A ol ile compaomy s mcrmased by mione

than 3 simes over the penod ol 5 pann

* Toanl &7 as on March'21 s 1612 as compared to

51 m FY AIvh-17
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TURNOVER ANALYSIS TURNOVER ANALYSIS

% Change in Turnover

% Change in Turnaver
Exchange Vs Choice

Exchange Vs Choice

B0 00% 100.00%

70.00% B0.00%

000, G0, D0

50.00%

40.00°% 40.00%

30.00°% 20.00%

200 0.00%

0.00% _

16.00% <Q.00%
20.00% 40.00%

WO 200 2020 2000 2020 2020 2021 2021 2029 2020 2020 2020 2020 2021 20} 02 Rz

o1 a2z 03 04 w} a2 as o4 a3 Q2 a3 04 o a2 03 G4

Choice -717%  7.84%  241% 566% 2155% -437% -890% 2733% -

Choice T.28% S5.67% 14.04% -210% G4 87%. 257E%  -T4HTR TER2%

Exchange 17.65% 1B.95%  _2ge% 1485% -1619% 5910% 3716% 3%.96% — Exchange -O46% 057% 1oze% 1540%  24.08% 17.8s% 144%  19.40%

— T 1 — -
..H.I:.I‘-dllllll'_" Chabce fee E:l.l;l'l.éll‘"ll._flll':' = Chairs

% Change in Turnover

% Change in Turnover
Exchange Vs Choice

Exchange Vs Choice
0 )
150,000% 150.00%
10000 1000
S0.005%:
S0 0.0
0.00% -5i0.00%
100.00%
50,005 I'_I~c
150.00%
100.00% i M 20206 2020 a0 2021 ThFR! S|
2020 2020 2020 2000 2021 2021 2021 2021 : g : ; 3
a1 a2z a3 a4 a1 0z Q3 a4 @) 2 G a3 b - s =
Choece -11.73% 2386%  -10.74% 1 &0% A2 05%  ThE4% 14.71%  -16.75% = Chodees TR .IE_,'-_!]-{I’;F. TR R Sy b viadbe S 1ﬁ:
. BB od% 31.00% L1134 23049 AZBAN TRAI% 17.36% 111% — Euchange JL.82% 1390% _18.d88% 1A% S2od% snA49% 39.01% 9 57,
= Exchange = [Chakee

_,}.]l—

s | .|
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CEAPL - Impact of New Margin Regulations CUR TECHNOLOGY ARM
PHASES % OF PEAK MARGIN IMPLEMENTATION ' Choler Tech Lah’is. an ™ Technelogical Arm * of the group * Choice”,
The technalogical services & suppart bo the groop for il operational
purpode & oo * Fintech® Prodscts are provided By M4 Chosee Tack
Phaze | #53% LDEC20 - FEE 2 Laby Soluticons Frivate Limitad our in-houss Cormpany rofarred toas ™
Puase Il S509% MAR' 2T - MAY' 21 Choica Tach Lak®. Extablisived in the mid of 2016, Choice Tech Lab, & ABOUT THE COMPANY
Phasa il 755, JUNE'ZT - ALKG 21 slep down subsidiary , was sel up with a wision baaild in:hause digital
Phase [V o0 SEFI 1 CANWARDS presductslor theadl businass warticals within the Choica Growp, Baing
ahaad ol tima, Choice Tech Lab fomyed into multipda financial
procducts, durng his joumay for varlous businass aspects in and Group af Corripanies Tho
Bmkerage income (¥ in Lakhs) Total Turnover - FNG { Tin Cr) around stock broking 1o serve the requited needs o [ the cansumers Selutione Pl Lid (50 SO0FG0E 150/ EC
Thiz warry first produwct “Irvestica” came indd existemce s 4 platform
dedicated towards mutual fund investments crsated by & tearm of [ sl Developerient ond 1T Seiics
2 50000 : 303 F9ED. K experls;  onstato-of th-art platfarmn today, Whibe, “lmestica® wes an Prended o dia Up 2 Tar (8 hos bt o richa whe
e sy 4 ZHERSY 19,3363 448121 ) infarmed decsinn of Choice Group for MF imaestors, the next big Covenrrent and Fieones Seclooand i uoolng U in he

Q4514 21278
initiative weas "1, th aftar ta the stock traders, iy is
PRI 2 5, 0000 Afllative wias, iy’ that walld cater 1o tha !’:'L': racant, Rty I. Lo Fanl Eskate ond Edocoriions domom os wol; fa plon
171034 92 AT simplthad online trading platfarm developed to anhance tmding
i 500106 20000, 00 oxparrinnce across tho capital markets. Furthoemao re, "8lphabee® was ifeaster dndd exccibe: e digild trareformction jourhey
i the naw child on the block incore suppart of long term imvastment i ks elEns Guided by o welueodded svien
i 15, 00K, 05 melatad activitees and recandly, with 'a-filax”, the weab based plathorm is oanr infarminfon Tochnclogy werical
o inclined o provide ra rand usaful meation insights. In insuranca A
il i gulara For af ok i AR uphokds e wision bo delraniie besd
10 QN 0K segmant Products ke “ISMOS" was bullt to cater insusncs related
a ik neads of our chants, Prodwcts like "Nauron-connact” and "Chalce : SR . !
3 LI L connect” spacially designed for BEB degment and internal basiness
01 s

worklow management. Choice Tech Lab, as an arganization
recognizas and understands tha demand for the corsumers from
eviary walk of life falling undar the bracket of stock broking, The
cutting-edoe technology constantly strives to achieve and provide
end-to-end solution 1o the consumers. The® Jiffy Chat”, a distinctive
Total Turnover Cash segment { Tin Cr) Total Turnover Al segmant [ Tin Cr) feature of Jifty, emenged 1o sddiess concerns on o personalised basis
te theselignts in ragerds to partfalio managament, On the ansat of tha
third anniversary, Chaice Tech Lab Lab will Be launching * Jiffy Signal
that will 4t a8 a one-stop solution for trader and imeestors thiough

1 THIO 040 13,41 A0 THE) o f T
; 1.410.44 AN o auiomatood Ir.1l::||r|g syainm with no human intervsention Tha balistic
14,0000.00 13,569 55/ | 0 [ &3135000 S IRA Y | apprasch has scaled tha organization to new heghits with s eeport
{00000 LT ) £ Gt L team of anginaers, desigoers, and craative forces, |‘|\'."'-'II:!I'| sartadacd i
o4 1 % Mumbiai, the organization curmantiy enriches the professional telent of
e ol S
RO el i SR AHRE avar 100 + pmployees with its workstations in Pane and Bhopal along
. 000040 40003 with Mumbai In yaars to coms, Chojce Tech Lab Lab focusss on
agnhancing an innoystive product esnenencs by hesting naw tocls
£,000.00 101 SR i ket z . i
and Strateies, s, lyaracing &l & Maching I.-\.'lrl'..rlg that wauld
4,041 060 FAILhAH endeavor to provide our customers with seamless growth
2.0040.00 100
11 234 31 iy 2 L%

BAwards & Accolades

@00

Cruring the year undar review the sagment has been awardad ar
the culstanding resaarch howss by Mational Commodity & Dorivatiseg

Exchange Limited "NCDER P S ;.I.:.J, i
Iz (L5} ||||. MAna e
R

‘choicetachlab.com

| 56
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IF THE OTHER FINANCIAL
TECHMOLOGY TEAM AF

Term

Stock
Investments
Simplified

AlphoBes s o ook morked restment plotiorm feoused on
long 1érm mvesimment, YWe sirongly bl thal lang temm
Iwastment in stocks con beoed 40 weatth creation i it i done
property W ermipotbsoer o invesiors by giing n-depth
farrraticin o deity giock gl ol oralysi oo sl

yakaion ond ceoeh prosseciy al he slocks

Features of Alphabes
Ry
Heleabust
el F e
Cregess
Mlnl .
Imadrramih

o

File Your Income Tax
Returns Seamlessly

S G T RS AT 0 RO [ o IS il Ry
ey S 1 et 40 prowice e gred wsefud tisoton imsaghs fo

Fracliwih et i peredy 4o pow el 0T lire . Feal 1o from’ Filngy
frmcems The Bl swpd-brmied pls e i oermed o ekl ine R
R BITEAORE ik kil Ivonkeey ondd e ol el

empkansd] bumnepiie

« e o Lisor-friendly LI

+« PM-Srrasd daka stecrmian betvesm Wiy arad oS

+ Waoll marirertbeindd Pabow'gs verw] o ek b lPacdrtis e
v {l-emaibled chorbor HRUEE” for v muenes

o Fimmnfh Oyt -Sagipor]

B} WEALTH SERVICES

The growp offers ms Weatth Serdces through owr subsdiaey M
Chince Waalth  Private Limited. The segmant migorly focuses on
Mutuial Fund Distrébution

Ganeral ovarview;

Inwastica i3 a state-of-the-ant platfarm for investing in mutual funds: B
provides individual investors 0 India with armpbe, hasslp-fron
inwestment expirenda. ILis regrtered as 3 Mutwal Funds Distributor
with AMFE] uncerthie nams "CHOICE WEALTH PRWVATE LIMITED ™ aml
the ARN -THS0E. Tho lnwectics brand = a part of the Financial

l_-.__-|'||i5'||'|'|.'-|':.lll -Chaice I_"\.||'_.||

Iwastica was launched in 7017, backad by & young and energehic
teamof skilled professioaals with fresh ideas and erthosiasm, IS now
celabra 1 &5 fourth annieersary with many sucossstal “hrsts' and

nurmarous satished imaeatom

Industry performance:

Miutual fund industry had a raller coastar ride this yases. Since the onsat of
COVID 19, mdtaal fund firms have boen
the statewide lockdown and itz impact on irvestor confidence, At the
s of Masch tha maduat hind ssctar fuid assets unoder manacierment

AL el 31,43 lakherare, up Pram 22,28 Bkh croeain March 2020

wing loveer NFCs, owing o

Invasting In open-ended equity schemas and apen-ended  dabi
schemas has remained positive. Eguity schames' SLIMs el slightly
frarm March, while debt fund AUMs incressed. ARer corporte aad
Instituticnal investors redeemed their investments o Oy TRERS,
rmonay market fund caegodas faced the brunt of the outliow in tha
rmonth, redulting in the net outfbows of By 52 528 crose i March 2021,
thie waorst since tha Bs 1 #5lakh crome Bleading in March 2020 aHer the

parredmenic seane roibed the markeds

Putual funds add mioee than 31 lekh investor accousyts & 2020-21. As
of Aprid 30, F02, thare wars 984 cromg (FE& million) accounts {or
folics i mutual fund language), with roughly 855 crode folios undes
Equity, Hybeid, and Sofution Cnented Schemsas, whera the greatast

e stmant is troe e retail ssgment (B2, 5 million)

The nurmber of folkog with 43 fund houses mcreased by 81,19 lakh to
9 R4S 529 a0 the end of March 202, up tram 8,27 4& 051 in March
2020, lnvastor in eguity-orisnbed schemes incmaesed their hodd %
by 24,3 lakhy to £.68 crore at the and of the presicus fiscal year, upfrom
A.84 crove in March 2020, In addition, the numibsr of debt-orismted
v Fealicns increased by 1616 lakh i 88 .4 lakh,

im

In Dacsmbar 2020, 5

Fard sponsors, allowing enterprises-with & net wordh of B 100 crore to

chgngied the |'-I||,..I'u. ty requiremantstor mivitual

atart up & fusd even if they dicdn'Tdateh the protabdity coitedia. With this

fimts=ch companias can now anter the mutual furd business ifFthey havea

Aot worthalad beast s 100 crominespective ol thacompany’s prodite
Business parformance:

Ineestica fad & successiul year, thanks To de dvarse [l.'ﬁrl..;,:l milx amd
wimet growth. Tha Bnsncial year 202022 1 was o piveslal wear in
pany’s development because we were ablé to take both
pasitives and naw lparning's from owr parformanee this yaar, which

sEromg v

Ol COT

will Turiction as the loubdation for dur growth prospects, We
stcelarated ourdstibation aed relatonshin-buildi ng effarts,

Valus added features such as goal planning, extarssal fund tractar and
iceg include Asdhar-based paperlass,
sigreip nos-orisnted, intelligent

instant redempticn, The qe

comparing and switching of funds,

bllanacpeivwinrd Disciuoweon & Soulyvers Pejseri v

i

Say hello 1o new way of i

MUTUAL
FUND APP
INVESTICA

Kunual Furid &
erence The loy of Eaming by Follillog vour

by e Lo

Irveshion encbbles youl o ves e Famds

1t vy oo et platioom mialve UL g

3 prng e e c o o Srrord

irvasimens et : =f with e Be

MAuduicl Furds i

s
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portalio analysis, basket ol mutual fends, tracking yow tamily's
investments, schime wise SIP calculator and o dramstic incresse in
degitizaticn of client jourmeays, with scocountiormation,

Digitaliration, artificial intelligoncs, process reenginoaring, and
increasad client communication wara all used 1o redefine and make
cliant jourmeys moms cliant-cantrec, A large numbar of serdce raguests
were comnpleted within the specilied the framis, Thers has been &
rising emphasis on improving the technical and behavioral ahilities of
frant-line emplopees, To mdomate, simplily, and personalies (s range
of products and services, the platorm will cortinue to focus on
cystomar-centric inibatives and innovations

Iri the yeir 2020-21 majar ransacton ook place is the acqusition of
tha bank baraar, whers it created 3 new client hasa for the Investica
adiding alrmoat BO00 new aliesds. The number of disnty ereased by
almost 113% growth compared to the last year, Assets under
addminkstraticon (ALA] were mncreased over 120% at the end of March

2021 compared to March 2020

vl Aol frtiim Tosd Al1

o -1, 0l M
FpLau] 1600
1K 1400 1
; 1200 M
yras 1,10 b
B M A
SO0 ) Pl
) 400 M
) niu
=] it

2T kg i1 ] FErl)]

Way forecard:

Irmeestica Inmanchesd in 2007 with o wizion ol “The Joy of Eaming' oo
clents spanance whila investing o mutual futds. We take pride in s
smaoth, hassle-froo investmant sxperience and also a customizad
plan far our cliens a8 per thesr ek appetite, budgat and duration. b
churns outa comprahansiva investmant plan for clients to accomplish
hesirdife poals and create waalth.

An [r the current scenarnio, the siueation Is I',.-I'.|I'II:||'I1I.1'.II.|5|:" changing,
mnaking i1 difficult tel predict how the pandemic would progress
Fighting COMID-E9 s contingent on the success af the waccine
campaign and bow guickby the socand wave ol illoesses is cantainod
‘Whesn things settle down fodlewing the curment Cowid-19 sue, many
inwestors. personal Enances -and EWINGgS will resume; which will
benedit the overall Business a wall g8 resurgenos. in market demarnd

and incregsed business samings

Also, with the enlarging scope of FaTech anvironment n ledia,
managamant plans in the coming years to make Investica a “supar
app® by integiating mony lnancial seivices catering to the meeds ol
indiwidual investors, Wa continuously work towards enhanced usar
crperignce with simplified onboarding process, improving cor
sefvices inachiewng the goals of investors:

MBFC Busineass

“MEBFC® actvties al the group are provided throwgh oo subsidiang
bifs. Choice Finser Private Limited” herain refermed 1o as® Choica
Finsary"

Incorpomde in the year 2004, "CThoice Finsery” secured j1s * NEFC
License” with effect from Januany12, 2018, In FY 20-21 " Choice
Finsard® nearly contribwies 55 % of PAT at consolidated level ol the
Group “Choica®
Sarvicas Frovided:
= CFPL prowides the foblowing types of Loans:

* Loanagainst Shases = Loan against Froparty
* Parsanal lonans

& Husinass loang

= MSME Loany

Highlighis

*  |tmaxtarmal rated as AJs by Brickwork

#  Tha loan Book of CFPL has increased from 120crin FY 202010 244
CrinFY 20271 { T05% increass YO}

= |oan book hesincrassed by 156% overlast 3 years. e from %6 orin
201710 Fdb crin 2027,

= B om 3st March 2021, Company bas 8 loan cutstanding of [ 2484
e, Mainly comprising of busimess loan 39, 70%, Personal loar
17500, LAP 12, 38%, LAS 2 95%,

& Heysnue ol he company has increased edponentially by 2857
times: bebom® 1 0248 zkhs inFY 201819 o M2 225 in Y 2020-21

*  |nterest coverage ratlo has inceeasad from 105 mes In FY 201 % to
TAStimasm FY #0717

*  Comipany has generated a prafit of M 1,256 lakhs in FY 2021 1t has
shewen a tramendous growth of 25 fimee in three financiad yaar. e
frorn @ Sakh in P 2019 B1 254 lakh in FY 2021

= Company has been able to quintuplicate i€ nebworth in laat 3
Financial year |, e trom 2, 047 in FE20T9 00 8507 in FY 2021

Online NBFC facilities shall be provided through our below mentioned Financial Products

59|
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Business Performance
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Total Revenue - YOY (% in Lakhs)
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] I
FYzZo01a 19 ¥ 201930 Fr 202021

Revenui from Cperation of the company has incraased by 281 times gver the poriod of 3years, it has increased

by 1,94 temes YO,

163000
9,000
2,000
7.000
& 000
§ 000
4. {3010
1.000
20
1,000

FY 2019 Fy 2020 FY 23

= bt wcith of the company has mcneased by .64 tmed ower the period of 3 peais
= Total Net worth as on March 21 5 5 9 507 Lakhs as compared 1o 2,047 In FY 207181%
* Tatal Met warth af the company has neroased by 1355 YO a5 455 Lakhs.

1,400
1,200
1,000
BOG
&00
4110
200

A
GE'._.,-F"'_FFF
ch
.,-F""f
o

e

Fy2la1% Fy 20 40 FY 202021

- I:gmp.:n',' has aarned & PET ol B 1, 254 Lakhs in FY2020-21
& PET of the company hos increased By Z5 times i lest 3 Financial Year
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QUR INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES

Al MANAGEMENT CONSULTANCY & INVESTMENT BAMKING

Capital Market & Debt Syndication sanice = provided through our
subsidiary "Chaice Capital Advisors Private Limited” berain refermad
as "COAPLY

Market Overvi e

Tha sconomic estimates for growth in india ware not looking
pramising in FY 2020 msal, Thie government, recognizing the need of
the hour, rofled oul sevaral economic packages to stimulate the
economy wihkch included s significant tas relief to the cor porate secton
in ortier to promote investments. Howewer, dus tha unprecedanted
COMID erigis, e stirmulus coruldn 't chiliver 1o its fulbest sxtant,

By thie and of FY 2020, the economic engines of india came to 3 near
bl duwe By the stringent lockdown which was imposed by the
gowvamenant and lested For mone than three mondhs. During the bitial
stages of the pandemic, the Indian GOP had shrunk by whooping
T.3%, Barrirng a few exceptions, almost ewery secton was experiencing
an acute damand slump, Investment banking, (ke otharsectors, was
novexception ta this crisis. However, in yestment banking since the
stakeholders ame spresd across vared verticals of industries, the
complexities were compaundad. Conducting transactians which
require perscnal presence, ke Merges and Acgulsitions & Chue
diligenca wane sevarely impactad,

Draring 3rd and 4th quarter of FY 2021, the markets began to bounoe
back as the governmant unveilad its plans for a As2.4 Lakh Crore
Stimadus package. Untodunatety as the 2ed weve of the pandemic
hagan to grow, tha govemmant had to impose & strict kockdown
acgain, thus puiting brakes 1o an econamy which was showing signs af
returming to normabiy,

Financial Performance

Whila we ganerated revenue of 150062 Lakhs, this year hasn's been
g'm'ld for s, Dur rgvanus steam fall by 80.13% owing to decrsdsad
bassiness activity during the pandemic. Hoawevet, swe ook thi
opportunity o improve our operating eficlency. We managed ta
aptimiee our foed costs 1o o greal edbend which m-term incneased our
gross profie margin by 22.44% from 37.93% to & whopping £0.37%
Ciur profit for the yasar stood al 1262 Lakkes, wa hien optimized ouwr
PAT mizrgin to 8.0 1% which mose than doubled from Fr 2020,

Wayforward

‘With & stronig GOP fomscast bitwean Y& -10% for FY 2022, we sie
anticipating a guick recovery from the damaging effect of the
pandemic. Fost pandermic, we mipect thal companies will actively
seek out MEA and fund ramsing activities inarder to consolidate thesr
position in the market which will in um bave a positive impact on e
investment banking sectos, Alop that, with the policy makess making
comstious efforts 1o boost the poonomy, the markat for e strmant
branking is destined to grow.

Services offerad

‘We offer a wide aray of servicss Services offered by s can be
classiflad into four broad categorias -

= Comorate Finance

s bengers and AcouisifionPrivate Eguibty

s Marchant Bankng

s PO Readiness

Corporate Anance

Corporate Finance deals with the capital structure of tha institution, It
inchuedes activities like Fund sdurcing, capital stracturing etc. Under
this, wi offer tha following services:

1% Working Capital Fnance

2) Corporate Loans

3) Bank Guarantse

Ay Latter ot Crodit

LY Trade Fnance

&) Project Financa

71 Magraning Financa

By CIOR Achasary

Mergers and Acquidsition Private Equity

Meger and Acquigitions includes conaatidaton of sssets through
wvartows types of financial tansaction. Under this, we offar the
following the sendce:

1) Strategic Acdwisury

2} Provate Equity

3} Mentura Capital

4) Anged Irvest ments

Ly Pepe Deals

&) Managemsnt Buyoats

1 Leverage Buyouls

B) Mergers and Acquisiticns.

Merchant Banking

Under merchant banking, we afler the lolloweng the services:

T} Initial Public Offering {|PO)

N Qualifind Institutional Placsmant [P

i) Righis lisue

A4y Follow onlssue

5 BuyBacks

&Y Takeowers

Ty Enstitutional Trading Platioem
B Pro PO placemant

IPO Readiness

(P readiness s the first step in leunching the company into the public
domain. Underthis, wa offer the follewing senvices:

1 Dus Difigence

4} Carporate Gowvernanos

3 BOCComplance

4) Restatad Financial statamants

hY DRHP docoumeantatian

B) INFRASTRUCTURE COMSULTING & GOVERNMENT

ADVISORY

Thee Infrastructure Consudting & Government Advisory @8 catened (o
our Institutional Chenis including the consultancy to “Statutory
Authorities” throwgh oo subsidiary MYs, Choice Consultancy Sarvices
Priviste Limdted:

OVERVIEW OF THE INDUSTRY

Thar Paskdeemic of Covid-19 have cassed contraction in the wosld's
autput inoyear 2020, with miny advanced economies and many

|51|—
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sactars sech as infastructure, travel, hospitality, transpodation and

aerddpace and srmall enerprises getting impacted scness the warld.

Consequantly the global spend of infrastructure declined

subsaniially on Tl year besis. The impact af Cowid- 19 on the

infrastructure and construction sector b india has been extensive and
damaging,

Majorimplications of pandemic on Infrastiuciums Segrenat:

1. Restnction imposed by the Government of India, State
Gowarnmants and the Union Territones to contral the- spread and
npact ol the winus have preventsd work in propos, sdversaly
impacted supply chains, plant, equipmant, materigls and
AP,

2. Delays and disruptions to complation of propects are inevitabile

with growing lossas, coatand SR pATER,
A, Declyration of force majeure by Contractors and Consultants,

4. Liguidity Challenges resulting lnfunding gaps.

5. Marginal docking in infrastructurs funding by tho Govormmants fo
prrvaritise ils spenching on poble haalth and sxlany.

&, Avallability of workers for infrastruciure projects: [oonstruction]
and opsrations,

1o Infrastrocture funds and ineestars may divercily their panfolios
from traditionad infrastrniciuns assets o1, utilities and haalth

Yl niat alk irmpcts in infastroctun hvee baen negative, some semices

have actually seen an increasa in demand or postive effects, reflacting

a wida variation and heterogensaus nature of infrastructure. For

examnple, condtrection or maintenance projecs on rasds may s

advanced during confinement periods a5 less traffic on rosds

provided oppofunity for constroction crews 16 work unencumbered,

I this pasiclemio, we absened that, Societes canmot be resiBent wih
recgillent infrastruciues bn the curment orsts, the sxclam and quality of
infrastructurne relsted (o health such as hospitals, waber, and sandtations
have proven to ba important. Furthermore, there may be scope 1o
consider whorm infrastructeme San play role mone gonerally in suppaernt
of healthcere value chains, transpoation infrastructure o support
dolivary af esssnbial goods.

Metably, tha crisis bas broaght renewad foos an social or "ok
infrastructure, which is sometimes overshadowed by hard
infrastructurs lika enangy and transporaton in the contow of
resilianoe.

An Crvarview

Chosce Consultancy Serdces Private Limited (CCSPL), wholly owned
suhsidiary i 8 consubling busimiis organisation mndering sorvices in
tha mulliple business vericals with geographical footprints across
many Statss of Indla, CCSPL is & complete. portiolio of offarings -
feasibility studies. detailed project separts, prajec] management
consultancy, transaction advisory, programms managemeant and
ampilementation support.

Thelesy bysinags varticals are roads & highwisys, ciwil Strucioes, water
supply B irrigation, salid saste management {5WM), urban
dovelnprsent B sustainahidity, pahbic utifity & walfare and information
techniclogy (T public financial management and education,

Company Operations
The COVID-TY pandamic and consequent natronwide Ieckdown
announced by the Government of ndia since March 24, 2020 had o

- significant adverse impacton the operations of the Company as being

facad by the Mation and the world. Sinco the Com pany s invald m
irfrastructure consulting related actwities which fedls under the non-
sasantil category, the Company has temporarily suspendaed

S
llanpe s nd Diacussssn & Analyais e ;';._;-h
1 II

operations in its ongoing projects at sie, with intern mesult into
unavaifability of restunces an tmaly manner, delays in execution of
projacts, opamtional ssees atc, Such pandemic always gives an
oppotunity to Bounce back with new initiatiees, the recent impetusof
the Govemment on increased budgetary aliocation health, sanitation
and other basic infrastructure facilitins has led o growing
oppoitunities for wee and mioved our locus on;

= WaterSuppdy (sl Jesvan Missian)

= Erviranmeant [ SoliddLiquid waste managameant]
= Bharatmala Panyojma

= Prachmm Mantri fewas Yejna

Drusring thes year under raview, CCSPL has succeasiiilly bagged project
in Watar Supply in Rajasthan and Madhya Pradesh and the Company
las sngaing projects in segqmants ke Roads and Highways
{Maharashtra, Himachal Pradaesh and Kamatakal, PMAY {Jharkhand,
Chhattisgark, Madhya Pradesh and QOrissal, Public Financial
Management{Goaand Utarakhand }

With Indian economy gaining momanium, COSPL ensuras s
conlinuous emgagament with the industry throagh forwand project
management and emphasiz on rational idenification of new tender
nppartunities, aggressive bidding, speady settlement of completed
projects, fimely sxetutionof ongomg projects and proespt reakisation
ot faes, Considaring decant budgetaliocation by the Governmants in
the segments like public health, wates, highwaysand wadile
mismagement, the key opporumities inclrdes infrasrectune projects in
Governmont lunded wator projects {Jal Jesvan Mission), Roads &
Highways (Bharsmala) and waste management [Bioremadiation),
healthcans where spima mamentum is expectad,
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5) Business perfomzncg

CILIR CHSTRIBUITION & NETWORK PLATFORM
! Cholce

Tha Chztribotion & Network servces for increasing the number of \ Connect
Busemvess Assoc |ates Tor distributing owr group services & proveded g w a
thiough owr anloe platfar “Choste Comnect”  under our subsidiany

Mix. Choics Retail Salutions. Private Limited

&) Partrer Addition Roport [Manth Wisa] - FY 2020-21

Partners Addition Report = FY 2020-11
1} Impact of the Pandemic on the Business Segment | 2000 -

i g ool o el 0 |
iyl abesivilon it Journey of Financial

Independence with
Choice Connect.

business. Streambining our opsrahons was our priority, and it was
FmpoTtant oo make our communscation channed robust.
Seling single platform for multiple products

Apartfrom this, weenboarded mare Business Pariness and the rate
of actlye BP and business leads increased exponantially. And as
peaple reallzed the importance of health, insurence, and
irveatment, the leads to ngurance and athar sesvices grew

‘We are happy that we could provede a sowrce of income te our
Business Partnam

{Equity Franchise + Extornal CHA)
[

2

]

Industry Facts:

Bacauss of the pandamic, many lost thair jobes or received pay cuts
Thes uncartamty made pecple consider the idea 1o have a passae
sgurce of ipcome. Also, more and more people notice the
impertance of nsursnce and investments. This led to an incneasing

-3 888882
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numbar of people buying msurance policees for thair families and
rwasting thair monsy in Elqum,r:md il himds

i wias roponed that in panderic the number of Dema accounis
owated 1w tooan all fime high at 107 million in dia. Phe mom
and more people ara staring to buy insurance o be financiady secuna.

Crwerafl, It had a good impacton the insurence and finence business,

3) Paer Review:
L was o rant toncresse our brand svaieness ths tinne, 49 imore
andd meare people wanted 1 hoee o diffecent sownce of income. For
this, wai incrarasad Gur marketing and communicalion campaigns
to conwer prospacts inte Business Partners.
Wi ran many promaoticnal contasts, which halpad many besinass
partners 1o win something aver and abowa their commissson. Ws
started providing extra incentives to our busingss partmers, who
weere proniclingg uswith substantial business,

We increased our bandwidih 1o provide more sales & technicsl
suppart bo cur business gartners

4] DurSerdees:

We have addad many new services in our portiolio like Corporata
fimad depasits, Bonds, Gold loans with owr cose senvices which are
Ioans, Muiual funds, Stock merkes, and Insurance.

Diuring the Year Chelos Connect confribated 5000 new Cliants In
Insurance Sendce vertical. As of now we have mone than 10,0004
business pariness pan India whio se beinging in mana clisnts

Wo aro ong of tho few platorms in India whers anyono can stan
BAMEL] & passhe income without Investing a rupes. Our business
partrer can dnersily their inoome sownte from ow platform as, unlike
athir platlorms where you can pronde anly & particular produc)
lnsurancs or loan agent) 'With us, snyone can provide multiple sareice
W |, insurancs, oquity, corporats feed depest, mubel furd o
Wiz have assigned a dedicated Relatianship Marnager who will provide
all marketing and sales matanal along with customer suppo, And by
gesing digital we added a teature of booking corporate iked deposiis
and bindng an insumance palicy oaling, This further reduced tha delay
in subsmilting docements and many business partners soved thea
clienl's time by directly buying the paolicy onlice from our poral.

Stock Market Inzuramce

w\af0\2)

Mutual Fands Fietail Loan

* Mo Registration Charges

= Earn more by selling Multiple servicas
= Wark Anytime, Anywhere

» Gel customer now and earn for lifetime

We are happy to help you

i www.choicecannectin L' +91 B1242 42424
(& support@choiceconnect.in
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{FY¥ 2020-21}

CHA addition growth has been %% Yaar on Year | Added new 8475 New Pariness in FY 202021 as compared to 7718 in FY 201920

Chivoe Connect aims to pronde all types of financial sernce through
aur pasiners. Through wa have sdded Corporste Faed depost and
Boeels service in choaca connect senaco portfolio, e pastnared with
Mahindma snd Mahindra financial sasvice, PHE hausing finance and
Bajoy linance for Cotporate leed deposit senyives. Through Choce
Connact our busness partnars can provids all typesof bonds to charts

Wo laurched Choico Comnect App from whare our busingss partnors
could easily acd enguiny, rack theer lead, and see their buesiness and
payouls,

Way foreard Statement:

I thee rimat linan il year, woe will be strengtheniwgour existing Services
and panner network, Focus will ba gn increasing partner reach and
per partnor business ratios, 0 addition 1o this we will work adding
saryices |tk Flasd Income Product, Income Tax, &t in our product
atfarng 1o our partnors,

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMAND POLICY

Effective snternal control reduces the risk of ascet boeas, helps (o ensure
that inlormation is complete and accurmde, inancial statermients &
reliable and reponted accurataly in.a Umaly mannss, &nd opedations
arg conduciad in accordance with the provisions of applicabla laws
ard pegubaticans.

The Company maintains adequate internal contral systams
commensuralo with the nature of besiness, size an d comphesitg of s
aperstons. The Company has wall establizhed processes, guidalines,
and procedurod 1o augment ineinsl controls. Adberence (o thess
prizcasses s ensured through frequant intermal awd s Any devrations
ara reported to the Managemont,

Il Buaditears msview systoms and opecafionsall the Company and

ansure that the Company i Functhaning in accondance with all the
applicable statutes, Any inbernal control wisknesses non-compliance
with statutes and suggestions for improvements in existing practices
argr mapartied by tha intermal Auditara

The |ntermal Audit Report s reviewed by Statulody Audidor while
parerming audit functions to canfirm that there ars no fansactians
confleting with the intersdts of the Company and regulatony
stipudations. Tha dudit Committen reviews the Intarnal Aodit Repaort
ant] the quarterdy Compliance Report placed before the Commitbes
and onsures that observations pointod out in thess ropors am
aedcdressed in g imehrand strectured manner by the Manageoent. The
Audit Commitas reviews an Action Takan Repart (ATR} which states
Thw i reseckig earrectan and the pehon iken an The saime.

Adegquate fintemal Controd System to commendatate with neturs of
bussinass andsize of operations forensuring incledes:

s Dacdarty and efficion condiect of Businoss

& Adharance bo company s palciss and procedunes

= Galtzquarding all owr assais sgainst foss rom unauthorised ess or
ki prusi]

= Precvantion b detection of fraud Samo

& Accuracy and complaferess ol accounting standands

HUMAN RESOURCE

Human Resowrce Development is the lramework for belping
employass develop thelrskills, inowiedge, and sbikities, whichin tem
imprtayes an organigaton’'s offectivanoss

The locus of all aspects of Human Besource Development s an
developing the mess: superiorworklorce so that the organization and
indiwdual employess can accormpdish thair weik goals in service 1o
customears

HRD &5 needed by any omganizatan that wants tn ba dynamic and
geowth-ariented of 1o succesd in & fast-changing snvirommsnt
Orrganizations can become dynamic and grow onby through the efforts
and competerncies of their human resounces, Perdonnel palicies can
knep tha morals and motivation of employees hagh, but thesa sfiors
nae netenoodh 1o make the organization dynemecand take il in now

—|M
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directions, Bnployes capabilties mugt continwously be sogquired,
sharpened, and used, For this purpiose, an “enabling” onganizational
cullure is exsentipl, When employeaes wse thair iniliative, take reks,
expanmeant, innovate, and maka Tings happan, tha organization may
bz sasicd b eawe an "emsalaling” calturo

W sl Chosce, follow the below deas. 1o manage and improve
ampiowes parfarmanca in ourarganization
1. Commimicate clear espectiations

Making sure omployoes arg clear about their work assignmonis

means commuicating those expeciations wall, Contlowe 1o
rnanage what i expecied throwgh Peguent commanicalions,

2. "I"narl',l parformanca appr:iuli

Readjular and timely ap prasils ensure smplogees know where they
stand at all tmess. Conducting perormancs appeaisals reqularly
hedps it eeapng goils in ths forelrontof daily ks,

3. Wemake employeadavelopmant a priority.
Wie work chosaly to fill @ny skill gaps which will help them acheewa
leang teem goals in feturm helpmg the ooganization to lullil Businass
ohjectives

4, Wamake sureto take the below steps tewsrdsimproving morale
Employess pacorm better whan they are satisfied with their job
Wl constantiy rewviow things such as
& Work anaronmeant
& Employea Banalits
& Fmployee enderstanding ol thits rmigsian and wisic
Employess who understand how their mobe halps the company
succnat] oltan give thawr best

5. 'p'l'aarnp-nwnrﬂrnplnyaaﬁtndq-ﬁwlrthswell
e have an apen work snviroament whach helps employees in
taking quick decisiong and the samea results in{astar outpu

6. Lseof dght technolegies
Implamant technology platiorms that drive performance and
engagement daily. Technology is crucial in today's workfiorce.

':.:"r:]n.'ll'llﬁltll:i-l":'l- sucoess thrives when tha reghit rodes and sysiems
are in place, Simply wanting foknow how (o improve employed
performance without Including employee considersthons miay not
hedp b achiove the sof goals:

RISK EVALUATION & MITIGATION

& Rizk Managomaent Palicy for the Company bas been adopled by the
Board of Directors, The Board sets, approves the chaner and
nafectivas for Risk Managamen! and Risk Philosophy, The Risk
Managemeant Committes of the Board I8 setup to assist the Boand imits
oeersight ot varous ricks, review and analyse the risk exposure related
to specifc seues, provide cversight of risk aceoss the prganisgtion and
rovierw thie sk profile of subsidiaries

Fisk = an inlegral part ol the Busivess which alms at delsring
superior sharehol@er value by achieving an appropriate balance
barteraan risks and returms, & romprahansie Entorprise Risk

loday's Financial semviced company operalie in an increstingty
compley compatitivae and continuousky r--.l':l-,u'!r'_I ragulatory
eriviranment, wihere the abifity 1o manage risks across geoagraphic
boundaries, products | custamer segments (5 of suprerme importance
tear ther effactive groswth af the organation.

The Cormpasy Being an Holding Company with no operating Business
an stanclalone basis darive its income mainky from dividend, iInterast
and capital gains and hence = not dirsctly eapoasd 1o many faks The
risk for the Company |5 mainly assaciatad with the bosiness of its
OpHErElag il hin

various apeating segment thinugh its subsidiane
the qroup

The grup Businass is dxposed 1o many internal & external risks. &
team of experepced people within the orgasisation dentify &
rramitor these risks a5 an on-going process o monstor and control the
s Lo ko Thie risks b rminimum lavel, One going monitaring by our
officials halp in identifying the Risk at an sarly stage. Tha |:-|,'.-r_|r|5.".l thia
e aucditor 5 s reviewed and discussad by the Sudit Commilion
of the respactive opersting companies Including the review by your
Company’s Board

1) Rogulatory Risk:

Regulatony fsk i the sk arging oul of & change in lows and
raciulation gowerning business. It could also arise on accownt of
inadeguate abservance of regulatory requirements or
diffarences n Intarpretation of regulations wis-a-vis the
regulabors. Méw laws or regulatians or changes |0 the
enforcament of existing laws and megulations may adversely
affoct business! revonuaespealil

Fick mitigation

The Company has a team of expepenced professionals who take
carg of compliance with applicablo laws, rules, regulatians, and
guldelines affacting our businesa. The team 5 strongly supported
by cur Corporate Functions tsam 1o guickly calibrte the acton in
case of 8 change wm requlation, Al the new guidelines, cleculars,
notibcations ane complied with, Formaulation of the policias as

will ms = implementalion is teken dee care of. Intemal awdit s
also carried ouf to maonitor compliance with best practces,
approved policies, sod spplicable regulstions.

2y Liguidity Misk is the risk ariging due to unavailabifity of sdequate
funds af epprogriate prices or tenure, [§ also rafers to the risk that
arised fram the difficulty of selling agsets withouwt high mpect cost.

Fisk Mitigaton; We have strang financial postion and al dur
businasses are adequataly capilaised, have appropriate oredil
lingsavallable to address liquidity risks, We slso maintain a part of
cur cipitalin bqusd assais to manage any suddan lquidity naads.

3y MarketRisk f Price Risk
Marked risk = the risk ansing ram the adverse mavemanis in
matkat price it varkous secunt which may impact vales o
portiolio el investrments in socuritios, which rmay smgact value of
poriobkoof investmants insscurit-es

Risk Mitigatiors Cur Parttolios and collaterals f securities ams
oortin :.-.-uu|','|||l.l|l-| argd,

4) Productrisk:

Product risk refers to the risks arsing out of the procucss a
company cthers toils custamer in the markid

Rk miitgation: The group affers s customiers & well-cverssibsd
product range in lipe with customers nead and market
canditfons: The Coampany affers brokerage, mutual fund
cistritiution and portdolio managemant ta its customers. This
diversification and proeduct range helps the Company reduce
resks arsdngoutol products

5) Operational Risk can result from vansty of factors incheding
failure to obtain proper intermal authorizations, impropory
documented transactions, fadure o pErationg and mbarmaton
upcurity procedores, computer syitams | solbware arequipmean
fraud. In edequate framning and employes smors. Our businesses
am dopandant on paopla and procasses. Shortcomings o fadlura

gl processes or systems mey hawe matarnal advarse

impact on tha tinancial postinon aswed as afoct s oparation

Risk Mitigation. Well defired policiés, oparaticnal procisses and
systams have been deyesed forour operations, Regular aedt ae
cland Ry intornal aelitors o manilor (s !Idlh“rl!!:!! 0 III F:l.'llll!!il!"i
and processes, Makar! Checkermiachandsm has been put in place
tor ansure complianen with laid down systams and procedures in
all aneas of funchoning of the Company

e _______________________________________________________________________________________________|
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Alpo the Company's key management Team consists ol
prafeasianals of high level ol cormmitment amnd the team s wall
wvarsed 0 the key issues relavant to the holding company
sructura

Baussinass Continuity Risk

in the event of disruption in the condud af business dos fo
incadands lika fira, natural calamity, breakdowns of inlrastruciune
e, We are exposad o rek of kss data, cliedts o busivess that
can advarsaly alHect ourbnancial msults

Risk Mitigation Polices on Presarvation of documants - and
reconds ahe fakd down by the Company snd the internal checks
are kepl ot recular imlanals

hﬂ.l"l'l\-lln'll-l Diseuasec & Aaulyvats ey k

CAUTICMNERY STATEMEN

Statevmarls in this Managemont Discussion and Analysss Report
dezcnbing the Company's objectve, progections, estimates and
sepaciations may be “tormard looking Statemants”™ within the
meEaniny of apflicabde kaws & regulstons, Actual results maght differ
substantially or matanially lom those expressor impliod,

Sdi- Sdi-

Kamal Poddar Apay Kejriveal
{Managing Director) {Director}

D M 01518700 DI Mo 03051841
Mumbad:

August 13,2021
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zize of the Board s reviewed periodically

Tha Board is antrusted with an ubtimate responsibility of tha
Managemaent, Directions and Parformance ol the Compavyg, The
Board Periodically evaluates the need for change in size and
Composition.

This Composition of the Board of Directors of tha Company &= in
contarmity with Regulatron 17 of the Listng Regulation mad with
epcticn 149 of the Companias Act, 2013,

During the year under waries, Mr. Bharat Kunsar Shab (DIN Ma:
O7393843) the Independent Chrectior of the Campany resigned Trom
tha Office of Directorship with effect from Decamber 08, 2020 due to
his pre-ocoupatson

During the Year under review Mr, Subodh Kumar Agrawal (DIN No:
DOS5391 4] was appointed as Addilional Men Exsculive
Inckependant Ceractor with effect from Movermbes 10, 2021

Furthied, during the year undes review Ms, Sudha Bhushan [DIN No,
174900 & Mr. Sancieap Singh (DN Ma, 0281448400 wsere appaintod
gz Additional Mon - Executies indépendent Drector with effect from
Fabruary 12, 2021

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN OF THE COMPANY

On the recommendation of the Mominaton and Remuneration
Committes & on the approval of thée Board of Diractors of tha 'Enmp.any.
Mir. Sunil Kurnas Patadia our tounder Promater has been indweted on thie
Bioard a5 Mon Executive Mon Independant Chalrman of the Compamy
with effect fram August 13, 2021, subjict to the appooval al the
meml=ers atthe 28th Annual General Masting of theCompany.

Resalution saeking approval of his appaintment forms part of the
notice of the 28th Annual General Mesting of the Company, Alao
attachaedis the briaf profile of Mr Patodia as snnesere to the notice

INDEPEMDENT LMRECTOR & THEIR ROLE

Recent yoads have wilnessed major occurrences of corparate
misconduct and lack of internal controls that have aroused the
nocasaity of having high Corporate Goweemanca in placa with bringing
inthe © independent Chrecior's ® ad & parly to the Compary’s maj o
dacision making thussaleguarding tha interest of it " Shareholdars",

T riesad Toor thes independent directors can b establshed by the bt
that they are expectad to ba indepandant trom the managemeant and
arel 4 the rrustess of sharcholders, The rale of Independent directors
into act &5 a counsaflor & mentor o the caompany & aim the besl
interest of the Membears of the Company, Thedr rales broadly include
impraving corparate credibility and governange standards
luncticning as a watchdag, and playing & vitdl rode in risk
managemienl. ndepandent dirgclors play an active male in virious
commttess s&l up h'r company to ansure good Fovarnanca
Rationake behind having independant direciors is that i weold

incragss the gquality of bioand supsrvigion and reduce the possibility of
dlamaging confict ol infenest

The Cormpany has on its Board, prasminont Independent Direcios who
havae brought imdependant Judgement to Board's contemplation. The
Indepandant Directors hawe played a preotal role in safequarding the
intiriet of all stakeholdees.

The majerrole of Independent Directors s as fallows

= To rawew the performance Gf nen- indepandent directors and the
Board asa whole;

* To dotermine remuneration of exscutive Directors & Kn:,l
Managasial Personnel and Senior Management Team;

# To moommend for appointmant, mmuneration and terms of
appolntment of editors ot the Company;

= To rewiow dnd monitor the auditods's independence and
performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

L

Taapprove & considaer the Financial Results;

= Ascadain and answre that the company has an adequate and
lunetianal vigil meschaniam ane the interests af a persoan whe uses
such machanism are nat afected on account of such use”’

= Fopord aboat wwihical behaaaor, actual or sspocted fraud or
wiolation of the company's code of conduct or ethics pokicy,

INDEFENDENT DIRECTORSMEETING

Cruring: thie Year undar review, the Indepandent Directors met on
Sopbember 08, 2000 indey aliate

= rgvigw the performance of the Non- Indepandant Cirecior and the
Hesrd as awhola,

= reylow the pedormance of the Managing Director of the Company
taking in 1o accoent fevies of e Exeotive ded Mo - Exscutiee
Chrectorns

= wmigh the quality, uantity B Umelines of Ao of infommation between
the Company'smanagementand the Board that s necessary for the
Board o effectively ard reasonably pedonm heduties;

INDEPENDENT DIRECTERS DECLARATICN
Declarations

All incbependent Dirsctars e given daclaations that they meet this
criterianf mr]nf.nnch,:lnrn a5 laid down under Saction 14904) of tha &0
el Regulation 16 1){blof the Listing Regulations.

The Directors have also givan declaratean under Rule &1 and {2} of
the Companias (Appaintment and Sualification of Directora) Rules,
2014, that their names am registarad in the databank as maintained
by tha Indian Wstitute of Corporate Aftars {HCA]L bn barmy of Sacton
150 of the At tead with Ruls (4] of the Compomies (Appointment &
Cualificatson of Disectors) Rulas, 2014, the independent Directors, i
spplicabile, are reguired to wndertake onling proficlency aeli
asspnmsnt tast condwctad by the HCA within a period of one (1 1 ysar
fromn the date of inclushon of thelr namses in the data bank or such time
s amendad by the Central Govarnment

Basad on the Declarations received frorm the independent Direciors,
the Company has werifiod the accuracy of such desclosures and
confirm that the Independent Cirectors fulfl the conditions of
Independence specified in the Listing Regulations and are
Independsnt ot the managemsnt ot the Company. The Company has
issued formal eppoimmeant letters we sl the Independent Director in
thg manmer provided wnder the Companias S, 2083 read with Rules
issued therewnder. The terms and conditions sseed to Independeant
Criroctas, is posted an the Compary's websfe weaocheiceindsacom

ﬁ?l—
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Mumber of Independent Directorship

— Ciorpordie Gommanoe Rapoi r':'.f_i_,.

A5 por Requlation 17 4 of the Lsting Regulations, bised on tha Intimations! declosures reoeived from the Directos, nose of the
Independeant Director serva & an Independent Diractor in mare than seven Listed Company, The Managing Cerecior of the Company does

not serva as an indepandant Director in any Listod Company

Functicnal Expartise Of Directars

laitie al The

fi Funcl cdaal Aréas

CA Sunil Kumar Patodia

CA Kamal Poddar

CA Ajay Kajriwal

Mis. Hemlata Poddar

Mr, Ashok Kumar Thakur
M, Kanhaiyalal Barwal

Mr. Subcdh Kumar Agraweal
Mz Sudha Bhushan

Mr. Sandesp Singh

BOARD MEETING

The Board Meets ot redgularintendabs to diseuss and adopt the business
stratagias, policses, sk management, financial results £ padarmance
ol the Comparny and its subsidiarios. The Board Maetings usially am
pree schesdudid and & tentativie annual eslendar of the Board Mesting s
circulated to the Directors well in advance fo facilitate them fo plan
thair schedubis acoardingly, in case of business constraints the Boards
Eproval i taken throwgh circular resalutians. The sircular resolissans
are noted At the subsequset Board Mesating

The notice and detaled Agenda along with releva nl noteés and ather
migtarial indormation ang sent in sdvance separatedy to each Dirsctor
and in axceptional cases tahled at the meesting with the approval of
the Board: This ensures tirmely and informed decisions by the Boad.
The Board reviews the performances of the Company in comparisan
to set targatsd availabla resources

Mama of tha D 3 [

M ot

Finance, &adit, Taxation & Business Managament
Financs & Businsss Managl_:ument

Finance , Tazation & Managemant Practices
Human Resouroe & Administration

Finanecs & Managames

Social Béesponaibdling & Human Resource

Finance & Taxalion

Finance- % Taxatioan

Bisinass Manq__q-:-mn-rﬂ B Davatopment

They Board Maoting ame generaly heid at the Registesed Ofica or in
tha nearkny vicinity of the Registerad Cilics al the Cnmprlrw.l-irlwnuﬂr
Bua to COMID-17 Pandemic, on the basis of ralazafion granted by
SNCAT & OTSEBR all the Board Mesting wers hald through Video
Conterancing moda to follow the safety narms.

Fivo Board Meotinge wore hold during tho Financial Yoar undar
review Le 2020-21 The dates of thess Board Mestings are Juns 30,
2000, Awsijust 4, 2000, September &, F020, Navernber 10, 2020, &
Februsry 12, 2027, Furthar "MCA" & °"5ERI" has also relaxed the
regjuitement of having maximun intervemng gep babwesn any two
maatings had besn increased from 120 days to 180 days, Your
Company had svailed the relasstions so provided

The details of atendance of the Diector at the Boand maatings held
cureng the financial year 2020-21 and at the last Annual Ganeral
Baating arg-qiven halow

1al Ganeral Megting

Hetd in the Year 2 21

Attendance

M. Karmal Faddar 5
Mr. Ajay Eajrival 5
Mrs. Hemlats Poddar 5
fr. Ashok Eumar Thakur 5

*Mr. Subocdh Kumar Agrawsl i
*apds. Sycdha Bhushan
**Mr. Sandesp Singh

My, Eanhaiyalal Berwal
**eMir. Biorat Kumar Shah 1

[ L]

A

5
F. )
5

=,

a1
-

*Cruring the Year under review Mr, Subodh Rumas Agrawal (DIN Ma: 00553874] wad appointed as Additional Non Exetutive - Independent

Direcior with effact from Mosember 10, 2071

**Furthun, during tha year under review Ms. Sudhs Bhushan [ DS Mo, 01729006 | & Mr, Sandoap Singh [DIN Moo OFE14440) vwere appainiad
as Additional Non - Executive Independsnt Director with effect from February 12, 2021

""[}J,Jring thics waar unclarrevisw, Mr. Bharal Kumar Shah {Din No: 07393863 the Independant Dimctar al the Cornpany rmasigniod from thi
Ciffsce of Directarship with affect from December OF, 2020 dwee to s pre-acoupatian

1 — | (]
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FLOW OF INFORMATION

The agenda iteims for Board! Cormmittes meatings are finpliged by the
Company Secratary in consultation with the Chairman, The detailed
Agenda, sadting owut the business to be transacted at the Board/
Committse moetings suppartod with ralevant prasentations,
m:F:-I:l.r.:dnw rctess and oxgcitive summarian ik sent b asch Direcior at
leaest seven digs bedore the dote of the moesting=. bn additian to the
et whisch are required to be placed befors the Board for e nating
and/ of corsiderston ¢ approsal, information 8 prosdided on vanous
sagnabicant items.

Wiih mgnrdi to matiars mguiring the approval of the Baard, all the
concarned person communicate with the Company Secretary in
advanece to enahle inclusion of such maters in the agenda fos the
Boasd! committes mestings. Whera it is not practicabde to ceculate
any doownant or |f the agenda ilem s of a confidential nature, the
same is sent separately o tabled at the mesting, asthe cise may be, In
spacial and suceptional cicumstances, considsration ofadditional or
supplomantany ems is taken up with tha permission ol the Chairman
and with the comdenl of the majority of the Difectors present ot the
Mesting. The senior officials of the Group are invited to the Board
meatings in mmspect of the Néms concerming them to prowvide
acditional inputs a5 and when necassary,

The Agenda for the Mastings of the Board and its Committess are
clrculated i advance ta the Direclars to ansuere sufficiont time
prowided to Direcior 1o prropans for the mostings. Tha Board usually
mealy ot bsast anee 0 o8 geetar (nter slis o review quartsrly
standalone and consolidated finarcial results | complidnce reportis)
of all lawz applieablato the Campany , major lz2gal issuns orregulaton
development | minutes of the Board Meatings of Subsidiary
companios, significant mnsactions and amangoments entarod in to
by the unlisted subsidisny companies. risk managemnent, bormmwings,
Jobit wentures or any other proposal from the management regarding
mErg)ars, Aoouisitions, restructuring of nvestmenis sbe.

The drafl Minutes of the Board and Committes meetings am
circulated ars clrculated amangst the Directors! Mambsars far their
porusal and comments. Suggestion it any, received lrom the
Derectors Members e suitably incorporated in the desft Minates, in
consultation with the choirman of the Board! Committes, The
Company has an effective post meeting follow wp review and
reporting Procass, The decisions taken by the Board! Committass are
communicated 1o the respactive dppartmantal haads for their
implemsntaticn, The implomantation of the dodsions of the prsvious
Baar] Meeting s ploced ot mest Board Miseting.

AVAILARILITY OF INFORMATION TO THE BOARD

The Board has unestricted access toall Company relatedinformation
At Board Mestings, managers and representaihes wiha can provide
additional insights in ta the items being discussed are invited. At the
Aeand Muastings, presantatons are madde by tha Senice Managerment
& thie Businiess Hoads of the Company and its subssdiaries, The Board
perodically reviews and takes note of, all the compliances
confemathons in respect of laws and regulations applicable to the
company, The annual operating & Capital expenditure plans and
budgets, unaudited ¢/ audited financial rasudlts, minutes of the hoard
Mmring: of the unlistod subsidiarias including the summary of the
kery ducisicns takon by their respedive boards, significant transactions
aned arrareg erments entensd in lo by the unfisted subsidiany companigs,
risk management update ! reports, minuies of mestings of the
committaas of the board eic. are placed bafore the Board

FAMILARISATION PROGRAMME OF INDEFEMDENT
DIRECTOR

Tha Independent Dectors have boan familiarisacd with the Company
Jthoir roles and responsdhifitios in the Company, ratura of tha industng
in whickh the Company operates | business mode] of the Company ete
Diuring the FY #020-21; Independent Drector's ware takan through
variaus esgects of the Company's Business and cporations. The
details of the familiarisation progmmmea impanad o the Indepeadant
Crirectors duriig FY 2020-27 g put up on the wehsile of the
Company and can be accassad at wwecholcelindia com

Af the tima of appodnting a Directar, | & lormal lsttar ot appointmant is
gpvan bo tha Direrctor, which intar alia sxglains the rale, furction, duties
and regponsshilitias axpectad Irom him a2 Directorof the Company.
The Dérectors are alsn explained in details the Compliance requimed
frarn héim under Compames Act, 2013, the Listing Regulations avd
othervanous statues andan affirmaticn isobiained

SUCESSION PLANNING

The Company believes thal sownd suceassion plana for the Bosd
meambers and senior leadership are vary important for creating robast
tutupe for the Company, The Moaminstion and Remoneration
Comarittes and the Board, as part of swcoession planning exercise,
porigdically roving the composition of the Board to ansura that tha
sk g closaly aligied with the strotegy and jong term nesds of the
Company.

GUVERNANCE CODE
Cedeol Canduct & Eithics:

The Company has sdopted the Code of Besiness Coadouct & Ethics
{"tha Coda ") which is applicabls 1o the Boasd of Directors snd Sanior
Manpgement tegm [Dne Level balow the Bosnd of Directos) of the
Company. The Code requires Dhirectors and Employses o &cl
hiesnastly, Fairly, athically and with mlegrity, cornduct themsehes in
professional, courtanas and respectful manner The Code = displayed
onthe wabsite of the Company weesschoiceindia com

Al Mombess and Employees have ailirmed campliancs with thie said
code for the year ended March 31, 2089, Adeclaration to this effect is
signod by the Managing Directar is given balow:

DECLARATION OM CODE OF CONDUCT

As provicked urder Regulstion 2603} of the SEBI {Listing Obligaton
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulstions, 2015, all Board
Members and senior Management Persoansl hbove afirmed
cernplinnce with cade of conduction the yearended Maich 31, 2021,

Place: Mumbal G-
Date:August] 3, 2021 Kamal Poddar
Managing Direcior

DIM Na: 01518700
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INSIDER TRADHM G CODE:

The Company has adopted sn Sintemal Code” of conduct for
Regulating, Maniforing and Reporting Trades by Designated Persons
(" the Code”) in scoordance with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider
Trading Regulationa, 2015 {ihe PIT Ragulstions).

The Code is applicalsla 1o Promoters, Members of Fromolers Groap,
all Dimciors and Designated Persons who are expected to haya
agrreds o wunpusblished price senaitive information selating to the
Company, The Company has formulated the Code of Practices and
procedures far far Disclosures of un-published price sensithve
information in compliancewith PIT Ragulations,

A database i being mamtaimed by the Company, which contains the
mames and other particulars: ag prescribesd of the peraons coversd
underthe Codes drawn up purssant o the PIT Bagulations,

Tha Company Secritory has boen appoided a3 the Comphliance
Crticar for ansuring implementaton of the codas for fair disclosure
and comcluct, The Board, dasignited porsons and other connactod
persons have aflimmed compliance withthe Coda

BOARD EVALUATION

T af the Key functions of the Board & 10 monitor and rewew tha
Baard evaluatian framework. Thie Board works vith the Momination &
Remunaration Commites to lay down the evalusteon  criterla forthe
peiferrmancie  of e Chairmaan, the Board | Board Committees and
pyacutive /| Mon- executwe Independent Chrector through peer

Mlame af the Diractod Calagory

rr|_

b othar

Compankes

B, Sundl Kurmar Patodia Mon-Exacutive Chalrman 4
Mr. Kamal Poddar Execulve Disector 14
P, Ajay Kejrlwal Exacutive Director 7
Mrs Hemlata Poddar Man - Executive Direcior 1
M, Ashok Kumar Thabosr Independent Diracior 4
Bir. Kanhalyalal Beresl Independant Ddrecto 1

Mr. Subodh Kumar Agrawal  Indepsndant Director

Bz, Sudha Bhushan Independant Dinectos

ka F S |

Mr. Sand=ap Singh Indeperdent Dimectos

avaluption, exchuding the Directors being evalusted.

The Board camed out an Annual Performancea evalsation of its own
poiformarice, the Indapandont Director ndividually as wall as the
avaluation of the working of the committess of the Board, The
Porformance evaluadicon of all the Directans was and will be carmied ol
by e Blcrmination anc Remuneration Committes,

A structured guestionnatre was prepared atter taking In to
Consideration inputs recened rom covering warnous aspects o the
Board's functioning such a8 adeguacy of the composition af the
Board and iz committess, Board Culture, oxecution end perfomance
of specific duties, chlgations and govemance,

The Pedrmance avalamtion of the Chatrman and Manag:ing Dhrscioe
and the Non - Independent Directars was caried out by the
Indepandant Dinscinrs. The Direciors expressed theirsatistaction with
the evaluation procsss.

MEMBERSHIF OF THE BOARD

The imformaton  ralating to the number of other directarship. and
carmnmittss charmanships’ moembership boeld by the Dinsctorsin othes
pubslic and private compamies as onMarch 31, 2021 s detaidfed below
Other Directorship includes directorship of Private Limited
Compantes and Companies under secticn 8 of the Compankes Act
2013 Tha infarmation peraining 1o the Chairmanshipd membsrships
of the committes of the Boand held by our Derectors include audit
Cammittee and stakehoider relatiovnship committen a3 reguinad
ungler the Listing Regufation.

Mes of Eogu 11
Poititon hald in ottser Sharos hold in

oublic "Thioice In wial

ASRREE00
25001
. a : 30000
2000000
2 3
1 F
2 2 1
Fi 1

1]  Directorship includes Privalo Limited Companios and Secion @ Companios

Z1 Chairmanship ¢ Membership of Commrtes only include Audit Cormmittes aid Stake Holder Belationship Commities in Indign Pubfic
Cormpansds, Mambders of the Board of the Company do not hawe membershp of moee than 10 Board levsl commitiess of chairman al

more than 5 such committons.

3] Mo ol te Directons of the Company bold dirsctarships i moe than 20 Campansss incd ading in mone than 10 pebbe companias,
Mene f the Directors of the Company has hisld Directarship's £ independent Directorships in mons than § Lited Coanmpanies,

4] The Maraging Director of the Company does not hold Directorship in any other Listed Compary of st as an [ndependent Direclon to

any Listed Company.

5]  Mr. Kamal Poddar & Mirs, Hemlata Poddar are refated to each other

&) Brsl Profile of each of the abaove Directors ame avallabde on the Company's wabsie wew.choicaindia.com
T Thee details provided consiat of the Directors Hobdisg Divectarship in the Compadry as on Maeh 31, 2021
8] Mr Sunll Eurmar Patodia, M. £amal Poddar & M Hemlata Poddar are promotess of the compnay

—l?z
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COMMITTES OF THE BOARD

The Board has canstituted varsous commitiass of the Directors to take
infarmaod decmions in the bestintorest of the Company which cators (o
spacific areas and sctivities, The Committees constituted are (n line
with the Companies Act, 200 3 & Listing Regulations, Following am the
Committes constituted by the Board of Directors which comprises of
tha miermbers ot the Boand B Sanior Managament ofthe Company

&) Budit Commithea

B} Momination & Remunaration Committes

£ Stake Holder Relationshep Committes

0] Risk Managamant Committem

E} Ireestment Comrmittes

Fi Finance Commites

O} Securities Allotment Committea

H) Corporste Social Responsibiliy Commitlee

The abowe mentionad Committee mestings are hald at Regular
Inl;aru'alﬂn!mrh!hq-dalpmda_y

Datails of the Maeting & Mambers of Audit Comimities

Maime

Mr. &K Thakur depandant Directar Chairman
MAF. Ajay K rewal Ewierutive Directar Pl b
ahas Sudha Bhushan Indapondant Director ‘Mombaor

gy, Bharal Kwmar Shah Independent Direclor bl LT LT

* M. Suclha Bhushan was appointed as the Mermbaer ol the Commitbes
with effect from February 12, 2021

**Mr. Bharat Kumar Shah the indopendent Directar of the '!:!jmpan',-
resigned fram the office of Directarship with effect from Decambse
OB, 2020 & thareon plso ceased bethe Mamberofthe Committes

The Company. Secretary of the company acts as tho secretary bo tho
Coqmmitee,

The terms of reference of the Auwdit Committes ars incondormiby with
the regquirernents of SERN Listing Begulations and Sectian 1774 ol the
Companies Act, 2013, Further, tha Audit Committaa has powers which
arexin line with SEBI Listing Regulattans. The terms of refarance al the
Audit Commitias includs thefollowing!

Il Chwersight of the listad entity's financial reparting procass and
the thischosurs af its financial information (o eodune thal thes
fimancial statemant is correct, sufficient and cradible;

il Recommandation for appointment, ramunoration and torme of
appontment of auditors of the listed antity;

] Approvslof payment o statutory awditons for sy other services
rendared by the statutory auditors.

vl  Reviewing, with the managemant, the annual financial
statamants and auditors reporis thereon hatora submission to
thz boviard far approval, with particular refesance o

a} Matters reguired to be included in the Diractor's
msponsibility statemant o be Included in she board's repaort
in pesms of (o) of tub section [3) of section 134 of the
Companiasact, 2013,

A)AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Frimary objectve of the Audit Commitias = to monitor and
prowido an elloctive superveson ol the Managomant's Tinancial
raporting process, tensure accurate and timealy disclosures, with the
highest levals of transparancy, imegrity and guality of financial
reporing. Tha Committes owersees the work cammied out In the
tinancial reporting procass by the Manasgeamant, tha Internal sudibors
and the independent auditors

Az on March 31, 2021, the Audit Commitiee comprises of three
Directors, the majarity of which are Independent Dirscioes, all tha
mieimbers af the Commitias are firancially literate and bolds & wared
erpananca inthe Fnancial Markat

Tha sudit committes mat tive fimes during 1he yaar J020-21 Le, an
Juniw 30, 2030, August 4, 2020, September 5, F020, Movember 10,
2020, K February 12, 2021, The Minutes of the mestings of tha Sadit
Commiten are noted by the Board, The details of the composition of
the Committes, meatings held, atendance &t the meetig are geiven in
thia balow menbionad tabla:

L3

5 5 J
5 5 {
1 1

a 4 J

b Chasgas il any, o sccounting pelickes and praclices and
reasnnstar the samea

¢} Major accounting antrios |muwir|g astimates basad an the
exencige ofjudgerments by manacgeneil.,

d} Signdicant adjustmants made In the financial statements
ariskngg out of audil Finl:flnljp;

&) Compliance with lsting and other egal reguingmsrts relsting
to financal statements;

Il Disclosure of any related party ransactions;
g} Meditied Optionsin the dralt awedi repont,

vl  Rewiowing, with the management, the guarerly financial
stateenenis bedore submizsion to tha board for approval;

vii Reviewing, with the management, the statemoert of uses /
applieston of funds raised through &n meee {prefemsntial maos,
atc.), the statement of lunds wilized for purposas other than
thosa stated in the ofler document notice and the roport
sulmitted by the monitonndg sgency manitoning e utiisaton
of presceeds of a public ar rights issue, and making approprate
recarmmendations to the boeard to take up steps in this matter;

vy Rﬂulawlng anc montnreng the auditor's Independence and
pffectveness of audit process.

vitl)  Approval or any subsequent madification of transactions of the
Iistecd ety with rakatod partees it any ;

Serutiny of intercorposatie loans and investimaenls;

&
Ca L
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%] Waluation of undertakings or sssets of the fisted entity, whernawsr
itisecassary;

xi} Evaluation of internal [mancial costials and fisk managamont
1‘-}'51‘9[“5-;

2] Rewewing, with the management, padormance of statutorg and
intarnal audidors, adequacy of the mternal congred syatems;

xiii} Reviewing the adegquacy of internal awdit function, it any,
including the structura of the internal sudit depardmant, staffing
and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting
struciure coverags and frequancy of internal Fudit;

xiv) Discus=on with infernal auditors of sy sgndicant findings and
fiexl o e theere aing

xv)  Rewviewing the findings of any brtemal imestigations by the
intarmal auditors inte mstters where thisre is suepected raud o
irracuulanty o a tallure of internal control systems of a materizl
mausre and reparting the matter o the board;

wvi)  Descugaion with statutory suditors befare the audi commeenoes;
about tha nature and scope of audit as wall as pos-audit
chisc ussion To ascartain any ares of concarm,

gvil) To lpok into the easons for substantial defaotts if any iIn the
paymant ko tha dopasitors, debontuse halders, shareholders {in
case of nen-gayment of declared divdends fand creditors,

ivial) Toreview tha functioning of the whistla blower mechanism:

ik hpprnu:lnf;ppninl;mnntnh-.hil_:f‘hn;lrlrlnloHimraHﬂfassqssinﬂ
the qualifications, asperence and background, ete, of the
candidate;
The audit committiee shall mandatonly rewew the following
inbarmation
« Management discumsion and snalysis of Sinancal condition

and results of apsrations;

s« Siatomant of significant rotated party transactions {as definad

— Ciorpordie Gommanoe Rapoi ::!E__._1:.

by thie audit committés) submitted by management;

= Management letters / lattars of dnternal control weaknessas
tssund by the stalulony auditors.

= |rtermnal gwdit reports ralating to intemal contral weaknesses;
and

= the appointment, remoesd and terms of remunerston of the
chiel intemal auditor shall be subject to review by the gudit
Coammiiles,

= Statarment of dewiations:

Chisartarly statemant of dewiahon(s) Including report of mondtaonng
agency, il applicable s submitied 1o siock exchangeda) in terms of
Raqulatinn 3211,

BINOMINATION & REMUMNERATION COMMITTEE

The Promiment beatuses of the Momination and Ramunaration
Commithes has een formuleted in accosdance with the Companies
dct, 2073 and Listing Regulations and tha rola of tha committes intar
olis ncledes s 10 assist the Board in ensufing that the Board and
Executive Committas retain an appropriste. structurs, size and
Iralamce of skifls to suppan the strategic objectves and values of the
firm, The Comemitiee assists the Board in mesting its responsibilitias
reggafding the detesmmation, implementation and oeesight of seniar
ramunasation arrangemants o enable the moruitment, motivation,
Board Mambership and retention ol partners generally. The
Committes also assists tha Board by reviewing and making
recommendations in respect of the remuneration policies and
framewinrk for &l staff

The Mamination & Remumeration Committes comprises of throa
Cirectors, all baing Non - Exacutive Rirecior as-an the date of the
Report the Committes conatiutes of two Independent Directon & one
MNon — Executive Ddrector. The. detadls of the Members of the
Committon & the Committoa Mestings hokd during the yesrs undar
ravient ane menticned below (n thetable;

Distails of the Masting & Membars of Noménation & Remumeration Committes

Mame of the Meambiar Catagory

Mr. Achok Eumar Thakur Independant Diractar

Wrs, Hemlata Poddar Mo Exocutive Diractor

Wir. Kanhaiyalal Barwal Independent Directar

[T Coampany Secrelany ets as a Secrotary tothe Cormmilles.

The Composition & rele of the Momisation B Remuneration
Committes is in complianonwith tho provesions of Siection 178 af thia
Companied Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thersunder and
Englrl.‘l!lnn 19 rpad with Fard D of Schadule || of the Listing
Regulations. Dusing the Financial Year 2020-21 the Commities
murting was hatd on Novembar 1), 20 and Febrasary 12, 2021

Terms of reference:

e Broad ferms of reference ol the Momination B Rarmuneration
Committes as approved by the Boand areas follows:

i- Fesrmiulation il the critwria for dets rmining fualifications, positive
sitributes and independence of & director and recomanend to the
Boprel of Directors 3 policy relating to the remunerstion of the
CHrectins, koy msnageriad personnel and other employess,

« Formulation of eriteria for evalustion of performance of
Indopendent Dimeciors and the Board of Dirochors:

Position Mo of Meotin =1 Mo, of Meatin v 3
attended
Chalrman 2 2
Membar 4 2
Membar 2 2

o Devizang o policy on diversityof Board of Diredcioes.

- Idﬂn\.h\-nn pamons who are qualified to become Direciors and
whc may be appointsd in senior managameant n accerdanca with
tha critaria laid dowee and recommend 4o the Board of Directors
thair appodntment ard removal

=« Whether to extend o continue e Won ol appoirtment of the
indepandant director, on the basia of the report of the
performyance evaluaticn of Independent Directons.

=« Raviewing the overall compensshon policy, senice agreamants
and other employmant conddsns of. Managing ¢ Whois Time
Dirnmor:qndﬁnninrManngnrnnanmplnpnns

w  Tocsate anevaluation frmmesark for the Independent Directar
and the Board.

= Toproside nocessany mpods i the Chairman after the svaluatson
process iscompleted by the Direcioms

—l?ﬂ
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Criteria for Performance Evaluation of Directors

A separate exercme wias ciined oul o evaleate the pedarmence. o
individual Directors including the Managing Director wars evaluated
oty parameters such as level of engagement and cantribution,
independance. of judgement, safeguarding tha intersst of the
Company and fls sharsholders. The pedarmance evaluation of the
Mariaging Director and the Executive Directors and the ather Mon-
Independent Directors iwes carried aut by the Independent Directors
The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process

Evaluation Criteria;

- ll.n-dnar,?.anding thie Businass in connation with the Fisk appetite of
the Buskvess and Regulatony reguiremeants;

= Leadership and Management Skills

s Astondance at the Board Meatings and active ru.:rtir.p.:ﬂ'inn i she
discuzsion of Business Parformance,

= Plurturing Leadership & Strategic Managament Skills
= Managing the Conflicts inthe Board Discussion
= Panaging the Patential Condlict of interest.

Board Mambarship:

The Momination & Seémuneration Commities shall formulate the
criterls for appodntment of a Director and review the said craena for
determining the qualifications, skils, positive attributes necessary for
Inducting members of the Board: The Commities I8 also responsible
for scresning the candidates wha meat the critoria, reviewing their
Eppodntments re - appoentment and making recommeandations to the
Board in this ragard

Few of the parsmeters considered by the Maomination & Bemuneration
Committas while recormmeanding the appointmant of a Director 1o the
Roard, include:

= Composton af the Boand

= Boaid DHveraity

s Appropriate Balance ot skills & experienco and knowladoe

= Professional qualificatrany, experse and expenence in specific
area of Dusginess)

= arr:,lnrr:snn:lnrnnmnfnn-':nnﬂi:rnh'\mmr.t

= ahility e deyole suffickent tme and atlsnbon 1o hie professonal
obligaton informedand balanced decision;

= ahility to uphoid ethical standards of integrity and pobity in
aooordance with the Company's valuss

Ramuneration Policy:

In dnrr.lrrninirlg the remuneration of the Directors Eey M:lnagnrml
Personnel (KMP) and other employees of the Company, a
Remungration Policy has been framed by the Nomination &
Remuneration Committes end approved by the Board with the
foliowing broad objecte:

= Enguring that the leval ond compensstiion of Remunemton s
regzanable and sufficient to attract, retaln and motivate Directors
af the quality reguired to run the Company Succosshlly,

= botnate the Bey Mansganel Personeel and Senior Manegemean
1o acheave axcallence in their periormance,

*  Relationship of Remunecation to performance & clear and mesty
appropnate performance Benchmarks

& Ensu-ring that the remunafaton o Dirsciors, KMP- & Sanior
Management ivolves a balance between fioed & incentive pay
reflecting batween fimed & incantva pay reflecting short & long
tarm pedarnante objectve appropriate to the wocking of the
Company and itsgoals

Emphasis on efficiency and pay for perormance has bean the

faundatons of the Company's philosophy on rewarnds. The Company

values its intangible assets in the farms of its employes and ta rgtain

thearn, the Carpany regulady benchmarks the remunedation level in

?il—
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ther industry and makes necessary changos in its pay stroctute to retain
thear eimployees,

a) RemunerationtoMon - Executive ! Indapendent Directors:

Tha Nen - Executive / Independent Directer of the Board shall be
arfitled to sitting (ees for attending the meeting of the Board &
Committees theseof. The sitting fees paid 1o the Diractors are
within the lemil prescribed under the Companied fct, 2013, The
Independant Directors shall not ba eligible for any stock option
plang and fwdher shall alss not be eligible for any shere based
paynents, Tha total amountofsiting feesol Bs. 6.5 Lakhs was paid
tooaar Mon- Executive Independent Director of the Company, The
Independant Directors do not have any meteral pecuniary
relationship or transscticns with the Company,

b} Remuneration to Managing! Executive Directors

The appaintment and remuneration of Exscutive Directors
mr_luding Manag’lng Diiractar is gl:lua-rm:_lli h:,-1h-a racommendation
al Mominaton & Remuneration Cammittes,  Redolutions passed
by the Board & Shareholders of the Company. Payment of
remunetation 1@ Exerutive Directors s governed by the respective
agresment exacuted betweaan the Diractor and the Company

The remdgneration p.'nln.ahln to the Mnnngmg Dliractar is hr-:mrll'r-
divided in'to fiked and vanable compenent, The flxed component
i;urnpri';q-s of malary, allowances, paa-rq.,l-:g.ite: and the variable
coiponent comprizes of peformance bornus snd may includs
cammissicn subjacttathe approval afthe membsrs,

The remunaration policy is directed towards rewarding perdformance
pasad, o retain the walent. The detal of Remuneration to the
WManaging Director during the yaar s asfollows:

bilr Kamak Podbdar

R, &0 00 D00

MNote: The above mentioned Ramunersion paid 1o the Managing
Director has bsen approved by the Mambers ol the Company a1
the Annual General Mesting ol the Campany hedd an
Sepromber 27, 2018, whers tha re - appoamtmeant of the Menaging
Digector along with his brief profile forming part of the Resaluton
was put to vole.

However on the approval of the MNomination & Remunerston of
comrmittes and on the appooal of the Board of the Deirecioss of the
Company , the remuneration o be paid to the Managing Directar is
prepesed to be incroased from ¥ B0 Lakba te T 120 Lakhs per anauem
subeect to the approval of the members at the 2HIR Annual General
Meeting of the Compamny. The resolution seeking approval of tha
mermbers farms part of the notice of the 28th AGM,

i Remunesation to Senler Management Employees

The Remuneration 1o Key Managerial Personnel and Senlor
Management shall consist of hxed pay & incentive pay in
com@liance with the provisiens of the Companies &ct; and in
accordance with Compary's Folicy. The fSiked pay shall include
manthly remuneration, empioyerc's contribution fo provident
tund, pansion schemes stc as amendod from time to time, Tha
incantive pay shall be decidad based on the balance betwesn
parformance of the Company and Parformancn of the Key
Maragerial Personnel and Senar Managemaent | to be dacided
annually arsech intorvats as may be considered appropriate:

d] Appointment of the Chairman of the Company

fxan the date of the repornt the committes had approved the
appaintment ot Mr. Sunil Kumar Patodia a5 the Mon-Executive
Hon Independent Chatrrman of thie company with effect from
August 13, 2021

Corpoirrie Gowsranoe Report 5 O

I STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIF COMMITTEE

i

The Staks Holder Relatonship Cammities comprisas of three Direcoes. Detailed balow in the 1able & the Constituticn & details of the

Maating hald during the year

Details of the Meating & Members of Stakeholder Relationship Committea

Mame of the Memb-ar Categary

Mr=. Hemilata Poddar
Mk, &jay Kajrivwal

Mor- Executive Director
Execittive Direcioe
“Mr. Subodh Eumar Agrawal  Indopendent Dimcior

**Mr. Bharal Kumer Shah Incdependent Director

* Mr. Bubodh Kumar Agrawal the Indepandent Cirectar ot the
Carmpany . was apgointed as a Member of the Committees with effect
from Fabruary 12, 2029

**Wr, Bharat Kumar Shah, the Independent Director of the l'.nrnrt.'ln:,.'
resigned from the office of Directorship with effect fram December
048, 2020 & thereon aluo ceasad ba the Mamberof the Commities

Tha Company Secratansacts ass Secretary to the Commitas

The Commities met twice dunng the Financial ¥ear 20202271 on

Movemnber 10, 2020 & Febuary 12,2021

The Company abtaing hall yeary cartificse froma Company Secretary
ir Practise under Begqulaton 4% ol the Listing Regulations, confirming
the lssue of cartificates for transfar | sub dwision , consolidation ete.and
submet & copy tharaol 1o the Stock Exchange in terms o H'qgul.'.:inn
A0 T0) of the Leting Regulations. Further the Complisnce Cenificals
under Begulatian 73} of the Listing Regulations, confirming that ail
activities in relation to both phydical and electronic share fransfer faciiy
are maintained by Fagistrar and Share Transfer Agent regstered with
the Sacurities and Exchange Board of Indwa is also filed with the Stock
Exchamge onehalfyeany bagis.

In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI { Deposiicrles and
Farticipants | Regulatons, 2018 and SEBI Cicular Mo, D& CF
FITTCAC - 164 200 dated Decermber 37, 2002 5 Cualified Practsing
Company Secretary carriad ous a Share Capital Sodit oo seconcila the

Pasition Mo. of Meetings Mo. of Meetings
hald attaericheecl
Chairman 2 2
Mambar 2 2
Membar 1 1
Member 1 1

tofal admitted BEquaty Shane capital wirh WSDL & COSL and the total
issued and paid wp shere copital isin sgresment with the total namber
of shares 0 physical form and the twotal number of dematenalised
shares beld with NSEL and COSL

The terms of reference of the committes include:

« approval of transher of Shares! debentura and =swee of Duplicate
feplit foanecdidation f subdivision of Share

#  to lie record deted book closures af Shared debsnture trensfer book
of the Company from ilme’totirme

= Monitoring sxpaditicus redressal of rvestor grigvance mathars
receiwed from stock exchanges, SEB| BOC e

= b cary out say other duties thet may be delegeted 1o the
comimittes by the Bagrd of Diractors from time to tims,

The Secretarial Department ol the Compary and the Registrar &nd
Transfer Agent, Link In Time ndia Prvate: Lmited (M7=, Shares
D:,-nﬂmic'i India) Private Limitad has bean rﬂ-a-rgud in o Link in Trma
Il Privite Limited |wib efect from Septembaer 01, 2020] sttend to
all the grisvances of the Sharehaldars received diractly or throwsgh
SEBI, Slock Exchandges, Minstry of Cosporate Affairs, Fagidtrar of
Campanies, eto:

Effoarts are made to ensurs that the grigvances ars redrassed
expaditivusly tothe sarisfacticn of the invesions

Detaits of Shareholders Complaints recelved & redressad during the year 201 20- 21 are as follows:

Complains raceiver

Chain i Balance of

nplaine received ehuaring thae yoaar

Complains Resohnad Closing Balance of

i - |
During the Yaoar Complaints recaived

L RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Hisk Mansgement Committes constituted by the Beard of
Diractars s bownd o adbers 1o the Roles & E‘cmﬁm:ihullrﬁl as dehined
by thas Board of Directors in the Policy.

Term of reference of Risk Management Committes:
= Identifying tha Company's Riskappetine

* Raview the nsk management practisss and structures and
recarmmend changes o enbuee thisir adeguasy

= Framing a Risk Managermant Policy

L=
=

* Approve and reviaw the risk managament plan put in place by tha
Imanagerment

= Luch other ectivities as the Bosrd of Directors may determime from
timseto time

The Commiftes i3 responsible for the oversll risk managemeand
process & 1o addess the uncerainties § any 1o be arcused in the
operaticns of the Comyany.

The Risk Managemen Cormmines imeats a1 Regular Inbeoeal. The Risk
Flana gemant Commiteecomprisesof the Senine M;nagamnm Taam
of this Campany and the Execuiive Directars.

| |
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EVMNVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Invastrment Committes s entrusted with the day to day operations with respect to Investments to ba made intha name and on behalf of the
Company, The masimumamount up towhich the Investment shall me mads by the Investment Committes s already predefingd by the Board of
Disectors

Thee dacisions takan by the investment Committes with resped to the Invesimants made on behalt of the Commites are revievwsd by the Board
af Directars at tha Board Meating: the dacisions takan by tha Invastment Committes can be aliersd by the Board of Dinscios,

Thee [rwestment Committes constituted by the Board cofmprises of Execulive & Independent Directars, The details ol the Commiltes Nesting
hinld during tha Yoar alang with the Constitution of the Carmmities aro dotalod as fallows:

Mama of the Mamber Catagory Position Mo, of Mastings Mo, of Maatings

hald attended

M. Kamal Podddar Managing Director Chairman 3
Kir. Bday Kajriwal Exgcutive Dirpctar Migrmbas 3
Mir- A K Thakue Indopondont Dirsctar Nrrmliar 3 3

Thee meeling of Committes was beld on Decermbeer 14, 2020, Janary 14, 2027 and BMarch 17, 2021 during the yaar under review,

FIFIMAMCE COMMITTEE

The Finance Committes is entrusted with responsibility of day to day business activities and taking dacisions on behalf of the Company in
respact ot Fimancial matters pearaining to giving Guamntes, availing loan Bacility rom - Banks, Financeal lesttbutions, Momitors il actharmnca i
the Budget | setting Finanoe goals along with tha 1|..n-.'||ru,-_| strategias to achiave tham, Presanting Finanoe goals to tha Board of Director for
approval, Creating, approving, and uwpdating  policies that halp ensurs the assets of the arganiation am protectad, Ensuring approved Financa
policies and procedures sre being followed by the Company

The maximum ameunt up 12 which the Bere 1@ be given or 1 be avaibed by the Company s predefined by the Beard ol Direstors of the
Company, The dacisicns takan by tha Fanance Committes with respect to the Financial dacisions on behalf of the Cammittee ar roviewod by the
Board af Direttors al the Board Maeting; the decisions tikon by the Finance Cammiltes can be altered by the Board of Directom

Thets cletails of this Committes Meating held dumg this Year slond with the Constituton of the Committes ane detailad as follows:

Meamne of the Member |:.:|'Irl':-l.;_.|l_:|'r' *ni Mo of .‘-1--_—h|:|;gl Mo, of Mlestings

Faled attendesd

be. Kamal Poddar Managng Dhrector Chairman
My .l!-.|a'|,l Kariwal Execufivs Dliractor Meambae 2 b
Mr. Manaj Singhania Chirf Financial Cificer Membar @

Thar Meating of the Finence Commitles was held on Masch 16, 2027 and March 23, 2021 during the year wider payiew,

G)SECURITIES ALLOTMENT COMMITTEE

Thae Securities Allotmant Committes is antrusted majarly with tha role of comsidering and appriving the allotment of Shanes! Deboentures arsing
anaccount of any Corporate action (o b intiotad by the Company,

The Securities Allotmest Commines Mesting was beld oo December 14, 20820, January 14, 2037 ard March 17, 2021 during the Year wodes
risview for the conversion of 26,43, 473 25 50,000 and 33, 50,000 Wearranis ints Equivalest numbser of Equity Shares Respectively,

The Constitution af the Sacuritiss Allotment Committes is as follows:

Mame of the Mambaet Category Pasifion Mo, af Meebng: Ma, of M

hmid ot iin

. Kamal Poddar Manhaging Dhector Chairman 3 3]
hr, Agay Kajriwal Execulive Diractor Mamnbes 3 |
M= Kanshma Shah Company Secretlary Membes el 3

The Meeting of tha Securities Allotment Commitiae was held on Decambear 14, 2060,
Jatnairy 14, 2021 and March 17, 2027 during the year wrder nayie,
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H}CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Section 135 of the Companies &<, 2013 does not imply o wour comipany, nonotheless your Company understands tha importances of its
mspansibilities iowards the sooety under which we cater our sarvices. Your Company has voluntarily adoptod the CSR Policy to shouldor its
respransibiiities towands the ockely and has also constilutod tho C5R Cammmiliee 1o ascorain the activities undertakon by the Compamy o the
bzst intarast of the Sociaty.

The Canstitution of the Comporate Social Rasponsibility Commattes 15 as inliows;

Mams of the Mamber Catagory

Mir. Kanhaiyalal Berwal Independant Divecior hairrman 1 1
Wir, Kamal Padidar Managing Drirecior Mol bsr ] 1
M Ajay Kejrival Enoculive Dirgctar Pl baer 1 T

* Mot : The Caommitter Mestng war bold on November 10, 2020 duning the yoorunder revies

Tarms of misrence of the Cam mitten are o folloes:

whasrrriisating and rocansiimnc w1 Thie Hisared | Chl Prdesyr welig by whall ndicats i scEivdies 10 i u||||r\.-|l.|L||r|1'r|. thas Lenrpunivg ad e il
m- e Schiechils VI al the St

#Msking recommendation on the amouid ol sspendiiuns o be sourred on C5F actwitios

#Tn momitor the implementation of the actaities to b un destake n by the Compang

AFFIRMATIONS & DISCLOSURES

a) Compllance Fremework

formulated  Whistle Biower Policy Tor Vigil Mechinism of
Diraectors and Employses to eport to the managemant &baolit
Unethical babaviow | frewd or viokation of the Compamny's Coda
The Company is in compliance with all mandatory requirements ot Conduct

underthe Listing Regulations.

b} RelatedParty Transaction

The Company bas sdopied o Whistle Blower Palicy snd an
aftective Wigil Mechanism system ta pravida a fermal machanism
e its Disectors, Employess and Buasiness Asspcisles o raise thai
goncerns in a respansible and sHactive mannar rngarrlunr_J
sugpectad upethical matiers invalving serous malpractioe o
wrong daing within the organisation and also to safeguard
againat victimization.  The Mechanizm provides adequate
safeguards against victimization of empdoyess and Directors whao
irwr s h e hanisrm snd makes provision for direct access 1o the

All trassactions enterad in to by the campany with related parties,
during the linangial gear 2000- 21, were in ordinary course of
business gad on arme -length basas, The detais of the Related
Farty Transaction are sat oul in the netes 1o the Fimancial
Staterment in accordance with “IND A5" Torming part of this
Annual Repaon

Thar Rulated Party Transaction undertaken by tha Comparny wers chalrmian of the Sudit Committes in exceptional cases

in compliance with the provisaons sat out in the Companies Act, y ;

7013 read with rulas issusd thers under and Regubation 23 (1) of In ...'ll'.L"i:IIl::iﬂH!:ﬂ with the prowdsions ol Regulaton 26480 ol the

the Listing Regulstions Listing Regulations | the Koy Managerial Persannad | Beractors)
% and Promatenfs) of thie Cormpany Bave affirmesd that they have not

The Audit Commities during the Financial Year 2020-21 has enterad in 1o any agresment for themselves or on befhialf of any

approved Relsted Party Transsclions while granting omniitus ather person, with any sharehalder o any third party with regard

approval in line with the policy of dealing with Related Pamy to compansation or profit sharing in connection with dealings in

Tramsactions and the applcabile provisions of the Companies Ad, the securitios of the Company.

2013 reed with Rules:ssues thersunder and the Listeng Regulations

{including any statitoey modification)s) or menaciments thereol for - d)  Details of Non - Compliance by the Company, Penalties and
tirme belng In force, dewstiona IF any to the said process have been strictures Imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchinges o
brought to tha attention of the Audil Commitiog, SEBl or any statutory suthority, on any matter related to Capital

Thet relsted pasty bransactions anbssed in o by the Cormpany purua Mkt i str i it Yieay

tothe omnibus approsal granted by the Audit Commitieais reviewad The Company has complied with 8l meguiremeants specitied
al bt o a caarbedy bases by the sadd Commilfes untled the Listing Reduldstions-as well as other Begulatons and
guidelines of SEB|. Canseguently, therm were no sticiures of
panalties imposed by estheer SEBF o Stock Exchange or asy
statutory guthaority for ron - compliance of amy matee elated to
Tharre are i matenally significant Related Party Transactons of Capital Markeis during thie last thoes Financial Years

the Company which have potential conflict with the interest ofthe
Company at alarge,

Thee related party transaction policy has besn placed and can be
accassad on the company' s wabslte wwa cholcaindia,com

@l 'F'n]l'qr Datarmining Material Subsidiarias

Purswant 1o reguirements of Regulation 16 and Regualation 23 of
thal inling Ragulations the f.nmpa oy has adophed the policies far
determining material subsidiaies and an related pany
transacthons and the said polices are availabie on the Company's
Wekeaite ad wiswe chidcoindia com

However this complny is in the process of entering mto the
related] party transaction for scguisiton of S0 stake h Mfs
Cheica Insurance Broking India Privatn Limitad, The sesalution
sagking approval fooms partof the notice of the 28th AGM

e Dlurinig the year under review, the polioy fordetermining materlal
Porsuarnd to Saction 17914 10) of the Companiss &ct, 20013 and suhsiclianies was suitably moditiod to bo at par with the mcant
Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulation , the Cempany has armendments to the Listing Regulations

1 — | | O
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Corportiie Governore: Boport

The Minutes of the Boird meeting of the subsidiary company amwe
placed gl the Board Meeating of the Cafmpany an penodical baazs
Al significant transactions and arangements entered in to by the
unlisted subsidiay i any are browght th the notice of the Board of
Diractors of the Company

The Policy for determining materal subsidiares has besn
uplosaded and can be accessed on the Company’s wabsite at
grvan link: www.choiceindia.com

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

In the preparation of the Erancial staterments the Company has
Feallawed the Arcounting Standands referned 1o in Saction 133 af
the Companies Act, 2013, The significant accounting pofices
which are congistently applied arg set out In the Notes to the
Finmancal Statemanis.

Risk Management

Buziness Risk Management & an onegoing process withan the
Campany, The aisssament 15 perodically ssamined by the
Conpary

Wehsite

Tha Company ensures updating the applicabla information
under Regulation 44{2} of the Listing Regulations on the
Company & webaite (www.choiceindia.com), A separate 16k on
“Irvestor Belations” on the webaite contains detalls relating to the
financeal results declared by the Company, Sharehodding Pattern,
Corpdrate Govarnance, and such other Mews and
Annauncements made by the Company to the exchange undar
thie b “Mows & Announcemants”

Secretarial Compliance Repart

SEB! Vide e eircular Mo, CIR/CFOACMED 52772019 dated
Februgry 08 201% read with Regulstion 24{4) of the Listing
Regulation. direct listed entities 10 conduct dnnual Secretasal
Compliagnce Aydit From g practising Company Secretany of all
applicable SEBI Rpgul.ﬂ'unn'; and Circulars! guidelinas issupd
thereunder, The seid secretarial Compliance report is in addition
tey the Secretanal Avdit Repord by practising Comparny
Secelarkes uider Form ME - 3 and s reguired 1o be subemitted w
the exchange within 80 days of the end of the Financial Year

The Cormpany hes abtained the certificate from bs. B M Miman
B Aszocates LLP{Comipany Sacratarias] (Campany Secretanes)

Artached la the Secrstacial Compllance Bepor & Annesuie
farming Part ol the Board Repor

Cartificate from Practising Company Secrotary

Cartificate as required under Part C of Schedule ¥ of Listing
Ragulations, recebved from Mg, B B Mimani & Sssociates LLP
{Company Secretaries] (Firm Registration Na 1204000 MH230300)
thist nesive of the Directors an the Board ol the Campany has baen
debarrad or dizgualified from baing appointed o continuing &
directors of tha Company by the Secunties and Exchange Board
of India / Ministry of Corporate ARsirs or any such authority was
placod before the Board of Dirsctors at their mesting held on
nugust 13.2021

Tha Company has abtained the corificats from M5, B M Miman
B Associates LLP{Company Secrataries)

Artached is the Secrgtarial Compliance Report as Annedune
farming Partof tha Board Report

Recammendations of Committees of the Board

There were no (nstances durng the Financial Year 2020-21
wheren the Board hes not eccepted ecommendations made by
ary comirnittes of the Board,

L

LuH

Ml

o

Pl

4

Total Foes Paid to the Statutory Auditors of the Company

Total fees of Re: 54,03,8000 was paid by the Company and its
subsidiarips, on 2 consclidated bases, tothe statutony auditor and
gll antitrees i the network firm © netesrk entity: of wheh the
stalutory auditoris a part forthe Financial Year 202021

Disciosura ralating to Sewuwal Harassment of women at Work
Place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has in place an efectve mechanism for dealing
verth complalints selating 1o sexual haragsment ot wesk place. The
details relating to the number af complaints mceived and
dispesed af dursg the financial year 2020-21 pre as uncer:

o Mumberof Camplains Tded during the inancial yasn Mil

k. Mumber af Complaints deposed of during the Financal Yaar:
Ml

¢ Mumbaerof Complairts pandi rig &% an orid of the Financial Year
iy (1

Codeof Conduct

The Company has edopled g Code of Conduct for all ermployess
InGluding tha mambers of the Board and Senior Management
Personnel, All members of the Board and Senior Management
Personnal have affirmed Compliance with the said Code of
Condusct for the Frnancial Year 202027, The declaratan from our
Menaging Derectos, M Eamal Poddar affirming the same fonms
the part of this report

SEBI Complaknts Redress System {SCORES)

Secunties and Exchanga Hoard of India (SEBI} administers a
centralised web based complaints redress system (SCORES) It
enables investoraio lodge and {ollow up complainms and track the
status af redressal online on the website wwwscorasgowvin. it
plie enables the Campany fo receive the Cemplaints from
Inwastor againgt them, redress such complaims and report
redressal Al the activities starting frem ledging the complamttill
Itz disposal are carried online i an aubormated emviranment and
the status of svery compliant till its dispasal are carried onfina in
an automated esvironmeent and the status of every complaint can
be viewed onling at any time. The Company has registened oot
on Scores and endesvours to resolve all investor complain
recened threugh soores,

Disclosure on Commodity Price Risk and Commodity Hedging
Acthdities

The Company hes in place & machanism to miorm the Board
Members about the Risk sssessment, mitigation Plans and
periodical reviews faced by the Company, Rizk based intermal
audit plan:is approded by the Audit Committes which also
reviews adequacy and effectivenseas of the Company's interal
finencial contrals

The Company doas notimyatve incommadity hedgingactivitias

Details of Utilization of Funds salsed through Prefesential
Allotmant or qualified Institution placement as spacified undar
Regulation 32{TAL

O Jariwary 02 2020, on the receipt of the 25 % of the
Consideration amount, the Securitiss allotment Committes of
the Company had allotted 158,00 000 warrts 4o be converted
In ta Equivalent aumber of Equity Shares withim 18 maorths of
allgtmant at a Price of Rs. 51 per warrant to the Promater &
Person’s ather then the Pramoter group on theterms & conditions
prescribed under the SEBI (lssue of Capial and Disclosure
Enquirnman'l:'lEngulﬂtin:-n:.zm-ﬁand-nﬂ'lw applicable laws

Danng the Year ander reviee on the ot of the Balance 5 %
consideraticn amount & on the applicaticn of the allofes, the
Warrarﬂsmrnn:rmﬂgﬂad:nmam.:r.-alnnrnuml'.rafn:rﬂ-fql.lrr',' e
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A 5o cn date af the Repod, there are no autstanding Warranis ta
b converted in to Eguity Sharas & none of the warrants wena
forfeded. & the Warrants oo allotted were converted in to
Equwvalent Mumber of shares within the given time frame of 18
Moniths.

The amouit 20 recenved on conversion of the warrant ware Tully
utilized for the working capital requirement of the Company &
q:-thl:rg:m:ral CerTprarale purpose,

Means of Cammunication

Effective Communication of infarmation (s an essential
companant of Corporate Governanca. |t & process of sharing
information, ideas, thoughts, opiniens and plans 1o all siske
halders which promota management - sharehaolders relations,
The Company regularly interacts with iz mambers thraugh
multiple channels of Communications such as rasults,
annauncemants, annual reports and the wehsite of the Carmpany
andthe stock exchanges

iy Quarterly Result

Tha Unaudited quartarly’ hakl yearly financial resulis are
announced within 45 days of the end ol the reapsclve quarer,
The audited annual irancial results are announced within &0
days ef theclose of the financial vear az per the reguiremant of
tha Regulation 33 of the Listing Ragulations. Howsvar due to
the on-gaing pandemie COVED 219, the company avaled the
benetit of relaxations granted by “SEBI on announcemeant of
Financial Results. The aforessid financial resubts are sent 1o
BSE Limitad {B5E] where the shares of the company are lisied,
Thiese fesuhs are therealter published within 48 hoars in ane
Eriglish Mewspaper (Financial Express) & ons local newspaper
{Mavshakti' Aplarmahansgr}as well as placed on thewebsite of

thie Cormgany:
il Wehsite

in Compliance with Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations, a
separate dedicated section wnded “lnvestors Relathan” an the
Company's webikits gives infermation on various
Brnouncernenis made by the Company, status al unclaimed
dwidlend, Annual Repon, Quarterly [/ Hall Yearly! Nine Manths
and Annual Financial results along with the applicable policies
of the Companyatwwechoicalindia cam

Hi}5tock Exchanga

The l:nrﬂp.'mjl makas 1irnq-|5| disclosuras of NOCEsSAry
Information to BSE Limited in terms of Listing Regulations and
athar nilas & regulations issusd by the SEBI

iw] BSE Listing Centro

The Financial Resuls, Sharehalding Fattern and Ouarterky
tepart on Corporate Governance and ather filings reguired 1o
be miade to the stock exchanges are elecironicably filed at BSE
portal e Bsting beeindia com, pursuant to Regulation 1041 of
the SERI {LCHORE Regulations) BSE has mandated the Listing
Centre as the "Electranic Plathorm? for filing #ll mandatory and
any oifer information 1o be filed with the Stock Exchangos by
Listed] Ennties. BSE also mandated XBRL submissions far
Shameholding Pattern & Corposite Governance: All the data
relating e financiel results, vadious submissiony’ disclosune
documents etc., have been slectronically filed and
Sharsholdimg partermn B corposle governance Repor have
baen filod in ABRL mode with the Exchange o the "Listing
Centre”. hitol hsting. basindia.cam}

w) Price Sensitlve information

All price sensithve inforration asd such other matters which In
the opinion of the Company are of importance to the
Sharehoiders! investors are promiptly Intimated 1o the Stock
Exchanges Matarial developmenis relating 1o the gormpany

%

ars potentially price senditive in natise or which could impact
continuity of publicly available information regarding the
Company are disclosad to the Stock Exchanges interms of the

Company's polcy for determination of Materiality of Eventss
Informaticn

e 3

| 80
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Raquiations

Board af Dirsctors 1711}
1702)
17[3)
1714]
175
1716
1711
1710
1719)
1Hm

Aucdit Commdttes 18[1)

18[2)
18(3)

Momination & Bemunmerataon 1) & (2]
Commmittes

19(3)

19(4)

20(1), 20{2)
B 2083}
20{4)

Risk Management Committes 21(1),
{2 & (3)
2114)

Vigh Mechansm 22

Stakaholder Relaticnehip
Commitien

231230 5],
2316, 23(7)

. 23(8]

23[2) & 2313)

Related Party Transaction

23]

Sub=idiaries of the Cenmpiaiy 24[7]

2a[2), 24{1)

2[5 R2AG)
Dhbligations with respact to 25017 &)
Independent Diraciors

25[2)

25(d)

25(1
Caligation with respect to 26(1) B{2)
Cirectors and semor manageresnt

26[2]

Atl4]

26[5]

Char Corporate Gowmrmanon 271
Reculramants 2112

Gisclosuras on Wahsite of the AG[ZXE)
Comgpany
8412 ¢
£4(2) 1d)

afdis )
S6[F] {1}
4d[E1la)
262X}
A4 (2111
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Brief Description

of tha Regulation

Composition of Board

Meating of Board of Directons

Review of Compliance Repart

Plans for orderdy succassion for appointments

Code of Conduct

Feeal Campssngitian

Bindmiaem information to bBe placed before the Booard
Comipliance Certificate

Rick Assetsmeant & Management

Perdormance Evaluation

Compaosition of Awdit Commiftes & Presence of the
Chaarman of the Committee at the Annuil General Masting
Meating ol Audit Commifing

Riola of the Committes and review of informaton

by the committas

Compasition of Momimatian and Bemunecation Commities

Presence of Asdit Committes chairman 31 the
Annual General Mesting
Rale aof the Committeso

Compaoaition of stake holder relatbonship commities

Rala of the Committes
Composition of Risk Management Committas

Bole of the Committes

Formudation of Wigll Machanism for Directons
and Employess

Polkoy for Related Pany Transection

Omnibus approval by the Audit Commites
& revview ol trangaction
Approval af material refated pady hassaction

Compasition of Board of Director af material

undisted subsidiarg

Cither mquiremants sts stipulated undar the regulastions
Maximum Diractorship & Tanurs

Miaating al Indl:_-pnnl:ln-m Drirariors
Review of Performance of Independent Dhrector
Familiarisation of lndepandent Directar

Mernbership & Chairman of the Cammitiie

Complisncy to code of conduct for Board of Dirgctars
and Sanior Managament amployaes

Discinsura af Sharahalding Fatbern by Mon - BEsecutive
Diractor

Disclogure an Conflict of Interes by sanior managaman

Complianca of Discretionary requimments
Filing of guartarly compliance: rapant on Coeporate Gowmanos

Taamis and conditions of appointmant of Independent
Diractar

Compasition of various committes ot Board of Directors
Code of conduct of Board of Directors and sanior
managamant parsonnal

Diatails of sstablishmeant of wgil mechanism

Critoria for making paymant to hon - Exscutive Directors
Palicy on dealing with raladacd party transaction

Palicy for determining Material subsidiarias

Biatails of Emilarisation programmes impared to
Independant Diractors

Compliance

Status

Complied
Carmplied
Compdiod
Camplied
Complied
Camplied
Camplied
Complind
Compliad
Camplied

Complied
Complied
Complied
Coampliad

Comphad
Camplied

Caompliad

Mot Applicabls

Kot Applicable
Complled

Complied

Compliad
Carmpdiod
Campdied

Complied
Compliad

Complied
Camphied
Carnpied
Caprplisd

Campliod
Compliod

Campliod

Compdied
Comipbied

Complied

Compiied
Coamplied

Complied
Complind
Complied
Camplied
Compliad

) Details of Compliance with Mon- Mandatorny recquiremeanls:

— Ciorpordie Gommanoe Rapoi r':'.f_i_,.

i) During the ysar undar revied, there is no audit gualification on the Company's imancial statemeants. The Company continuss to adopt the
best practises to safeguard the practice of Usnmodified seditopinion

il The lntermal Awditor haz & directaceass 1o th e Audit Committas,

wilh the obssrations o the Audil Commitien,

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATICEN
] Company Reghtration Detadls:

hi participates m the Audit Coanmittes Meetings sl pretents his repaorts

Tho Comparny is regestessd in tha state of Mahaashira, India, ondoei he jurisdiction of Regetrar of Cormparmies, Mumbar

Carparate idantity Mumber (CIM Mo): L&T1 SOMH199IPLCOT1117

iy Rnancial Year April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021
i 28th Annual General Meatingfor the Finandal Year 2020- 21

Diay and Date Thastsday |, September 23, 2021
Tiine G300 P
Meoxda Thraugh Video l'.nn.lw—mnrlr\-q # athar Audio Visual Maans as sat gt in the Motice comaning

Annual General Meeting

Financial Year S0F0-21

finok Closor

v} Listing Dhetails

Steck Exchange onwhich Shares are Listed

Stock Code mat1asd

Seript I CHOICEN

1510 INETOZROTONA
vl Dividend History

Financial Yo

Typa ol Dividan=d

(Fricay) Septamber 17, 2021 to [Thursday) Septembar 23, 2021 {Both days inclusive)

BSE Limited {Bambay Stock Exchangs)

Diada of Declaration Dividend Far Shane ot tha

Face Vadus of B4, 10 sadh

2011-12 Final
201213 Final
201314 Final
201415 Final
201514 Final
201817
201718
201819
201920
2020-29

Wi} Unclaimed Dividend

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Compariies Act, 2013
(the Act] mead with the lnvestor Education and Protoction Fund
Authoriey (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Befund) Rules, 2014
[harainafter called "the IEPF Rules™), the amaunt of dividend which
rernain unclaimed or unpaid for & penod of seesn years from the date
of transtor of such amount to the Unpaid Davidend focount opaned in
pursuancs of sub-section (1) of the ssed Section B requined to be
transterrad too the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)
established under sul-gecton {1 }af Sectan 125l the det,

September 28, 2012 1%
Sefpteimbar 16,2013 0%
Saptembar 77, 2014 10%
Septembiar 24, 7015 0%
'_-'.-;r:ulem!.uer 20,2008 10%
Dividand Mot Doaclarad
Crividand Mot Creclared
Criwidend Mot Declared
Diidmng Mot Daclarad
Divicdand Mot Dheclared

Accordingly, the unclaimed dividend in respect of the financial yead
201314 is dua for transter to the EFF in Saplember 30, 2021

Members, who have not yet cdaimed their dividend for the financeal
waar 201314 o for any subseguent Bnancial years, are requsested fo
clalm thee same rom the Companyg. Additionally, purssant to sub

saction [&) of Section 125 of the Act read with the IEPF Rulss, all shares
it raspect of which dividend has nct Been claimed for the past seven
consscutive years shall be transierrad by the Company in the name of
IEPF dudkarity by way of craddit to the Demal Sccount establahed by
the |EPF futhanly an of before September 30, 2021 or such other
date as miay be specslied by the Cental Gevernmant inthis regard,

1 — | [
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Any mambser whose shares are thus trensferred to IEFF may dasm  During the yaar under review, the Company had sant individual Cornpariscay Chart
hisfferdits dhares under provnds ta Secticn 124[06) ol the Actby following notices seeking aclion from shareholder, wha has net claimed
the process given under Bule 7 of the [EPF Rules. interms of therelevant Dividend & whose shares have baen translerred o [EFF
|EFF Rules, the Company haswploaded thainformation in respeect of tha ; Aol
Unclaimed Dividends {Final Dividendjforthe financial years from 2013 - arenolders may nota that bath' tha unclaimed dividend and 140 560
; : L carrespanding shares ransforred o [EPF can be claimed Tram IEPF O
14 to 2015:14 as on the date of tha Twenty Third Annual Gerwral fallowsng the procedures prescribed inthe IEPF Rules, Shamsbaldars
Meeting (AGM]} hald on September 20, 2016, on the website of tha p g et e 45000
i o Pt Wi ViR whioae unclaimed Dividentd and Shases have been transfered 10 IEPF
Pursuant 1o the poovisions of Sections 124 and 125 of tho-Act, tha can claim the same from 1EFE by Hling. Form IEPE 5 with the IEPF 120
=11 i | I L oF
Company has fransherred an amount of Ra 2,37 488/ Pupees Two athoate y Hing J 40000
Lakh Thirty Seven Six Hundred Eighty Eight Only 1, baing the unclaimed S
dividend for the financial year 2012 1310 IEFFfor the year 2020, 100 35000
30000
Given balow aee the detes ol declaration of didend and carresponding laat dates for elamming unpaid Dividend 8o
25000
Fnancial Yaar Typa ol Dividend Date of Daclaration of Last date for calming &0 0000
Driviclend wnclaimec D dend
_ a0 - 15000
2013-14 Final Septembeer 27 5014 Oetober 3, 2021
. = 3 e e 10000
2014-15 Firual Saplembees 24, 2015 Oetahat 1, 2022 a0
201514 Firal Saptamber 20, 2014 October 1,2023 5000
L] 1]
W] Datails of General Body Mastings of Last thres years = A o4 o4 e o & A A e g My
& g il & o
e o - T '\_W { -.q.\‘l ol :fz‘ '\.:L' 1..:@' :19 {a:E} . ]
FRnancial Year at Vese itensif any '}ﬂl" ‘§¥’ o (sﬁ "‘:Fr ﬁ ‘sa ,{,‘ 4
¥ .,}@) & dg-':' & éé‘:' o e i
20718 Soptember 27, 2018 11,00 AM Hotel Radisson, %P2, MG H&d' +d‘q" Qa"' i
Cantral Park, Hanuman Magar, e BSE SEMISEK
Anddher [ East) Mumbai - 433053
2018-1% September 27,2019 12.30PM Haotel Kabivoor Continsntal R - appodntiment ol
Archari Kwrla Bosd | B Nagar, e Kamal Poddaras tha
At [ East] Murmba: - 400054 Managing Director of the Company [X) Registrar & Share Transfer Agent
; Ws, Lk fnakme ncdia Pt L
2019-20 September 30,2020 11.00 AM Video Conferencing / Other Audio e nr b e

Addresa: C 101, 247 Park, L.B.5.Marg

Wikhrodi[Wast), Murmbad - 400083,

Contact Ma: 022 - 4918 42730 Faw Mo 022 - 407134060
Wiabsitia: Hps = e, linkintime, oo, ingd

Visuad Means

Wit} Market Prica Diata
Email: mi halpdesk@Hubkintime coin

Manth Choice Chilcs Low Clase Prics BSE Ssnuax BSE Senssn BSE Semnsen

High [B5E) | BSE) [ BSE] High Lo Cliovga

X} Distribution of Sharehelding as on March 31, 20217

April, 2020 CERT 71,15 G395 33887 25 2I500.79 3TIT 42
May, 2020 105.00 BE.50 104,00 1284545 29754.45 3242410 Mo of Ecpity Mo of Sharehol disr Share Armooant % total of
Juna, 2020 173,00 LR L {2755 AGT04.55 FPIA0.10 915 BD Shargs Shara Cagital
July, 2020 149,90 11540 119.45 3861703 34927 20 EYENT | e 5000 1647 9183 775322 2.1
August, 2020 141.00 11250 127,00 A0010.17 36911.23 AHAZE.29 500 to 10000 51 2.60 413729 | 44
September, 2020 128.00 10250 113.85 FR359 51 3649590 JA0ET. 93 1000t o 0000 14 0.7 190376 &7
Ocioher, 2020 133.15 105,55 118,05 47048.05 IR4T(.20 941407 20001 to 30000 B 041 1935%% &8
Novemiber, 2020 126.00 111,00 12540 4482537 3933492 4414972 30001 to 40000 3 (.15 111118 0.39
Dacembar, 2020 133.00 111.10 127.40 47E94.97 44T18.10 47751,33 b et & e bk Hoe
Januany, 2021 12775 10490 10545 S0184.00 A6 1404 REZE8G.77 HTIY b T 2 i aiiaisa 1

100061 to above 34 1,73 24143933 9152

February, 2021 121.00 10620 117.00 EF514.74 46433 85 290999
March, 2021 134,65 112,70 12280 SIE21.84 AB236.35 ATHOR.5 L A 100 Eﬁwfﬂ 100,00
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Xl Categories of Sharehol der as on March 21, 20 29 XHl) Address of Cormespondence

Catagory of Sharekholder Tatal Mo, of Shares % of Total Shares Compliances Officers T & : COiTes with the

(A  Sharehodding of Proonater & Prormoter Grou
g P Mz, Karishma Shah

& Individuals 17550011 143 Company Secrotary & Complience Officer Btés. Link Intirme bnefia Pt Ltd Choice Halsa,
b Aesclims Corparats 00,000 210 Chaice Hause, Addross T 107, 247 Park. | I‘I'E.M;lrg, Shroa Shakambhari Corporate
) Shres Shakambhan Corporate Park, Vikheoli{West), Mumbai 400083, Park, Plot ba-15&- 153,
Total Promoter Sharehalding (4] 1815001 E15T Plot Mo~ 154~ 158, Andhari{ East), TelNo: 022-4918 6270 Andhaei| East)
- Mumbai - 400099 Fax No: 022-4918 6060 Murnbsai - 4000599
By  Public Shareholding Emall ick karishma.shah@icholcelndia.com Website: warwlinkintime codn Emallid:infofchalcelndla.com

a Institutians Email: mt helpdesk@linkintime.coin

| Mutual FundsUT
il Financial Institutiond Banks = > :
XVi  Dematerialisation of Shares
Asan March 31,2021 total dematenalssd Equity Shares of the Company amounts to 99 7 7% of the Company's Capital ( COGL BS.64%
be. Insurance Compahies - & MSOL1413%E ) The Company has entered in toan Agreament with Central Depositar (india] Limated [ C0S5E) & Maticnal Securities
Depasitory Limited] NSDLwhers by tha Sharsholdars have an option to dematonialise thair shares with sither ofthe dapositorias
XY} Share Transter Systam

s Link Inteme didie Private Cimited s the Company's Regaetrar and Share Troseler Agent (RTA) for carrying out share related activities
Sub Total{ Bal Itk transter of Shares, transmission of shares. trsspesition of shares, name delation, changaof address, amongst athers

iif. Feraign Portfalio frovestor -

v, Formian Fimancial Institution 5

vi. Formign Mutiual Fund

b Man - st tuticen The Board of Birectors of the Company hawe delagated the authonty 1o appaove thia trarsfer of Shases, transmission of shanes, requesss
far deletion of name of the shanehobders ete, 1o the dessgnated olficials of the Company, However the bassactiong in respect of sseance

1
1 Bt Corporate 4,33,8513 .50 of dupdicate share cartificates, split, rematsrialisation, consolidation and renawal of Share Cenificaies are approved by the Stakeholdar
i, Imedivichsal 75 09 AR 2440 Relaticrship Commites of the Bosrd of Directors of the Cormpang.
All the decuments received from the shareholders are scritinized by the Company BT4 , The Shared ledged for ranafer, i an
processed and Share Cedificates duly endorsed are refurned within the stipulated time subject te documants badng valld and complete
e MEI 4 A3 .14 inall respects.
d Claaring Mambers 4 e ool Inadlzases of transfar of shares in plysical mode anistimation lettor is being sent to the transferoe fs) informing thom of the lodgmmnant of
Transferand incase of any objections o said transier to severt within fifieen dayswith copy toransterae]s
& HUF 208,130 273 ) L J_'- P2 KT I dayswi rJ'r'_ | {s)
A supnmary of approved fransiam, transmizcion, delebion requests, et are placed before the Board of Directors From time totime a3 pe
i IEPE acez (ERTR ] thi Listing Raqgulations,
Sub Total { Bh)
Tetal Public Shareholding (B) {Ba+ Bl Be+ Belt B+t BI) 1,04,18.262 3647 Onbehalf of the Board of Directors
GrandTotal [ A+8 ] 100
Sl - Gl
Kamal Poddar Ajay Kajriwal
iy Tep Ten Sharoholders as on March 31, 2027 other than Promotes & Promoter Group {Managing Diractor | | Diractor]
CHIM B 01 518700 Cxltd M 0 3051841
Marme of the Share ol des Mo of Shares Held % of Holding Place: Murnbai

Ulabes: Supst 13,2402

1 M s Barara Projecls Private Limited 1285025 4540
Z M. Ravi Agarwal 1003000 3,50
3 hifs. Flarence Secunithes Private Limitad TahGEE 275
A4 M Suresh Kumar Jagoc A0 b
5 Mz, Vimia Surssh Jajoo AHO0D00 210
& i Ankit Jajoo A0 210
r Ms, SeapraKabra AO0O00 2.10
A M, Juendra Kumar Bhagat SO0 1.75
9 ffla. Ll Augaraal SECO00 1.75
10 M Charterod Capital Rasaarch Private Limitad 414772 1.4%
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Corpoirrie Gowsranoe Report

"

CEO/ CFO Certification
mﬂ' r

Wis the under slgaed, In oul respacioe capacities s Managing Disector [CEC) and Chief Financial
Oiftiees af Chonee Internaticnal Limited (7 the Company” | 1o the best af our knowledge and behalf
certify that:

&) We have reviewed financial sratement and the Cash Flew statement for the year ended March
31, 2027 andthat to the best of our knowbedge and Belief we state that;

i, thesestatements donot contain any matenally untrue statement o omit any matenal factor
containatatemants thar might ba mesleading:

i, these statements egether present a true and far view of the listed antity's affairs and arein
Compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulatons,

b We further state that to the bast of our knowledae and balief, no ransacton entesed into by
the Comipany during the year, which are fraudulent, llegalar valation ofthe Company's Code
of Conduct

ch Wi are responsible for establishing and maintaining imernal confrols for financia! mporting
and that we have evaluated the efectiveness of Internal Cantrol systems of the Company
pertaining to financial reporting of the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors and the
Audit Committes, deficiencies in the design or operation of Intersal controfs, IF any, ofwhich
wa ase aware and the stepawe have When or propose totake o rechly these deficiences

iy Wiethave indicsted i the Bpditors and the Audd Commities:
i1 Significant Changes, if any, ininternal control gverfinandal repgriing during tha year,

il Signiticant Changed, ifany, in accounting podicies during the year snd the same have hiaer
disclosed inthe nodes to financlal statemants: and

il instances ot signficant fraud of which we have beoome awane and the involsmant therain,
it any, of the managemant or an employes having a significant rala in the Company's
Imarnal Control systems ovar financial raparing

ALDITORS CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE
OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERMANCE

The Mambars of

Choice International Limited

JCIN: L7 1 90MH1993PLECOT1117)
Shree Shakambhar Corporate Park,

156 1 Chakravorty Ashok Sociaty,

JB. Nagar, Andheri (E)L Mumbai -4 00099

We have examinad the compliance of conditons of Corporate Gowemance by Choles
Intemational Limited (“the Company™) lor the financal yaar ended an March 31, 2027, a5
stipulated in Regulations 17 1o 27 and elauses (b) to () of Regulation 4402 and para © and D of
Schadula ¥ to the SEB (Lsting Ohbligations and Disclosure Requirementsy Ragulations, 20015
{'LODR™.

The compliance of-cond tthions of Corposate Governance s the responsibiling of the Management
This respanibility includes tha dasign, implamantation and maintenance of intermal control and
procedured to andure complance with the canditions of the Corparate Governance stipulated i
thae: LODHR,

Cur responsibility is limited 1o skamining the procedures and implementation thersal, adopted
by the Company Tar anguring complignos with the conditions of the Corporate Governance, It is
nezlthier an awdit nor an expression of opinion an the financal statements of the Compary

We have suarmined relevant records and documents mairdained by the Compamy fof the purposes
af provicling reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements
oy thee Coarmpany.

Bagad on our sxarminglon of the relevant records and sccording o the information and
axplanations provided to us and the rmprasantations prosided by tha Managarment, wa cariily that
the Company has complied sath the conditions of Cospaorate Gévernance ay stipulsted i the
aftoresald provisions of LODR during thafinancial yearanded March 21, 20217,

We state that such complianco is neither &n assurance as to the lutura viability of the Company nor
the effichency or effecmensas with wivich the Management has conducted the affairs of the
Company,

For R M Mimani & Associates LLP

[Company Secrataries|

[Finm Regisration Mo, L2040 5MHDCEI00]

CHOICE INTERRATIONAL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 20217

(s S

[ o

Fou Chalee Intematianal Limited oty
Meno] Mimand
5d/- : {Partngr}
! . gk : ACSNo: 17083
{Kamal Poddar) [Mara) Singhanala) CPMa: 11601
Planagiing Direchor Chief Finan cial Officer PR Mo 1065/2029
DIN Mo 01518700 UDIN: AD17083CO0DOTTRZSD
Wurnbai Place: Murmbal
Date: August 13,2021 Dated: Avguisr 13,2021
E?l R —— _—— | 28
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oy tancizipne Indepenchent Auditor o Ragon

INDEPENDENT ALDITOR'S REPORT

Ta The Memibvers af Chid ce internetions Lirmiten
Report an tha Aadit of the Standalons Financlal Statements

Cipinkan

ropnrt. Blang

.
UL T dtlilegd the acoompanying stanoas

{ Chodce International Limited (the
shicet 3z 2t 31s blarh

Maragements Hewporaibility for the Standalone Financial
Ststerments

Auditor's Responaibality for the Audit of the Stendalone Financial
Staterments

} Arm W3 oA I wihseF e

& dalane financial stabem T4 i & roim meatsrisgl
Information Dthar than the Standalone Financial Statemants and i chu
Auiditos's Repoar Thereon

Standalone Independent
Auditor’s Report

)
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% Standalare Independont Auditar's Bepon
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provide 8 bass for oor opmion; The sk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resuiting from edar, as fraud may wolve coflusion, forgery,
intentional omisssons, mismpresentations, or the ovemide of
wdernal control,

»  Oibtainan enderstanding of internal financial control relevant o
the aodit in order to design aodit procedurss that ame
appropriste m the orcumstances, Undor section 1433} of the
Act, wa are also responsitle for expressing our opinion an
whathar the I:nrnpm,l has adequate intermal financial comtrols
syitanm in place sid the oparating effectivensss of such controls

o Eealusts the appropratensds of secounting policies used and
the reazonabloness of accounting - astimates and related
diselpsuset made by the management.

o  Conclude an the approprsteness ol manapement’s use of the
goeng concarn basis of accounting and, based on the audit
auidence ablained, whether a material uncenainty exists related
o events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's abifity ta continue #s a geing concern, if we conchude
that & matenal uncenainty sxisis, we are required o drew
attention in our auditor's report o the related disclosures in the
asndalone financial watements or, F such discloswres are
inadegquate, 1o moddy our opmion. Qur conclusions arm based
o thi audit evidence abitamed up 1o the date of ou suditos's
repoit. Howeser, future events or condibons may cause the
Company tocaase o Continge as & going concam.

o Eealusts the overall presentstson, structuie and eontent af the
standabone financal statements, Including the disclosures, and
whathaer the standalone financial statements represamt the
undarlying tramsactions and events ina manner that achleves fair
prasentation

Matariality is the magnitede of misstetemants in the standalons
firanciad statemants that, indhadially or m aggregate, mekes it
probable that the econemic decisions of a ressonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone fnancial staterments may be
influenced. We conssder quantitative materality and qualiiative
Fasctors m i) plapneng the soope of our awdit work and in evaluating
the resulis of curwork; and () to evaluate the effect of amy identfied
misstatamants inthe standalons financial siatements

We commiunicate with those charged with govemance eganding,
among othes matters, the planned scope and tming of the awdit
and significant audit fndings, inchuding any significant deficiencies
ininternal control thet wa identify during our pudst

W also provide those charged with governance with a statemeant
that wa have complied with relevant athical requiremants ragarding
independence, and to commuracate with thom all melatonships and
othuier Fhatters thal mey esonably be thought 1o bear o aur
indapendonce, snd where applicable, related safeguprds,

Report on Other Logal and Regulatory Requirements

1. A5 required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our puditwe
fepo, tothe extent applicable that:
sl We have sought and obteined all the Information and

sxplanagions which to the best of our knowledge and beliaf
wiere necesdary for the purposss of sur audit,

b In our opinion, proper books of account s required by law
have boen kept by the Company sofar as it appears from aur
expmenatian of thase bocks,

¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Proft and Loss

including Ciher Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow
Statamant and Statermnaent of Changes in Equity dealtwith by
this Report are i agreemant with the relevant books of
acoount

dl In our ocpmon, the aforesaid standalone  financial
statemants comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 ofthe Act.

o) Onthe basis of the witten representations rocenmd from thn
directors taken on record by the Bosrd of Directors none of
the directors is disqualified as on 3151 March, 2021fom
Being appainted 83 & directar in terms of Section 164(02] of
the &t

fiWwith respect to thie q.:luqu.au::,r of the internal financial
cantrobs sver financial reparting of the Company and the
oparating  effectvensss of such controls. efer w0 owr
separale Repord 0 “Annesere &7 Our repornt expresses an
urmadifisd opinion on the adequacy and operating
gHactivanass of the Company's intermal financial controls
ower financisl reporing,

gl With respact to the other matters to be included in the
Agclitor's Roport in accordance with the requirements of
sectban 197 18] af the Act, as amended, i our apinion and to
tha best of our information and according to the
oxplanations gren o us, the remunerstion pasd S pravided
by the Company to s directors dunng the year s in
accordance withthe provisions of sechon 197 of the Act.

) With respect 1o the other maters to be ncluded @ the
Auditors Repost wm accordance with Fule 11 of the
Companizs {&udit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, a5 amendad in
ourapanion and tothe best of cur information and according
to the axplanatioss given fo ws:

i. Tha Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on = financal poston In s standalone
financial statements

ii. Tha Company did mot have any long-term contracts
Including derivative contracts for which there weses any
miaterial foresasable losses.

iii.;Thera has beon no dalay in tansferming amounts,
required to be transferred 1o Inyestor education and
protection fund {IEPF] by the Company except for the

fallowang: = :
Natweofdues | Amount  Duedste | Actuallypaid
Unclasmed
Diwickencd | 2 A74BR. . 301062000 L O8.04-2077

2, As mguired by the Companies (Auditor's Repost] Coder, 2016
(*the Order) msued by the Central Government i terms af
Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B 8 statermnent
onthe matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 af the Order,

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELIS LLP
Charered Accountarns
[Firm's Registratian Me. 117 366WAN1000718)

S
G Subramaniam
\Partner)
[Membarship Mo, 109839}
DN 211098 30AA0A11 5034
Placa: Mumbm
Date: 25tk Juna, 2021
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ANMEXURE "A"TOTHE INDEPENDENT ALIDITORS" REFORT

{Referred to in paragraph 1) under ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requiremaents’ secton of our repo of even data)

Report on the Internal Financlal Contrals Over Financlal Reporting
under Clause {1} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("tha Act”)

We have audited the intermal financial contrals over financial
reparting of Choice Intemational Limited (the “Company™) s of
315t March, 2027 in conjunchion with our audit of the standalone
financial ststements of the Company for the year ended on thet
dake,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Fnancial Contrals

The Company's managemeant is responsible for establishing and
mantasning intermal inanclal controds based on the internal contrl
ower fingnceal reporting criteria established by the Comgany
considering the eczantial components of intemal controd stated in
thi Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Fnanclal Controls Owver
Financiad Reporting {the "Guidance Note®) issued by thednstitute of
Chartered Accountants of India, Thesa msponsibilitios incdlude the
detign, mmplementation and maimenance of sdegquate internal
firanicial contrals that are oparating ul'Fq:r_nml'.l for ensuring thi
orderfy and efficient conduct of its business, incleding sdbarance o
the Compamy's pofickes. the ssfeguarding of iz assets, the
prevantion and detection:of frauds and errors, the accurscy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the fimely preparation
of reliable fmancial information, as required under the Companies
Aet, 2013,

Auditors' Responsibility

ot responsibility ks to espress an opanlon on the Company's
imtermal financial contrals aver financial reporting of the Company
based on dur suddd. We conducted cur sudnt i accordance with the
Guidence Note issund by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Inddia ard the Standards on Auditing prescribed wnder Section
143010 of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable toan
audd, of mternal finanoal controls, Thosa Standards and tha
Guidance Mote raguine that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and parform the audit to-obtain reasonable assurance
about whother adequate internal financial controls owver financial
reparting was eatablished and memained and f such controls
operated effectvelyinall materal respects,

Crar aneit involves parforming procedures to obtain ausdi evidence
abesut the sdequacy of the internal fnancial comrals gysem ower
financial reporting and theis aperating effectiveness, Our audit of
internal financial controds over financial reporting  inclwded
obtsining ‘an understanding of intermal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing tha risk that a materia! weakness
awists; and tosting and evslusting the design and opsrating
afectvenass of intornal contrals based on the assessed risk. The
procedunes selected depeand an the swditars’ fudgment, ncleding
the sssessment of the nsks of materal misstatement of the
standalone financlial starements whether dus to fraud ar eenar.

Wha bisliewe that the audit svidenee we hove abtared, = sufficient

and appropnate to provide 2 basis for our sudt opmion oy the
Company's inEinal financal contrals system over  financial

reporiing.

=
Standalons Indeperdeni duditor's Repor %
]

Maaning of Intarnal Financial Contrals Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial contrals cwer financial reporing s a
process designed 1o provide reesonable asswrance regandmg the
reliability of financial reparting and the preparation of standalons
tnancial statements for ewtornal purposes in accordance with
generslly sccepted accounting principlas. & company's intemal
fimanicial controls over fimancial repsarting mcludes thoze p-ulli;ln!
and procedures that {1} pertain to the mamtenance of recards thae,
in reasanable detall, acowately and fairy reflect the transactons
ardd - disposstions of the assets of the company, [2) provide
reasonable assurancethat iransactions are recorded as necassary to
permit preparation of standalone financial statements in
acoordance with generally sccepled accounting principles, and that
receapts and sxpordiures of the company are being made only in
scoordancs with authonsations al rmansgemeant snd directors of the
company; and |3} prowde ressonable assusance regarding
provamntion or imely detection of unauthonsed acguisition, use, or
dispaosition ef the conmpany’s assets that coubd have a material effect
onthe standalone financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Contrals Ower Financial
Reporting

Because of the inherent hmiitations of internal fnancal controls over
finencial reporting, ncluding the posshidinrof collusion orimproper
management cvermde of controls, mataral misgatements due to
arror of fraud may occur and not be detected. Alse, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial contrels over financlal
reporting 1o future penods are subject tothe nsk that the wtemal
fingncial contral over financial reporting may become Inadeguate
because of changes in conditions, or that the dogree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may detenorats.

Cipinion

In our ppinian, tothe bast of our infoermation and according to the
esplanations given to us, the Company hasin all material respecs,
an asdequate intermnal financial controls system . over financial
reporting and such mtemal finencial controls owgr financial
reporting ade opserating uH:l:h\l:l'r as.at 315t March, 2021, based an
the criteria for internal financial control over financizl repomng
estahlished by the Company considering the assential componants
of internal controd stated n the Guidance Mota on Audit of Intermal
Financial Cantrods Char Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountantsaf india

For DELOITTE HASKING & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accowiarnms
{Firm's Registration Mo, 117366100018}

S/

GK. Subramaniam

|Partres)

(Membsership Mo, 109339}
LIDAM: 211098378 854116034

Place: Mumbai
Ciate: 25th June, 2021

T | ]
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ANNEXURE B TOTHE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

[Reterred 1w o paregraph (2] wnder Repor on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of aur repor of even dets 1o the
membxers of Cholce International Limited for the year ended 315t
March, 2021}

[i] Inrespect af the Compamy's Froperty, Plent B Equipment:

(&) The Company has maintained propes recosds showing full
particutars, including quantitatve detalls and . stuatono
Propary, Plant & Equipment,

b} The Company has & progrem ta verily Propery Plant &
Equipment once in gvery 3 years which, i cwr opsnion, the
sama is reasonabla having regard tothe size of tha Company
and the nature of s essets. Pursuant 1o the program, the
company had done physical verificaton in thedinancial year
18-1% and no Froperty Flant & Equipment were physically
werified by the Mensgement during the yesr

(o} According to the information and explanations gan to us
and the records axamined by us and bazed on the
enarmination of tha registered canveyancs deeds provided
tous, we report that the title deeds, comprising the
immovable propeny of land and building, which is freehald,
5 hedd in the name o the Company as at the balance sheet
diate,

(i1} The Carmpany does not have any inventony and henca répoming
wnedes clausedil of the Order is not appiicable,

[ilih According to the Irformation and explanations given to us, the
Company has granted loams, secured or unsecured, to
companies coversd in the register maintained under Section
189 otthe CompaniesAct, 2013, inrespact of which:

[#) The terms -and conditions of the grant af such loans are, n
our opinkon, prima facie, not prejudical fo the Company’s
imfonast,

ib) The schedule of mpayment of principal and payment of
Interest has been stipulsted and repayments or receipts of
principal amounts and interest have been regular oy por
stipsulatians.

(e} There s no amownst overdue for more than %0 days at the
balance sheet date

[iwkin our opinfan and sccording to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has compleed with the
prowvisions of Sectians 185 and 186 of the Companles &ct, 2073
i respect of grant of leans, making investments and providing
guarantees and secunties, a3 applicable

vl To the best of our knowledoe and acoarding ta the informatssn
and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepled any
depoait durling the year and no order i thes respact has been
passed by the Company Law Board or Mational Company Law
Tribunal ar the Rasarve Bank of India or any Court ar any ather
Tribunals in regard tothe Comparny,

[vi} Having ragard 1o the patere of the Company's business -/
activitios, reparting under clause 3lvi) of the Orger with espec
to maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1 | of the Actis
not applicable,

indccording 1o the informabion and seplanations. gran oous, In
respect of statulony dues:

{al The Company has generally been regular in depositing
vndsputed statutory dues of Provident Fund, Employees’
Saate Insurance, Income-tax and Goods and Services Tax,
Sendce Tax, cess and other matedal statutory dues
applicable 1o tothe approptiate authorities,

We are informed that the provisions of Custom Duty isnat
applicable to the Company

i) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
Provident Fund, Employess State Intwrance, Income-tas,
Goods and Sarvices Tax, Sardce Tax, cess and other material
statutory dues in amears as at 3151 March, 2021 far a perad
af rmane than six manths from the date they became payable.

) Detailsof dispuied Income:tax amosnt paid under protest is
greenbelow:

Marmeof Matureof  Foum  Pedodio Amoent | Amount
Statute  Duws whare  whichthe Inwolved | Unpaid
cispute s Amount | (Rs)
panding | Ralates
In:nrr'-uTl.!:Elm:l:nnutﬂ': cim LY 1,733,580 |1, 733 580}
Act 1941 [demandw's| {Appeals) | 201718
1453)
(Ineome Tax Inccemetay. | CIT LA, 2 580,400 580 400
At 1961 demand ufs . [Appeals) | 201819
1453) ]

{vi} In our opinion and sccording to the information and
explanations glven 1o us, the Compeny has not defaubted in the
repaymant of loans or borrowings to Bnancial institubions and
banks. Further, the Company doas not have any loans or
borrowings  from government and has not issued any
debertures,

{ix] In our apinion and according 1o the information and
explanatiors gleet o o8, monsy raked by way of farhes pubslic
affer (through comwersion of share warrants) and term loans
hawve been appbed by the Company during the year far the
purpnses for which they wers reised, other than femporary
doployment pending application of proceards.

1] Tothe Destof our knowledge and scoortng torthe information
and explanations given to us, no frawd by the Company and no
material fraud on the Company by its officers ar employess has
bisen noticed or reported dunng the year,

{%i) In our opinion and according o the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has paid / provided
managerial remuneration in sccordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 road with
Schedule wthe Companses e, 2013,

{wii} The Company & not & Nidhi Company and hence reparting
undar clause (xilaf the Order e not applicakble

{uiii} In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations gwen to us the Company i3 in compliance wath
Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where
applicable, for sl transsctions with the relsted panies shd the
cletsils of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
standatone fmancial statements “oic. as reguired by the
appiicable acoounting standards,

{wivh Aocoreling 1o the information and esplanations green Toous, the
Company has made preferential allotrment of share warrants
and mnmrﬂnhthurﬂnlnaql.l‘t,- ﬂ'l.nrﬂduringthl yoar,

In respect of theabowe issue, we further report that
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al the sequirement of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013,
as apphicable, have been complied with; snd

b} the amounts mised have been appled by tha Company
curing the year for the purposes for which the funds were
ralsed. gther than temporary deployment pending
appdicaticn,

iovl I our opinicn and sccording to the  infarmaticn and
explanations giwen 10 us, during the year the Company has not
enmtered inte any non-cash transactions with it directoss or

directors of iz subsidiary or associste company ar persons
connacted with them and hence provisions of Section 192 of

the Companias Act. 2013 ara not applicable,

{xvi} Oin 20thaugust 201 B, the Company has surmendered the MBFC
lrcense to RBL The confirmation of cancallation of such lkeanse
have been received by the Company vide-REF letter red

=
Standalons Indeperdeni duditor's Repor %
]

Moo 65/02.13.0002020:21, dated  25thMovembar, Z020,
hence reporting wunder this clause s not applicable,

For DELOITTE HASKIMNG & SELLS LLP
Chanered Accountants
(Firm's Ragistration Mo, 117366WAN-100018)

S/
G.K. Subramaniam

[Partras)

(Mermbership Mo. 109839}
LRI 211078394884 16034

Flace: Mumbai
Data: 25th June, 2031

T | |
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Stapdslore Finaroal Statements —

{Rs. in Lalhs)

Particular TFs March 31, 20 March 31, 2020
i i 1g-1 JOtE

W= [ £5Ta ) Aucited

ASSETS
Mon Curreant Adsets

{al Praperty, Plant an | F

Current Assotn:

|_|'|.I Financaad &

247
Total Assets 19.227.20
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
S~

a) E0 1

bl Ot Bty 2N L Y 14 F
1659325
Liakilities

Non Currant Liabilithes

(c) Detorrod Tax Liabilities | Net)
Curront Lishilities

fal Firigroud Ligbilities

.08 1.60
Total Liahifithes 172146 2633195
Total Equity and Liakdlities 23,820.88 1922720
Surmmary of Sgrulicant Aceounting Palicies 1-2
Thee rctaes feleired Lo above ane ar seyral par of the lnanclal statemerits
&t revt o i |tk oae L
For Dwboitte Hasking & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
hartared ALz prrtants Sy, &l
m Bagrtiat b 17365WAN- 100018 Kamal Podda Ajay Mejpmmal
Managing Derecios Do

Standalone e

- A—

Mimberabip Mumber (109839 S Sar.

Financial Statements o e, SR,

SLME i
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STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFT AND LOSS ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

A Cash Flow from Operating Activithes

Mat profit befone tas 32785 298022
| Adjustments:
. Crepreciaton and amomisation .39 T332
Other Income 25 0.9 2617 | Profit on sale of Propery, Plant & Equeprment
Total Incomea B&E T4 S02.08 Profit an sale of Irnestmant 19.75]
Interedt Income 130.62) (231.94]
H  Expensas | Sundey Balances Writen off 209
EII1|J:'1.I:"|I‘."E Betalits Eh[_IEI'I!.E 25 831.34 TR.38 Prowvision 1or Emr,lc.:rl.ee benatit AEOEN5ES 223 1.922
Finance Costs P 192.05 154.31 Oparating profit before working capital changos 544,99 a492.46
Depraciation and Amortization Expanse 28 71.3%9 7372 Whvements m assets and liakslities ;
Cithet Expinses 9 12211 299.45 Dacrease/Increass) in Trade recavables A0 99 (217.38]
Inerease ! |Decraase] in Trade Payables 13.41) {1589
AR ——— i e ! Increase /| Decraasal in Other Current Finanickal Liabilites 213403 (1057
Hl  Prafit / (loss] before exceptional items and tax {I- 1] 327.85 20522 Increasa / [Decreass) in Othar Currant Lisbilities (26,99 17,83
W Exceptions tams 5 [ - Decreasedincrease) bn Crher Current Financial Assats 50226 (48%.37]
Dencroased Increasal in Other Currant Assats 1194} 15.23
W Profit{loss) befors tas (I-Y 32T.85 29422 Decroase| Increases ) i Ctthser Bank Balances K] [ 5B
Wl Tax Expense: Increase J [Decreasa) in Curment Provisions
CLirreit Tax 75.89 70.90 Cash Generated From l,'Jp-Im'Hnru 1,551.19 1207.13)
Earliar Years Tax Exponse & .48 mmugﬁﬂu activities (A 1 El;i?l: ;;; ;:I
Defarred Tax 15.28 2790 - o npﬂﬁlh'lg- - < A — —"'" ':I'- =
B, Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Total Tex Expense ¥7.65 78.80 Purchase of Property. Flant & Equipment 0,78 {0.87]
VIl Profit /! {loss) for the period (VII-VIN) 230,20 197.472 Purchate of Intangsble Asset 12.47) {2.25)
. e * At < T : -
Vil Ot - " R Procoeds from sale of F rosparty, Flant & Equipmont

L t | 5 f (e 2,000,
ltems that will not be reciassified to profit or loss Investment in Equity instruments of subsidiary cormpany [3, 700 I'.'Iﬂl (2,000,000

] ; . Procesds from Sale of investrments of 3 subsidiary 22.50
Re-measurement gaine! (losses) on defined benefil obligations f1.5% .13 Frncaats oo Sl ol It i T Ao it
Tax Effect on abave ||:|1él:l | 10.4 :lr,l | Procesds from Sale of Invastment in Cther Cc.m;:.an:l. a A
Other Comprahensive Income for the year, net of tax 0.43 0.66 Dacrease/Increase) in Financial assets - loans [2,087.06) {£.634.43]
X Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VIHVII) (Comprising Nt Carsh uded i mesting Activitins (B) (5,790.11) {4,435.04)
Profit/ (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the year) 230.63 198.08 €. Cash Flow from Financing Activities _
e sacm s Procesds from Current and Mon Current Borrowings B49 43 223957
K Eamings Per Equity Share (Face Value INR 10 Per Share): Proceads from Share Applcation maney (1,091.83} 2.524.50
Basic {Rs.) €4 1.07 . 099 . Procesds from Share issusd B5h.35
Diluted {Rs.] 0 0.70 0.93 | Froceods from Securty Premium 351101
Inberest Intomi A0.42 23.%4
Tha Motes referrad are an integral part of thewe financial statemonts L::E;?:;; Financing Activities (C) ;Li‘;l::?: ;L;;l!
This is thee Statement of Profit and Loss refermed 1o on our repon of the even date, Met cash Increase/[decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) 1313.26) (282200
Cash and cash aquivalents at the beginning of the year 1493 L R
For Delaitte Hasking & Sells LLP For and on bahalf of the Board of Directors Cash and caph equivalents at the ond of the year 167 31493
Chartered Accountants S/~ Sel/- Met cash Incresse/|decrease) in cash and cash equivalent 1313.28) {282.20)
Firm Registration Number © 717 366W0W- 100018 Kamal Poddar Ajay Kajriwal Mcrbe:
/. Managing Directar Director Thie nctet jeberred to abowe aré an integial part of the financial statsments
G, . Subsramaniarm DiM: 01518700 Ddre: O3051841 This [= the Cash Flonw Statement rafarmed to in our repart of the even date.
Partner For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Cirectors
Mambership Mumbar - 109839 S/~ G- Chartered Accopntants S~ Sqf-
Mana| Singhania Karishma Shah Firm Registration Mumbaer - 1173650100018 Kamal Poddar Ajay Kejriwal
Chiaf Financia! Offices Company Sacratany - Managing Director Director
G, K, Sulb i CHb: QES187060 DN 03053841
Flace : Murmbai Prace : Mumbai Flace 1 Mumbai Partriar gl =
Date : June £3, 2021 Diate : June 23, 2021 Date - June 25, 2121 Membership Number 109839 Sy /.
Manaj Singhania Karishma Shah
Chist Financal Otfcar Company Secretary
Placa | Mumbai Place : Mumbai Flace : Mumibas
Dt < Jusmee 25, 2027 Date < Jumie 25 2021 Diarte - Jurnge 25, M2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

MARCH 31, 2021

1. Corporate Information

Chaice Interrabonal Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the
Compary”] 18 & puble imited company domiciled in India and
incorporated whder the provisisons of the Companies Act 1956, The
regtened office of the Company is locsed at Shree Shakambhari
Corporate Park, 156- 158 Chakravorty Ashok Society, JB. Magar,
Andher [E] Mumbal Maharashtra 400099, india- The Company's
shares are lsted on the Bombay Stock Exchange(B5EL

The Company was registered with Reserva Bank of India as Mon
Deposit Taking Mon-Systemically Important Mon-Banking Financial
Seryeces Company, The Company vide their letter dated August 20,
2018 had requested Resene Bank of india (RB1) for cancellatson of
Certificate of Registration as NBFC and RBl has approved the same
vide leter dated Movembes 25, 2020wef, Ociaber 23, 20200,

The main bysiness of the. Company & to provide business support
services ko the subsidiaries and ather group companies

2, Sgnificant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significent accounting polices
adogted in the preparsbon of these financial staterments, These
accounting poficies have been consistertly applied o all the vears
presented by the Company unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation
L Stalement of compliance

These tinancial staterments have been prepaned inaccordance with
the Indian Accounting Standards {"Ind A%') notified under Section
133 oftho Companieg Act, 2013 [ ‘the Act’) read with Companses |
Indign Accounting StandardsyRules, 2015 as amended from time 1o
time and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Tha accounting policies are appiied consistenty o all the parods
presented in the financial statermeants.

il Functionsl and presentation current

The Company's presentation and functional currency s Indian
Rupe=es. All figures appeanng in the financial ststements ara m
Indian rupees in lakh rounded off to two decimal places as
pasmumad by Schadule N o the Act Per share data are precented m
Indinnﬁjppﬂ-mlwpduclmalplqm

iii, Basis of measuwrement

The financial statements have been prepared on historieal cost Basis
axcapEt for certain tmancial assets and liabilities are measured at fair
valua as esplained In the accolnting poboy, Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the conssdesation given
exchange for goods and senices, Further assets and liabilities are
classifled g5 per the normal operateng oycle [determined as 12
mariths].

iv. Fairvalue measgroment

Fair value = the price that would be received on sale of an assel o
paid to transter a liability in an orderly transaction betwaan markot
participanis at the megsurement date in the principal or, in ity
ahpenco, the most sdvantageous market to which the Company has
acoess atthat data,

The best astimate of the fair value of a financial isstrument on indtial
recogmition is normally the transaction price. ¥ the Company

determines thiat the fair value on initial recognition differs from the
wansacton price andthe falr valee iz evidenced neither by a quoted
price in ah active market far an identicsl asset or lisbility nor based
on & valuption technique that uses only data from chervable
markets, then the financial Instrement is initially messured at fair
valuw, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value on
inftial recognition and the transaction prce. Subsequently that
difference s recognised mn Statement of Profit and Loss an an
approprate basis over the life of the instrument bt na later than
when the valuathon is wholly supponed by observable market data
arthe transaction is closed out.

All wxsets and Fabifiies forwhich fair value s msasured or disclosed
in the financial ststerments are categorsed within the fasr valus
hisrarchy, described an follows, based on the lowest beval input that
issignificanttothe fairvalue measuwrement a5 & whole:

= Lovol 1. Maluation ysing quoted market price in active markets:
T fair vialus for financial instrumants taded in active markets
at the epoming date 5 based on thes quoted market price,
withaut any deduction for transaction costs! & market is
reganded as active, if ransactons for the asset or liability take
place with sufficient frequency and valume 1o provide pricang
information on an angoing basis

& Lewed 2. Valuation using obsenable inputs: IFtheee ia no guated
price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation
tachnigues that maximise the use of relovant observable inputs
and minimise the use of wnobservable inputs, The chosen
valuation technique incorporates most of the factars thatmarket
participants woudld take into aocownt in Drcing atransacton,

= Level 3 - Valyation with significant unobsenabie mpas: The
valugton tachnigues ane wsed anly when fasr value cannot be
determined by using abeervable mputs. The Company redgulary
rovigws significant. unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustrments. Level 3 asset are typically very iliguid, snd falr
valups can only bo-calculated using sstimates.

The Company usas valuation technagaes that are appropriote in the
drcurnstancas and forwhich sufficient data ane svallable to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
i nising the use of unobservabde inputs

w.  Useof judgment and Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires the
management iomake judgments, estimates and assamplicons o the
application of accounting polices that affects the reported armount
of assets, Nabilities and the sccompanyeng disclosures along with
contingent liabilites as ot the date of financial statements and
revenue & expenses for the reporting period, Although thase
estimatas are based on the management's best knowledge of
current events and actions, uncerainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes difarent from the estimates.
Defference betwesn actual resuls and estimates sre recogmsed in
the y=ar in which the mesults are known or materialise (e

prospectivaly

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical sxperionce and other factors, including sxpactatons of
future events that are beliewed to be reasonzhle wnder the
circumstances. The key aress Involving estimation uncertainty,
higher dogree of judgement or complexity, oo areas whars
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azsumptions are ssgnificant to the financal statemaents include;

{1 Imipabrment of financial as=et=

i} Estimation of fair value measurement of financisl assets and
liabaltios

i1} Effactivainterest rate

Iw} Basiness model assessment

v} Prowviziong and Contingencias

wi)  Usefullife and expected resdwal value of pssts

wind Tax position Tor cwrrent tax and recognition of delenmed tax
assatslabilitios

vin) Measurement of Defined Benefil Obfigations and actuarial
ASSLMFans
ia} Classification of lease and related discount rate

A Summary of significant aceounting policies

1.. Currentwersus non-current classification
The Cumpqn, presents assets and kahilties in the balance sheet
hased an currend e curment clagsificaton,

An asset s trested as current whien it is:

*  Expecied to b realized or sntended 1o be seld or consumad in
narmal opetating cyele,

*  Hald pnmanty for the purpase of tfrading

*  Espocted to be reslized within twelve months afier the
rn-pqq'ungdm,qr

=  Cash or cash eguivalent unless resincted from  being
exchanged or used to setthe a llaknldy for a1 least taelve months
afterthe reparting period

Al pthes asseis sre classifed o no-curment.
& Bpbility s currgnt when:

s ltisexpeced tobe setted in normal operating oycle

& It iz due 1o be settled within twelve months after the reporiing
period, ar

& - There is no unconditional right 1o defer the setifement of the
ligbality tor at east welde months after the reporting perod

Al othar lfakilites are classified a5 non-curreant

Defened tax assets and lgbilities are dassified as non-curment assets
and liabilities.
Bazed on the nature of products and services offered by the

Compary, operating cyche detarmined = 12 manths for the purpoas
of current and non-currentdassification of sssetzand liabilites.

The operating oycle & the time betwean the acquisinon of assets for
processing and their feslisation in cash and cash equivalents,

2. Reovenus rocognition

Revenus s measured at the fad value ol the eansideration raceived
ar mceivable, Reverue is recognized to the axdent that it is prokable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be rellably measured and there axists roasonable
cortainty ofits recovery.

Sale of services

Tha Company recognizes revenue on accrual basis when the

[
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significant torms of the arangoment are onforceable, soraces have
b defivered and the collectability 8 ressonably sssured. The
method of recognazing the revenues and costs depands on the
nature of the senvices rendered, Revenue is recognized when no
significant uncemainty exsts a5 ta s realizaton or collacton.

Interest Incame

Interest Income from fimancial assets .is recognized when it s
probahle that scanomie benefita swill flow 1o the company and the
amaunt of income can be measured reliably, Intarest income is
arcrued on & tine bas, by reference to the principel outstanding
and at the offective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discoums estimated future cash receipts through the
expocted Iife of the financial assets to that asset's nat carrping
amaunton mitial recognition

Dividend Incoms

Doadend income from investments = recognised when the
shareholder's right 10 receive payment has been sstablished
{provided that i s probabde that the econamic benefins will Bowto
the company and the amount of Income can be measured rellably),

3. Property, Plantand Equipment

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of
gonds or sanvices, or for administrative purposes, ane statod in the
Balance Sheet at cost less accumijiated depreciaton and
accumulated impairmont losses. Freahold lpnd isnot dopreoatod,

All itarms of property, plant and aquiprment are initially recorded a1
oot Such cost includes the cost of repfaced part of the propery,
plant and equipment. and bomowing costs that ara directly
atnbutable 1o the acquisiton, constructon o producton of a
gualifying pioperty, plant and equipment. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment is rocognizod os.an assetif, and only
i, it = prabable that uture econdmic banafits sssociated with the
item will flow to tha company and the cost of the item can be
repasgrad raliably.

Properties in the cowse of construction for production, :upply or
administrative purposes are corried at cost, kess any recognized
imparrment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualityng
assets, borrowsng costs capitalzed wn accordance with the
company & accounting policy. Such properties are classified 1o the
eppropnate cotegodes of propenty, plant and equipment wihen
completed and ready for imtended use, Depreciation of these
ssies on the wims bass as other property sdsels, commented
whin the assats are mady for theirintanded use

Subsequant 1o recognition, propery. plant and equipmant
{excheding freehold land) are messured at cost bess accumulated
depreciation and accumukated impairmant losses, When significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are regueired 1o be replaced
in intervals, tha company recognizes such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciation respectively, Likewise,
wihen & major ingpection s performied, its cost 18 recognized in the
carrying amount of tha plant and eguipment o5 a replacement cost
anly if the recogrition critend are sstafied. All other repasr s
masntenance costs ane recogrized in the Statemont of Proft and
Liess as incurrad.

Drepraciation |5 recognised so as to wiite off the cost of assets less
thiir resicual values ovar the useful Ivos as prescribad in Schedulall
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of to the Companies Act, 2013, using the straight- line method
{"5LM"). Residual value 15 considerad nil case of Computers, Servar
and nebwork and 5% fa consstered i case of other assets,

Buildings &l Years

Computars i-fid.F'l'lI.'l‘I-Pl'ﬁ.

including Campurier Peripherals Avears
Ofice Equipments S ¥eara
Funitune & Fietiires 10¥ears
MotorVahiches (Motar Car} BYears
Sodar Plant 25 Yrars
Ehectric Installation 10 Years
Server & Metwork & Yedrs
WaterPumpsand Borewell S¥edars

Tha casrying values of propery, plant and sguipmant are reviewsd
for impasrment whan events or changes in crcumstances indiate
that the carrying vilue may not be recoverable,

The remdusl velees, weelul e and depreciaton method ae
renvievwdd &l each financiel year-end 1o ensure that the amounl,
rmiathod and persod of depreciabon sre conaistent with previcws
estimeted and the sspecied pattern of consumption of the futuie
sconomic bonofits embodied in the itoms of property, plant and
el pmant.

An item of property, plant and equipmant s derecognised upon
disposal orwhen no future ecanomic banefits are expected 1o arse
fram the continued wse of the asset, Any gam or loss ansing on
disposal or retiremant of an item of propeny, plantand equipment s
determined as the difference betweon: sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the assst and = recognised n prolit o lods

4 Investment Properties

InvEstment properties are proparties thet i held for long-term
rentals ylelds or lor capltal appreciation {incheding property undear
construction for such purposes] ar bath, and thatis not occupied by
the Company, & classified as imvestment property, Investment
properties are measured mitially a1 cost, incleding transaction oosts.
Subseguent toinitial recognition, investmeant properties arm stated
at cost less accomulated impairment koss, if any. Thowgh the Group
mmeEsules investmant proparty weing cost based measunemant, the
fabr value of iInvestrment prapsity k& deschozed in the notes. Fair valees
are determinsd based on an annual svalustion pedormed by an
accredited extirmal mdependent valeer. investmant properties ang
wnmmdelthlrmnlhwhlwhﬂmdl:pﬂ:u:lnl'qrhhu-nlhuy
are parmanently withdrawn from use and no fisture economic
benafit = sxpectad from thasr deposal. The differenca betwasn the
nat disposal procesds and the carmying amount of the asset =
recognised in prafitor less in the peiod of derecagntion

5. Intangible Assets

Intangible asset including mtangible ssests under development aas
stated &t cost, net of eccumulated amorization and accumulated
itnparment lossss if any, Inangible assets acquired separately s
measuied mini‘tin‘lrﬂngni!lnjn.l‘l-l.‘:u-ﬂ. Thie armotization panod and
the amorisation method are reviewsd a1 the end af sach financial
yaar, Thie usaful lives of intangible assets sroassessed as either finite

orindefinita, Intangible sssets with finite lves are amortized owerthe
useful economic e and sssessed for impairment whenever theneis
pr Indication that the Intangible ssset may be impaied. The
smartisetan pariod and the amonisation method for an iitangible
pst iwith a finite usedul lle ame reviewed ot least st the end of each
reparting period. Changes in the espacted weeful 1de ar the
expectod pattern of consumpton of future poonomic benefis
embodsed in the asset are-considered to modify the amartisation
pariod or method, as approgriate, and ame treated & changes in
acoounting estimates. The smortisation espense on intangible
assets with infinite lives s recognised in the statement of profit and
lerss unbess such expenditure Torms pan of carmying value of another
el

&, Segment Reporting

The main business of the Company i318 provide suppor sefvices to
the: subssdiories and other group companies, Farber, all activifies
are carfigd out within India, Hance, there arm no separate epartables
segments ag per Indian Accounting Standand [Ingd 43108 on
"Oipemating Segments”

7. Forelgnoxchange transactions and iranslations

-ay Inktal recognition: Tramtacbons i foresgn currencies are

recogmsed gt the prevsiling exchange rates betwean the reportng
cufiency and & foreign curmency on the transaction date.

b} Conwersian: Transactions in currencies other than Company's
functional currency are recorded. on Enttial recogniten using the
auchanga rata at the tansaction data, At sach Balanca Sheot data,
foreign currency monetary tems are reponed at the prevailing
closing spot rate, Forelgn exchange gasns and losses resulting from
the sertlerment of such tramsactons and from the vansfaten of
monetary assets and labiltes denominsted o Toregn curmsncies
mré generally recognised in Matement of Profitand Loss.

Man-monstary aseets and habilites se carred st historicsl cost
using exchariipe rates ag on the dite of the respective transactions
ard are nod retransdated at the reporting date,

B. Taxation
Currant taxes

Ingome tax expense is recognaaed in net profit in the satement of
profit snd lossascept to the cutent that it relates to doms recognized
dsrzcily inother comprahensive sncome or gguity, inwhich case itis
recagnized (n other comprahansive intome or eoqulty respachyely.
Current incoma tax |s recegreed at the amount expecied o be padd
o o recoversd lrom the Lax authosities, using the Lax rates and tax
lwwes that hoave been enpcted or substontively enacted by the
balancesheetdate. The Company offsets, on a yeat toyear basis, the
current tax assots and liabilitses. whore it has logally ontorceable
rigrht e o soand whars it intends to settle such amats and labilivies
on 8 netbass,

Deferrediages

Defermed tax is recogaaed on differences betwsen the campng
amalnts of assata and labllites in the financial statemants and the
cafrespronding tax beses udad in the computition of taxable profn
and gre accourted for using the balance shest llabildy mathod.
Deferred tax habilities mre generally recogred for all texable
temporary differonces, snd deferred tax aciets are gonerally
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recognized for all deductible tfempomary differences to the extent
that it is probakble that taxable profits will be available agasnst which
those deducthle ternporary differences can be utifesd: Sueh sssets
and habibities are nat recogaized IF the temporary difference arises
from goodwill ar fram the insitial recogniticn [other than n 4 business
combination) of ather mazsets pod Rohilities in a transaction thot
affects nasther the tanable profit nor the accounting prafit Delerred
tax assets and liabilities are moasured at the tax mtes that am
sxpscted to apply in the parod inwhich the liability s settled orthe
assetis realized, based on the ax rates |and tax laws) that have been
enacted of substantivaly enacted by the end of the reporting
period,

Daferred 1ax ralating 1o dems recognised Sutside the profit and loss
& recogniged outside profitand loss (glther m alher comprehansne

inciarme ar in equdiy)

The carrpng amount of delerred lax assels @ reviewsd al each
balancs sheetl date and reduced te the axtent that it Is ne banger
probabde that sudficient taxable prafits will be svailable (o allow all or
part otthe asset to be recevarnd,

Dotorrad tax pssets and habilthes are offest when there iz a legally
anforcaable right to st off current taw assets againet curmrt
habilitios and whan they rolate 7o incoma taxes lavied by the same
taxativn authonity and the Company intends to setthe its current tax
assets and labilties on e nat basls.

Mimimum Alternate Tas (MAT) cradlt antitlement (e, excess of MAT
pald for a year over normal tae labibty for that yeart ebgible tor set
ol in subsequent years i recognised a8 an assetin accardance with
Ind A5 12, Incorme Taxes, f these 8 comincing evdence of s
realisation.

BAAT credit in crmated ‘h:,r wisny of credst to the Statemend of Prakit and
Loss, The Company raviewn tho sama at each Balance Shaet dato
and writes dowmn the CArTyIng Amcant of MAT credit antitlemant to
tha extent there is no longer conwvincing evidence to the affoct tha
Compary will pay normal income tax during the specifisd period

% Impairmant of Non-Financial Assets

&t the end of sach reporing perod, the company reviews the
carrying amaunts of itz tangible and irtangible assets o determine
whathar there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
smparment loss, 1 awy such indication. esists, the recoyerable
arrunt of the asset 8 estmated in order to determine the extent of
impairment loas [il anyl When It s net poasible to estimats the
recoverabbe amoont of an individual asaet, the company eflimatoes
the recoverable amaunt of the cash-generating wnit to which the
asset belongs. When i reasonabile and consistont basis of allocation
can bie identibed, corporate assats are also allocated 10 ndwidual
cash-genemiing uwnits, o otherwise they are allocated o the
smallest group of cash-generating wnits 161 which & reasonable and
conssiant allocatian basis can e identified,

Intangitle assats with indebnite useful Fves and intangible assats
not yet available for wse ane tested for impairment at least annually,
and whenever thareis an indicaticn thet the aseet mey ba impairad.

Recovarable amaount is the higher of falr valus less couts of disposal
and value in uge. |n assesang value inuse, the estimated future cash
Hewes aie discounted to their present value using a pre-vas discount
rate that refects cwfient mirke! assesarmens of the time vales of
meney and the risks specific 1o the et lor which the estimates of
tuture cash flows have not been adjusted.

=
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it the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unitl is
estimated to be less than its carrying amaount, the carrying amaountof
the mivel (of cash-gensrating wnit) 15 reduced o 8 recoveralls
amoont An impalrmentioss s recogadeed Inthe prafiter loss.

When an impeirment loss. subsequently reverses, the carrying
armoun] of the ossa1 (or & cash-generating wnit] g increased to the
ravised estimate of it recoverable amount, but sothat the ncreased
carrying mmount does not exceed the carmying amount that would
have baan datarmined had no impairmant {oss been recognised for
the asset [ or cash-generating unit) m prior years. & revarsal of an
mpsirment koss is recognised immediataly In profit or loss

10, Fimancial Instruments

A financial Instrumant = any contract that glves rise 1o a financisl
agset of one entity and a financial lialality or eguity instrument of
another entity.

Financial Assets
a)  Initial recognition and measurement

Al financial assets are recoqnised mitially at fair value, Purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivary of asset within a time
frama prtablished by regulation or convention in the market place
[regular way tradeslare recognised on the rade date, e, the date
thatthe Company commits io purchase arsefithe assat

O inatial recognition, a inancisl asset is classified as measured at

Armortieed cost

FYOICE- debtinstruments
FWOICE- egpuity instrurments
FVTPL

Amortised cost - The Company's bBusiness modsl i1 not astessed an
an instrument-by-instrument  basis, but st 8 higher lesvel of
aggragated parthalios brting tha lawel at which thay are rmanagad,
Tha financial asset s hald with the objective to hold financial assat m
order to-collect contractual cash flows as per the contractual terms
that gve rise on specified dates to cash fiows that are solaky payment
of principaland imenest (SPPI on the principa! amount outstanding,
Accordmghy, the Company measures Bank balances, Loans, Trade
racelvables and other inandisl instfuments st smonised ool

FVOL] - debt inatruments - The l',:n:ul'r|:|:|a|'|:,|I massures s dabt
instruments at FVOC whan the instrument is held within a busingss
modal, the objectwe of which is achioved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and seliing financial assets; and the
cantractual terme of the financial asset mest the SPP test,

FVCHC] - equity Instruments - The Company subseguently measures
all equaty investmernts at fair value throwgh profitar boss, unless the
Campany's managearment has alected to olass|fy irrevocably same of
e equity instruments st YOO when sech mstrumesnts meet the
dalinition of Equity under Ind A% 32 Financial lnstroments and are
nat hald for trading

Financial assets are nol meclassified subsequent to their initial
racogniticn, except f and In the period the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets.

All financial assats not classifind as measumd at amortised cost or
FYOC! are measured at FYTPL This includes all dervatee financial
assets,

T | (|

CHOHCE INTERKNATICHAL LIWITED [ AMNMNUAL REPORT 2021



:.a% Etandalame Indapendont Suditar's Repont

b} Subseguent maasurement

Firancial assets at amoizad cost are subsaguantly measured at
amartised cost using effective interest method. The amortised cost
= reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, forelgn eschange
gaing snd lodses and imperment st recogiised in Statement of
Frofit ard Loss. &ny gain and lost on deérecogniteon | recognised in
Statementof Profitand Loss.

Duobt investrmant at FYOCO) poe subsaquantly mesasuned at Tair vakes,
Ifterest incomi under effectve inteness methad, foreign exchange
gaing and lossas and impairment are recognised in Statemant of
profitand loss. Othar net gains and lasses ara recognissd in CCL Cn
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in QC] are reclassified
1o Staterment of Profitand Loss,

For eguity wmvestments, the Company makes  selection on an
retrurnent-by- st bass to desigrnate sty yvestments &s
measured at FYOCL, Thewe selected investments are messwied at
falr value with gains and losses arlsing from changes in fair value
rocagnised in ather comprehenshes intome and acoumulated in the
reserves, The cumulative gain or loss s not reclassified to Statement
of profit and loss on disposal of the investments, Thess immstments
i waquity are nat heeld for frading. Instead, they are hetd for strategic
purpose. Dividene income recaived on ssch eguity investmeants are
recagnisad in Staterment of Prafit and Loss. Equity Invesiments that
are not designated as messvred at YOO are designated as
rmeasured al FYTPL and subdenuent chingss in fasr valus sre
recognised in Statemant of Frofit and Loss.

Financial assets at FYTPL are subsequently measured af fals value,
Met gairs and losses, including any intenest of dividend incorme, are
recognised in Statementol Profitand Lass.

¢} De-recognition of financial assets

& financial asset (or, whots applicable, a part of a financial asset o
port of 2 group of similar financial assats) is primarily derecogrised
[l e removed from the company balance sheet)when:

Tha rights to recaive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transfermed its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the recaived cash
flosws in fulll without material delay 1o a third party under a "pass-
threugh® arrangemant, and either (a) the company has transferred
substanially &l the rsks and rewerds of the assel ar (b] the
company hes neither trensferred nor retained subatantially all the
rizkn and rowsrds of the aset, but has vrangferrad cantrol of the
annot

When the Cormpany has transfermed its rghts to meceiie cash Raows
from an asset ar has antersd Inte a pass-through arrangement. it
avaluaies if and to what'extent it has retained the risks and rewards
ol pwnarship. When it has neithar tanslered nos retained
substanally all of the nisks and rewarcs of the assat, nor ransferrad
contred ‘of the asset the company continues 1o recognise the
transferred 2sset 1o the sxem of the compesy's  continuing
invorvernent. In that case. the compsmy sleo ecognizes an
associsted liability. The tracssforned asset and the assoclated [absility
are meatured on & basis that mﬂmﬂmﬁghﬁ and D!:Ill.ﬂ.!ﬂﬂl‘l"lhﬂf
tho company has retained.

Cantinuing imvalyemant that takes the form of a guarantes ower the
transterred assat is measured at the lewer of the ariginal carrving
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amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
tha company coukd be required to repay.

dj Impairmantof financial assets

The Company recognises impairment loss applying the expected
credd loss [ECL) model on the financlsl assets messured al
amartised cost, debt nstruments st FYTOCL [ease receivables
trade receivables, other contractual rght to receve cash or other
financial ssset and fisancial guarantes not designatad as at FYTPL

Expocted credit Ioases are the weighted average of credit |osses
with the respective risks of defautt occurring as the weights,

Tha Company maasuras tha loss allowance for 3 BEnoancial
ingirymant at anamount aqual to the [ifetime sxpecied credit losees
i tha credit risk on that fnancial instrument has increased
significanity since initial recognition, IF the credit risk on 2 financial
imgtrumant has nol inoreased signifcaptly sinee initial recognition,
the Company maasures the loss allowance for that Financal
jnatrument sl an smaunt equalio 12 months sxpected eredit lodaes,

For trade recewables of any contrectual nght e receive cash o
athet financizl as2ets that result from vansactions that are within the
scops of Ind A5 115, the Company always messures the |oczs
allewance at an amount squal to ifetime expectod crodit losses.

Further, for the puerpose of measurning liptime expected credit oss
allowance for frade receivables, the Compary applies ‘simplified
approach’ permitted by Ind A5 109 Financial Instrumants. This
expectad credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision
mmiztr whech takes mto accownt histancal credit logs expenence and
sl justed lor forward-kooking ilormatan.

In wiew ol the fact that the entire trade receivables ara fram its
subisicharies and othes group companlss, thene is na lifetima credit
leses mxpected by the Company.

Wiribe offs - Tha gross carrying ameunt of o financial pasat is wiitben-
off (either partially or in full) to the extem that there s no reascnable
expectation of reconering the asset n its enfirety ar 2 portion
therect This is garsrally the case when the Company determines
that the borrower does not have assets of sources of income that
could genermte sufficient cesh flows to repay the amounts subject 1o
the write-ofl and when there i3 no rezsonable expecation of
recovery fram the collaterels hald, Howeves, linancal asssts fhat ges
written -off could sull be dubject o enforcament activities in ordes o
comphy with the El:lmpurr:,r'p prnnedurﬂ for recowveny of armounts
due,

Presantation of allowance for ECL in the Balance Sheet - Loss
allowances for ECL are deducted from the gross carying amount ol
financial aszats measurad at amortissd cost.

Financial Liabilities
a) Initlal recognition and measurement

All financial Habilites are recognisad inttally at fair valuee and, inthe
casa of losns-and borrowngs and payables, net of directly
sttributable trangactian costs,

b Subsequent measurement

The measwrement of finencial hebiites depends on their
classilication, as deserited below:

Financial liabdlitias atfair value through profit orloss

Fingncial Fabifities ot lair value through prott or loss include
financial lLabidites held for trading and financial |lahilities
deslgnated upan initial recognition as st 1alr valus theough pealit o
loas. Financial liabslities are clagsified as hald for radmg if they are
incuried For the purpose of repurchassng in the near term. This
category also includes detivative Enoncial instromoents entered into
by the comapny that are not designated as hedging instroments in
hadge relationships: as defined by Ind:A5 109, Separated
embedded derivalives are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instrameniz

{Galns or losses on liabilities held for trading are recogrised in the
proht orloss.

Financial labslities designated upon initial reccgnition at fair value
through profit o logs are designated st the anitlal date of
regognitian, #nd only il the critend n ind AS 107 are satelied. Far
labilities desgnated as PYTPL, fair value gainad [osses attributaksle
to changiss i owin credit risk & recognized In GCL These gainss oss
arm not subsaquently manstormed to P&L Howawor, the company
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within aquitye. Al other
changes infairvalue of such liability ars recognised in the stamment
of profit or loss. The Company hes not designated any financial
liability ag-at fair valua through profitand loss.

Financial liabilties are subsequantly carred at amortized cost uging
the affective imerest method, sscapt for contingent oonsideration
recognized g business combination which |5 subsequently
maasured at b value threugh profit and loss: Por trade and other
payiables maturng within ane pear from te Balence Sheet date, the
carrpng amounts approsimate feir value dus to the short maturiby of
these instrumants.

Loansand borrowings

Afcer initial recognition, interest-bearing toans and borrowings am
subsequently measured at amorised cost using the effective
interest rate method, Gains and lostes are racognised in profit or
loss when the labllibes gre dérecagnised as well as through the
effective Intarest rate amostisation process.

Amartised cost s caloulated by taking bivts secount Sny discount of
premium on acquitition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. Soch amorisation s included a3 inance
castain the slatemoent of profit and loss.

Financial guarantoe contracts

Afinancial guarantes contract is a contract that requires the issuor to
maka specfied paymants to reimbiursa the holder fora loss it incur
bocause o spacifind debtor fails to make payments when dug in
asccordance with theterms of a debt instremant

Financlal guarantes contracts srued by the Company ane inmally
misasurad at thair fair values and, if not designated as at FYTPL are
subsaquently messured a1 the higher of

®  the amount of loss aflowance determined in accordance with
imgrairrment reguirerents of Ind A5 109 and

= the amount inmially recognissd less, when appropriste, the
cumulative amount of Income recognised in accordance with
the principfes of ind 85 115,

¢l Derecognition

=
Etandstone Indepondent Auditor's Repan %
2t

A financisl kability iz derecognised when and only when the
ohligation under the [lability 18 discharged or cancelled or szpies,
When an exssting linancial lability is replaced by another from the
aame lender on substantially different teoms, or the terms ol an
axisting [iability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification s treated as the derecognition of the original [alnlity
and tha recognition of a new liabilty,. The difference in the
respRCIve carmping amounts is recognised in the statemant of profit
o hass

Offsating of financlal instruments

Financial assets and financizl Fabilitios are offset and the nat amaunt
is reporied in the balsnce shept i there is a8 curmently anlorceshls
legal right o aHsel the recompmised amounts and these is an intentian
1o sefile on b net basis, 18 reglise the assets and settle the Babilites
simultanaously.

11. Leases

The Cl:rrnpnn:,r has adopted Ind A5 1714 "Leases’ with the date of
mitial application being Aprl 1, 2018, The Company's ease asset
classes primarily consist of leasas for Premises. The Company, attha
imgaption of a contract, assesses whathar tha contract is a lease or
not leage, A contract o, of cantaing, & lease if the contract conveys
the mght 10 contral the we of an identified ssast for @ Gma M
exchange for a consideration. Thie policy has bean applied 1o
cafntracty existing and antered ms on orafter Apl 1, 2018,

The Coampany evalusiss ssch contract or srtengement, whether (b
qualifies a3 lease as defined wnder ind A5 116 The Company s a
lesces The I:umpm'rl aszennes, whother the contract is, or containg, &
Isasa, & contract is, orcontaing, a laase if the contract involves- al the
user of an Wantified asset, b) the right to obtam substantially all tha
aconomic banefits from use of tha identifiad asset, and cithe nghtta
directthe use of the identified asset

The Company at the incepticn of the lease contract recognises a
Faghi-od-Lise (Roll] z=et at cost and @ corresponding lease lability,
for all lease arangements in which it is 3 lesses, except for lBases
with term ol less than twelve manths (shor term) snd fow-valoe
assiets Jasaetn of less than Ra 30 Lokhs in value) Cedain |esse
arrangememnts inchedes the options to sxtend or terminate the lesce
bafore the snd of the leass wrm. ROU assets and lease Habifities
includes thase options whan it s reasonably cartain that thay will ba
anercisad,

The cost of the ROU assets comprises the amount of the Initial
measurement of the lease lability, any lease payments made at or
before the inception date of the lease plus any initial direct costs,
lesa By lease ncantives eoelvad, Subseqguently, the naht-of-use
Augets & ressured sl cost less any accumulsted deprecation and
apcurnuisted impEiment lessss, i ey The ROU . assets i
deprecisted using the straightlime method from the
commencoment date over the shortar of lgase term-or usioful life of
RO asgats.

ROU assets are svaluated for recoverability whanever events or
changss in circumstances indicata that thelr carrpng amounts may
nat be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing. the
racoverable amount {1.e. the higher of the fair vadue less cost ta sall
and the value-fr-use) = determined on an individual asset basis
unbess the adeet doss not genstate cash lows that are lergaly
imdependant of those from obher asters in such cates; the
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recowerahle amount = determined for the Cash Gererating Linit
[CEUMawhichthe adset belongs

Foar lease liabilties st incepticn, the Campany measures the [sase
liahility &t the present value of the lease payments that are not pald
at that date. The bease payments are discounted wsing the interest
rate implicit in the leasie, If that rate is readily detormined, i that rate
ks not meadily determingd, the lease payments are discounted using
thevincremantal barrowing rate

The Company recognises the amaunt of tha re-measummant of
lgase liability a5 an adjustment 1o the ROU assets. Whera the
carrying amaiint of the ROLF assets s reduced to zem and there s &
further reduction In the measurement of the Iesase liability, the
Compary recognizes any remalnmg amount ol the remsasurement
in the Sratemant of Pralvand Loss.

For shor-term and low valee lggees the Company recognises the
lgage paymants as on operaling expanids on & strasghi-line besis
overihe lease tenm.

12, Finance Costs

Finance costs include intooest expenss computed I::':.l applying thia
affactive interest rate on respective financial instrumaents maasured
at amortised cost Financial instruments include debr and
bormowing, Finance costs are charged to the Statemant of Profit and
Loss, Ancillary and other Borrewing costs ane amortised on straight
hime basis over thatenure of the underyng debtand borrowing

13. Goods and Servics input Tax Credit

Gads and Sersces tax input credit s accounted fod inthe books in
the perdod in which the supply of goods or service ecaved is
accourted and when there s no uncerainty m availing/utilising the
crisdits

14, Dividend distribution to equity holders of the Company

The Company recegnices a labilty to make distributions to equity
halder of the Company when th distribution is aothorised and the
distribution 15 no longar st the discretion of the Company, As par the
Act, final dividend |8 authorsed whan it is approved by the
shareholders and intenn divd gand is authorised when it s approved
by the Board of Directors of the Company

ml. Prowisions
Provisions arerecognied anlywhes!

= an entity has a present obligation legal or constructive) as &
reault of 8 past event; and

® i is probable that an outlow of rescurces embodying
econamic benafts will be required to setthe the obligation; and

#  gralable estmate can be made of the emount of the abligaticn

These ate reviewed at sach Balance Sheet dete and adpested ta
roflact the current bost astimaten,

Further, lang term provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows specific to the liability. The unwinding of
tha discount is ecognised as finance cost, & provision for onerous
contracts is measured at the present value of the lower of the
evpractsd cost of terminating the contract and the expecied net cost
al continuirg with the contract Belore s provision is established, the

Camrpany recognises any impament logs on the assets sssoeciated
with that contract,

Coptingent habildy i daclosed in cats of;

s 5 present obligeton ensing from past events, when i s pot
probable that an outflow of resoureés will be reguired to sefths
the olbligation: and

& 5 present obligation ansing from past evenls, wheén no relisble
estiraie i possible,

Cantingent dusets:
Contingent assets sie not recogrised inthe linancisl statements
15, Commitmenta:

Commitmants are futura habilities far contractual expendituse,
classrhed and disclosad as follows;

¢ ostimated amount of cantracts memaining 10 b executed on
capital account and not providad for;

& uncalled liability on lnen sanctioned and on investments partly
paid; and

* other non-cancellable’ commitmants, it any, to the adent thoy
are considerad material and relavant in the opinion of
managemant

14. Earnlngs ParSharms

Basic earnings per share are caloulsted by dividing the net profic or
[t for the year attributable to eguity sharehobders by the waighted
gvierage number of equity shares outstanding dunng the year,

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures wsed in the
detﬂmlnﬂunﬂﬂhmmrnlhgaPer:hurut\:ltuhuml'nar_tnuht

*  The after income tes-affect af interest and atheér fmancing oosts
mssociated with dilutive potential eguity shares, and

o WWeighted mverage number al eguity shares that wauld have
bewn outstanding dssuming the comversion of all the dilutive

patential aquity.
17. Cash and Cash Eguivalonts

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks
Cash aguivaterts ane short-tarm balancas (with an arigmal maturnty
of thres months or less from the date of scquisitioni and highly
ligjuivd tire deposits that are readily converiible into known amounts
of cash and winch are subjedt 1o Inssgrfcent ek of changes n

valus.

18 Statement of Cash Flow

Setesmental Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash Tows ino
operating, nvesting and financing  aciivities. Cash flow from
operating activities s reparted using indirect methed adjusting the
nat pridis for tha effects of;

i, changes during the perod in inventories and operating
recaivables and payables ransactions of & noncash naturs;

i, nonccash iteme such as deprecation, provisions, detormed taxes,
unrealised forsign curmncy gaing and lossas, and undistributed
profits of associates and jointvaniures; apd
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ill. all other items for which the cash affects are investing or
fimancing cash flows.

Cash andd cash equivalents [including bank balancss) shown n the
Swatement of Cash Flows exclude tems which are not available for
general useasaonthe date of Balance Sheet.

19. Employos Benefits

Shortterm employeas banefits

Employea benafite falling dus whaolly within twalve months of
rendaring the service areclassified as short torm amployee banefit
and are espensad in the persod in which the employes renders the
relgtad sarvice. Liabilities recognised in respect ol short-term
employes bensfits are messured at the wndscownted amcuwnt of
the benehts exnpectad to be pacd i axchange lor the related serate.

Long Term employee benefits

Company’s net obligation in respect of longremm amployes
benefits is the amount of luture beneht that ermployess have samed
i et for theicsenvice in the curmantand prior periods. Long-term
employee banafit primarily consists of Leave encashment banefits
whatsin employess ame entitled tor accumiulate leave subject to
cartaln limits for future ancashmant/avallment Long-term
compensated absencesare provided for on the basis of an actuarial
waluation at the end of sach linancial year usng Projected Unit
Credit (PUC) Methad. Actuarial galnsdlosses, i sy, are recognised
immediatsly in the Satement of Profitand Loss

Post-employment benefits
a)  Defined contribution Plans

Provident fund: Contributions as required wnder the statute, madn
ti they Prowident Fund (Defined Contribution Plan} are secognisod
immadiately in the Statement .of Frofit and Loss, Thers s no
obligation other then the monthly contribution paysble to the
Regronal Provident Fund Commigsioner

ESIC and Labour welfare fund: The Compsry's contibutian
paldpayable dumneg the year 1o Ermplopess state wdursnce schame
and Labour welfare fund are recognised n the Statement of Profit
and Logs,

bl Dafined benofitPlans

Gratuity labily s defined benelic obligateon and s provided on the
basis ol an actuarial valuation pedarmed by anindependant actuary
based on projected unlt credit mathed, at the end of sach financial
year
fi i i I
i) Sorvico cost including current serice Cost, past servico cost, as
will a5 gaing and losses on curtallmenss and settlamants

i) Mot interast expanss arincoma
ii] Re-maasurement

Re-measuremants of the net defined benefit Hability, which
comprisa actuarial gains and losses, the returm on plan Jssets
leucluding interest] and the effect of she asset ceiling Uf amy,
excheding interestl are recogrized In OCL nel of tawes. The
Company determings the nel intberest axpense (income ] on the net
defined benslin labily [asset) for the period by appling the

=
Etandstone Indepondent Auditor's Repan %
2t

discount rate vsed to maasure the defired banafit ohligation at the
baginning of the annual period 1o the nat defined benefit labiity
{e=nat), taking into account BTy changes in the net defined benefit
liphility [2eeat] durmg the pericd as a resuh of comrbutiong and
bonefit paymants. Net interest axpense and other expenses related
i detined benefit plans am moogrised n Statement of Profit and
Loss

The Company's net obligation in respect of gratuity (defined bonafit
plan), s calculated by estimating the amount of future benafit shat
tha employees:have earmed in the curent and price pafiods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair salue of any plan
angets The ratiremeant benelit abligation recognised in the Balance
Sheet represents (he sctuel defict or surplus in the company's
delined benefit plane. Any surplus resulting fram this calculatbon s
recognised a5 an asset to the extent of present value of any
aconamic benofitsavaltable in the form of refunds from the plans o
raductions i tha future contribution to the plars.

20, Collateral

T mitigate its cradit risks on financial assets, the Company sesks 1o
use collateral, where possible, The collateral comes in warious farms,
such as sedurities, letter of credifguarantses, recenwables,
Inventaries, othes non-financial sssets and eredit enhancemernts
auch as nstting arrangements.

The Company provides fully . secured, partislly  secured - and
urdecured loans to Corporates aad indvidual,

21, Investment in Subsidiares

Subgidiaries pre all gntitios over which the Company has cantral The
Company controds an entity when the company s exposed to, or has
rights to, variable retums from its fnvelvemant with the antitgand
hag the ability to affect those returns through its powar 1o direct tha
rebevant activities of the antiy.

Inwestrment in subsidiaries am measurecd 3t cost less accumulated
impairment, f 2y,

T | (]
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;- § = N R 5Bl 2 19 § & = NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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- MNote 4 : Investment Property (Ra. in Lakhs)
A AR R R AR
& | o | B el R !;i r s T = Investmant
= — = == L= L £y
_ — - = ifi Lana
Gross Carr.nng Amaount uHAFril o1, 2019 120,00 120,00
= = = 3 q ;‘ | - Additions
o 0 O | WD 0 T = = | Dispesals
Az at March 31, 2020 120000 120,00
Additions
Disposals
! 2 2 B8 B # & (89 As at March 31, 2021 120.00 120.00
o = of | = = - | = P R
o - - bl kadd Accumulated amortisation and Impairment
e Az at April 01, 2019
g g E :_"".l :1 P: ; .:E :2 ?; E Amartisation charge during the yoar
ol E E E’ A - E ag Dizpisals
— As at March 31, 2020 -
? Amaortisation rh._'lr__qe r.'urll'.g the WEa
G H ﬂ A ﬁ & ﬁ = g & 3 T Uhisposals
- = = CHE B & ¥ Ll 5 As at March 31, 2021 . .
= E-f Met carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 T20.00 120,00
o c Met carrylng amount as at March 37, 2020 120.00 T20.00
T & & & @ o o | - P
ra o = HE R " ::E ~ | &S T MNotes:
> 3 3 ~ R 2 = & o Fair Value
LLJ ﬂ:-} Asat March 31, 2021 and March 37, 2020, the fair value of property k= Rs. 1, 200 Lakhs
e =
<[ ™ - tan) - = - J =l N
wl s s |3 e B 3 B & =2 8 ¥ NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o e m o LT & | o [ SR = - =
L o - = | = i E FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
T c
L= 1] 5.
E i Mote 5 : Intangible Assets {Rs. in Lakhs)
Ty ] "] Tel (5} ™ n :_1-_ e 3 ‘;:
:.? ™ ™ 3] JE- o s o o § = | 2 Campute
LN 2
= -
z P i i Ty o 73 %
E K [~ R~ @& = & & = o g Gross Carrying Amount as at Apel 01, 2019 37.65 895 4660
i 5 S $ & ™ 8 m g @ z Additions 225 2.25
= = A o2 s b Chaletions ;
= 2 , i | E g As at March 31, 2020 37.65 11.20 48.85
r g g 2 = 5 = Aditions : 227 227
3 2 ] 2 mom % 5 Deletions
5 ] I - Il
= 2 ¥ o (1= =2 ] 3 As at March 31, 2021 37.65 13.47 5112
% = = . ,_E_ a Accumulated amortisation and impairment
i ] o - i | oo i 3 As at April 01, 2017 20.63 ; 20,63
Lad E 51 'E- " g E a il Eak 7] Amartisation charge during the yoar 5.0 5.
= E T < B 1 2 = Mmoo i I Deletions
f— = mr . I = £ - n E
Q & < |8 g & £ £z LA g 4 As at March 31, 2020 2569 : 25.49
"‘:DI T i E £ g E E = = % E_ EI Amortisation charge during the yoar LE 482
= - E :? Iﬁ -E ; -E 'E ;E EE h% I?I._- Ueletions
L E E & 8|5 & E g B(glE B §|E ® 5 As at March 31, 2021 30.51 . 30.51
- N 3 ~ i §F & = B W 3
E &  § = :31 e |8 £ = 5 9z % % - _:-':' Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 7.14 1347 20.41
= | = Vol = £ B |8 W |8 B £ o o = = Met carrying amount as at March 31, 2020 1196 1120 23.14
i 3 : E13 s 3§ s 5§58 9
(¥ o 3 g g 2| g = o '—; L ol = ﬁ
L =1 B9 k|8 | & || E]E|EI|=® | 8B =% | & |8 o Plioste:
= mM = = L] v 1 5 E i ] ] P
g § LE& ﬁ E E ﬁ z ; E ﬂ? _E 3 E l&f E E I _E' Intangible Assst under development comprises of Trademark under devalopmeant
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

MNote & @ Investmesnts (s, fn Lakhs)

Investrnents - Unguoted Equity Instruments
Investrment carried at cost - In Subsidiaries

5,050,000 Equity Shares of Choice Capital Advisors Private Limited

shares of Be 10v- each fully pasd (March 37, 2020 50,50, 0003 S05.00 205,00
8,017,800 Equity Shares of Chonce Equity Broking Private Limited

of R=.10 each fully paid (March 31, 2020: B,017.800) 447400 4.414.00
1,110,000 Equity Shares of Choice Partfolio Manageman Senntes Private Limted of

Re. 10V~ each fully paid (March 31, 2020: 1.7 10,000) 116,89 110.89
500, 00,000 Equity Shares of Chowce Consultancy Services Private Limited of Rs, 104

each fully paid {March 31, 2020: 500.00,000) 30100 G100
41,080,000 Equity Shares of Chobca Finsery Private Limited of Ra 10/ each idly pald

(March 31, 2020 18 560,000) * B 052 .54 3,552.56
Total 13,383.45 8.883.45

* During the yesr the company has rmasted inthe shares of 22500 lakhs eguity shares @ Ra. 20 per shars.

Mote ¥ : Other Financial Assets (Non Current) {Rs. in Lakhs)

rarticulars

securtty Dppomits® 4 iE 4.0
Prepaid Kontals TO5 56
Tatal 438 506,563

* Koter Mote 35 1) Holatod Farty Disclosure

MNote 8 : Income Tax Assets (Net) {Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Incomie tax assets [Nt of provision for tax) 1AM i
Total 74.71 A0.43
Mote 7 : Trade Receivables {Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Unsecured
Consicdered Good* 53,440 156,39
Total 53.40 A56.39

* includas recaivablas from relatad party for which refer note no 350

seeL___________________________________________________________________________|
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Mate 10 : Cash and Cash Equivalents {Rs. in Lakhs)

Balances with Banks

O Currernt Accosts 1.37 314,35
Cash on Hand 0,30 0.5E
Tatal 1.67 114.93
Maote 11 : Bank Balances Other than (Mote 10) Above iRs. in Lakhs)

Balances with Banks
D Earmarked Acoounts * 7484 2]
Tatal 7.44 .51

* Earmarked Bank balance represents amount on account of unclaimed dwvidend

Maote 12 : Loans (Rs. in Lakhs)
Farticutars

Unsecured, considered good

Loans to related parties® 3,959,779 Lar24

Total 395979 267274

* Reter nota no. 350H)

Maote 13 : Other Current Assets (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

Balance with governmeant authoenities

- Goods & Service Tax Recelvable {1.04 oy
Advance 1o Vendors 4,44 039
Prepaid Expentes &2 10.73
Security Deposit 4 53 482
Total 15.58 1611

e | | | ]
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Mote 14 : Equity Share Capital [Rs. in Lakhs)

{a]l Authorized :
4,00, 00000 (March 37, 2000 4,007 00,000 Equity sharps of Bs. 1 gach
4,010.00 4,00 0,00
k) lsswed, Subscribed and Pald-up
28568273 (March 31, 2020: 2,00.04, 5001 Equity shares of Rs: 10 each fully pad up 2 B56.83 2000498
Total 2,855.83 2 000.48
{e) Reconciliation of aumber of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Paid up Shares Capital
[Rs, Ini Lakhs)
Particulars Mumber of shares Amount
g .ql.lq:mil 1, 2009 2040.05 200048
Issuied during the yaar -
As at March 31, 2020 200.05 2,000.48
lssued durng the yaar B5.464 B54.35
Az at March 31, 2021 285,58 285603
1] Detalls of shares held by sharehalders halding more than 5% af the aggregate shares in the Company:
Equity Shares As at March 31, 2021 A at March 31, 2020
Shares held by MNumber of Shares b Mumber of Shares %
Kamal Poddar 25.00 B.75% £5.00 12.50%
Arun Kiemar Poddar £1.00 [ 1= 21,00 10.50%
Winita Sunil Patodia 1613 2.54% 16,13 B.U&'%
Archana Anil Patodia 1575 3.51% 15.75 T B
Sonu Poddar 20.00 7 00% 12.50 &.25%
Sundl Kumar Patodia 2589 FO5% 12.3% 5.19%
Al C Patodia 11.00 3.85% 11.00 C.50%
Hemlata Poddar 20,00 7.00% : 0.00%
fzura Frojects. Private Limited 12485 4. 301% 14,85 6.92%

Terms [ Rights attached to Equity Shares:

1 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each sharehaldar is eligible for one vote psr
share hetd. The dividend proposed by the Boand of Directors |s subject to the approval of the sharebalders in the ensuing Anrual
GZenaral h‘lrm:ng In the gvant of liquidaton, the r-r!-uiry share kalders are rrlir__s.ll.'.-lr' to recoive thi .-'vl;'r.'.'ii".inl_',- pssats of the comparny aftar
distribution af all preferential amounts In proportion b their share halding.

27 |nthe event of lgusdation of the eompany, the haldars of equity shares will be entited to receive remaining assets af the Campany,
gher distributian of all preferential amounts. The destribution will be propomion to the number of eguity shares held by the
sharsholders.

Disclosure statement of Preferantial allotment

Duwiring the year, the campany has comeefed 85,463 473 warrents inta equivalent numbes of equity sheres on recespt ol rémaining 75%

O the 15508 Drce O The warmants

ek ___________________________________________________________|
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Mote 15 : Other Equity (s, in Lalkhs)

Shate Application Maney Pending Allotment 143247 2524 50
Cratutary Ressrve Jg2. 72 JB2 72
Capital Resena 870 B.70
Securty PFremium Raserve 290319 & 32T
Revaluation Resores 4, 1m.22 417022
Retarmed F.\rnlr'gn 1.341.51 1.711.31
Chhar Comprehensive Income 58 319
Tatal 1724259 1459277
(i} Statutory Reserve {Rs. in Lakhs)

Balance as at the beginning of the year a8 T2 JB2.72

Add © Additiors during tha year
Balance as at the end of the year 38272 IB2.TZ
It is croated as par the terms of Secticn 45 4C 1) of Reserse Bank of India Act, 1934 as Statutory Resere:

{ii} Capital Reserve {Rs. in Lakhs)

Halance as at the hr\-;‘glnnlng of the yoar H, a0

Aoid ; Additions duning tha yoar

Balance as at tho end of the year a.70 870

It i made out of capdal proft parned. The same 15 not available for proht distmbuton
(iii} Securities Premium Resenve: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars

Balance a5 atthe baginning of the year &372.37 6,392.17

2dd : Addibans during the year 3.511.02

Balance as at the end of the year 9.903.19 539217

Securitles PreEmauiT ressnae 1y used] 1 record the Eremidm on 15sue af shares, The fesense i utifsed inaccordance with the Prosisicn of the

Comparses fct, 20713

(iv) Revaluation Reserve (Rs. in Lakhs)

417022 417622

Halance as at the beginning of the year (refer note below)
Add ; Additions during the year
Balance as at the end of the year 417022 4,170.22

It has been created on revaluation af freehold land at fsir market value. The same s not available for profit distibution

e — ( ] '
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(v} Share Application Money Pending Allotment {Rs. in Lakhs)

Balance a5 at the beginming of the year (refer note below) 252450

Achd : Additiores duting the pedr 327554 2 534 5()

Leds- Warrents converted during the yeas (4, 34737}

Balance as at the end of the year 1.432.47 2,524.50

{vi] Retained Earnings: {Rs. in Lakhs)

Halances as at the beginning of the year 1.111.3 AR ]
Addf (Less) Profin/ iLass) far the year 230.20 19741
Balance as at the end of the year 1.341.51 1,111.31

Retained sarnings represents surplus ¢ accumulated sarmings af the Company and are svailabile for distrnibotson 1o shareholders

[wii]) Other Coamprehensive Income {Rs. in Lakhs)

Halance as at the beginning of the year 315 2.49
.-5:rJ'J :ﬂ.-dl:lllur". |.:Il.|'|n9 the ','1..~.1' 4] d-i ANl :
Balance as at the end of the year 358 15

Cther comprahensive incomes consist of remeasuremant gains / losses on defined benefit plans, gain / [Ioss) of equity instruments camied
1'r-rr,||,|-_:|h EVTE)

MNote 16 : Borrowings (Rs. in Lakhs)

Secured Loans
Loans token from tmancial Insttutions® 1.971.1%
Less- Current Matunty [213.02)

1,758.17 .

s sy

*The autstesday amount |oen of B 200,000,000/ [ March 37, 2020 - Nil} (Sanctan amowt s 300,000,000) wes 1aken rarm Aditya Sirla
Flnance Lirted and & secwed by way of first charge on office premises st Murnbal, however the change creaton 5 under process. The sad
lozn carries interes at 10.50%) The loan s repayable in Eguated monthly instalbments "EMI'} énding in May 2029,

MNote 17 : Provisions {Rs. in Lakhs)

Prowisic far Employes Benetits

Prowisicn for Gratuity 774 659
Total 774 &59

eka.____________________________________________________________|
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Mote 18 : Deferred Tax Liabilities - [Met)

The major componants of deferred tax Liabilities! (Assets) as recagnized in the financial statements are as follows:

[Rs. in Lakhs)

Deferrad Tax [ Assats) Liablities arising on account of tming differences in

WAT Credit Entitlement 1346.53) [75.18)
Froperty, Plant and Equipment - Depreciation 295 50 JHREAT
Frovision for omiployes baneti pxpenses t3.05] [3.4%)
Dieforrac Tax on amorisation of (RR a3.01
Daferred Tax an Fair value of Employee benefit expenses through
Oither comprehensive incoma 1.50 1.34
Datemred Tax (Assets) Liakilities (net) 26552 211.4%
Movement in Deferred Tax (Assets) Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
Praperty. Flast

Particulars wnd Eauioment : ayme

Cntitlemean Depreciat henetit expenses
As mt Apl 1, 2019 17511} 258.23 - 183.12
Chaiged! {Credited}
Ta Provrt or Loss 044 (.23 F R |
fo Gther Comprehensive Intome 4/ .44
MAT Credit Utilsed
At Marnch 31, 2020 17511} 288.67 [&08) - 21149
Charged! | Credited] .
To Prodit or Loss 6573 035 BEM 1529
To Cithier '.‘:nmpn*hun".wt [mecma 0.74& 014
Wat Credrt Unilised 38.58 3B 58
A at March 31, 2021 136.53) 295 59 (1.55) E.01 26552
Mote 19 : Borrowings (Rs. In Lakhs)

Secured Loans

Bank Chordrafs* 142119 1,373.78
Unsecured Loans

Lowan taken from Related Parties . 141,00
Crhar Loans B15. 14
Total 142119 2,329.94

* Bank overdrah facibity taken from Punjab Mational Bank for which esset cover details are given below
al 211, akal CHS Lid, Bamenpan road, 4 B MagarAndheri East, Mumbai- 59

b} -5, Dormimia in Prove Hillssde Residences, Khandala Lonavala, Pune

o] B- 904 - Boand B - 704 - A, Valencia oo heg soc Hiranandani Gardens, Powal, Mumbai - 76

i 8- 93 Band B- 901 = A Valencia co b soC o, Hiramandpnl Gardens, Powai, Mumbal - fé

e ] 1
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Mote 20 : Trade Payables [Rs. in Lakhs)

Trade Fayabla

D to Micro Enterprises and Small E mierprises 023 1%
Cither than Micro and small Enferprises 3207 Ja.mn
Tatal 34.30 A7.90

*Hased on infarmation recetved by the Company from s suppliess regarding ther status under the Micro, Small and Medivm Enterprises
{MEME] Bavefoprment Act, 2006 and relied upon by the suditors; details of amount due toe such vendors is Bs balow

5 Mo Particulars

{u} Princpal Smaunt Outstanding 023 1% 7
{m) Interast dus on abdawe and unpaid Pk dilars 18 Yeqr ended
{il) Interest due and payable for the pedod of delay
(i) Interest accrued and remaning unpaid Credi Balances Wittsr off 0.05 1.95
lmderest on Income Tax Redund 210
e ] Misc. Income .24 0.28
Note 21 : Other Financial Liabilities (Current) (Rs. in Lakhs) ~
ltgrest an Deposit 28.52 23,94
Total 3091 2619
Current Maturities ol Long-Teem Dot 21302
g Note 26 : Empleyee Benefits Expenses {Rs. in Lakhs)
Total 2302 -
March 31
Salaries and Wages 7764 T5.27
Mote 22 : Other Current Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs) Caontributions ta Provident and Cihas Funds 039 0.58
Staff Waltaro Exponses 343 0.83
Partrculars Larpturty Expanses 1. ER 1,70
Total 8334 TH38
Statutory Dues 18.71 a4 &3
Chther Liability [
Mote 27 : Finance Costs '
19.44 44,43 (Rs. in Lakhs)
1 -"r'-'-|' et
11, 2021
Mote 23 : Current Provisions {Rs. in Lakhs) |rvheresd an Bosrawings from Related Paries 0.04
Imtereat e Bodrowings Fram Otherd GL87 14:83
Particulars Irfesest arl Bemowings from Barnks 13799 9773
|Imterest on Deposit 2585 26,70
{n)-Provisson for Employss Bansfi: Crner Borrowing Losis & 1.54 130
Provasion for Gratuity 1.4% 1.38 Totat 389 05 15434
Provsion for Leave Encashment 0.57 0:22
Total 204 1.40
Mote 28 : Depreciation and Amortisation Expense {Rs. in Lakhs)
PDeptetiaticn on tangible assets [Reter Mote 3) o GB.O0
Armorttsaticon of intangible assets (Reler Mote 5) 482 5.0
Tatal 71.3%9 7372

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED | AMNLAL REPORT 2021
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Mote 24 : Revenue from Operations

Far the Year ended

werdent duditir's Report 9

iRs. in Lakhs)

March 31, 2021
Interest income AAL 7S 11933
Income from Business Support Services LAl &0 HB0.61
Subletting lncome 4540 &l 00
Profit an Sale of lneestment .75
Total B35.83 B75.89

MNote 25 : Other Income

{Rs. in Lakhs)

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED | AhSUIAL REPCHT 55021
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Mote 29 : Other Expenses (Rs. in Lakhs)

Hank Ch argos and L ommession iz (L45
Rent 12.44 2930
Sundry Balances written off 249
Repairs & mainfanance 14,34 20,50
Rlates & laxes 2014 1915
Legal and professsanal 1422 47.20
Insurance charges 0.%8 0.85
Electrioty Charges 1245 £8.91
Traveling & Conveyance expenses 357 .66
Communicabion expenies 4539 51.50
Cantean axpEnsos 1048 4095
Computer axpanses 1634 21 84
Dirpctor ﬂleg"lrﬂ & .50 5.00
Avprtisomant & Business FrOMmCTcn opanees = | 233
Printing & Stationeny 0.40 277
Payrment to Auditons
Ar dudtor 18.00 18.00
Other matters 4,30
Ot of pocket expenses .62
Miscallanenus expences 2.07 g.42
Total 19211 299.45
Mote 30 ; Eamings/ {Loss) Per Equity Share {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars
Mt Profit afvés tax stinbutable to Equity Sharabolder for Baaic EPS 230.20 197.43
Addiless: Adjustment relating to potential equity shares -
Mat profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders for Diluted EPS 230,20 197.43
Welghted average number of Equity Shares (In |akhs) outstanding during the year
For Basle EPS 214.69 200.05
Far Ddlured EFS J27.04 21224
(e} Face Value per Equity Share (Rs.) 10,00 10.00
Basic EPS (Rs.) 1.07 0.99
Diluted EPS [Rs.) 0.0 0.%3
(d} Reconciliation between no. of shares {in lakha) used for
caleulating basic and diluted EPS
Moo of shares used for calculating Basic EPS 214.69 200.05
Add; Poteniind equity shares 11237 1221
Mo af shares weed for caledlating Diluned EFS 32704 222a

ocae________________________________________________________|
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Mote 31 - Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

A. Contingent Liabilities® (Rs. in Lakhs]

| Income tax demand contested by the Company 43,14 6534
Tovtal 43114 6534

*The Company does not expect any outfliow of economic resowrces in respect of above

March 31, 2020

HY *Corparste guarantess meeed o Benks & Financial Insitutions
o behalt of subsidiaries- 428674 832314

Tortal b, 284,74 B.323.94

*Thie above represants corporate guarantes utifised for Chaice Equity Broking Private Limited is Rs. 5230, 74 lakhs (March 31, 2020; Rs. 7229 48
Lakchs) for Choice Caprtal Advisors Frivate Limeted 1s Bs. 3432 lakhs/- (Manch 31, 2020: Rs.98 07 lakbs-} and for Choice Consultancy Services
Private Limited i By 9461 68 fakhs (March 31, 2020 Re. 995 39 lakha ). Howevar the crrarali sanction ameant 8 Rs, $2220.00 lakhs{March 31, 2020
Rs, 10720.00 lakhs )

B. Capital Commitments- Mil

Mote 32 - Expenditure in Foreign Currency - Nil

Mote 33 - Reconciliation of Tax Expenses and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s Tax Rate (Rs. in Lalkhs]

Prafit Before Tax 327.85 294622
Enacted Income Tax Rate 27.82% 2TA2%
Tax @ 25% plus surcharge and education cess .21 B2.41

Tax efects of adyustments ta reconcile expected Incomae Lax
oxpenses o reported income tax expenses ©

Exponses that are not deductible for tax PUrpoEn i F85H
Deduchons availlablo under income tax (43.07] (40,133
Tatal 7589 T0.69
s ths for earlier year Gl

Income tax Expesnes recogqnesed in profit & loss 75,89 090
Deferred tax recognised in peofit & koss 15,28 27.910
Total tax Expenses recognised in Profit & Loss F7.64 FE.BO
Effective Tax Rate 29.78% 33.36%

e — | 7]
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Mote 34 - Employee Benefit Obligations

1. Defined Contribution Flan
During the year, the Company has incurred and recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Standalaone Independent Auditar's Repont -

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

The net liability disclosed above relates to lunded plans are as follows:

{Rs. in Lakchs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Prasent value of funded abligations B34 Hi1
Fair walue of plan azsats KL11) (L15]
Employer's Costribuaion 1o Provident Fund 0.25 .43 Ouficit\Surplus) of gratuity plan 9.24 .97
Employer's Coniribation 1 ESKC 014 0 Significant estimates- actwarial assumptions and sensitivity
Total 0.39 0.59 The signiticant actuanal asamptions wers as follows:;
2. Defined benefit plans {Rs. in Lakhs)

Gratuity (post-amployment banefits)

The Commpany prinades far gratuity to emplayees in India as per the Payment of Gratusty Act, 1972, Empliyees who are in continuaus service fos
o perrlod of 5 years are eligible for gratulty, The amaount of gratuity payable on retirementermination & the employess last drawn basic alary
permanth computed proportionately for 15 dayssalary multiplied for the number of years of serice, The grateity plan is a funded plan and the
Compariy makes contributions fo recogmsed/approved fupds in India. The Company does not fully Fund the labslity and maintains & target lewel
of funding to be maintained over o pericd of time based on estimations of sxpected gratuity paymenis

Chacaunt rake 4.85%

Salary growih rate (par annum) 6. 00%

Withdrawal rate [per annwem| 3% at younger ages

A4.B5%
LO0%

5% at younger ages

reducing to redlucing to
The ol b bal detined benefit obii | i d
¥ S m R AL ] the e .| gl gl 1 L} = A I
e o ':I““""FI table sets 0wt the amount rechgmsed inthe balance sheet and the movements in the net dehined bensdit obligaticons dverthe yea 1% at older ages 1% at alder ages
are as folows: -
Expectod rate of return &, 35% aBS%

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Indian Aesured
Lives bortalivg
(2012-14) Table

Martabity Tablo

01 April 2019 7.54 [74) 740

Current Servics cost 113 113 Sensitivity analysis

Interest enpense| ncome) .58 0.58 The senstivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes m the weighted principal assumptions s
Total amaount rn:ngnls.d in profit or loss 1.71 . 1.71

g maea sungments
Fstiirm an plan sstets, axcloding amounts included i

Inclipn Assured
Leves Mostaling
[2012-14) Takle

inferest axpansa [ (Income] - (o) (00§
::'ffa:ltll'lu';: frem \'.hIJﬂIIgE in |:l';d"--;.'ld| assurnplions I:l;.'ll.}."_-'l I:IIJ;H March 21, 2021 March 31. 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
us bt Chanos in dee ra « ERrmE i 01 01
B i sl . Ao i 2 i Diseaunt rate 0.50% 0.50% Decrease by 5.53% 5.77%
Expanence (gainslogses [1.85) (1.85) - =
Total amourtt recognised in other comprehensive income 1113 (0.01) (1.14) Salary growth rate 050% 0.50% tricrease by 2.467% 2.92%
Emalayer contribulions Withdrawal rate W= 110% WR = 170% Increase by 1.06% 1.22%
Benafit payments
31-Mar-20 8.11 (215 .97
Current Service cost 1.38 - 1.38
Interesl expanse’income) 0.54 (00 0.50
Total amount recognized in profit or loss 1.52 {004 1.88
[P e March 37, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Returmion plan assets, excluding amounts inchuded in Discount rate 0.50% 0.50% Incraase by & 005 5. 2%%
imurest sxpense / (income) g.o8 i Salary growth rate 0.50% 0.50% Decrease by 4.24% 2.75%
(GainVless rom change in financial assumptions Withdrawal rate WA x P0% WAL x P00 Deereass hy 1.09% 1.27%
Due to Changa in demographec assumptions
Experience [gainsWionses [0.47) (L&T) The ahove sensitivity analyses are based ona change snanassumpton while holdng all cther assumpbions constant, In practice, this sunhkeby
Total unt recognised in other comprehensive income 10.67) 0.08 (0.59) 1o gceur, and changes in same of the ssumptions may be correlated. When caleulating the senaltivity of the delined benaht abligation ta
31 s l?' 34 011 e significant actuanal assumptans the same method [present valee of the debined benefit cblagation calculated with the projectad wnit credit

miethod at the end of tha reporting period ) has been appled aswhan cafoulating the defined benefitiiability recognised inthe balance shaot

Themathods and types of assumptions used in prapanng the sensitivity analyses did notchange compared to the pnor panod

Ane.________________________________________________________________________|
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Risk Exposure L UL S S . S SR L W L TR LS L U S S L T TR S S S S

Thraugh its defined benefit plans, the Company is expesed to a number of fsks, the most significant of which are detailed

Imvestment risk The present value of defined benefit plan liabllity i\ calowlated wang & discount rate which s determminad by
rederance 1o market yields at the end of the reposting pencd on govermnment Bonds, Mast of the plan asset
imwEstrrent &= i fleed income secuntias with high grades and in government securites which are subject to
interest rate risk. & poriion of the funds are Invested in equity secunties. The Company intands tomaintain the
abowe investmeant mi in the Continuing years.

: _ : R T T T b R LT T T T T T T TR T TR T TR R T T T T . T
Interest risk A decrease i the market yeilds in the government bond will increase the plan abiliy; heswevar, this will be

partally offset by an incresse inthe retunm o the plan’s debt imeastrments.

Longe ity risk The present valwe of defined benelit plan lability is calcdated wsing a discount rate which & determined by
referance 1o the bast estmate of the manality of plan parcipans both during and afer emplayment. An
icraasedthe life expectancy of the plan pamopantswill increasethe plan’s liakility.

Salary nsk The present value of dofined baneht plan liakility 15 calowlsted weng o discount rate which i determined by
reference to the future selaries of plan particrpants, As such, an tncrease in the selany af the plan participaints will
increase the plan's lialbily,

Maturity profile of gratuity liability and Employer contribution

-
Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plang for the year ending 31 March 2021 are Re. 1.4 lakhs (a8 ot March 31, _ =
2020 Rs. 1.38 lakhs), TE B
2 :
The weighted average duration (based on discounted cash flows) of the defined benetit cbligationis 13,79 yvears{14.62 years ‘—;E =
2019-20), The expected matunty analysls of undiscounted gratuity ls as follows e _E g
£5 3 .
{Rs. In Lakhs) 88 EG & = E_ T
5 In 8 E= =< s ; - & o
E SSFE 3 Eg 6. _E%x ¢ szzZis
FY20-21 FY19-20 B2l 3 83 | B3 s BRESR .3 FEEEE -
cf3ge§=3E3 FE55EE5¥S9T3E grevdgd
Lessthan one year 0.42 0.37 i §$E§§553§£ mEEffEEEEEEEE -%gggzﬁ-if
_ 5 foE -2 REg o *r 8RB EREan K 3
Between 1-2 years 042 0.38 5 Ejgégéﬂgﬁ.s EE%E%EE'E%é%%ﬁbEi%éEE%
_ s pEgIE S 3 LR T e T b N
Between 2-5yaars 1.14 1.2 E %ga%fggd‘éﬁf‘_ %E%—E‘Eé%giigiﬁggg‘%&%éi
: = 2 2E P 8L F BAIA5EwiEigiaEs Rl g%
OverSyears 212 1.81 = REBZESEiENE ‘éfg%ﬁﬁ,ﬁl—*.iﬁ?é%f%“%&
- U oy spppunisns S35E853555898%udnine
Total 410 3.67 49 6855835888 PEFsiicroesngoidegzzs
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atandalare Incepancorl sSudibors |'.-\.'|.--.l". Slandaland Independent Auditir's Report

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Mote 36 :- Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 1 * Presentation of financial statements" [e] Quantitive Disclosures of carrying value /fair Value measurement hierarchy for assets and labilities

(a) Current Assets expected to be recovered within twelve months and atter twelve months from the reporting date; iRs. in Lakhs)

{Rs. In Lakhs}

[Level 1] [Leval 2) (Level 1} [Lewel 2]
Trocle Recehables 9 53,40 53.40 356,39 356,39 Financial Assets at Amortised Cast
: o Mon Curren
Loans 1= A Tar 8 SN i - 251379 Investment in subsidiaries 31-03-2021)13,383.45 31-03-2020 888345
Other Current Assets 13 1558 15.58 1611 14,11 Crher Financial Assars 3-03-2021 438 1-03-2020 G463
Current
Trade Raceivables 31-03-2027% 5340 . 31032020 35439
(b) Current Liabilities expected to be settled within twelve months and after twelve months from the reporting date: Cash and Cash Equivalams A1-03-2027 17 1032020 | 31453
Bank Balance othar than sbove EREEReI g ¥4 3103 -2 fal
; Loans A1-03-202%, 395979 IV-03-2020 | 247274
{Rs. in Lakhs) Z
Firancial Liabflites at
Amortised Cost
Mon Curment
Barrovwngs 31.03-2021, 1,758.17 31032020
SR Current
[HOEI Borowings 31-03-2021] 142119 31-03-2020, 2329.94
Trade Pavahla 20 Tracle Payebles 31-03-2021 34,29 31-03-2020 arw
(8} Dues of micre erermprises Criher Financial Lisbilities 31-03-2021 213.02 11032020
and small emanpses 0.23 0.23 379 3.7
[b) Dues of crediiors other
than mécro anterprises
and small erterprises 2407 3407 2411 24.11
Chr Finmncial Linbifities 21 213.02 213.02
Cher Current Linbilitios 22 17,44 19.44 44,43 4443
Provisions £3 2.0 2.04 1.460 1.6

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED | AMNLAL REPORT 2021 CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED | AhSUIAL REPCHT 55021



".'i.','-'- Standalarme Indepander Aaditar's Repon
:

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Mate 37:- Financial Assets at Amortised Cost Method

The carrying valus of the following fnancial assets recognised at amortised cost;
[Rs. in Lakhs)

Non-Currant Financial Assets

Cithers 4,38 06,63
Cuwrrent Financial Assets

Trade receivablas 53,440 356,39
Cash and Cash Equivalnets 147 314573
DOriher bank balances 744 7.51
Loans 3.959.7% 267274
Crhers 15,56 1611
Total 4,042.26 3,874.31

Mliote: The fair value of the above financial assets are approKimately equivalent to carrging values a3 recognised above.

Mote 38:- Financial Liabilities at Amartised Cost Method

Thie carrying valua of the following financial liabilities recognised at amoised cost:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Mon Current Financial Liabilities

Borrawings 1, 75817

Current Financial Llabilities

Bossawings 1.621.19 2.329.94
Tracln Poyabin 3430 .50
Crthier Financial Lisbalities 21342

Total 342668 2,367.85

Mote: The fair value of the above financial habilites are approxmately equivalent to carrying values as recognised above,

Mote 39:- Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Prafit or Loss

Mate: There ane no such financial assets.

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED | AMNLAL REPORT 2021
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Mote 40 : Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company's princigal financial liabilities comprise of loans and borrowings, trade and other payables The main purpose of
these financial abilines = 1w finance the Company's opemtons directly ar indirectly, The Company's principal financial assets
include investmants, loans, rade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents that derve directly from its operations

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The below note explainsthe sources of risk which the entity
15 exposed 1o and howthe entity managesthe nak

Credit Risk Cash and cash eguwvalents, iracde Aging anabysis Pversificaton of
recemvabies, financal instruments, and Credit ratings Exestang cradit
Fiwed Depasit with Banks, naneial lirnits Unutilised frem
gEsets measuned at arartised cost. Consortium Bankers
Leyinrifity Risk Borrowangs and ather liabifites Rolling cash Availability of commined

fiow forecasts Cradit hines and
borrod g factities

Merket Risk - foreign eachange  Future commerncial rarnsactsans. Cash flovw forecasting Farward foreign
Recagnisad financal liakilities not and gxchange contracts
dempminated in Indian Bupee (TNE) SenEitivity nnnlﬁlq-

Merket Risk - interest rabe Long-Term bomawngs at waniable rates Sensitivity analyats Interest Hate Swaps

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not mest its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to
a financial loss. The Company is exposed to cradit risk from its operating activities {primarily trade receivablas) and from its
tinancing activities, including Fixed deposits with banks and inancial institubons and other hinancial instruments

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financiat institutions is managed by the Companys finance department in accordance
with the Company’s palicy. Investrments of surplus funds are made generally in the fixed deposits and for funding 1o subsichary
company, The investment limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss to make
payments forvendors

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2021 and March 31,
2020 is the carrying amounts as stated in balance sheet except tor balances of subsidiary comparny,

Liguidity Risk

The Compary monitors itz risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning toal,

The Campany’s objective is to maintain a kalance between continuity of funding and fiexbility through the use'of bank loans
ord unsecured loans. The Company has access to a sufficient varety of sources of funding which can be rolled over with
exigting lenders. The Company believes thatthe working caprital is sufficient to meet its curment requirements,

—“315
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Ty g Standalarme Indepander Aaditar's Repon
:

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

The table below provides details regarding the maturities of significant financial liabilities
as of March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020:

{fs. in Lakhs)

Year ended March 31, 2021

Secured Loans 1,534,348 28739 477 .48 9313 3. 3¥2.38
Unsecured Loans

Trade Payables 34,30 - - - 34.30
Crthers 2¥3.02 - - - 213,02
Year ended March 31, 2020

Secured Loans 1,373,748 1.373.78
Unsecurad Loans 1.630.32 : : 1.4630.32
Trade Payables 350 37.90
Others . : 5
Parfoet Risk

Market risk comprisas two typas of sk imterest rate risk and currency rsk, Financial instruments affected by markat risk include loans and
barrenngs and deposits

Interest Rate Rizk

Inierasyt rate nisk ks the rigk that the f&ir value o future cash flows of a financal instrument will fluctuaie because 'of changes in market interest
rates. The ﬁumpnn:,l':. miposene to the risk of r_hnm]n', i market irterest rates redades rlrlrn..vllg,rtn e lf'.c\-rnr:..'ln:,.-"_. Inng termidebt chl-gntinﬂr, with
Aoating interest rates,

The Compary manages ity interest rate risk by having & balasced ponfoho of fixed and vanable rate loans and borrowings. The Company's
palicy |3 to keep balance between its borrowings ot fued retes of interestThe difference between fimed and varable rabe interest smounts
caloulated by reference to a0 agresd-upon notional prncipal amownt.

The exposure of the Company 1o interest rate changes at the end of the reparting paricd are as undar

(Rs. in Lakhe)

Vartable Rate Boriowing 1.971.99

Fimes] Rate Borrawing 142119 232994
Total 3.392.38 2.329.94
Interest rate Sensitivity

The following table demeonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably passible change In interest rates on that portion of loans and
borrowings affected, after the impact af hedge accounting. With all other variables held constant, the Company's profit before
tax iz affected through tha impact on floating rate bormovengs, as follows:

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED | AMNLAL REPORT 2021
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(R. in Lakhe)

wlarch 31, 2020 + 1% (19711
1% 191
March 31, 2019 + 1%
- 1%
Equity price risk

Tha Comparny's unlisted agquity securities ane of subsidiary and deemed cost of the same are taken as provious GAAP canying
vilue [|.e. cost of acquisition)

Mote 41 : Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management; capetal includes issued eguity share capital, securties premium and all
ather reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Caompany, The primary objective of the Company’s capital management
is tomasimise the value of the share and to reduce the cost of capital.

Tha Company manages s capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital struciure, the Company can adjust the dividend
payment to.shareholders, ssue new shares, ete. Tha Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which ls net debt divided
by tiotal equity. The Company includes within netdebt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents.

{Rs. in Lakhs)

A) Net Debt

Borrowings [Curment gnd Man-Curnent) 3, 179.35 233094

Caah il cash equivabeniy 1.67 314,93
Net Debt (A) 3177.68 2,015.01

|B) Equity

Equity share capital 2,855,483 2,000 48

Chhor Equity 17 25299 14,5%2, 77
Total EI;'I.IH" (B} 20,099.43 14,593.25

Gearing Ratio (Met Delbt / Capital] Le. (A FB) 15.81% 12.14%

Mote 42 ; Segment Information;

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available that is
evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, in deciding how ta allocate resources and aszessing performance.
The Group's chigf operating decision makear 15 the Chiel Executive Otficer and Managing Director, Pursuant 1o surrandering s
license, the main Business af the Company is investing and financing to the Subsidiaries and providing support services to the
Group Companias, The Company isin prooess of further reducing its existing investing and financing exposunes to Companiog
ather than Subsidiaries. Further afl activibies ara camed out within India.. Accordingty, Sagment Beporting in acoordance with
Ind Accounting Standard - 108 *Opereting Segment” issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India and adopted by
Companies{Accounting Standard ) Rules, 2015 is not applicable tothe Company

) | 138
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Mote 43 : Espenditure on Corporate Social Rezponsibility:

As per Section 135 of the Compames Aoy, 2013, the company is not mandatonly required 30 spend on corporate SoCIH
responsbility [C5R) actiaties

Mote 44 : Surrender of NBFC License

The Company vide their lefter dated August 20, 2018 had requesied Reserve Bank of India (RBIHor cancellation of Certibcate of
Registration as NBFC and RBI has approved the same vide letter dated November 25, 2020 wef October 23, 2020,

MNote 45 : COVID Impact

“Thie COVID 19 pandamic continues 10 sprad scross the globe and India, which has contributed to a significant volatility in
global and Indian financial markets. The financial satements, includes the patential impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the
Company's financial statements which are dependent on future developments, which are highly uncertain, including, among
other things, sry neew information concerning the severity of the second wave of COMID- 19 pandemic and any sction to contain
its spread ar mitigate its impact whether Governmaent mandated or elected by the Company and its subzequent impact on the
recoverability's on the Company's assets. The Company has, based an curmont available information and based on the policy
approved by the board, determined the provision for impairment of financial assets including the additional overlay for
uncertainty over the potential macro-sconomic impact of the pandemic Based on the current indicators of future economic
conditions, the Company consiclers this pravision to be adeguste and expects to recover the carrying amount of these financial
mgsets, Given the uncertainty awer thie patontal macra-econamic candition, the impact of the alobal health pandernic may be
different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial stastements and the Company will continue to closely
msritar any matenal changes o future sconomic concitions,®

Note 46 : Previous Years' Figures:

The finarcial statemants have baen prapamd in accordance with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rulas, 2015
{Ind-AS5} prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other recognized accounting practices and paolices to
the owtent spplicable, The previous poriad's figures have baan regrouped o rearranged wharevar necessany.

The accompanying notes are an integral par of these financial statements

For andd o behall of Baard of Directors

S S
Karmal Poddar Ajay Kejrowal
Managing Diactan Drirwctor

DiN- D1 518700 D D305TEAT
Sd- Sdi-

Bl Marishma Shak
Chegl Fongncial Offuces Company Secretany
Flace - Mumbas Place - Mumbas
Date : June 25, 2037 Crate : fuaiee 25 AT
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ﬁ Consoliaind Independent Audioss Bopan
.

o D apinicn on the comaoldated financial statamonts doos ol
cover the other informaton and we do ot and will nol express any
byl sssurancs conchuson therson.,

= In connection with ol sudit of the conwalidated financial
statements, our responsebility 5 0 road the athor information,
compare with the financial siatements of the jointly coptroflod
operations, subssdianes and associse audited by the othed
auditors, 1o the extent i relates to these entities and, indaing sa,
plice reliance on th work of the other suditens and conaide
whetherthe other informatson is materially inconsistent with the
conslidated financizl stalements of our kaowlodge obtained
duiing the course of oul awdil or othensiEs appears 1o be
migtgrially missiated, Cthes information sofar s it relates wthe
jeintly commalled operabons, subselianes and dasocialen
traced from thelr financial statements sudited by the other
auditan

s When we resd the Dinector's Repon sncheding annesueies 1o
Durector's report, Management Discusseon and Aralysis Repor
and Report an Corparate Governance, o concluda that thedoe
i & materal missttement theresn, we are meguired o
communicate the matber to-those charged with goeernance s
recquired wnder SA 720 The Awsditors responsibalities Relating
tvOther Irfosmation’

Marmagemeni’s Responsibility for the Comofidated Financial
Statemanis

Thee Halding Company's Bogrd of Deectods is respaonsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5] of the Act with respect to the
preparation of teecs consalidated financis statements that gonee s
true and fair vwew of the consolidsted financial position,
cansclidatod financal pedformsnce including other comprehonsive
income, consoficated cash ows and consolbdated changes o
equity of the Group incduding its associate in accordance with the
lretd A ] exthvier pcconanting principles generalky accopted i india
The respective Boand of Directors of the compames inclided n the
Group and ol its associate are redponsible for  maintenance of
sdequate acoounting records in scocordance with the provesions of
the-Act for safeguarding the asseis of the Group and its associzle
aind for prresenteng and detecting froeds and other negulanmies,
salection and applicatson ol appropeiate accounting  policies;
making judgments and estimates th are ressanable and
prudent. and design, wnplementation and mamtenance of
adequate intermal inancial controls, that were operating effoctvely
tor ensuring the accuracy and comgpleteness of the sccownting
records, relmant 16 the prepamtion and pesentation of the
linapcial statemonts that gwo @ trae and (i viow snd ane Tres iom
miaterial masstatoment, whether due to fraud or emar, which have
been wisad for the purpose of prepasation of the consolidated
financial statements by the Diwectors of the Holding Company, a5
afaaresid,

Ik preparing the consclidsded financial stemants, the respective
Board of Directors of the companses included inthe Group and ofits
assncate 1 respansible for assessing the abifity of the respective
entities to contimmes 03 2 going concenn, dsclosimg, as spplicabie,
miattars relabed W going concern and wiing the going concern basis
of accounting unlass the  respactive Board of Dissctors  aithay
Intends to hguidate thew res pective entsties o to coase openationg,
o7 has no realistc alternative but to doso

The reapecties Bomwd of Directors of the companes nclhadesd i the
Group and of its sssociale are also responsdbibe for oversesing the
financial reporting process of the Growp ssd of its associate,

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the ComocEdated
Financial Statements

Ouir phyectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether
the consolidated financial stalements a3 3 whole are fres from
puaberl misstatement, whether due o fosed o e, and 1o ssee o
audior's report that inchedes our opinkon, Ressonable assurance isa
Priggh lesisl of ssturance, but s ot o guarantes that an sedit
conducted i accordance with SAs will always detect & matenal
migstaturnont whon it e, Misclatomonts can arise from fraed o
et and dne consedered materkal i, issdreidually o inthe aogregate,
they could reasonably be expecied to mflusnce the ecomomic
dlescigidans of users taken on the basis of thise consolidsted financial
slatements.

As partof an audit in accordance with SAs, wi ewsrcise prolessional
judgemisnd and mantsin professional skepticism throughout the
audit Waalso:

+  dentity and assess the nsks of matenal mipstatement of the
comsoldated financial statements, whether due 10 fimed . o
arrof, desagn and petform audit procedures response o thoss
risks, and oblain audit evidence that is sulficiert and
appropriate 1o provide a basis for our cpinion. The risk of not
detecting amaterial misstatement resulting from fraud s higher
thian for o resulting from emorn, a3 fraed may invobe collusion,
fargery, intentional omissions  misepresentations, o the
opisrricde oof inbemmal eantl

w Oistaen anunderstanding of e lina noisd control redeeant to
the: audit in order to design sudit procedures that are
appropriate s the cirowmstances. Undér sectron 143 3% ol the
Aict, we are also responssle {or espressing our OENICT on
wiharthver the Hokding Company has adequate inteenal Gnancial
coavirols syt m in ploce and the: opeating effecinemss of such
couthiols

o Evaluate the sppropriatenass ol scoounting policios wsed wnd
the measonablensss ol accounting  estimates and related
disthosuras mads by the mansage men)

«  Conclude an the appropriateness of management’s u of the
going concern bass of sooounting and, based on the aedi
eyidonce obtzined, whether 3 matenizl uncerainty owsls
related to events or conditions that may cast sgmificant doulst
on tha ability of the Group and its assocate to conlnus a5 3
gesing concerm. [ we conclude thal a matesial uncenainty et
we are reguared to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
relatied delosaares in the consolidated lirancial statemenls ar, il
such discltsures are inadequats, o modify our ognsc, Oar
conchugions pie based on the audit svidence obtsinod wpto the
date ol o auddibtoe's meporl, Howewer, lulute ovenls or
conditions may cause the Group and its associste to cease to
CCaTliTIL % 2 (0NN COncE L

o Evaluate the oweral] presentation, structune and content of the
consobdated financial statements, mcluding the disclosures,
and whether the conaolidated financial statemonts repossont
the underhying transactions and events in & manner tha
achisves lair presentation

o Obtain sufficient approgeiate audit evideoco egarding the
linancial informatson of the entities or business aclivities within
they Group and s associale 19 dxpress an opinicn on e
consnldated linancial statermenty, We sre responsible for the
diraction, supenasion and performance of the aedt of the
fenancial staterments of Such bianches or entities of buSiness
attivitses included n the comsoldated financial statemeants of

| ——
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wihich weer ara thi inchepssadent suditors: For tho other branches
or entitles or business actvitkes incheded in the consolidated
financial eements, which hae bean audited by the ol
auditors, swch other seddors remein respondible for the
diractenn, supsrviskon and pericemance of the audits carried
ot by them. We remdn soledy regponsable for our aadit
PR,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the
consohdated fnancial sttementy that, indeeiduglly o0
aggreqgate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of 2
roasceialaly knowledgeable user of the comalidated financial
statements may be influenced. We consider guantitatiee
matediality and cuealitative gt in (i planning the scope of
ot deelit wisk and i evaluating the rissults of our wodk; and [ii)
tn evakuate the effect of any identified misstatements: in the
consolicated linancial sralemonis.

Wie cormmunnie with those charged with governance of the
Halding Company and such other entities inchedad in- the
comoldatod financial statements of which we s the
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and tming of the audit and ssgmilicant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in nternal
controd thatwe identily during our sudil

W also provide those charged with goveimance with &
simtemient thot we have compliod with relevant ethicel
requirements regarding ndependence, and o communicate
with them all relationsfaps and  othes mathens that  may
reasonably be thowght 1o bear on our ndependence, and
whore applicablo, related saleguands

From tho matiers communcated with these chaged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
sgnificance in the aedit ol the consolidated financa
statements of the current pernod and are therefone the key audit
matiors. We describe these matons in owr auditons epon
umdess law of reguiation precludes pabilec disclosore about the
matter or when, in exiremely rare cecumstances, we detarmine
that o mater should not be commuomicated ool fepot
because the adeerse consequences. of domg so would
reascnably be expoectod to oubweigh the public intorest
bsxryefits el sach comemuencation,

Ot har Mattars

{a} We ded not awdit the financial statements of twooingdy
controdlod  operations: incheded i the standalone financizl
stalsments of the company induded i the Gioup whose
financial statemonts reflect total assets of B TEF 63 1akhs as al
3151 March 202 Tand total resepue of R 10812 Eakhs lor the
year ended on that date, as conskdeved in the respective
stamdabang financeal statemonts of the companies included in
the Group, The financizl statements of the jointly controlled
operations have bewn sedited by the other auditors whose
resports have boen funished 1 us, and our opimion inso e as it
relates to the amounts and dischosures included in respect of
the jointly contralled operations and our fepadt @0 tiemms of
subsection {3) of Section 143 of the Act, in 5o far &5 elates o
the aloresaid jostly controfled opeations, & bated sobely on
the report of sech othes puditors.

[by We did not audit the fingncial statements of six sfujhihdnarﬂs
whose fnancial statemonts rolloct total astols of He
2128 9Rlakhs as at 31st March, 2021, tofal resenues of Rs,
1.597. 13 kakhs and not cash outflows amouanting to Be 568

A
Consalidated Indepandant Audaar's Hepoet 5@‘_@

fakde foe the year ended an et date, as considerod in the
conschdated financal staitements. These (inancial satements
have boonaudited by other avdom whose repos have bagn
herrished 18 us by the Manacpement and our opimson on the
consedidated financial statements, i o far-as it elates o the
amounts and discoures ncheded n respect of - these
submidiaries, and our report in tenms of subsection| 3 of Section
143 of the Act. in w0 far a8t relates 1o the aforesaid subssdiaries
i5 based sobehy anthe reports of the other auditoss.

{c) The consofidated financial statements include the Group's
shiaro af net piofit of Bs, Ml los the yoar eoded 315t March, 2021,
a3 considered in the consolidsted financial statements,
reapeact of an aasociato whose financial information have not
bizen audited by us. These linancial infarmation sre unaudited
and have been furnishad to us by the Management and pur
opinman on the coresalidated (mancial sttensems, inso G asil
relates to the amounts and disclosures included i espect of
the subsidiary and associae, is bised solely onsuch unaudited
finsncial formation, Inoooer opinon and sccording o the
idormation and explanatians given to us by the Management,
these financial mformation ae nof material 1o the Gioup

Our opimion on the consolidated financial statements aboes
and our repont an Other Legal and Regulatony Requsrements
bislow, 8 ot modilied in respect of the above matters with
respect to-our reliance on the work done and the reports of the
oiban auditrns and the Teancial mlomeation coified by the
Management

Repart on Gther Legaland Regulstory Requirements

1. Asrequined by Section 143( 2 of the Act, based on our swdit and
o (e consideration of the ropons of the other suditors on the
separate financial staterments of the jointly controlled
operations, subsidiacies and associste relemed toin the Other
Matters 2action above we repo, to the estent applicable that

a) We have sought and obtzined all the information and
explanaticns which to the best of our knowladge and baoliel
wisre necesaary Tor the parposes of o audit of the aforesad
consalidated financial statements,

b} in our apinion, propor books of account as roquissd by w
relating to preparation of the aforesaid consobdated
finarcial stataments have baven kopt 5o faras it appears rom
our exarminition of those books and the reparts ol the othes
aunclitrars.

c} The Comsolidsted Halance Sheel, the Consoldated
Sratement of Profit and Loss including Othes
Compehensive Icome, the Consoldated Cash Flow
Statermant and the Conalidated Statement of Changes i
Eqpuity degh with by this Report arg in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintasned for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial ssatements,

diin our opimeon, the sforesaid consolidsted financial
statomonts  comply with  the Ind AS spocified wvilor
Secticn 133 of the Aot

] Onthe basis of the written represeatations wecexed from the
dhrectioss of the Holdmg Company as on 315t March, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company
aned thir reports of the statutory audibors of its subsidiary
cofmpanies and Fsociale company incodporated i India,
none of the deectoss of the Gioup companies and s
assoaciato company mcorpratid in Indi s disqueliiod ason

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED: | AMMNUAL REPORT 2001



% Consokdated Indugendent Audion’s Mopai

s March, 2071 trom beng sppointed & 8 disecion i
terma of Section 184{2 1ol the A

i) With espect o the sdoeguacy of the el inancal
controll over Bnancl reporting and  the  operating
efflectivenoss of such controls, el o our sEparale
Roport in “Annseere A which B based on the sudion’
repoits of the Holding Company, subrediany companess and
assooale company wnoorpoEbed i bndia 1o whom aremal
Enaneil conirob oeed irancisl repoang a sppleabls. O
repot sapipsses on gl opineon on the sciuay
el opeinates offectaneiies of alernal Toonosl oot
orwer financsl msporting of thows companses.

gl With respect (o the other malten 10 bo echeded » the
Aupcfioi’s Repodt in accondance with the eouarements of
section 19N 18} of the Act. as amended, s our opsmon and 1o
the best ol oul inlormation and scooeding o the
erxp o, given T uh, the rermsneisiion paid / prowided
by the Holding Company 1o iy descion duning the pss & o
sccoitlance with the proveinns of secton 197 of the A

b} Wak rewpect 1o the ather matten o be Sdluded in the
Auditnr’s Report in atcosdance with Rubs 11 of the
Commpanios { Audit and Audivon) Rules, 2004 2z armended in
owr cgnnann and 1o the bees of our information smd scoording
o ther el asnations givied Bo s
i The consobdated Bnaencal statements disclose the

impact of ponding ltigations as at the year-ehd on the
comsalicdated Brnenceal positon of the Gaoup and il
Associake,

CHOHE INTERNATIORAL | IMITED | ANSUAL REPCRT M1

#)  The Geoep and its ssocste did not has any materal
dorvatve contracts as it the year-end.

Wl Thee his beon no delsy in tansformng amounts,
e o be ranskered W investon sducation and

proitectican hund [EPF ) by the Holding Company, and it
subsidizry companies and associalte Ccompany

ine poited i indha Company csoept for the tollowng:

Purticdsr  Natureol Amount Duedate | Actually
et paad
Holdwsg  Unclsened 237688  30-10-2020 0804 2071
Company
Fooi DELCHTTE HASKING B SELLS LLP
Chartered Aooountanis
[Firm's Rogistrataon No. 11 7 266W/W. 100018)

oy

G K. Subamaniam
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ANNEXURE “A° 10 THE INDEFENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

Rederrad to in paragmph 1(1) under 'Repert on Other Legal and
Hugulatory Regulmmants' sscthon of cur report of even date )

R port on the intsmal Financisl Controls Over Financial Reporting
under Claune (1) of Sub-section 3 of Secion 143 of the Compamies
Acy J1 1 ["heAa)

In conmnciion with o sedil of the comobdated frmancal
atatementy of the Choloe livernational Limited {hetesnafes iotened
1o # “The Holding Company™) a8 ol and for the year ended T1s1
March, 2071, we have spdited the steral financal confrol over
fingncial roporting of the Holding Company, it subsidary
compansr and @ SEonale compeny, wheoh e compansss
i aied i inckisin whom atenal francial controls ovs
famancinl roporting i sppilscatsio, ool that date.

Management s Besponsibility for Imtemat Financiai Controks

The wapective Board of Dirscton of the Holding Company, its
sublidiary companies and sssocate company, which ae
eofmpansis incompserated o India, aw weapomibie for establshing
and mantaining intemal knanciel controls based on the ntormal
contiol owed Gnanclal sepoing oitera established by the
rospoctiel Companios conskdening the sssential components of
irbimad cortrol statod in the Guidence Note on Acsdd of nteenal
Financial Contiods Chiy Fnancial Reporting (the “Guidanoo Note®)
paund by the instifute of Chartored Accountants of da. These
rosponabsiliies include the design, implementation and
maintonanco of sdequate wtemil Ginancal controli that wene
ixpareating ffactivaly for ensring the arde iy and sffickent conduct
of ity businens, including adhorence 1o e respective company's
proibiciis | b sabeguarnding of its assots, the poesontion and detoction
of hmeln pnd onan, We sccufacy and completensss of the
aecounting records, and e timely preparation of iehable financisl
bt rosatlan, s roquinesd wnehir the Companieg Act, 2013,

Aue ltovs' MesponslbiBry

Our responsibyility 1 10 express an opsnces on thie eternal linancizl
eontrols over financial reporting of the Hodding Compsny, i
subaidiary companias and ssocatn company which are companies
pricearpiaratid i Indi, based an our sadil. We conducted our audit
i acoordance with the Gudancs Note kseed by the natitute of
Charterod Aocountsnts of indis and the Standards on Auditing,
proscribsed uided Soctson 143 10) ol the Companees Act, 2013, 1o
thar aadird sppalacabibe Io an s of mtormal feaneed contiobs. Thoes
Standasds and the Guedande Mole require thal we comply with
ethucal roguioments and plan and pefioeen the swedit to obtan
reaonabie avurance aboul whether adequats sl findncsl
comntroks, over Tnancisl Ieportng was esishished and masntaned
il st By Cnolbeely, et e e Lvly ory 38 Froalinial IoLpeC

Ohvi sl irvtives perionmang procedknes 10 obitsin sedil ewdence
albonst the sdequacy of the internal freisl contils SyStedm ower
Enancial roporiing smd ther opsrsting efecdneness. Ouwr swedd of
iminal Fnencisl condials oved  linancisl Teporting  incheded
obtwning an enderstanding of miemsl bnancal oontiols oved
financisl repoadng, awsesing the sk thal & matena weakness

-WMMHM%

oxsis, and testfwg and oveluating the design and operating
effectveness of intermal cortol based o the asessed b The
procedures soloctod depand on the swdetors uogoment, including
the BEsesd et of the (ks of moteral st sament of thi nsncod
statpmnents whethes due tn fraud o enos.

Wiz bakove that the sudit eesdonce we howe obtained and the sudt
widence obtsined by the other sudilon of the wsbmickary
companes and Fssocale company which aie companies
Frorporated in ks, i terms of thes reports iolaimed W0 0 the
O Matiers pasgraph below, & wilfcend e sppropeale o
prowde 2 bases for owr st opsrson on the adernal feunosl
cortnpls systenmn over lranal repesrting of the Holdandg Commparmy, 82
sadrmatiary comTghatem anel e ol i CLarey whie s 398 CEANgIEr
ncorporated in India and whese such epoiing whder Sechion
143[3) ol theAd nappicable

Teaming of Fntermal Fina ncisl Controb Over FRnancal Reporting

A compeny's intemmial financial comrol over financial repomsg & a
process designied 1o presedie reasonable assutance regardng the
relabifdy of financial reporting and the proparstion of linancisl
statements for estarnal perposes in accordance with generally
acoepted accounting pnciples. & company’s internal financial
contrd - over fmancial eporting inchedes those  pobces  and
procedures that (1) pedain (o the mamtensnce of moonds tha, in
regsonable detail, accorately and iy refiecs s trarmsscticonm and
dispasitions ol the assets of the company; [2) provide reascnalbbs
assmarznce that transattions are mecorded s necassary 10 pami
prisparation of fnancial sudorments in scoordince with g ally
accepled accounting principles, and that tecaipts and o ponditunes
e the company o boing made ooly in scconrdimen with
suthorsitions of managemiont ancd dasctoss of e compiny] snid
{31 provide reasoneble ssumance regarding posveniion al Hmaly
detection of unauthorsed acquislion, use, of dispasition of e
compeny’s assets that could have & matenal effsct on the inancial
statpmens.

Inherant Limbations of Intemal Flinanclsl Control Over Flnanclal
Rerporting

Because of the inherent limitatrons of internal financial controls. owes
financial roporting, incheding the poadbility of collussonor impropas
management ovemide of controls, materal msstatementy due o
e of frawd may oocur and sot be detected. Alvo, proj@cong of
any maluation of the ntemal fnancial confrol over financial
reparting to lufure periods are subyect 10 the risk that the ndemal
finsnciat control o fiancal reporing may bocoms iadeguate
bocause of changes inconditsons, or thal the dogres of complance
st e poleCaes oF proCethares Moy tetamonte

Crpinbon

in ot opinec, T the st o owr slormateon snd soooiding To the
explanations gven 10 us and based on the comideration of the
ropods of the other suditon: mefermed 16 i the Othes Matlon
sy Bk, th Hoddang Compaeny, @y by oiampanes
and #s associste company whech e companany incorporated i
Irifia, anc wheie sch repontang under Sectaon 143 3}s applcalsle.
e, i 2l material respects, sn adeguate mtemal financial controly

CHOICE INTERRATIONAL LBATTTD | ANNUAL BFEPORT 2009
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CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021

=

—a

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROHT AND LOS5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
{Rs. in Lakhs}

ASSETS

Maon Current Assels:

2

March |1 2021

e

Yoar Ended

& i ¥} ]
Wiarch 3 ] _".|.-"|:

{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 TAFZS 12 = e
|:E.-|:| |I'I'|-1?!-'I.l'l1ﬂl'-l1 |:"-".'l|'l'9ﬂ‘r ‘ I?l:l.m 1}'} rﬂl:l Audited Auchibed
() Other Intangibsle Assets 5 LN B34 Total Revenue from Opematiens 16,87435 2, 882.00
anajikal | (] ] 1699 A.36 T
E;’;ﬂ';:ﬂ‘l L‘":EE'_’ LT 1 - L Other Income 32 07.23 539.88
(il Inyestmants & it 1.8 1.558.97 Total Income 17,581 56 1342188
[ikh Loans i .54 .63
Il Expenses
(i) Other Binancal Assets g 468.87 ML s i
() Incamie Tax Assels 9 Az 34173 1?P"’“""'? E’l'“?"*": 3 764843 2B B
(hrﬂE‘lE'lTEd Tar Assals i fo0az 108 I I"I'If.l'l:l‘r'\-l."'\ll.' Bonefits I'HPEII"IN a4 4_.15'3.&":' d?ﬂﬁ.:ﬂ
U Other Mon Current Assets i1 R 357 Finance Costs a5 154575 1.729.74
Current Agsots: |sprociation andd Ametization l-:-:Fu.'rnm A 308,74 345 54
it} Securiires :fld for Trade 12 B72.30 3.060:91 Othar [aponses ay 140391 189370
() Financil Assets Total 15 300 1 :
(i) Trade Receivables 13 7.613.07 9,104 28 ol Ejpe s bt N
(it} Cash and Cash Ecpaivalemts 14 3025 09 371173 M Profit / (lows) bafore excaptional items and @x ik 1) 228155 1820348
(i) Bank Balances other than abse 15 1.79¢.4% 1.3564.98 IV Exceptional imms = .
(v} Loans 16 24 653 94 11.779.83
{v) Othor Financial Assets 17 1702157 9,056 26 ¥ Prisiin/{loss) before s (B ) 428135 182036
(o) Oher Cument Assels 18 153.42 SA0D0 ¥l Tax Expense:
Total Axzets ﬁ_5,553.?? E_I],E_ﬂ_-ﬂ.-ﬂ-ﬂ Crrent Tax 1.002.22 &80 500
LIABILITIES AND EQLITY Earfmer Yoars Tan Expense 12.84 {1R31)
Equivy Deferred T {40 51) 115.06
{=) Equity Share Capital [ 7 B56.83 7 000,43 SIS
{h) Other Eqquity 70 23 444.41 1931984 Total Tax Expense 61055 577.25
26,303, 24 21,320 34 Wil Profit for the year frem Continuing O petions (V-VI) 167100 1.243.11
Liabilities Vi Other Comprehensive Income
MNon Curent Lisbilities I i b PR : »
':a] Finanoal Liabilities |I:|:_lr|'|=_ ER T wnnll pial B ro .-ﬁ.,lﬁq_:q:_ [ {=] jalie] it o ok
(i1 Bowrcrwimgs a | e v LY ARG Ri-measuramaent gamal {losaes ) an delined benalil obligatons a6, 14 1129
(i} Cther Financial Labdities 22 0.15 Fair Wlustson Gaind {Loss) on Investment 14%.50
{b] Prowsions 23 22432 18511
() Defarred Tax [ abiliies 24 15869 187.04 T Fllort oo shywe (38) a9
() Other nosn-currend liabalities 25 24113 21900 Crther 'Cqmprﬂl'qnﬂu-g Income for the yoar net of tax 3538 134,40
Current Lizhilites o
{a) Firnancial Lsabilitwes 1% Total Compeahansive Income for the year (VI VIl (Comprising
(i1 Trade Payakilos 26 Profit and Other Comprahensive income for the year) 1,70738 13721
Tatal outstanding dues of micro enterprises X Earrings Per Equity Share [Face Value INR 10 Per Share): L
ardd small enterprises 214 4.9 h _
leal eutstanding dues of crodittrs othes than Basic {Rs.} 178 4.1
mactes enterprises and small enterprises 103808 TANE. ] Dilubed {Rs.] £ 1 538
(it} Horrosings 27 1215184 13 B5%.06
(i) Gther Financial Liabilities 28 20,187.41 11.107.03 Summary of signilicant Accounting Polcies 12
() Ctbwer Cuoent Liahilities Y 1, 18444 1.558.25 The Motes ralerrod aie an integral part of these consolidated Tnancial statomenis
EEI:;“I?:;T;TH . : 3I;Ilf5ui,:§ EH,;:EEE Thes is the Statement of Prolit and Loss refemod tooin our repot af the even date
Total Liabélities and Equities &5 558,77 50, 280.48
Summary of Sigmeficant Accounding Policies 12 For Dwloltte Hasking & Salls LLP Forand an bahalf of the Board of Dirctors
This nistess pefatred 1o absowe ane an mtogrd ped of the comalicsed linancisl stsiements Chateied Accountarts
This is the Balance Shaet referned 1o in our iepart of the gven date Firmy Regestration Mumibser : 117 366WW- 100018 Sl Sels-
Fat Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Diredors Kamal Pod das Ay Kajriwal
Chartered Accountants ; : .
Farrm Hegistration Number : 11 7366WAY- 100018 S Managing Direcior Direcior
el S G. K. Subrarmaniam [lM: 01518700 DIN: 03051841
Kamal Poddar Ajay Kejnwal Pty
[ 1 Managlng Director Dirgcios 1 B ORI 3 §
G. K. Subramaniam DIN: 61518700 DIN: 03051841 Kaeborstia Nustor 10y ki i
Parbminy Manaj Snahanis Karishma Shah
Membership Mumber -1 09R39 Sl o Chief Financial Crifioer Company Secretary
Mano; Snghanis Karishma Shah . i ey o Lremid
o '|r|.aEr|i-|| Officet I:.mn:‘mrl Cgcretaty :-:a: " Mum.hr:-ll e :-"l_d: o :'-.-lurn.hau_ p :-"l e s M |r11.hr;| -
Place : Munmbasi Place ; Mumbai Ploce hlirl‘lrhh:n e ¢ June 3, 20 Sty June 3, A0 date  Juna £, 00
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

{R=. in Lakha)
For wiez 118 1z1® ; Brcle {Rs. m Lakhs)

March

Hartoulars Ferr year ended Far year ended

A, Cash Flow from Operating Activitles N ane March 31

z:;:::::inre s 20155 152035 L. L'.ash Floaw from Financing Activities

Dppreciation and smartisatin B 74 45 4 Securitias Premaem on Fuu.nty E‘;h‘l“'.‘i 4,367 .36 o

<! ] . Prosconds frarm Share Applicition Moy {1097 &%) 25350

Finance cost 1,345.75 112%.75 Repaymant al Curoent and MNan Currant Bed powinegs LAkn (2, H02.81)

Fmifargst Inc:.urnn- {618.53) (A28 = W {1.545.75) (1779.76)

i:'x:::ﬁ'?j; — T’:ﬁ ',:J;::: Nat Cash from/ [used In} Financing Activities (C) 2,263.26 (1.508.07)

A R P 2.1 i1.54) Mt cosh increased decrease) [n cash and cadh squivelants [A+B+C] AToa.14) 2,371.84°
} - Cash and cash eouivalents at the beginmng of the year 317317 13461.37

Ei::'::::i‘;“ﬂ_::;:‘:‘::fimh B Bk it Ciinl Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yeal _ 3,025,049 373383

Bl bt o 2317 11477 Met cash {deceasel/ Incease n cash and cash equivalent {708.14} 2,371.84

[Gain) Loss on sale of Investment (6252 134,51 Mote:

Opemting prolit before working caphal changes 3,73757 3,587.16 Ther notes relured (o sboye aro an inegeal pant of the financial statomonts

Meorvamients in assets and labilties - This s the Cash Flow Statement refersed to inour report of thie even date,

TR Doniicin el astace Lo i For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For 2nd on behalf of the Board of Directors

Decrease) (Increase) i Tredo rocowables 140337 {2, 278.11) e L

Imeraane / {ecrease) i Trade Payablos &L5 44 1198.51) Firm Registration Number - 117366W/W-100018

Incraaue § | Decroase) i Cibwer Mon Current Fenaencial Liabilites. 015 {30,000

Increase / {Decrease ) i Cther Non-Current. Liabilities 221 [0,45) Sel/- 5. S

Increase im Ciher Cunent Finanoial Lishilities QOR7AR 1B 4% G, K, Submmaniam Kamal Poddar Ay Kajriwal

(Docreaso) Ancrazse in Other Corrent Lizhifities [373.85) 1,109.43 Partr Managing Director DHrector

{lncrease) /Decrease i Other Mon Cument Financial Assets (74,195 4754 Membership Number ;109037 DIt 01518700 DNN: 0205180

Discregsa in Other BMon Correnl Axsols 1.3 55 Sl Bel/-

(g pereie) J Checrease i Othed Cunent Financial Assots (7,970,628 34070 9% Manaf Singhania Karshma 5hah

Decrease inCiher Current Assets B&ST T8b 24 Chief Financial Cifios Company Secrobsry

Mvcrnage: Moo e Frasicions i b Piace : Mumbai Ptace: Mumbai Mlacs | Mumbai

Incraass in Curriont Provisions ki it Date : Juna 25, 2021 Drate | June 25, 2021 Date : hune 25, 2021

{Incresse) i Financial assets - loans (12 934.81) [3,343.52)

Cash Generated From Operations (4,041.93} 3.013.95

b L i 14 24.04) LE R

Nat cash flow (unad in ) from opemting activities (A) {4,474.95) 2,621.29

B, Cash Flew rom Investing Activites

Purchies or constrection of Faed Assets (inclotding capital

witth-in-progress and capaal advances) {125.3%) {BE.18)

Broweods from Sale ol Rsed Assers 1008 1,001,594

Purchaee of Intangible Asusty (.63 1155,74)

Sale of lvwostmen 1,362.39 A0 0

Mowvement in Other Bank Balantce {427.51) 1303.28)

Bowament i | oans &

[ mterest Received H18.53 AT 30

Miet Cash flow from Investing Activities [B) 1.503.55 1.2508.64
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Consglidatul Firkneisl Satomanin

MOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE ¥EAR ENCFED MARCH 31,2021

1. Conparate iefonmation

Chaonen fades national Limited (hesomatior roformed to as “tha Haolding
Company”) 5 & publc imited compamy domiciled in leda and
inconporatod undar th provisions of the Companies Act 1356, The
redistered alfice of the Company & ecabis] 68 Shroo Shskeimbhan
Corporate Park, 156-158 Chakravorty Ashok Society, LB, Magar,
AncheilEyMuenbas 4000592, Mahaashira, India

The Haolding Comparny's shares: are listed an the Bombay Stock
Eschange {BSEL

The Holding Company along with s subsidianies (oollactiely
raferred 1o a5 “the Group®) and an msocate is an mbegrated and
diversified fingnoial services group. They provides senaces like
Braking & Destribution, Inwostment Banking, Financal sooices to
Busimess - Advieory, Regulatory Complances o Gowermmant
siithowitios & other corporate entitios, Retall Loan distribution,
Putual Fund detebuteon, technscal senices and other ancillary
SEIVICES

2, Signflicant Accounting Poffciey

This note provides a list of the signilicant sccounting polices
adopted in the preparation of these comsolidsted financial
stptomends. These accownfing policios have beon consmiontly
applied b all the years prosentod by thi Grougy unless othorwso
stated,

A, Beslaol prepamtion
i. Stementofcomplisnce

The consglidsted feancial statements of the Group have been
preparad in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind
A5 mitified wnder Section 133 of the Companias A, 2013 [ “the
Aty rmad with Companies {Indian Accounting Slandardsd Bules,
2015 as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of
the et

il. Funtionaland presspiationcurmnt

The Givasp's presentation and funchonal cumendy i Indian Rupees,
Al Tigures appaearing in the consold ated lnancizl statempnts dne in
Inchian rupees i lakh iounded off o iwo decmal places as
prermitied by Schadsile | tothe Act. Per share data are presented in
Indian Rupea o teo decimal places:;

iii. Besisof measureman

The conacfidated firamtial statements have been propared on
histrnical cost bass except for certain financial assets and kabiltes
are mpasured o fair valun as explained in the accounting palicy,
Hestorienl cost s genemlly bosed on the faif value of the
cansideration geven in exchange for goods and servces: Furthes
asspts and fabalities pre classified as pe the narmal openming cycle
{determined 5= 12 months),

v, Prepdmtion of Consolidated financial sistemonts

Thi Holding Company has surrendered s NEFC liconse thomion
as paar the format presciibied undor Division 1ol Schocusbe 0 o the
Companies Act, 2013, the holding company presents the Balance
shiast, the dtatement of Proft and Loss s the Statement aof
Changes in Equity.

v. Prindple of Comolidation and equity acoounting
Subsidiaries-

The comsalidated financial statements have comprisad financis
stafenants of thi Compavy and s subsidiaries, subsidanes ae ab

CHOKCE INTERMATION AL LINITED | ANRLAL REFORT 2021

entities (inclsding stnyctured entites) over which the Group has
control The Gioup comtrols aneotity when the Growp is exposod To,
i hiaz rghis s, varizble returns fiomts imsabwement with the entity
anil has the ability toaffect thase etisms throwugh its power o direct
thae pdlevant sctivilied of the oofity, Sobaidiaries are fully
consofidated from the date on which controd is trensfemed to the
Cirowpy, Thosy are docansodidated from tha dato that controd ceases

Thie scquisition methed o accounting is used to account Jor
bassiness combinabions by the Group

Thie Group combings the finsnciad statemonis of the Holding
Company snd s subaidianes bna by ine adding tegethay Bk ifoms
of sssets, Rabifities, equily, income and expenses, Intercompany
tramsactions, balences and urwealized gqaing on fransactions within
the Group are eliminated. Unrealized losses are-ako eliminated
unbess the transaction provides ovidence of an impaimeent of the
transfened asset Accounting policies of subaidianes have boeen
changed whee necessary o ensure consistency with the polices
adopied by the Group

Mon-controdling interests inthe results and equity of subsidiarssane
shon separately in the consokdated statement of profit or loss,
consolicdated datement ol changes i equity andd balance sheet
respectively. Stotement of Profit and Loss inclyding Other
Commprohamsye ncome (OO i stributablo 1o the squaty bolders ol
the Holdimg Company-and to the non-contioling intersst bases the
risspective awhership intorest s such balance is attribauted ewen il
this tegaettsin comtrolbing indiredr i haviog a deficil balanco.

Assoclaton -

fssochates w8l entitfes ower which the Growp has signifscant
influgnce but not condrol or joirt contml. This & generlly the case
where the Growp halds between 205 and 50% of the woting rights.
Inwestments in Asseciates are accounted for wsing the  squily
method of accounting (soe (6] bobow), aler indially  being
recogmized ot cost

Eqyuity M ethod -

Lipcdar the squity method of agcounting, the investments are initizlly
recndpded at cost and elueated thereatter ta iecognae the Group's
share af the post-acqudsition profits o fosses of the investesin profit
o less, and the Group'sshane of other comprohensive i ncome of the
Inwvestes in other comprehensive income, Dhvidends recetved o0

recaivable from associales and joint ventures are 1ecagnized as &
reduction inthe carmying amount of the inestment

When the Group's shae of losses in an eguity-actounted
inviretment squali of sxcoeds itk inteiest in thieentity, including any
ather wnsecwied long-term recemvables, . the Group doss ool
racognize further losses, unfess it has mcurred obligations or made
prarri s oo bt of the ather entity,

Undealized gams on transactions between the Group and it
asstciatas and jounl venlures are sliminated 1o the edent of ths
Growgp's inlerest i thour eolities Unrealized  losaes Gre albio
eliminated unless the tramsaction provides evidence of an
irnpairrnent of the sssel transfered. Accounting palicies of egquaty
sccounted wwestees have been changed where mecessay o
nnsuie conssbisncy with the policies adopted by the Group

Changes inownershipintemests

The Grromip trizats iransactions with non-controlling interests that des
not result in a loss of contel @5 transactions with eouiy owners of
the Group. A changs in owmsership intarest resulls in an adjustment
between the camang amoonts of the controlbng and non-
controfing interests o seflect thasr welhitve intereits o the

subsidiany. Ay diffesence botwonn the armosnt of hi adjustment o
non-conmling interests and any consderation pad o eoejved is
recngnigod within eguity

Whin the Group ceasos (o consolidane or souity aceoant fop an
invesiment because of a loss of control, jpant controd or ssgnafkcant
influsnce, any rotzined interest in the entity is ro-messured to its i
value with the change i campng somownt recogmzed in profit o
Iz, This fair sahee bocomes thi itial camgng -ambunt for the
purpses of subsequently accounting los the retained intorest as.an
Fssocisie, joant wintere or financial asset. in addition, any amouents
pevicusly recognized in other comprahemive incoomoin respect of
that entity are accounted for &5 i the Growp had directly disposed of
the melsted assots o labilifios. This may mean that amounts
previcusly recognided i other comprebensive income B
reclassidied to profitorboss,

If ther cwmership imterest in an associste s redoced bl point controld
o Siggriaficint floenc: is retidEned, onky a propormicnse shaie of the
amounts provicwsly recogiinsd m other comprehensive ncome am
roclessifiesd to profit o fesswhere appropriste,

wl, Falrvalue measummant

[Famr vl b= thi prece that woubd b received an saleal an asset o
pard 1o transker & ability in an orderly transaction between markst
paicipants # the messsrement dae i the pancipal or, o its
absence, the most advantageous markst 1o whech the Group has
atcess ot that date,

This bt patematc of the le vadue of o fivaneidl setiament on el
recognition & normally the tansaction price. If the Group
chiterrrmings that the fair vistue onindisl eeogailicn diffors from e
transaction price and the Bar valua is evidencad naither by a quoted
prrica in an actree matked for anodentical assel o liability noe based
o @ waluation techoigue that uses onky data iom obsevabie
markets, then the financial istrument s initially messured at falg
walug, adjusted to defer the dillemnce between the fair vileo on
inisal recognitian andd the ransacton piice. Subseguently thal
dhifforance s recopnased in Staement of Proft and Lost on an
spproprate buss over the (e of the nstrament but no later thns
when the valuation = wholly supported by ohservable market data
oo thetransaction s chased ool

Al acgets and liabilities barwivich fair value ie measuned or discéozed
in the consclidatiod finano statoments are categarisod within the
Fair vislue hararchy, descrnibied 25 follows, based om the lowest level
impuat that is significant to the fairvalue measurement as 3 whole:

o Lewel 1 - Vahsatmn using uented marked price in sclive markets:
Thee fair walwe fof financa instraments raded in actee markets at
e risporting diate b5 based on thesr quoted markel price, withoit
any deduction fod ansaction cosls, & markel 5 regarded
active, if trapsections for the asset or habdity take place with
sufficiont frequenoy and volume to provide pricmg information
of-an ongieng bask

& Lewiel 2 - Wiluateon usdhg obsamnabis mpats: I there s noguoted
poice inan active market, then the Company ases valustion
teschnbgues thist masimise the use af rabevant obsersable inputs
dnd minimise the use of unobservabile inputs. The chosen
wiluation eechnigue ncorpontes most of the fBctors that market
participanis wiould take sl Aocount inprecing atansactian,

o Lenswrl 3 - Vakiation with significant unobsenaldo inputs; The
visluation technues so used only whaen tie valoe cannot be
distermened by wsing observabla inputs, The Company regularky
rovipwi signilicant unobsorvable nputs and valuation

Comsnhiaed Financial Stmeemanm é‘,j%

adjustmonts, Lowed 3 assets ar lypically vary lliguicd, and laa
values can only becaloulstsd wsang estimates.

The Group uses valustion technigues that are appropriate in the
eurcurnalinces and forwhich sufliciont dats are availabbé o misasag
faim walue, masimising the use of elewnt observable inputs and
miniemiseng tha use of unobservable mputs,

wi. Usee judgmentand Eatimates

The preparation of the consolicdated Gnanceal Statements fsqunes
thie management t ke judgmeants, estimales anrsd Fsumptions m
tho application of accounting policies that affects the ropartbed
amaunt of agsets, habwlities and the sccompanying disclosunes
along with contingent labilities as at the date of consolidated
fingnceal statements and feeenue & sgpenses Tor the seporting
periced. Although these estimates ane based on the mandgement’s
st knowledge of current evens and actions, uncemainky aboul
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcormes differsm
Frearm thee estimates, Difference batweon actual resufls and estimates
are secognsed in the year in which the resolts are known of
mialarialine Lo, prospeciely,

Estimates and judgemants ara continually evalualod and sie based

of higtorical experiencs and other facioes, including expectations of

future events that are believed to be ressonzble under the

circomstaneces. The key aress ineclving estimation uncetasnty,

higher degree ol judgement or complecity, o areas where

gesmpticns ano significant 1o the consofidatod financial statements

imeludie:

1] Impaimmentof inancial assets

il Estimation of {uir value measarement of financial assets and
Tisblitios.

e} EHecleo mlest rale

iwh  Husipess model assessmiend

vl Proviszons and Contingencies

wip Usebul Hibe aivd expoctod residual value of assots

wil) T psitican for corrent toe - and ecogaetion of deferred L
assots/lihiblies

viti) Mgasurement of Defined Bonefit Olligations and  actuarkal
ASSUMpLions

in} Classificationotlesseand refated discount rate

Fueit by s antity i consaliciatd s o subsidiarg i the Company i

contiod dwer the said entity based on the mansgement evaluation of

inyestmods and related sgroements)’ deeds and determine fhat thae

Grrisup has controd taer the said ontity an termis of B AS-110 on

Consobkdated Financial Statements. Contral shall include theright to

appcent majodity ol the directons of (o contml the management o

policy decisions essrcisable by 3 person of persons actng

inicdiwitdually or in coneer, directly o indvectly, including by viflee of

thawr sharsholding or management rights of shamwhalders

BEETENS Orvoling agresments or i any other manner.

B. Surmmary of significent sccounting policies

1. Cibrrant wrsus non-gurrent clessiflo Son

The Group prosonts assets and Eabilifiein the balance shoot based
o EueEnt S conment classifheation,

Anasaed s teatidd as curmnt when it i

®  Expectod fo-bee roafized ar ntended to be sold o consamasd in
ninfimial pser g Sy,

= Haldgrimardy i the purpess of iading

e Expoctod o bo ssifiped within twebio months aftoer tha
reporting date, of

CHOICE INTERNRSTHIMNAL LEBTTED | AMMLUAL REPORT 2031
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= Cash or cash eguivalent unless restricted from being
e hancped oo usod to setth a labadity for o ot twolve manths afta
the reporting perosd

Al other assets are classihind 28 non-current.

Adiabality is currant whon!

= |tisoxpected o b soltled in normal oporatog cycle

& It is dhue 1 bo settled withn tweshve manths atter the reporting
perod, or

+  There is no wncanditional right to deber the setthernent of thi
Rability for at least taebee months afed the reporiing pedind

Al ertheisr Rabilitios are classified &8 non-cuirent,

Drrborrecd taw assats and Hab#ities doe chassified as ton-ouwronl assols
and liabilitie.
Based on the nature of procucts and seraces otfered by the Groug,

Gperating cycle determined is 1.2 months for the purposs of oerrent
and non-curment classifeateon of sssets and abilines.

The oparating cycle s the ime between the acquisition of assets for
procissing and thoi roslisation in cish and cash equinalonts,

2. Revenue necognition

Bosienug momeasured of the Tair value of the considerataon recened
of receivable, Revenue & meduced Tor estemated customer returms,
rebiatos and other similar ablowances.

Salaof services

Thoa Cartme iecognizes revenme on acerual basis when the significant
terms ol the amangement ane enforceabile, services haws been
loliverad and the collectability s reasonabily assue. The method
aif vecpnidiog e svenues and costs depiencds on the aature of tha
seevices rendersd, Revenue s wecognaed when noo significant
wisC et ity ek a6 U ik realization or callection.

Interestincome

Interesl sncome (mom fnancial assels s recognized when it is
probabde that economic benefits will low 1o the Group and tho
amouit of moome can be messured diably, Interest income s
acciuad on a time basis, by mlerence 1o the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest mte appicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated fulure cash receipts theough the
expecied life of the fimancial assots (o that assel's netl canying
Aot e initial e mlon.

Income from sale of investmant

Gains or losses on the sale of investments are mecogmised in
Statermaent of prall and loss on ade dato base a5 the differgmen
between fair value ol the consideration recensad and carrving
armosnd of the inwestimont seCurities.

Dividend Income

Dividend  income lrom investiments is  recognised  when the
shareholder's right to receive payment has been  established
[parowrdesd that it 4 probable that the econoamic benafits will llow 10
the Graup and the amownt of income can be measvred reliably)

Brokerage Income

Biakerage Woand i redaleon 1o stock broking acleity & recognised
exf trache clate-basiy,
¥ Popedy,Fantand Equipmeant

Land and bBuildengs held for use in the prodocion or supply of
qoods of services, o for sdminestrative purposes, are stated in the
balance sheol ot cost bess accumulated depreciation and

CHOKCE INTERMATION AL LINITED | ANRLAL REFORT 2021

pccumulied impairment losses, Frashald land &5 notdepreciated.

Al iterns of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at
oot Such coat includes the cost of replaced part of the property,
plant ard equipment and Borowing costs that are directly
atributable 1o the acquisition, construction of production of a
wrabilying piopety, plant and equspment. The cost of an item of
praperty, plant snd equiprment & eoogniced & an asset il and only
if, s pobable that future economac benslits associated wath the
it i B e 1o the growp and the cost of the item can be measared
roliably,

Propertes in the course of cormatrection for production, supply o
sdminestrative purposes are carried 3t cost, less any recognized
impirmeent loss. Cost inchades probessional fees and, for quakibyng
assets, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy, Such propentess ane classified (o the appropsise
categones of propeity, plant ond equipment whan compluted snd
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the sama
basis as other propey Saets, commences whon the ssets o
ready for their imended use.

Subseguont o recognition, property, plant and  equiprmesn
fomcludisg frowhald land) sie measoisd af cost less accurmubated
deprecistion and aocumulated impasrrment lnsses. Whan skgnaficant
paarts o proponty, plant ancl ogeripment aro recguinod to ko roplacod
inirtervals; the gi tufr recog nizes soch pans asindvedual Faseis with
spocific wselul Ives and deprocstion mspectvely, Likowiso, when a
mapr mepociion & porioomad, it Gost s necognined &y the carrpang
amaunt af the plant and @guipment as a replacement cost anly if the
recognibion crifera aeo satnfed, Al othes epair and msnienancs
costs are recogruied inthe Stalement of Proditand Loss asincurred.

Masats beld wnder finance lpases am depreciated  over thisie
pxpeched uielal Fves on tho same basis a5 owhed aesols, Hosnmeer,
when there s no reasonable certainty that ownoship will be
abtanod by tho ond of the lease toom, assets an depreciated owe
the shomerol the fease term anduseful lves.

Cresprieciation is recognised so a5 to write off the cost of assets fess
thiir resichusl wvalses over the usedul lves a3 prescribed in Schodule ||
of to the Companies Act, 2013, using the strasghd. e medhod
1“SLM"). Residual value is considered nil case of Computers, Sener
snd netwark and 5% is considered in case of other assets,

Brdledinigs &l Years
Computers and Pranters,

inclucling Computor Poriplerals T¥ears
CHlbce Fopsrpemianis 5 Yirars
Furniture & Fixtures 10 Years
Matos VehiclesiMetor Car) B¥ears
Ncitow Vhiclo(Motor Cypcle) 10 ias
Sobar Plant 5 Years
Clectic Installation 10Years
Seneer & Metwork L¥ears
Water Purripes and Barowel| 5 Yoars

The carrying values of propeny, plant and soepment ang reviowed
leai irrypaimimind when cvems o changes n circupinsianoes dwdaesie
that the camying vakee may not be mooverable,

The el vabees, wsolul beoand dopasciation methed ao
reviewed st exch financial year-end o ensire that tha amount,
method and penad of deprociston ame consistont with proviows

grstirnates and thi axpeciod patterm: ol corswmplion of Ui sl
econcamec benefits embodied in the items of propery, plant and
i,

An itpm af property, plant and equipmeant @ demcsgrised upod
chspereae] o whian ni future coonomic benefis are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Ay gain or loss-arsing on
dpeosil of retirementof an itemood propedty, plant and equapinent s
determined as the difference betwesn sale proceeds and the
carrying amownd of the st and i recognised in profil o loss.

A, Invest ot Propetioe

Ievestment properties are propertes that is held for long-tem
rontals yiekds o for cagitasl appreciation (incloding property wide
constructn for such purposes) or both, and thist is notoocupesd by
the Group, is classilied 35 mwestment poperty. Investmenl
properties ane mesured intisily o cost, incheding tnnsaction costs,
Subseguent tonilial iecogntan, inestment properties are statod
il cost e accurmulated impaimment bass, i any, Thowgh the Group
MmeEsres ivestment property wsing oost based measurement, the
Fair valug of investment propey s deciosed inthe notes, Fairvakias
are determined based on an annwal evaleation pedormed by an
scoreditad external independent valser, Investmaent propenses ame
dherecognimed althay whin they b b disposod ol o wihsen they
arg permanently withdrawn from use and no futere economic
bsnefit is epected Tram ther dhsposal, The: difference Bebwnedn the
net disposal proceeds avd the carming amount of the asset @
racognised inpralitor lowsin the peiod ol demcagnition

5. lntangible Assats

leangilse ssset including mangibilo pssets under development sre
stated at cost, net of scoumaslated amostisation snd accumitated
impairmaent losses, o any, Intangible assats soguired sepaaloly am
rmeasarod oninmial recogniton at cost, The amomgation pecod and
theamorteation method ane reviewsd 31 the and of each financal
year, This usizhul lives of intangible assets am asspssod as sithet finite
or indefinite. Intangebbe axsets with finitohves e emortised over the
wisaful economic bl and assessed for impairment whanever there s
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amotisstian methad focan intangible
g et it aeseful libe s reviwmed of least al the snd of sach
reporing perod, Changes i the expected useful Bfe or the
mwpoctad pattorn of consumplion of fulurg economie benofits
ermboded m the azset are considersd 1o modify the amortEation
pisticed or mothod, as appropriato, and amo trosted as changes n
stoounfing estimates, The amafisabion éepaense on inksngibie
asseds with infinite lives s recognised in the statement of profit and
I wevborss such exppomciture Yorms par al crroying walue ol ancothe
ansel

&. Segment Reporiing

The Gioup dperatés operations predominately elates 10 fo
buginess seqgment i@ Broking & Distnbulion senices, Advisory
sorvices, NBFC sepvces and IT Services Business segmonts have
bspent donitificnd a5 goparate roportsble sogrments s paer ed. A5 108,

7. Foreign Carrenciss

The groog's cansobd ated francial Stlements ane presested in NS
roundad off i lakhe ) whichisalsothe group’s functional curmency,
Transaction and balancas

fransactions in fomign cumgnciss aro initially tecordoed by (he
Cirgs wy thair functinal cumency spod odes af the date the
tramsaction frst qualifies for recognition.

Monsstary assets sod labilities denominated in foreign oumencies
are ransiated at the functronal currency spot rates of exchange at

Comsnhiaed Financial Stmeemanm ﬂ

3

Fhe repcating period

Exchargpe differences ansing onthe setiement of manetary ibems o
o Translating monetary dems are recognized 0 the stafemast of
proifil o |oss meoepl.

s pxichandge differences on oroan cuiency Bomroasenas relating
b0 assets under constrgction for fubure productive: use, which are
inclodod m the coet of those a0 whien they ane regarded as an
adpstment to snlerest costsan those forign carrency bonowings:

= eachange diflercnces on transschions ontered into in orded (o
hisddne catrtain foreigrcurrency tisky

* exchange differences on monetary Werms recevabbe from o
payable 1o 3 foreign operstion for whsch setfement s neithes
plasniad nor fikely 10 oceur (thenefone forming part of the e
investment in foreign operation), which are recognised ind:ally n
other compraheninas mooamie and rocliled from edquity to profit
of loss on repaymant of the monetary iems,

Mon-rmonetary ftems that are measured intermsof hestoricad cost i
a Torgiggn currency atg ansiaiod using tho cxdthancgs 1ates as at tha
dates of the inihal ansactons. Non-monetaty items measared a1
Fair walun in 3 boresgn currency ato tramslied using tho exchanges
rivbes 1 The e ites wilven thio falr value was dotermined. Thee guin e loss
arising on transistion of pon-monefary iems measured & fzirvalue
is treated m fine with the recognition of the gain o loes an the
change in fair salue of the tem (e, rznslaton diferences on items
wilhfasn |air valwo gain or loss is recognased in OC)or profit or lods are
sleo recogrised in OC or profit ol lgss reapectively],

H. Tawation

Ciarreit o

income tax expense s recognged in nat profi in the statement of
it ard koss decopt tothe extent that i€ relates to doos moognized
directly in other comprehensee moome or equity, nwhich case s
rocogined in athor comprobensive income of oguity s pectively.
Critreit i oames b i mecooeaesd 511 ke amownt expeded 1o bo poid
to or recovered from the tex authorities, using the tax rates and tax
brws that have been enacted o substantvely enacied by the
batance sheet date. The Group offsets, on & year to year basis, the
cutiient b assets and Gabilibes, whem il has legally enforceable
rigghit to o 50 e whone B intends to settle sech acsets and habilitees
ona et hass

[ P prmed D

Dratorred taw s mocognizod on diforences botweon the carmeing
amounts of assets and Babilives in the copsobdated financel
statemonts and the comssponding tax bases used in the
computabion of tazable prodit and are aceconted (or uding the
balance sheat kability method. Deferred tax liabdities are generally
recogiieed ki Wl taxble lemposary ditfevnces and defermed Gin
asiels are generally recognized for all deductible temporary
differonces to th extent that it probalile that tialbe pofits will be
avoilabie againat which those deductible fempamary didferences con
be wtilized. Such assets and labilites are not. recognired of the
temporky diference ansed from goodvall oF from the initel
recogmition {other than in a business combination) of other assets
and Rabildies in a transaction that aflects neithes the taxceble profid
e thi accossmting poolit,

Creferred tax mlzting to items recognised outside the profit and loss
in rn:ngmuli ikl plulltqnd loss (et her in ather carmprehensive
Come of in edguityl

The carrying. amouwnt of deformd tax assets s raveewed 31 aach

balanee sheet date and reducod to the autant that @@ no longes
probaible that sufficeent taxebie profitswill be availabe toallpw all o
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panof the assetio be recoverad.

Driferred tax assots and lisbaitios a0 offeet whon thens & & kegally
uridweaable fight to sel ol curme tix sxsels Mgainat cutnes Lux
liabilities and when they relate 1o incomi taxes lewead by the same
taxadion suthority and the Group infends 1o setthe ks cumes lax
assets and lisbilities ona net bass.

. Impaimient of Non-Finandal Assals

At the erd of sach repoitng perod, the Grosup revews the carrying
amounts of #5 tangible and intangible sssea ig determime whathed
there is any indwation that those assets have suffered animpairment
levss. W any such mdicstion exists, the eonerEble amounl ol the
asset s estimatad n order to determine the extent of impairment
lerss {ifF anyl When i s not possable o estimate the ecovorabds
arsount of an ndivichisd ssset, the Group estirmabes e recovoralde
amount of the cash-generating umt to which the asset bebongs.
When a neasonabie and consistont base al allocation can b
identified, corporate assets are ako allocated to individual cash-
generating unis, of otherwise they are allocatod 1o the smallest
group of cosh-generoling units for which a mesonable and
cansistent allacation basis can be identified

Intangible assets with indefinite wsaful lves and elangiblo assots
not wiet awimlabde for use are tested Tor ifnpoarrment a1 leosst annuably,
and whenever thora is an indcaton that the ssoet may be mpeired,

Rercomertbbo amount w the heghor of Tair valus less coats of disposal
and ke in wse. in pssessindg valoss i s, the estimated fule cash
Fows ase discounted totheir present value using & pre-tax discount
rabe Thiad seflocts curient markel aessments of the Time vilue of
money and Lthe reks specific to the asset for which The estimates ol
ftisre eash foves havi not been sclpeated,

If the recoverable amount of an ssset (o cash-generating wnit) o
estimated to be kess theanits carrying amaunt, the carrying amount of
the st {or cash gonerating wnil] i roduced 1o s iecovorakdo
amountAnmmparment koss s recodnared in the prafit o loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the cammying
amnunt of the assot { ar a cab-goenerating unit] is incraased to the
revsed estimnte of ils recoverable amewsnl, but so the theinceased
carying amoun does nid excesd The carrying smount that sould
byt besen determined had no imgraisment e been necognised Tod
the a5=et [ or cash-gonerating wit) m poor years, A reversal of an
impairrnent loes is recog need immed atoly in pooli o loas,

10, Financia | Instrusments

A financial instrument & any contmet that ghees ise toa linapcisl
asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrement of
aniies Bntity.

Eingncial Assets
al  Initial recog milon and measuremen

Al linancial assets are recogndsed mitially at fie vsbue phes, in the
caser of financial assets not reconded: at fair value throwgh profit o
lexss, traminctiony conts that aro attributabibe to the scouigition of the
financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
dholiviry of asdets within a tinm frame estabilishod by rogulation o
cansenton i e market place {regular way irades) are recognised
o by tracke date, e, the dane that the Group commits i purchase
oo soff thie asset.

b} Subsecuient mansursmant
Equity Instruments

Afl equlty investments in scope of Ind AS 109 sre measured at fair
value, Equaty instrurmonts whech arg hold fos rading ane elsiliod o

21 FYTPL For 2l other equity estraments, the Grougs may make &y
irrevocabibe ection to persen subseoguent changes in the fajr value
in OCL The Group makes such eledction on on instrurnent-by
instnement basis. The dissilication s mads on inital recognition
wnd s revecakde,

Dividends from such investments are recogniged in profit o loss as
ethent income, Thes (8 norecyeling of the amaants from Q0 e Prafil
el Lass, evon oo sale ol wvestment. Moweyes, the Groap may
transfes the cumulative gain orfoss within aguity.

Eqquity imstrumands subsequently measured gl fair valus throogh
profit or hoss are measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in e statoment of profit and koss,

c) De-recognition

A financial asset {or, whore agplicable, o pa af a financisl st oo
paurt el @ prowgy of semidas financial assots) s pramardy derccogmisod
e memaved from the group’s batance shestlwhen:

Thia rigghets o recuied cash Bows liom therasset have aupised, ar

Thie Geoup has ansterred its rights fo receive cash flows Fom e
asset or has assumed an obligation 1o pay the received cash fiows in
hall witheut materiil doliy ta a third paty under 3 ‘poss-theowgh'
oo mant, and either (o) the Group has trapstened sebstantially
2l the risks snd rewards of the asset, or (b} the Group has neither
transtorred nor retained substardiaby all the ks smvd rowsieds of the
asset, bart has transtenred control of the asss

Whion the Group has tanelemed its rights to receive cash flows from
ar asset ar has entered o 8 passtbvough anangerment, @
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership, When it has neither transfered nor retdined
subsstantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor ransferred
contral ol the asiet, the group continued o ecognite the
transferred pesel to the extopt ol the group's conlinang
invakverment. in that case, the grup alse reoognises an assocated
hability. The transfemed  asset and the sssociated labality e
measred on @ basis that reflects the nghits and obligatons thal the
griup has retainsd,

Cesnlinuigg iveabezmient Thal ks thie form ol 5 guaranbeo ower thi
translerred asset s measured at the lower of the criginal carrying
smmcaund of the assal and T masirmum amount of consiceration thal
the group could be required to repay.

dl Impairmant of inencial assets

The Group recognses impalrment koss apphing the ecpected
cristlit loms (ECL) moded on the finandial saels mossaned ot
amortised cost, debd mstruments @t FYTOCH, kease tecenables,
trad rerconvabiles, other contractusl nght o roceivo cashoor ofho
Enancial asetand fnancial guarantee not designoted as at FVTPL

Expectad cradil losses dethe weighled average of credit losses
wiith ther nespesctive riskes of diefall cecurring as theweights,

Fhis Growap rrispsaimes tha boss allcasinees foe a fenancial instroment s
an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit
risk an that hsascial instoumed has increased signilicantly sinos
ingial recognition. i the credit sk ona financial instrument has oot
ing s significantly sinc initial recogmition, e Gioup measaes
thi bevss albeweanda fod that inancial instromend gt an am it ocjusl e
12 manths expacted credit kosses,

For trade mooeesblos or any contractual right to receive cash or
cithes financial assets that result from transactions that are withan the
scope ol bed AS 115, the Group #hways maasures The loss allowanos
af-mn ol equal o Boteme expoectiod credit Ioages.

159 |—
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Further, for the purpose of measuring Hetime sapected crsdit [oss
allowance for trade recewables, the Group applios ‘simplified
approach’ permitted By Ind AS 109 Feascal Instruments. Thas
expacied credit loss allowance & computed based on & prosision
oty whiach takes into accownt hastaricad credit boss expenisnce and
adpusted for forward-looking mformation,

Far lesi givien maasurdd @ arnctised cont or PYTOC), saept I
investmagnis i oty msttuments, Group follows o Thaee-siage’
miodel for mpairment based on changes in credit quality since
il rocogmition,

Stage 1 [Performing Assets)- ncludes finoncial peets that haee not
had 2 significant ancrease n credd risk since witial mcognition o that
hinve [ crocdit risk at the reporing date, For these atspis, 12-month
FCL s recognised and imerest incomi i calculoted on the gioss
carrying amount of the assets (that |5, without deduciion for credil
allewance), 12 -month ECL aee the portion of ECL that resuits fram
detaull svants on & imancial metrament that are possibie within 12
inoitha aftor the seporting date, if the ciedat rakhas not significantly
increased sinoe indklrecogniticon.

Stage 2 [ Undarpedorming Assets with significant increa se in credit
risk since initlal recogaition) — inchudes fmancial instrurnents that
hiane had @ sageafecanit inciease i credit ik sinoe mitial [ecogriticn
{unilass thary has low credit nisk 21 the rapormg date) bart that dao ot
have alyective svidonon of impairmont, For these decet, lifetmoe
FCL are recognesed, but interest incoame (s coloulated on the gross
carmying amount of the assets, Lilatima ECL are the eapected credil
lozses that result from all possible default everts ower the expected
lifi cof thie arstrarnent

Stage 3 (Mon-performing or Credit-impaired assets] - includes
financial assets thal haee objoctve eviddence of impament al the
roporting date, For these assets; [Wetime ECL is recognsed and
el ncome o rpcogneesd on Mot expasors (that & Gross
cartying amount less PFronsion for Expected credit lesses)

Eimencial Lisksilities
a)  Initial recogmtion and meagudeme n

AH fancial habilites are recogrised intully 2t Gair eabae wond, o the
cage of loams and Borrowings and payablos, not of directly
attrebutable ranssction costs.

b Subsecguent maosurtmant

The measurement of financial Rabilties depends on ther
clgafication asdescribed boiow:

Financial kabilities at fair value throwgh profitor loss

Financial labilties 8t fir value throogh profit or foss inciude
financial liabifites held for trading and Francial liabilities
designated upon initial recognon & ot i valus thioegh profis o
o, Financial labilties aro classified a5 held for treding if they anm
incured for the purpote of repaeichaging in the near temn, Ths
categary a0 includes dervative financal instrumanis entaned (o
by the group that are not diesignated as hedging instruments i
hedge relstionships gs defaed by Ind-AS 109 Sepaereted
ambedided derivalives are akso classilied as hald fos racding unless
they ane designeted as effective hedging instruments,

Ciaing or iosses on liabilities held for rading are recognised in the
prreilit e lorss,

Finarcial lkabilities diesignatid upon indisd recognificn ol e vales
throwgh profid or boss are designoted at the nitial date of
recognition, and only  the ceterta in Ind AS 109 am satisfied, For
lrabif@ties designated as FVTPL, tair value gains/ losses attribytzble
to changes in own credit risk-s moogaleed i OCL These gaing loss

CowsomiLatee] Fanamiial Shamaensnts %

ate not subsequerntly transferred 1o PEL. However, the Growp may
trasher the cumulative gain or koss within aquity, Al other changes
in fair wolue of such linbsdity pre recoqnised in the statement of profd
of kass, The Group his not designated any financizl liability as 5t @i
waalue throusg b gt and dnss,

Financial lizbilities are subsequently carmed at amorlired costasing
the effective nterest mothod, sscipt for comingen| considoration
rocogmired i & bebiness combination which o swbseguontly
measured at fair value through prodit and loss. For trade and othes
payabiles maturning within one year fram the Batance Shoot date, tha
Canying amoumns approximate fGEirvahes dues to the shor matarty of
those istnmints,

Loams and bormwings

Aftes Wl recocmilicn, et Bodring loens and borrowings ane
subsequently measured at amortised cost uskng the effective
interest rite method. Gaing and iosses ane recognised o profil o
toss wihen the Gabilities are derecognized as well 25 throwgh the
eflective inenesl ratd fmartisalan process

Amorted costis cabculated by taking into account sy diseount o
PEmALT Of 3Copuisition and fees or costs that are an integeat part of
the slfecte interest rete. Such amotisation s included 25 finance
ceasts in the staternent of profitand loss,

Financial guarantes contracts

Finanoal guarantes contracts ssued by the group are those
contracts that requine o payinent to be made 1o remburse the
biesbebeer Tess o Feass it wncues bocowse the speciied debiter fads to malke
& payment when due in sccordance with the terms of a debt
imstrument. Financial guaraniec contracts e recognised indiably o
& hiabelity 21 fair vahie, adjusted for transacton costs that are directly
atributable 1o the Bauance of the guarantes, Subsequently, the
liaksility s mesared ot the higher of the amount of loss allowance
ditermined as per mpsirment regquirgmants of nd A5 109 and the
st recoagiised i comal v amoTsaticn,

£} Derecoqnition

A financial iability 5 derecognisad when the obligation under the
lability & dischmged o cancelled o expiros, When an oxisting
finmnceal Habality & roplaced by anathes from the wame lender on
substantially different terms, or-the terms of an exsting lisbillty are
substantially modified, such an exchange of modification & meated
s the derecognilion of the original liabdity and the recognitan of 3
now falsility, The difference in the rapecive carrying amounts &
rocagpmsed in the stotement of prodit o koas

d} Offsetting of fimanclal instruments

Financial assets and fnancial lishilties are offset.and the net amount
is roported mothe belance shoat if thoo = a ot ly enioromsbio
legal reght to offset the recognissed amounts and there s anintention
b sottle on & et basis, to waiiee the assots and seihe the Gabiltees
simnlianeously.

11.. Loasas

The Group has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases’ with the date of inital
applicaton baing Agril 1, 2009, The kease assel classes primarily
consist of leases for Premizes. The Growp at the inceplion of a
contract, aswesses whother the contiact i5 a lease or ot lease, A
corbrl i, o comianm, & lesss ol the contiacl comveys tha fght o
contiod the dse of an wentified st {or a time in exchange for a
considorataon. Thes poalicy has been appliod 0 contacts gsisting
end entered into on o alter Apnl 1, 2008

The Group mealuates each cantrect or arrangement, whethar
gualifies as lease as defined undar Ind 45 114 The Group 45 2 lessea
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The Group asaesses, whether the contiact is; or Containg, a leass. A
cantract i, of contamns, 3 lease if the contmet imvahads - a) the use of
an identifiod asset, b) the right 1o obdain sebstantally 28 the
ceganorme bomadits fromuse al the sdomtifod assel, and e e tght o
dhirecd the use of the identifipd aswet.

The Growp ot the incepton of the lease contrac recognises a Right
o -Lsar (sl assed an coat and @ correspinding lease Fabdlity, o ail
laser arrangermints in which Ews e, pacept for leaseswith berm
o |ess than kv meont hs (shen term) and fow value assots, Certan
lease arengemeants includes the oplons toestend or terminate the
lease before the end of the [ease term. ROHD assetls end lease
liahifities inchedes these options when it s rezsonabdy cerain that
thiey wall be exercrsed.

The easl of the BOU assets comgrises the amoont of the innal
imaarormient of the lease hability, any leese payments made &0 ot
brixbare the inceplion date of the kade plus sy infial dired costs,
loss any loake imcontives received, Subsoguently, the right-ofuse
skeets s mosssed al cost s any accurmulated depreciation and
accurnulited impaiimont losses, o any. The BOU assets s
dopreciated wsing the straghtine method (rom the
commencement date over the shorter of lease term or usadul life of
RO Fassets.

RO assets are evaluated for recovarability whenever evenis oo
charges in cicumstances mdicate that their carmyng amounts may
not be recoveable, For the purpose of impaiemoent testing, the
reconvnble amossnt (L, tho haghser of the for vabes loss cost to sell
and the valie-igse) i deternaned on an individual sssel basis
unbess thee asset does not genedate cash flows that ae largely
intlapendent of those lrom other assets. Inosuch cased, the
rocousable amaunt & determined foc the Cash Gonerating Uit
{CGU towhich the asset belongs

For Yease habilities at inception, the Group messures the lease
lrability gt the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. The ease paymants ane discounted using the intarest
rate imphicit in the lease, if that rste k= readily dotermined, IFthot rate
15 not readily determinesd, the leage payments are discounted wsing
thi incremental bormowing rate,

The Group recognises the amount of the re-messurerment of lease
liability ag an sdpstment to the BOU asaets. Whene the camping
amount of the RO oot is neduced to reca aned thene s a furthaes
rechuctian i the measerement of the lesss Ebility, the Group
recognises any romainmdg amount of e aemdsasaemont @ e
Staternent of Profit and Loss,

Far shom-tarm pod low value leases, the Gioup recegnimes tha loass
Pty s 4% an operating expense on g shaight-ing basis ovor the
lesmn Wym.

12. Finange Coat

Finance costs mckede interest expense compuled by applying the
aiffactive indesrest rate o respaective financis instrumisnts measurod
al amorised cosl. Fnancil instluments include debt and
borrowing. Finance costs are charged tothe Statement of Profitand
Loss, Ancillary and otber bomowsng costs are amortised on straight
I bnsas, ot thies tenare of the undedypimg delbt and bormowang

13, Goods and Service imput Tas Crediy

Gioads and Services tax mpad credit s dcoounted for in the books in
the period &nowhach the supply of goods or setvice recewed is

ztcounted and whan thers & no uncertainty in avaling/utilsing the
creglits.

14, Dividend distribution toequity holders ofthe Group

The Group recognizes 2 lizbility to make distributions b equity
holders of the Group when the dstibution s aothorsed and the
distribation is o longes at the decration of the Group, A par thi
Act, linal dividend s authorised when 8 6 appeoved by the
sharehodders and intesim dridend s suthorised when it s approved
by the Boand of Directors ol the Group.

15. Pro vizion
Proveions are recognised onbywhen:

=« an intity has a predent obgation (legal of comitructive) o 5
fosult ol & past evint; and

= il B probabde that an oulfiow of fesouices embodying
wcinomic benelits will bo requined 1o setthe thie obligation;
and

« a eliable estumate can be made of the ameoumt of the
abslicaaticn

These are revewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted 1o
refloct th corrent Dest esfimated

Furthiar, long term prosaaons o determined by discounting the
expectod hulum cash fows specilic fo the habaity, Thie unwinding of
thir discount is recognised a8 finance cost. A piovision for oneroas
contracty s measured at thes present value of the bower of the
oxpotiod cost of temanating the contract and the expectod net cost
of contirmaing with the contract. Aelor a prosmsion |5 established, the
A O TR eSSy impainmeent loss on the assets associabed wih
thet contract,

Contingent liabiliy s disclosed in caseof;

= prekent chiligation armng from past events, when it is no
proshatsle that an ot lliow of erources will Be requared bo seithe
the clalsaation and

= & prement obligation arising from past evernis, wien no liabbe
estimato i postibile,

Corilinopenl Assats:

Cerplincpen dssels o nod recogmsed in he consohdated Gpanecal
stafomanis

&, Commibmenis:

Cesmumilemwrids. are luture labibties for contractual axpendione,
classifind and disclosed as follows;

» pstematod amount of conticts remainmg to be executied o
wapitalacoant ard not proveded fod;

+ wncalted liability onioan sanchioned 2nd oninvestments partly
paich; and

= other non-cancellable commitments, il any, 1o the exient thay
are consdered matenal and relevant an the opimon of
management.

17. Comingant Labilities

A contingent Gability i5 & possible obligation that anses from past
events whose existence will be confamed by the occurmence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain fuleie events beyond the
corteol of the Group ar a present obiigation that is st ecognized
Bocause it 15 nol prabable that an outflow of resources will be
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recquireed 10 aettle the obligatan. The Groug does net iecognize 3
contingent abilty but discloses 85 existence in the consohidated
financial staements. Payments in respect of such Babiities if any s
shown asadvances.

1B.Earnings Per Sham

Haskc parnings per share are caloulated by dividisg the net profit or
Iovss for the year attributable to sguity sharsholders by the weighted
average numbar of eguity shares outstanding during theyear,

Dilaved samings par share adjusts the figuies wsed in e
determination of basic eamings per share i takainbo socount

« The after income 1ax et of interest and other financing
costs associatedwith dilutive potential equity shares, and
» Weightid averago munvhes of oguity shares tha would haw
beon outstanding assuming the conversion of 3l the dilutive
potential equity,
19 Cashand Canh Equival ents

Cash comprises cash on hand andd demand deposits with banks
Cash equivalents ate shori-term balancas (with an orginal matunty
of theee months or less from the date of scquisition); and highly
ligquid time depaosits that ane readily conve rtibie into known amiowents
of cash and which are subject to insignificant rsk of changes o
wialue

20.Employee Benefiiy

Shaort term smployee banefits

Employes benels flling due wholly within twebse months of
rendering the service are classified 23 shot term employes benefits
and ane expeensed in the pericd inowhich the employee rend e the
ralated serdce. Liabilities mecogmised in respect of shart-témm
arnpdoyes bonofits aoe measand &t the undiscounted amount ol
the banefits expacted 1o be paid inexchange for the elated serice,

Long Tean amployes banafits

Cargups: nf cblgation m smpoct of long torm empiopes bonafiis s
the amount of future benefit that employees have sarmed in retum
for their service in the cwrent and pror pesiods, Long-term
amployes benefit primarily conssts of Leave encashment benefits
wharein employoes arg antitbed o acoumulate leave subject o
cortan limits for future encashmentfavadment.  Long-term
compersated absences are providlpd tor on the bases of an aciuanal
vahuation ot the end of esch linancial yesr wsing Pojecled Ui
Coedit (PUC) Mothod, Aciuarial gaina/kosses, if any, e recognised
irmrrwechiaterdy i e State ment of Prolit and Loos

Bost-employment hanafits
a) Dufined contridntion Pons

Fravidant fund: Contributions & reguired ander the stitute, macde
to this Prowidemit Fand [Catined Contrdbution Plandare iocagnisoed
immadiately n the Ststement of Profit snd Loss. Thawe is no
ohbgation other than the manthly contribution payable to tha
Regional Provident Fund Commissionar,

ESIC and Laboor welare fund: The Groups comtnibulicn
parlfpayable during the year to Employes stale insuance schemes
and Laboner welfare fund a4e recognised in the Statement of Profit
anid Leas,

k) Defined henafit Plans

CowsomiLatee] Fanamiial Shamaensnts %

Ciratuty liasbality is-cotined benoft abBgation and is provided on thoe
basis af an actusial vabstion perfosmed by an iddependent actuary
based o projectsd unil credst methad, 3 the end of esch linancal

year
Drofired banelil costs a categorised s Tollows:!

CHR T AT n:ﬁthnr_'lul:l-mr_.' currenl service ol pash sorece ol
aswall g5 gains and losses on curaimsants and setilemanits )

) Mt e resl expense o iInCone

wi | B mie Eswrerment

Fe-measurements of the net defined benefit liabiigy, which
comprise actraral gains and losses, the setwn on plan assets
{excheding interest} and the offect of the psset ceiling (if any,
e ludbing Interest], are recognised in SC), nit of taxes, The Gioup
eletedmines tho net ieed] expaenan (income) on tho noet delined
basnielil lfabsility {agset) for tho period by applying the discosm rate
usire fo e the defined bonefil obligation af the beginning of
thir anmaeal petiosd 16 the nel dofined Benafit Eability (aasetl, aking
ity gecont @0y cheanges in the oot defmod oot liabdlity (assor)
chr ingg the pericd as 7 resull of contributions and beneld payments
et interest eapense and other expenses related 1o defined benefi
plarns are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss,

The Groups set ohligaton in respect of gratuity (defined banefit
plan), is catoudated by estimatng the amouwnt of futuee benefit that
the smplopess have camed in the cumesst angd prios penods,
discenanting that amount and deducting the fair sabsoof wmy plan
asaets. Ther ristiremast boanadit cbiligation necognised inthe Balancoe
Shaot ropresonts tha actual doficit o sl in the Group’s defined
benafit plans. Any swrphes resulling froen this caloulation s
rocogmisod af s assed to the edemt of prosent value of any
eranmma; benedits svailabde in the lomm of refunds from the plans o
rechisctions in the future contanbution tothe plans.

21, Shara-based Paymonts

Shared based compensation benefits s provided 19 employses
via Vakranges Limited Employes Stock OptionPlan.

Employee options

Fhe cost of equity-settled ransactons s determined by the (3w
valug o thie optsons granted at the date whin the grant is made, The
Fael value of options granted under the Employes Cption Plan &
recogmsed as &nemployes benelits expense with & comespanding
incrense in equity. The total amount 1o be vepended & detormaned
Ly restereruci boythe faar wabue of the aptions granted:

= anckeding any madket porformance  copditions (o, The
Giroup's shapl priee )

« gxcluting the impact of any senace and  non-market
perormance vestng  conditions | eug. profitabifity, sabes
grerath targets and remairing emphopes of the entity ceer a
spacified Time penod ), ond

= Inchsding the impact of sy nonoeesting consdsons (e, the
rescpuinrmienl Ton employos oo saee o hokding shares for o
appcilae pérsod of imes.

Fhetotal expense i@ recognised over the vesting penod, wiach s the
presriced evest which all of the specifaed westing cooditsong. de o e
sadiidincd, A the o of each ponad, the Groug revises its asimatus
i this nurnier of aptions thal S eapocteed Lo b vest based o the
non-market westing and service conditions, It recognises the impse
of tha mvision o orginal estimates, if any, n profit or loss, with 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

MNete 4 : Imvestmant Property

CHOICE INTERMATIOMAR LIMITED § ANNLUAL REPOSET 3031

{Rs.in Lakhs)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Mate 5 1 Intangible Assets

A

Carsaliidatadd Financlal Statamiinis "' ¥
F

{Hs. in Lakhs)

e —— Intangibie
Particulars ...-...|1|‘|| e lrademark |essets under | Goodwil
Siiwdre TRre T
Gross Camying Amount 22 at April 01, 2019 120.00 120.00 eiopment
Ackditions Gross Camying Amount s at Apedl 01, 2019 1,613.32 0.26 45.66 B25.00 7,484.24
Cisposats Adidditicns 15197 129 155,24
As at Masch 31, 2020 120.00 120.00 Dhsposals 674 454 41,390
Hocked
n: r°|rn|||= As at March 31, 2020 1,754.34 028 14 94 B25.00 £, 593,95
. Additians - 2.6 3 2,63
As 8t March 31, 2021 120.00 120.00
Dhisposats -
Accumulated amortization and Impairment
. As at March 37, 2027 1,754.34 0.2& 16.99 B25.00 2z, 595.59
Mg st Apel 01, 207%
Acnontisation charge uring tha yesr Aecumulated amortisation snd |mpairment
[hsposals As atbpril 07,2099 1,074.47 0.03 - = 1,074.50
As at March 31, 2020 5 - Amortisation chame during ithe year RE 1S .03 - FE1Y
Arnoisation change during the year [MEpoeats .M 1M
Diezposals Ag al March 37, 2020 1,170.%2 0.04 - - 1,170.98
A= at March 31,2021 Armortisation chage r]urmg_,] LLTH AT on e [ERLE] rar R
Met c@mrying armount as at March 31, 2021 120.00 120.00 Dasposals
Met @mmying armount as at March 31, 2020 120.00 120.00 Ag at March 31, 2021 1, 270,85 o.0% = 1, 270.94
Met carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 48.3.4% oa 16.9% B5.00 1,325.45
Met crrying amount a5 at Macch 31, 2020 583.42 0.2 14.34 BZ5.00 1.422.97
ycae.______________________________________________________________________________________| . | 146
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NDTE,S }.-D THE CONSOL lDA}.-F'D Flﬂﬁ,NLML ISR NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31 2021

Mote & : lvestments [F%: i Lakha) : .

Mate 10 @ Deferred Tax Assets - (MNat)

¥,
A5l

Tha MHEjOF CoHmponents ol delerred tax Assols as rod n-:Jn.-,ri*-"I iri thio inancial staternents are as follows

Farticulars srch 31 March 31 2070

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Investment carried at cost - In &ssoclates = L
2,600 Erquity shares {March 31, 2020: 2600) Samekit Leaming Management S QoaigVevas e ST
Private Limited (Formerly known as Gravotis Technalogies Private Limited | & March 31, 2071 March 31, 2020
Rs. 10 each o s Diefamed Tax Aszets ansing on account of timing differences in:
m:; '"ﬁl;'}':?;fa'}?ﬁ"f;ﬁd Eaulwilrr}?trmﬂﬂb;h i MAT Credit Entitiement 16.34 13.10

" " ' 5 ] L} . - E - P N -
I:::Inm:ll';lr |.Il'r;|'|!:'l.! Fahhly Gl Fl e i T Lt 1 920G 47 Prespeesrty, Plant and Eoumpimiant - Dispiaciation 1143 [11.53)
ADGLD00 Equity Shares of Gini & Jony Limited of Rs. 10¢- each fully paid Prevvigeon lor employee benefit expenses .18 &.14
[March 31, FOPC: 400,000 20560 20540 Prorviseon for Standard Loan Azsets nn 16.81
Cruoted Imipainmeant Inss on Imvesiment 5.5 41,73
Investment carried at Fair Valoe through Other Comprehensive Income (FYTOCT Defermed Tawan Fair vabue of Empboyee benefin éxpensias throwegh Other comprehensne moome [ 1.84) [1.61)
1,000,008 Equity Shanes of The Byke Hospitality Limited of Rs. 10¢-each Dieferrad Tax on Fair Valuation of Invastmeants 13.25
rll"'p' F'h-:lll'd [harch 31 h }'!J.?U. | SO DU A50.00 A50.:00 Amartisation af load as [t ER [n_'llr-_:] {0 |1|]]
';;I:EH.L:E*.'I;!IT E_‘nhjz:ﬁl‘:;;;_'gl' Securities Limsied of Rs. 10/~ gach fully paid f.04 003 Allcwranon for Expaectied Cnsdit Loss f1% 1 ‘Hs
22023 Couity shares of Lawreshwar Polymers Limited of R 10 each fully Brougint Fonmie Losyss £:43 &5
paid (March 38, 2000, 22,023 ) .74 1461 Deferred Tax Assets [net] 100.82 B1.98

e~ i il Defamed Tax Assets nouted throwgh Frofi & Loss 19.09 H5.40
*Thi Caimaips had made Girwabastian ol Insestmont in Gind & Jong | mltisd !h:-::ul:pl'n Prafit & Loss account and Baoked Irmparment loss al Hs. Dederrad Tax Assets routed throsegh Other I!-r;.q'r|‘1|r.|1r|f|-\.;_-|,.|:| et s (0% (4%, T

0O akchs oo irveestmesnt in Gond & bony Lemated. The Group, subsequent to the year-end on June 21, 2021, sobd fs investmeants o Giny B
Jaryg Lirmitod Coampany Limitesd weoarthy Be, 205 &0 lakhs low 2 comsidenstion ol Bs, 200,00 lakhs

Mate 11 : Other Non-Current Assets (R im Lakba)
Mote 7 : Loans {Hs. in Lakhs)
: . Particulars
5 f |" A5 al a5 Al
Fartsculars i 3 ok 11 M
March 31 March 31, 2020 Prepaid Rent 214 3.59
Securily Dopaouits fa. Bty 1484 Total .18 3".&'1
Lixans and advances to others 0y
Tatal &.58 Ta.63
Mate 12 : Secunties held for trade {Rs.im Lakks)

Mote 8 : Other Financial Assets (s, i Lakhs) A al

e e March 31, 2021

Particulars March 31, 2020 Secuifties held for trade
Fivsd Dapotits* 2 10 25 00 Chares and Securites * B7 250 3,040,591
Liscuirdy doposits Lo fiock exchisnge 264 3% i i Total B7Z.30 ERHE
Other Security depasits 192 8é Q295 * Famr value has taken as Ml T securitios whech are suspanded for rading a1 the stock aschange,
Mrapaid Hentals Q.89
Interest docrocd on Depaosits LA 4 44 .
Total 488.87 394.47 Mote 13 : Trade Receivables (R in Lakhs)
* The abwwe fixed deposit recespl 5 under ken with ICICH Bank Limited for the parpose of Bank Guarantes, As At A= 3l
Farticulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Maote @ : Income Tax feséts (MNet) (R, in Lakhs) v
] ; Conssdered Good 6,484 .64 T.341.3%
I I5'J|'.|:.I.I|.:'|‘..'. Unsecured
Considered Good 1,148 .39 1,762,809
Achvance tases (netol provisions) %142 361.73 Considered Doubitiul 12671 148.47
Tatal 27142 36173 Less: Allowances for impairment losses {12671} (14842
Total T.673.07 ?,104.28
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MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Mote 14 : Cash and Cash Equivalants

k= =
A5 7l

March A | 2051

Particulars

Balances with Banks

In Current Accounts 302215
Cash on Hand 157
Prespand Cand 142
Tatal 3.025.09

Maote 15 - Bark Batances Other than (Note 14) Abowa

March 3 I._ L

Particulars

Balarces stk Banks ;

in Earmarked Acoounis rA4
Fiwed Desporsits (Liend 1.7B5 05
Tatal 1.792.4%9

(K=, i Lakhs)

s ot

March 41, 2020

3,731,300
1.93

313323

(R, im Lakhs)

o gt

March 31, 2020

151
1.A57.47
1,344.98

* Figed Diapsits e aedes Leen with Banks lor Bank Guaranbees (with maturity of mom than of 2 Mosths bt bess than sl be 12 .Ml.:-hllu-:l

Mate 18 : Loans

a
5 Fl

March 31, 2021

Particulars

Socured, considered good

{Rs. in Lakhs)

A= af

March 31, 2020

iy
Comsnlidmad Fnancial Statonmiivis "'..'. ,;':

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Maote 18 ; Other Current Assets {R&. in Lakhs=)

March 41, A1 March 31, 2020

Halance with goveinment mthorities

Goods & Service Tax Recevabile &F46T 74.08
Mchincn 1o Vendors 9917 i1, 3d
Progaaid Faponses 17540 T4
Cithar Advances 10608 21513
Total 453.42 540.00

Mote 19 : Equity Share Capital (s in Lakhs}

M al s al
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Particiulars

Authorsed :

A0 00,000 (March 31, 2020: 4,07, 00,0000 Equity shares of Ra, 10 aach 4 G10.00 A4, 010000
4,01 0.00 4,010.00

Femued, Subzcribed and Paid-up B

& 8568 203 (March 31, 20200 200,04 800 F—1'||||'I',' shares of Rs. 10 each fully pasd up 856,83 7000 48

Toeal 285483 2,000 48

{a} Terms/ rights attached to Equity Shares

The Company has one class of equity shames having a par vabue of RBs 10 per share, Each sharehoider s eligible for one vote per share held,
The: dreidend propased by the Board of Denectoss is sulgect to the appaoval of the shareholders o the enduang Annual General Mosting, bs

thie evant of liquidstion, the eoquity share holders are eligible to recewe the remaning asseis of the company sfter distribution of all
priferential amounts in propoion to their shar holding

{b] Reconciliation of number of shares uLﬂ:hnd'inr_.; at thae be girlrlirlg and at the and of the re p-nl'tl'ng year
Equity Shares

Partculars

Ei

Pumitiar

Asat March 31, 2021

ol Shares

Az at March 31, 2020

Murmtser of Sharas

Loan aggines alpies B Securilies fivd/ H/S2.A8
Loan against propety 248491 251419
Loans o related parties agamst propeny L6, I
Umecured, considered good
Bdvances o Ermployess L LG A7 &4
Loans to related parties Fak iy A90.A7
Loan Given to Others
Harsiness LR
hSME 232517
Personal 254069
[CFbwrs LRU R f A4 86
Allewanct for Credil | oas [123.61) [&0.43)
Toral 24 65346 11,779.83
Mate 17 - Crher Financal As=ets [H4, in Lakkes)

Particularmns

s at

March 31, 2021

szt
March 31, 2020

Balance as at the Beginning ol the yeas 200.05 200,05
Add: Shares ssued daring the yea) B5.63
Balance as at the end of the year 285,68 20005
{c) Details of shares held by sharsholders heliding more than 5% of the aggregate shares inthe Company:
(R, in Lakhs)

I: '|I||| W Shares

&5 at

March 31, 201

A

5 il

March 31, 2020

CHOICE INTERMATIOMAR LIMITED § ANNLUAL REPOSET 3031

Carried at amostised oost Shares hald by Mumbaer of Shares % Mumber of Sharas %
Security Depdsits Aq47 J3.07 Eamal Poddar 25,00 B, /5% 25, h 1250
Arcrund Incomis 6003 145, 15 Aruen Kurha Foodar 21400 F %% Fa 4] 160501
Recevabli frorm Exschange 124812 1B Winita Sunil Patodia 1413 Had% 16,13 B DA%
Unbiliad Revenus 193 77 1672 07 Archana Anil Falodss 15,05 551% 1545 Py
Margin Maney 15 730.50 8,525 00 Sonu Poddar A0 00 700 12,50 250
Rotontica rmoney rocensatdo R8N} 111344 Sunil Kumar Patodia 45.89 v.06% 12.39 6.19%
s - Al C Patodha 11.00 1.85% 11,060 Y 0

L AERELST it Hemlata Poddar 20,00 7 00 0 D%
Azura Profects Private Limited 1285 & 5% 1285 A2

CHOICE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED: | AMMNUAL REPORT 2001
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MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

MNote 20 : Other Eqm'ﬂf (Rs. im Lakhs]
Particulars

Share Applicatson Money Pending Alkotrment 1, 43245 2524 50
Statutory Resens 291 418.57
Capnital Resaren A0 a.ra
fecurily Prembum Resopse BP0 19 A AFAT
RBowaluation Reserwe 417022 417022
Retained Earninigs 130992 5.B03.06
Cither Comparahensiee Incoma 950 s HE)
Genanl Hesends L2 .52
Total 23,446.41 19.317.Ba

ii] Share Application Money Pending All strment: {Rs. in Lakhs)

.
Particulars

Balance as at the beginning of the year 257450
Acdd : Additions during the yaar 3. 21557 2.524.50
Less Wasrrents converiod durmg the year (4,265 37)
Balanco as at the and of the year 1,432,465 2,524 50
{ii] Statutory Resarve {Rs. im Lakhs]
P =T et As al As al
amcuters March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Halance as st the hl:_lulnn.n] al the yaar AeLT A1 67
Acdd ; Additions during the yes 144,34 6.

Balance &3 ot the and of the year 58291 416.57

it is created as par tha terms of Secticn 45 K1) of Reserve Bank of indra, 1934 as Satutory Reasarves

{iii) Capital Resarve (Rs. in Lakhs)

A5

March 312021

Hatance as al the heginnisg of the year 840 B
Acid : Additions durineg the yoar
Balance as at the and of the yoar B.70 B.70

bt i made out of Capital proft easmed. The same i@ not aeailable for proft distnbution

{iv) Securities Premium Resene: [Rs. im Lakhs)
’ Ag s

Particulars WMarch 3

Halance as at the Beginnog of the year &3F207 b 3%

Add | Additions dhuring the year 3.511.02

Balance as al the and of the year 9319 S ATZAT

Socarities Premnium iesena i used 1o necord the premaum on igsue of shanes The resese 5 olilised in sccordance with the poovigion af the

Compames Adct, 2013

yes_______________________________|
CHOICE INTERMATIOMAR LIMITED § ANNLUAL REPOSET 3031

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

{v] Revaluation Reserve (R in Lakh=)

Particulars

Balanen as at the beginning of the yina i 4 170,22 a1/027
Add : Additions during the year
Balanoe as at the and of the woar £ 170,22 4 170,22

* It has been created on revaluation of freafold land at fair market valwe. The same i@ not avsilabde for proft dstibaton.

[wi) Retainad E:irning:.: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Pt e e A al s al
rarticulars March 11, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance as al the beginning of the year 530304 a4 532 A4

Aceld {Leask Pralitd {Loas) lor this year 1481 .00 211
{Leas) Transfered 1o Stalutory Reseme {16434} {26, 50)

Addd: Reversal of Loss dee to cessston of subsidiary LS|
Balance a= at the end of the year 7.309.72 5,B03.06

Retamed Eamings represents surplos/accumulasted earmangs of the Company 2nd are avsdlable for distribution to sharehokders.

{wii} Ganermal Resarve (Rs. in Lakhs)
Bt 4 As al As at
rarmculan March 31, 7021 March 31, 7020
Balamce as at the beginning of the year 52 .52

Aeld : Additions during the year

Balance as at the end of the pear 752 B.52

Amounts sol pide from retained samings as a reseree 1o be utiised for permissable general purpose a3 por L,

(wiii) Other Comprehensive Income (Rs. i Lakis)
P - s Gl

Farticulars March 31, 2021

Halamee as at tha Biepinning al thi ysar {2 {141,48)

Add | Additions during the year 438 134 .40

Add : O accowsnt of mengor
Balanoe as at the and of the yeal 29.50 (€0 1:}

Chther Comprabensiee Income consist of remeasuremaent gains £ bosses on defined bensafit plans, gain Aloss) of equsty nstruments carmed
thirosegh PUTOC]
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MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
MNote 21 : Barrowings {Fs. in Lakhs)

I} -
a5 al

.,
Particulars March 31 7071

Socured loans

Term loan from Bank 2982 452 437.35
Less: Curmrent maturity of long term bocrowings {360.7T) (56,37
Tatal 2,621,565 380,946

“The outstanding smdunt loan ol Bs 2000 00 Lakhs | Barch 31, 2020 - MilH Sancticn arnount is 3000, 00 Ik e b ko broim .l'-'ur_‘ii[ya Hirla Hnance
Limited and 15 secured by way of lwst charge on office premises at Mumbal, howeser the change oeation & under prrocess, The said boan carres
ibizrest at 10L50F6]). Th koan & repryalibe in Equatod roonthly et almeeats " EMIE ) ending in May 20209,

*The caststandineg asmont boan of B 500200 lkha { Manch 312020 - Nil){Sanction armount is 1000000 Lakhs baas taken froom Adiaya Birla Finance
Limited and is secured by way of first charge on office premises at Mumbai, however the charge oreation is under process, The sald koan carries
imterest st 10505, The koan 5 e puyable in Eguatod monthly ostallments] 'EMI bending in dune 2029

*The outstanding amownt loan of Rs. 203,33 lakhs | March 31, 2020-Rs 229 848 lakhs pwas taken from foes Bank Limited and = seowmed by way of
firsd charcps o oifice prsmaset at Mumbai. The said ban carrios interost @ 1 Year MCLR + 1755 [prosent by at 1T0%), The loan i repayable monthly
endingin October 2026

“The owtstanding amount boan of K5, 6.33 lakhs{March 31, 2020 Ks. 8.2 7 lakhs  was taken from HDFC Bank and ts secoesd by way of first charge
oo Vehiche 2t Mamibai. The loon s regayalble in Egoated Maonthly Insgallments (" EMI™ of R, 0222 akhs ending in December 2023

*The outstanding amount of Ican of Bs. 17912 lakhs (March 31, 2020 Rs. 195,50 |akhs was taken from BECIC Bank and is secured by way of first

v g oo EMTece Provmisess st Dodhi, Therloan i repayisbbe in meonthly principat instslimants and miecest, ondineg in May 2030

Mate 22 : Other Financial Liakilities {Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

SOCLFily [:H'-p-n-:lr 015
Total 05 -
Mote 23 : Provisions {Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Promiskon for Employes Benefiis:
Prewvision for Graluity 22422 18511
Total 224.22 185,11

MNote 24 : Deferred Tax Liakilitics - (Mat)

[hex major components ol deferred o abilities’ (At
as recograzed n the financal statements are as follows: [Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars A9 March 31 2090

Dfermes] Tan (Assetsl Liabilitios Aresing on account of timang dilfisronces in

MAT Credat Entitlement [37 33§ (B9.51)
Propery, Plant and Eguipment - Depreciation L. 05 A93.00
Prtrvigean for amployes bencll sxpenses REFA] (F1.80
Defemed Tax on Fair value of Emplopes benefit expenses throwgh Other Compiehensive Income 1825 B39
Dreferred Tax on Fair Valuation of Investments (023§ (077
amartisateon al o ae pest EIE 0.7 0,38
Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (21.91) [36.80)
Drelarrad Tax Asset on Goocdvill ZB.69 FR.OF
Praslorrasd Tax Liabilidy on BV of livenbony 21 45538
Deferred Tax (Assets) Labilities [net) A58.6%9 TE7.04
Daferrad Tax Liabilitios owted through Profit & Lo (3E5.42) 17046
Draferred Tax Lizbilities wowted through Other Comprehensive Income 10.11 248

1 |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
Mote 25 : Other Mon-current liabilities [Rs. in Lakhs)

»
[ LA |

Particular:

March 31, 37021

Franchisee deposit 113 219.m
Total 24133 21%.01
Mate 26 : Trade Payahles (Rs. in Lakhs)

Mairch 31

Trade Payable

Dues 1o Micio Enterprises and Small Enterprises® 142,14 LR
Other than Micro &nd small Entenprises 1,036.00 f17.BB
Total 1.378.23 T2 79

*Based on information recewed by the Company from its suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
[MSME } Dmsebapemaent Act, 20006 ancl rilisd wan By ther amedlifory; detaibs of ambund dus 1o such vendars is a5 bolow!

5.Mo. Particulars

[11) Principal Amount Outstanding 34214 4
{i} Interest due on abowe snd unpasd -
{uil} Interest due and payable for the period of delay
(] Interest accrued and remaining wnpaid
Note 27 : Borrowings (Rs. in Lakhs)

As al

March 31, 20:

Secumed Loam

Lesas lecam Fananciill oslilulicns® £ .59 0 1169
Bank Creprdraft®® 4 30823 7.053.32
Crehentures™* FL-ROY L4000
Umecured Loans

Lesar Vakaen frorm Ralated Paties 47 &b g5 T
Oither Loans 178.4% #1515
Commercial Papers from other partias L0a4s 3
Toral 12,1 51.64 13,85%.06

"Loans takisn rom FHnancid Instfutions ane sacured aams! shams & securities placed as collatenal by customirs, diroctons, rokatives of
dwactos pnd fellow subsidiary - Loan taken from Tats Capital Fieancial Services |imited ot rate of interest of 10.80% and Loan taken flom
Bajg| Fansery Private Limited s at rate of interest of B.50% for tenwre of 12 months

5 Thz owerchealt Bacility taken from Axds Bank at rate of Interest 295% pa. which is repayable on demand. The above overdralt Bcility i
peimmarily secured by way of hypothecation on current asset and covered by personal guarantes by Mr Kamal PoddanDirector) and
I.':ru|1-.1ra1i! guarantes of M Choce intsmmaticnal Limited (8w paren Crempany

*= Bank overdralt faciliy takien from Punjab MNational Bank for whith asset cover dedails ane given balow

a1, Akal CHS Led, Bamanparn rosd. 1 B MegarAndhen East, Mambag. 5%

by -5, Dominia in Prive Hilkids Residences, Khamdala Lonavala, Pune

cil 904 - B and B - 904 - A Valencia oo hag soe Hianandani Gardens, Powa, Mumbas - 74

dy B - 903 - Band B - 903 - A, Valencia oo hsg soc id, Hiranasdani Gardens, Powal, Mumbai - 78
== Bank cverdradl Tatility takon from Indusind Bank which has besn covered against by pothecation of receivablos
== The bank cverdraft facility taken from Axis Bank Limited = secured by way of hypothecation of cumrent assets.
"'[‘.IL|'|||1!",| the wear g 2071920 thia Company has issued 115 debenturs & Rs SO0, 0001 - per unit on private placement beses writh tenor ol
1161 days from the date of allotment - Out of these 100 debantures redeemed during the fy 200-21. These are non comeertible and
redeemable debentures with coupon 37% and secured by way af hypathecation on ieceivables and curmend assots
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Mate 28 : Other Financial Liabilities {F=. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Aidvance from Custormers 1981535 11,01 5.04
Current Maturdies of Long-Term Dbt 15078 b 3%
Interesl acorued b not due 1328 L i ]
Total 2018941 11,707.03
Maote 29 : Other Current Liabilities {Rs. in Lakhs)
, - o A at 5l
Particulars March 31, 202 March 31, 2020
Satubony Dues 30,33 A4 29
Advance from Customiers 250,14 7 58
Francheser and oiher deposits A3 50 10L.00
Cther Payables P 2443
Total 1, 184.40 155825
Mate 30 - Current Provizions Rs. in Lakhs)
1 = " .""-_'-_ il
Particulars P ari I 11 ] 0
Proissan for Gratusty 57 532
Prorvisson oo Leave Encashinan 2350 1164
Peerwinsan for Exponses AR PR h
Proneiseon for Taa [net of advanos tax) SR 2393
Tatal BOS.7% 140,89
Mote 31 : Revenue from Operations (Rs. in Lakha)
p | o the Yeaar Ended Fer the Year Ended
AR March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Reyenue Trom Sale o Serwtes 1267154 Q247 R0
Interest ncome 28X 11 141833
Income from Business Suppot Semvices 140,34 24581
Lubletting Inoame 15,40 15.40
Profit on sake of Inyestment 5252
Fair Waben cgaan on Spciting badd for trade Al 1
Delayed Paymant Charges i 9 1,141
i Tthir Fess and Charmges 311.83 1 '}41 o
Total 16 B74.35 12, B82.00
Mote 32 : Other lncome {Rs. in Lakhs)

Fow thie Year Faded For thia Yesad ' e

Particulars March 31 2021 March 11 2020

Interest Income on

Bamk Depogits 11,73 14.80

s G0 A0 47750
Credit Balances Written off b 4.78
Intarest on Font Deposd L3149 108
Rent Recoived 3.40 13.1%
Intarast o Incoma Tas Ralund b FR 321
Lunen o Sabe of Imeestmonis L5 A4
Profit on salke of Fixed fssets 281
Misc, Income 3.8 1.58
Failr Wakue Gain on lvestrent 214 {36.72)
Total 70723 539.88

ee.______________________________________|
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Mote 33 : Operating Expenses {Rs. in Lakhs)
o L For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
articular Mamch 31 2021 March 31, 200
Professional Fees /Sub Contract Charmes 212350 513.4%
Commiszion Expenses 1901
Sl Hrokesagn 295300 1695 92
Fair Valae loss on Securities held for trade 132229
Loss on sk of secuntes held for trade 351640 1B&.2)
Cemputer and Sofwaie Expenses 28058 29838
Depository Charges B0 54 51.51
Membership and Subscription Charges 142 14,62
Lease Line Expsanses B D ]
Exchancpe Charges 058 213
Cithesr Oiperating Expenses a0z 54.33
Total 7 64B43 E.EBE.B_I&
Mote 34 - Empla'l_mn Benafits Eupﬂruqu. [Rs. in Lakhs)
. Fes the Year Endead For the Yoar Erded
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
Salaties and Wages A (4 O 4 571,35
Contributions to Provident ard Cther Funds 128,51 Ta003
Staff Wellare Expanses 2129 1879
Toval 4, 1‘?:3.5 ] 4. 74616
Mote 35 : Finance Costs (Rs. T Lasking)
i Fou the Year Endad  For tha Year Endod
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Interest on Bomowangs from Related Partied iG.id 21009
Interast on Bomowings from Cahers 697 1680
Inkerest on Bomowinogs rom Enancial Institutions 15655 3009 B0
Ikl o et ey 41,45 3532
Inferest on Booowings from Banks BIT. 4 BT
Interast & Bormowengs Cost on Commercial Paper 335,00 199 08
LHbasr Horrmoming Costs 142 84 11482
Interest on Deposit 15.08
Total 1,54575 1,729.76
Mote 34 : Depreciation and Am ortisation Expansa {Rs. in Lakhs)
- e tho Yoar Encod For the Yoar Endedd
articulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Despraciation on tangible assets (Refer Mote 1) 223,34 247 b
Armodidaticn of -n'l.lrl-;]ihll:l agsets {Rotor Mote &) B 40 8. 1R
Total :103_-75 345 54
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED HNANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
Mots 37 : Other Expenses {Rs. in Lakhs) Note 39- Employea Benefit Obligations
T =t thia waar ||.rIh.--r-.-,||..,|.:!,.,|
Harticulars March 11,7 March 31, 2020 The Gmup has classihad the vanous benehits prowded to employess as undar;
Business Suppor Expenses 1744 1.5% 1. Defined Contribution Plan
Bank {'.hargn‘; ancl Commission 2.73 289 ThulmJ the ywar, the Grouin has incurrad and racogrisod the ‘|n||1'm|11-:_{ amounts (i the Staterment of Profit and Logs:
Hiernt 16550 T2t
Fepairs & mastenance 80.48 592 (R, ir Lakhs)
Fates & tanss 54,78 4.7 T T R
Lyl aimed prrodiessicanal LT g Fartecular .".-'I it .| Ir '| 3 ."'.I :
e Charges .72 157 el A S
Eleetricity Charges (LR 191 Ernpospss’s Contriauticsn (o Prosacdont Fund 112,05 L
irawhng & Coneeyance p:;eppnan'; raad 130 Ay El'l'||:|-1|:|'ﬁ'1"5 Conkributiom to ESIC 1636 26465
Ciommumcation expanses 145.44 13090 Total 12841 6,05
Cantean expenses 18.87 &1.75 : .
Compulsf expenses 1644 23,14 2 Ol it piane
Clgam & Dispute Lt A 1358 Gratully (post-employment benafits)
"_fw it b } 1 = The Growp piovides for gratuity o employees in India as ped the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Employees wha ane in conlinuous serce
Giunathoise Fapenaes 1209 foor 3 period of Syears a0 eligible fos gratuity, The amount of gratuity payable on retirement / termination is the employess kst drawn basic
Dhirector sitting fees 450 5.00 sabary por modh computed propomonately for 15 days salary multiphed for the pumber of yoors of sendce. The gratuity plan = 6 fusded
Advertsement & Business promotion EXPENSES A3.37 15759 plan and tha I.'i.||u.|p miakits conirebutsons o recognised / .qpprm-l:ll:l faarcls in India. The Group does not fully fund the Bability and maintains
Printing & Stationery 14 58 15 48 a target level of fundimg to be maintsned ower & penod of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments.
Payrneenit to Awrditars Gratulty
Skat A F SLLAS nddd
e 2 This folkovwing tilbile ses oul the amount recogrised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit ohbgations ower the
Tax Auclit Feas an 1.30 yearare as foBows;
Cither Matters 561 4.54 '
Lass on fair valuation of Investments 00D
Prowisicn on standard loan assats 4317 1634 {Rs. in Lakhs)
Miscellaneoss axponses A5 .00 186 B = g Prasant value ol Fanr vl us Mel
Lexss oo sale ol Investmend .80 Particulars sbliggation Amount
L s o] PP 4.11 5,07
“:;:‘wl::::{;r dl:lll-'_'u.l'l'f!. I debts 17 A4 11682 01 April 2019 23076 5.79 224.98
i a2 . ;
Bad Debts written off 200.00 15.82 e ey {1hat o hateon T NOLey
Membership & Subscription Charges 5% Current Service cost &7.77 &1.77
":nur'l-:‘.‘ir'p Aalance Wiittedn off [T 1.9 Interest aapenseEncoms) 17.45 0.4 1744
Ramtal Erpenses 164 223 Total amownl recognised In profit or loss A5.23 21 B5.02
Totad 1,35{?.3_31 1,897 20 Remoassrements
Details for C5R Expenditupe Return on plan assets, excluding amounts
1. Giross amount iequieed 1o spend by one of the group compary 11.83 included in interest expanss § [incomes) 021 (0.23)
#. Amourd spnnf d:'“ing EI:“ S {(Gain) foss from i.'l‘l.ll'll_'lﬂl in finandial assumptions 2874 8.8
o s tecbosao e et {Gain} flass from change in demographic a5 mpﬁf:ma (0-F9) (0. 2%)
. . Eapenence [gains)iosses (41.07) (41.07)
Mote 38 : Eamings/ [Loss] Per Equety 5h (Rs. in Lakhs) ;
= deien e ki e el Lot : | } Total amount recognised in other comprehersive income (13.08) m23 (13.31)
Particulars I Irllll.llllll II wl'lll :_:_II.!"..': i Irl:_l,lirl; .r_.r.l::ll.l:l I.III :;_';II - E g cxantribaatioos
= = 2 e Rinistd payrmonts [25.01) (35,01}
Mt Profi aftor s ttributabie 1o Equily Sharehaldors tor Basic FPS 167100 124311 i sabe of subsidiary 059 012 047
Al Legs; Adjuatrment rolating o potentinl eoguity shaes
. I=Mar-20 26653 &.10 2e0.41
Mat profit #fter tax attnbutable 1o equity shareholdess for Diluted EPS 167100 1245311 % - : . .
Weanhtsd average number of Equity Shames outstanding during the year
Far Basic EPS 214469 0005
For Diuted EPS 32705 b bl s
{c) Face Value per Euaity Share (Rl 1000 10,00
Basic EPS {Rs) ' r.78 571
Diluted EPS {Rs.] 511 L84
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(Rs. in Lakhs)

01 April 2020 26653 &0 260,43
Trmates Ind (Out) obligaton {1 DE (008}
Currend Service cost 2.5 . 2.
Inberest pugansedincormel 18700 281 1524
Total amount recognised in profit or loms ?D.35 281 B7.54
Re measunements

Rebin on plan assets, excluding amounts {1.55) 155
invciud o] b inkerest eaponsas J (incorme]

(Cin ) loss o change sn financial sEsumplion .48 {7.8u8) &34
(Gain) st from change on demographss assumpt:ons

Experience {gains Mlosses (54,34} - {54.34)
Total amount recognised in other comprehe mive inoome [49.88) [3.43) {4 ﬁ.l.fr:l
Emiploner comtribnition - -
Benalit paymernts (6.4 (6. A7)
31-Mag-21 002y 5.8 294.82
The net hakbebty disclosed above relates to lunded plins ane as lollows: (=, in Lakhs)

Present velue of funded obfigations 0025 26653
IFair wahee of plan assets L AR & 10
Deficit/{Surphus) of gratuity plan 294,61 260,43

Significant astmates- actuaris assumptions and sensithity
The significant actuaris! assumptions ware 2 followes

March 31, 2021

Discount rate & BETE & BG%
Galary growth ate (per anmam) &H00% & OOE

5% at youriogar acies okt 5% al poungger aoges
‘Withdrawal rate [per annudm) 1o 1% at older ages reducing to 1% at cldesr ages
Expected rate of return 5 B5% 4 B5%

Inclian Assurod Lvaes Martality Incfian Assursd Livest Martality
Fortality Takslo (207 2-14) Table {2012 140 Talales

wae___________________________________________________|
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted prindipal assumptions is

Impact on defined benelit obligation

Chsimmsnt rafe 050 0. 50% Deoease by LROOF 247 43

Lilary growth rate L5 0,505 Incnaso by A18.04 HFAF
VWithedrawal rate WH «110% WL x 1709 Inroiase by 3004 PN

March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020 [ March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Descoamt e 0505 0.506% Increasi by 12168 TRE 22
Salary growth rate 0.50% (.50 Diecrease by 22 38 249,52
Whthdrawal rate WRL x P09 WH x 20K Diecrease by 278 53 264 84

Theakbess sensilivity analyses are based on a change inan assemgation while halding all other sssemptions constant, in practice, this is unikkoly
1o occur, and changes in some of the assomptions may be comelated. When cabculating the sensatiity of the détmed benefit obigation to
significant actuarial assemptions the same method (present value of the defined benafit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit
marthord it thio ard af the feporting period ] has been apphied as when calculating the defined benelil kability moogmsed inthe balance shiset

The methods and types of assumptions used in prepanng the sensitivity analysis did not change comparned to the prior period,
Risk Expoaurg
Throwgh its defined bonefit plans, the Company is exposed toa msmber of nsks, the most sgnafcant of whech ane detaibed

Investment risk The presenl value of defined benefil plan hility & calculsted usmng s discount rate which &
dietemmined by iefesence Lo market yebds at the end of the eporing pericd on govemment bonds
Most af the plan assel inwEmaon s in lixod income seouriljiog with h-r_||.'1 Epr:u:Irl_:, and in govennmeanl
securitios which aresubject tointerest e sk A portion of the fends ane imeestid in eouily Securtes.
The Company intends to maintain the above investment mix in the continuing years.

Interiast rick & docrease inthe markost :,-:lrl-r]-: in thar ponensmymeenit Boned will inc roaso the phan liability; hierower, this will
& pantially offset by anincrease in the return on the plan’s debt investments.

Lomgewvity sk The present valie of defined benefd plan Babiity = calculated usng 8 discount mte which =
chistermined by reforence io the best estimate ol the moralily of plan participants bath dureng and afes
anployment An ncrease @ the ife expectancy of the plan participants will increzse the plan's liability.

Galary sk The present valie of defined benefit plan bahibty s calculated using & discount rate which i
determined |:|:,- nfetonce 1o the fubure salanios of plan panicipants Assuch, anincreass in:h-:*.-:.'_1|..1|:|n::-f
the plan parlicspants will increase the plan's akdlitg:

Maturity profile of gratulty labllity and Employer contribution

Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the year ending 31 March 2021 are Rs. 7077 lakhs {as at March 31, 2020k Rs
7316 lakha)

The weighted average duration [ Bazed on discoumted cash Bows ] of the defined benelit obligation s 13 0% years 146 yesrs 200 9-20).
Thee papected maturity anglyss of undiscounted gratuity s a5 follows

[Fs. im Lakhs)
Less than e yaar 1379 1 1
Botween 1-2 yoars 291 9.0
Botween 2-5 yoars 4341 2548
Over 5 years 70038 AO.O0
Total 137.49 120,67
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
Mote 40 : Sagment information (Rs. in Lakhs)

The Company has identihed Busineis segments as its primary segmant, Business segmaents ara prmarnily NBFC services,

Broking & Distribation sendces Consulting & Culsourcing services and Techmcal Services, Revenues snd expenses directly

attributable to seqments ae eported under each reportoble segmeant. All other expenses which arié not attributable o
allocable o segmernits have been disclosed as unallocable expenses. Assets and habilities thot are directly atiributable or
allocable to sagments are disclosed under sach reportable segmeant. All other assets and liabifities are disciosad as
unallocabla. Fixed assets that are used interchangeably amongst segments are not allocated to primary and secondary

'.uzng]mnnlr.
(Rs. in Lakhs) Segment Revanue 1,515.74 B,507.21 3,333.44 05,51 22066 14,482.58
Less: Intes-segmeni
Sl J incomme LI v 144 F11A3 207 o2 224 09 1,246.99
lofal Bewenue Eaternal 141793 A 5071 T8 2 A1RE2 H9R.50 (4.23) 13,235 5%
Partizwlar [otal rewenue of pach
sl s[5 A peceilags
of toal resenue of ol
wMgments 10, 7156 64 5% 19 /0% b 2 HG 0 03%
Sagmaent Revenua 293441 11,127.35 A420.07 97950 AT R 19,702,711 Segment Resuli: Profit /
|Loss) bafors Interest
Less: Inter-segment and taxes 752 463 197702 A, 14 {24.41) {470.08) 1,820,346
Sales  Income 47 LB 531.0% &y A9 FO9 Ly 20811 2, 121,13 it balom 1 182030
Trtal Bevanus Extermal FR9Z203 10.5%4.30 3,/94.18 F210 3 9.0 17,.581.58 | | " o 2 L7 3t
55 slE BRI h
latal revenue al each
seqgment a5 3 percentage et proda after tax 124311
ol tolal e e ol all et Profit for the Year B - - - - 1,243.11
LOQMEnts 14,A5% 502 7% 21 58% 1.25% 045% Othin Carnnehensive
Segmeant Result: Profit / Incarme 13460
{Loes) bafore interest 2
and taxes 212974 #9579 116,32 (601.32) (756.98) 2,281.55 T::;:_ffmpmh“""“ 2 - - ;| raskess
Profit before tax - 2,281.55
Less: Tax eapense 410.55 (Rs. in Lakhs)
Mt profd alber tax 1.461.00
T T . . | |'-.|"_'|.' i PG
Met Frofit for the Year 1,671.00 nc 31 '
Other Comprehensive
Incarme 35,38
Total Compmbensive - - sulting & e
Incame 1,707 38 it ireh {Fritasrmrisg}
{Rs. in Lakhs} Segment Azsets 1207505 2459047 §,241.34 505 52 7 909,77 50, 200,4% 50, 200,45
vear ended 31 March, 2021 Segment Lisbilities WY H) TR A4%h. Y5 £ WS A1 SOA3 7 144191 2894014 28,9460.04
. Capital Expenditum 24344 243 44 24344
B IR
D preciation and
y Amaortization . . 345.54 34554 34554
i T it Other Non Cash Expenses
oy i Aliswance for Credit Loss 051 50,83 0,54 52.24 52.24
P — 45020 2981418 B149.25 23182 = 271137 | 4555877 | 6555877 o oY Standard i o T
Segment Liabilities 7.804. 16 24 2eR 9y 4,833,848 467 38 1850 54 39,255,53 3975553
Capltal BExpenditure 128.02 128.02 12802
Depredation and
Armartisation 308,74 308,74 30874
Crhar Mon Cash E.-;pnn:ﬂ
Allowance bor Credil Loss 279 [1.65) th. 71 17.84 17.84
Pronvision for Standard
Lesary Avesais EN F &63.17 6317
geL________________________________________________________________________________________| L] | 182
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3 sesssgese 3 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E i R o o . - . . i
3 sgsgE8888 A FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
[ -4 E
& g gl ot gl & sy .
= w8 e bt Rl e — Mate 42 : The aggregate amaount of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure of the
= LR Jaintly Cantrolled Opermation included in CF5 is as follows : [Rs. in Lakhs)
o e @ an bt I hesugght & ultants
— |m o m a3 o
L] Ll o = R R %, Mo ol T aqtats
-~ - ol - waime G ity
% [t} i
i 0 o
= e - | = =
4 REEnSRA5HE
- T ] w OO W B
o |tiele ™ &0 1} Assets
= £
[ Man Curment Assets
P O o mr e oy e (i e
r:u a S e (& [ I i Property, Flant and Equipment 611
-] 1 =R 1 L+ —_—
oy E (- | = | [ z i Deferred Tax Assets 0.13 048
.. 3 e — Income Tas Azsots 1.84
=) 3
£ L = S W Fnancial Assats
= e B T R
6 5 < "‘:_"; E i e Ir?.. ﬁ i Laairies [0, g
— 1 e £ |l
& ; = r: £ = “ Curramt H.:Eli.ﬂli
I ] ] [ {al Financial Assots
L 58 m L)
> & bre R e = =l ® 2] o (i} Trade Receivabiles 1.47 ] 5,17
0 oF rESTERISRE 2 = 2 (14} Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.50 0.29 244
w § 2 o] o & 8 8 {b) Current Tax Assets ]
% B . {c) Other Current Assets 109 1096 ]
iij - E 4 = N8 n B B 9 . fii} Lisbiliies
e o o i F= ag A= o8 H B Mon Currant Lisbilities
E ! 3 ™ 5 = BT =] Gy
S 7 - cEf U o E2Y 2 Deferred Tax Liabikties 0.07
Ll = - LA o b
> B hMme@dnhoBS U N 45 Current Liabiktios
w2 o s A gl Rl {a} Firancial Liabslities
13 E g Gl R el a1 - g g é g (F) Bostowings 185
- Wi =
= . 4 ' B = 3 E (i) Tracle Payables 1.85 137 2159
% k- LR o e B E i w T (b} Cothsiar Curront Liabalitios 58.1%
LL E il e bk S B ol - {e] Prowisiodm (.01
el - m - Ne er = U
Lol pr— - 1
= 5 i gl = b} Datalls of Income and Expanditura [R=., i Lakh=)
55 REERESFEA § - S
- Be*nn@<s3n 3
% = Eﬂ o tm:{_: o e
= 3 ¥
EE mEBEs883888 & -
TR i St e b~ R - 35
i @~ NG 24 C- ~ (1) Ficiormes 0.00 0.97 54,06
E = e
< 3 i - - - {Iv) Expenditure (1.12) 0.54 5593
% - T, it b L s - - % E_ﬂ-: E Mote- Amount containing 000" epresants amount below B SO0/
*:EE:' 23253?._?3 - = 2 . ke .
L o m ™ 3 Mote 43 - Recondliation of Tax Expenses and the accounting prafit muitipliad by India's Tax Ratae :
< 1 € % i g (Rs. in Lakhs)
= ¥ =] o il
L E = . E I L] =
o - 'r-’ = = = Particulars
LLl ] 5 e = 5 =
£ B (=] 5
I-=_I = & 5 £ % 5 ® Profit Before Tax Z,281.55 1,820.35
0 g % g = £ = == Enacted Income Tax Rate {%) 27.82% 27 82%
-':”]I H _ E s - = B -'..-E : % i |_T._I % -{"- incoma Tax Expences cakculated at applicabla incoma tax mte 63473 5642
'.f'“ E. 2l E ,_: & E _:: - 5 l; E :.L_ = 8 f _ Tax effect of adjimtments to recondile expected inoone tax
). . ) ’ i E g
s & b 3 E £ 3 .3 El &8 &= 4 E pxpanse to reported income tax expense:
O | -8 3 UE Snsl O X =z cEE Expanses that ame not deductible for tax purposes 20537 27653
i o E E.: IEL-E- _5 L 17:-.' % Pk E .E f o7 EL _5 & Pesductions avadlable undor mcome L 19513 (35T 99
3 E I'E 3 5 =
% E 5 ,-i-,rl| Eig E "'E :_r: o b ; iy = E ?1:::' T Imipact D £ Bat 105
= i = wViS = 7S = = . -
= 2 § £= £ a3 P 5 ; 5 3 ,,:_ £ :‘ = EEdL Impact on account of Tax Rate {34.85) E?53
- = m T = = - | o I o
0 8 3 G238 228 F 2% il = S Total 1,002.22 480.49
— E 3 rsgzzenszs 8§ o 2 Z B3 incorme Tax for Earlier Year 1284 [18.31]
= LT T Y R S L T LY u g & ay
m E FEFRERE R R el E.'r: ! §E E Income Tax Expenses recognised in Profit & Loss 1.002.22 15049
E I% = L L L e e "ﬁ o Ew 3= (o Do tax wecoqnised in Profie & Loss (404 51] 115048
= - E P [P TR S Rl b E F, . B Fary Total Tax Recognsed in Profit & Loss B10.55 IS
= e Actual Effecthes Income Tax Rate 26, 76% H.M%
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MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(e} Fair Value herardhy of financial assets and abilities m easured at Fair Value : (B, i Lakhs)

I'..'.:u il r'|'1 arch a1 |I|:'a.l | ' ai I.'i‘- arch 3 1 LU

Mote 45: Disclosure pursiant tolnd AS 1 " Presentation of fimancial statem ents"

{a} Current Assets expected to be recovered within twelve months and after twelve menths from the reporting date:

Financial Assats
In-.u,::.hnq-l:'.ls.(ﬂlhpr Than

{Rs. in Lakhs)
Subradharies and Associates) fa 578 il bl 681,38 344 195507 1.958.M1
Lisane- Mon Current Fs 554 463
Crhes Financial Assets-MNon Curent B ABA.AT IaLAT
Secunbies hald for tradse 12 Ar2.30 #7230 30605 3,060,891
Irade Receivabiles 13 7.413.07 710428
Lewmne Currioand I Z4 453 4% 11, 779.83
Securities held for Trade 12 A72 30 ay2.30 1 060.91 3,080,919 Oithed iriamesad Assaty: Currad 17 17.027.57 T 056,98
[rade Recewvaldos ia ra1and 7.413.07 104 20 7,104,286 [ [
rsare 16 65248 24,451,448 11,783 11,7783 Finandal Liabilities
i = C ¥ - s
Cithar Financial Assels 17 170238 57 17.027.57 F05E T QO5&DE E_an pge: Hci Tt i FAEhER b
CHher Mon Current Fmanoal Labilites 72 0.15 - *
Othor Currénl Assels 1A LR b 453,47 el L] K 540,00 Tradhe Payabile a4 1 378,22 333 T8
Horromsiangs- Current 27 12,151 .44 13,859.0&
Oither Cwrrent Financiad Laabilities 28 20,18%.41 11,167.03
{b} Current Liabkilitiss expected to be recoverad within twelve months and after twelve months from the reporting date: {d} Quantitive Disclosures of carrying value / fair Value measuremant hierarchy for assets and labilities
{Rs in Lakhs)
{Rs. in Lakhs)

u",'- thuii |

Finandal Asseln measured 3t

Trachs Payatiles 76 | 1,378.22 1, 37877 17219 12219 Fair Vislue through Profit and Loss
| I ] | I I ] Mo n Current
Harrewnags i 12.151.56 12,151 46 13,85%%.06 13,B5% 04 :
| Irveestment i Egquity Shares of
Citheer Financiad Linbilities b 20,185,417 0, 18541 11,107.03 11,0703 Othay Companies 31-03-3071 578 L 78 31.03:2030 J A4 344
Cher Current Liahilities s 1, 18440 118440 155825 1.558.25 Current |
Securities Held kar Trade 31-03-2021 872.30 BiZ2.30 IN03-2020, 3,080.97 3046809

Financlal Assets measured at Fair Value
through Other Comprahensive Income

Mon Cuirment
Iresstmend in Eguily Shares of Other
Cesmpaanio 1032021 450.00 ALO0 3102000 450.00 A% 08
Irveestrmaant in Eguily Shares of
Chhes Compianies 10320 205.60 2ha0 310320000 1,505.07
Financlal Ausets 81 Amonised Cost .
Min Currend
Ineestment in Associates 31-03-2021 0.24 A1-03-2000 .24
Lioans A1-03-2021 658 31-03- 2020 74.63
Oithes Financial Assets A1-03- 20 4BH.B7 | A0 394,67
Current
Tracke Racenabilos 032081 7.813.07 311032000 9.104.28
| enary 31.03- 2031 24,453 44 1032000 11,779.83
Cithes Financiol Assots 31-03-202% 17.027.57 MNO03- 20000 9.058,94
| L | 194
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Mote 46 Financial Assets at Amortised Cost Method

The carrying value of the lollowing inancal assets recognied at amortised cost:

(Rs.im Lakhs)

|'.-'j|1_|| l_||.-::'-

Mor-Cument Financial Assets

Loans 654 1443
Crther Fenancial Assets 48R 87 394467
Currant Anandial Azsats

Traede recorealalos FARAT 910428
Cash and Cash Equivabents 3,025 04 3. 73323
Other bank balances 1,79249 136498
Loans e LE (R
Oithiers 1507r 57 G054 %4
Total 54,607.11 35,508.58

Mite: The far value of the abowe financial assets are approsimately equisvalent to carrping values as recognised ahowe

MNote 47 Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost Method

Thecarying value of the following financial liabilities recognised at amortised cost
[Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Non-Current Finencial Liabiities

Baormoseinggs 2621 85 8096
Cthen Hinancal Liakbikises 014

Current Financial Liabilitfiea

Bearpowwying s 1215766 13,859 04
Trade Payable 1.378.22 X219
(Mhien Financial Liabiklies 20189 41 11 10003
Total 634129 26, (ah, Ba

Mobe: Tha Lair value of the abosve inancial labslites gre spprosmately oouivalent 1o carmying valees a8 recogmsed pboee,

Mote 48:- Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

The carrying value of the following linancial assets recognised st fals value thesugh profit or lods

(Re. in Lalkhs)

Mon-Cument Financial Liabilities
InsssTments 5.78 1.64
Total 5.78 . .64

Mote: The sbave imvestments are quoled instruments in actve markets and the same = recognised a2 (zir value, Fair valve measnemon
i ehorsy cosnsichianing tha Lenead -1 of Fair Value Hiswaschy as par the ind-A5 113,

s
1
Carsaliidatadd Financlal Statamiinis "‘ ¥

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Mots 49:- Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprahensive Income

Thercarrying walwe aof the fallawing financial assets recagnised at fair value throegh other comprehengive mooma

(s, in Lakhs]

1~ I
Fartioukar

Mon-Current Financial Liabilithes _
Irremstmenits 4 5000 A 0,00

Total 4.50.00 4.50.00

MNote 50 : Finanaal Hisk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise of loans and borowings, trade and other payablés. The main purpose of
thesa financal kabilties s to finance the Group's operations directly or indirectly. The Group's principal firancial assets include
trwastrnints, loans, rade and other recelvabiles, cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its sperations.

The Group is exposed (o market sk, credit rink and Bguidity risk. The below note axplaing the sources of sk which the antity s

axposad lwand how theentity manages the risk

Exposune arnsimg rom Mo asurdamient Management

Cielit Bisk Cash and cash equivalents, trade Aging anabysis and Diivesrsification of Fxisting
recanvables, financal instruments, Credit ralings eredhil limits Uhnutilisad
Fved Dapasit with Banks, inancial frowm Consdtium Bankers
assefs measured at amortised oost.

Liguicity Misk Rerrcwings and other akbildes Rolling cash Pwilatslity of communed
Ml loretasts sl lirtes qumeed
bormowing facilites

Mirket Risk - foreign eschange  Fulure commencial transaciiins. Cash flow lorecasting Fosward fareign
Recognised Brancial liabilities mat and exchanoge contiacts
denominated in Indian Bupes (INR) Sensitvity anabysis

Mzrket Risk - interest rate Losny-Term bowrorwsnigs al varable rates Sensilivity analysis Inlerest Kete Swaps

Credit Risk

Cradit nskis the risk that counterparty will not meat its obligations under a financal instrument or customer contract, leading to
a financial foss. Tha Group is exposed to oedit risk from its operating actvities {primarily trade receivables) and from its
tinancingactivities, including §ixed deposits with banks and tinancial institutions snd other financial imstruments,

An impairmant anabysis m perormed ot sach reporung date on an individual basis bor mapor customers. In addition, o largs
numbar of minor recovables are grouped inte homogenows groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The maximum

agaosure To il risk a1 |:'I'|-::-r|!g_:-r,|r1|r'u5] dlate ig thie carr yirg wiiluo ol aach class of linancial asset disclonnd

O account of adoption of Ind-A5 10%, the Group uses expected cradit loss model to assess the impairmant loss or gain. The
Crresupr uses & provision matnix to computs the expected credit logs allowance for trade receivables. The provision matrix takes
It account available external and internal crecit sk factors and the Group's histoncal expenisnce for custamsrs,

The Group has made adjustments in ECL Model to consider the impact of the Cowd-19 pandemic on the prosision, The
probability of default has boan assessed considoring the likelhood of inoreasad credit fsk and conseguential default due to
pandemic. The impact on collateral values 15 also assessad for determination of loss given default and reasonable hairouts are
applied wherover necessary. The moratorium benefit wherever axtended has been taken into consideration for staging of
loansinthe Model

Thas Graup ollers loans secursd |J:|r ricsdl 1H,I,.-|I11_|"|1{|.|_|_'.||1L_'| Jlll.'Ir!lIH|I"|"Ir'|l4'|'r.|l'r'||:lr|'|'. Iy mrcdior 1 gt craxclit risk, the Group alsa
sonks: collatoral approprate to the product sogmont and also ensure that Loan to value rabio s mamtamaed as spacihed by
reuilaton

An impairment analysic iz pedormed at each reporting date based on the facks and creumstances axisting on that dats to
ichertify expected losses on sccount of time valus of money and credit b The credit quality of Loans and advances messured

&t arnortised cost s primanly assessed by the Days Past Due (DPD) status and othes qualitative factors leading to increase in

et riak,

e __________________________________________________________|
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

In assessing the impairment of financial assets under the expected creditloss" defines detault when aloon ohligation is overdue
fosr more than 90 days {net of subsequent receipts a2 onthe reporting date) and credit imparsd.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Grous Stage 1 (DPD= 30 days) Performing atset and 12 month ECL 24,721.14 11.792.61
Less In1p.11|nu:-r|| lss allowance 123,51 G433
Mot Staga 1 Asset 24,597.53 173298
ECL Proviskon Cowisagne .50 0.51%

Gross Stage 2 (30>DPD < 70 days| Under perfoming assets increase
in credit risk and Lifetime ECL

|Less: Impairment |oss allowance .
Net Sisgs 2 Agsely

{ECL Proviseon Cowerage -
Groes Stage 3 (DPD>%0 ) Non-parforming assats

credit impaired and lifetime ECL

Lizss Irn[a:mm-r-nl leeas allceass nices

[Nt Stage 3 Assats

ECL Pronasion Coweangge

Total Loans & Advances 24, 72714 11, 79241
Less © Impasrment loss siowance 123.61 G4
iNet Loans B fdvancoes 24, 597.53 1173298
ECL Provasian Covtags 0504 0.51%

Finandal instrurments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial instituticns is managed by the Group's inance department in accordancewith the Company’s

podicy. Investments of surplus funds are made generally inthe fived deposits and for funding to subsidizry company. The investment limits are
st b minamisis Lhe concentration of reks and theselone miticate fnoscial loss o meke payments osowendos

The Group's massmarm exposurs to credit nek for the components of the balance sheset at March 35, 2021 and Banch 31, 2020 s the carmang
arnompits s statod in babance shise? excopl for balances of subsidiany companmg

Liguidity Risk

The Group monitons its fisk of s shortago of kevds wsing a liguidaty planning tool

Thar Ciromep's cbgectinee s to mamntan a baltanos botween contioeity of funding s Beabaibty theouch thie use of bank ke and wasecuned loans

The Group has access to a sufficient varety of sources of funding which can be rolled over with existing lenders. The Group believes that the
working capital is suffec it o meet id cunenl requirements,

Thez table below provides details reganding ke maturities ol sigificant financial abiltes a5 of March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020

{Rs. in Lakhs]

Particulars

Year ended March 3%, 2027

Secuned [oans 1212496 142,10 13547 1,338.41 1494294
Ulinsaeeupad Loans 17135 171.35
Trade Payables 1.378.22 1.378.22
Crthars 21.373.82 - 21,373.82

e ________________________________________________________________|
CHOICE INTERMATIOMAR LIMITED § ANNLUAL REPOSET 3031
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{Rs. n Lakhs)

More than

Particulars -1 ¥ea

Year ended March 31, 2020

Sacured Losns f./18.3%9 125 30 11532 144,52 R E R

Unsocumsd Loans &, 19008 & 1500

Tiande Payabides 123,79 122,019

Oithizrs 12 66528 1266528
Markat Risk

Markol risk comprises two types of risk: imfonesd rate ek #ttd currrcy risk Fmandcial instruments affected by marked risk inchade laane and

borrowings and deposits

It st rate risk

Infesest rate ek e the rak that the L value o fulute cash lews of a inancial nstrument will lectuate because of changes in market interest
rates The Company's exposure to the sk of changes in market inerast rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term delbt obbgations with
Hoating indarost rales

The Caroug manacses a5 inferest rata riak by haveng s balanced porttolio of fxed and vanabde rate loans and borrewings. The Groug's palicy i o
keap balance between its borrowings at feed rstes of interest, The difference between lixed and varable ate intorest amounts calculated by
reference oanagreed apon notions principal smaount

The exposuri of the Cormpany o (nterest mts chsnges ot theend of the reportng pesod are as gidier

{Rs. v Lakhs)
n As a3t
articulars March 31, 7021 Mareh 31, 2000
Warrmatiha Hate Boooweng 7 H0h. 34 PRl
Fized Rate Bomowing 12728 F00.4%
Total 2, 98262 A437.35

Imberest rate sensitiity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivily 10 @ reasonably possible change o interest ates on that pormson of loans and borrowings

affected, afier the impact of hedge accounting. With alf other varizbles held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the
Impact oo Mpaling rate Borrowanos, 44 follows

(R=. in Lakhs)

Increasn Llocrpas et on Probit

in basis points before Tax

March 31, 2021 + 1% 28,05
1% (28.05)
Mamch 31, 2020 + 1% 243
1% (237}

Foreign Currency risk

Fareign curmency risk = the risk that the fairvalue or future cash flows of an exposure will fluchsste because of changes in foeign exchange rates
ha Compaty'§ exposung to tha sk of changes in toreign exchange rates relpdes to purchase of aw matinisl of chemical pnd featdlizer products
from out af the ndia. The Company manages its fomeign curmency risk by hedging the payables as an when considersd necessary, When a
chirrivativez s enlered inlo lod the parpoase o bemdg 3 hedge, the Campany negotistes the beoms of those dervatives o match the teems ol the
hedged expasune. The Company hedges ds exposume to Rucduations on the translaton o INR of s foreign payables in foregn cumencies and
by uesknig fansign currency aplion o Torsard contrscts

Faralgn Currency Sensitivity
The follvwing tables demonstrate the senstivity (o a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange mate, with all cthe vanables held constant,
This imypact an the Company's profit bofore tax is dus tochangos in the (i valuesal Ny aeears and liabilitios

{Fs. in Lakhs)
Incrnase’ Dacrease Eflect o Profit
Particulars in basis point: bafora Ta
March 31, 2021 + B
- 5%
Mach 31, 2020 + B
Ll
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Mote 51 : Capital Mana gement

Forthe purpese of the Groups capital management, capital includes msuied aquity share capital, securities premium and all
ather reserves attnbitable to the equity holders of the Group. The primany abjective of the Group's capital management |s o
maximise the valueof the share and to roduce the cost ol capital

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustmants in light of changes in sconomic comditions and the
recquirements of the finsneal covenants. Ta maintain or sdjust the capital structung, the Graup can adjust the dwidend payment
to shareholders, ssue new shares, stc. The Group monilons capltal using a gearing ratio, which is et debt divided by total

ooty Thia Geoawip el ces within not diebt, ntanest lfll'!.'lllliu ||:!|.|.r|1..;||'|c“:n|:-|!nw1m_i|:_im.: cathand cash equivalents

(Rs. in Lakhs)

A) Mt Db

Barrevsurgs (Current and Mon-Corrent) 14, 07457 14 a0, 06

Cash and cash equwvalents 4,817,548 5082
Met Debt {A] 9.955.¥3 214181

B} Equity

Eqquity sham capital 285483 2 D148

Cabver Ecquity 23 444641 1931984
Total Equity (B} 26,303.24 2132034

Gearling Ratio [Met Debt / Capital) Le. (A / B) A7 B0 42 AE%

Mota 52 : Contingent Liabilities not Provided for
() (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Income tax demand contested by the company * BB.03 110.2%

Total BE.03 11025

*The Company does not expect sny outflow of sconomic resources in respect of abowis,

ik
J#‘-E.:hll
Carsaliidatadd Financlal Statamiinis '_“‘._!. -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

MNote 53 : Gapital and Other Commitments:

Capital Commitments: il

Mote 54 : E:u.p- nditure on Corporate Social Hmpmihili‘t’l:

Az por Section 135 of the Compames Act, 2013, the group s not mandatonly required 1o spend  on corporate socal
rospanaibility (C5RY activities, however ana subsidiary ol the group, which is mandatorily required 1o spend on C5R has
provided Rs. 1181 lakhs towards Corporate Social Responsibility during the year ended March 31, 2021

Mote 55 : Expanditure in Foreign Cumrency - Pl

Mote 54 : COVID Impact

"This CONVID 17 pandemic continues to aprond acrods the glabe and India, which has contritauted to o sigoificant wolatility i
global and Indian financial markezs, The consohdated financal statements; includes the potential impact of the COVID-1%
pandemic on the Groups finoncial statements which are dependent an fulure developmaents, which are highly unearain,
including, ameng ather things, amy new information conceming the severty ot the second wave of COVID-1 9 pandemic and
any action to contain e sprescd or mitigate sts impact whether Governmaent mandated or elected by the Group and s

subsegquent impact on the recoverabilitys onthe Group's assets

Furthar, the Group has, based oo all information curmently available and based on the policy approved By the Bosrd of

Dhirectors, deterioned the provision tod loanassets of Ba 12347 Lakhs s 50 31 March 2021

The G bas, based oo current available information and based on the policy appreved by the respoctive board, determined
the provision lor impairment of finandcal asets including the additional gverkry for uncestainty over the potential macro

eeamnamic impact of the pandemic

Mota 57 : Previows Years' Figuras:

Tha financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
[Inal-AS) r|r|:|1:.rr||‘1i-|::| undder Soction 133 aof tha Eanman Act, 2013 and othar rlrt'ﬂu!'ll!-il:'l:l accounting practices and |:||::|II|:‘1:-I: o
the axtont applicable, Tho provious ponod's hgures have boon rogroupaed or rearranged whoreyer nocessary,

Forand onbehalf of the Beard of Directors

Sdi- Sd/-
{b} Corporate Guarantee lssued to (Rs. in Lakhs) Kamal Poddar Ajay Kajriwal
Managing Director Dhirectod
N 015718700 DIMN 03057841
st o a1 Queararitees dtaed o Banks & Financial institutions oo behatt Sd/- Sd/-
of subsidiaries 6,286,714 A,322.14 Manaj Singhania Karishma Shah
Chiel Financial Cificer Company Secretary
| Totad i, 2B 74 B32314
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbsa)
* The above represents corporate guarantee utilised for Choice Equity Broking Private Limited is Rs, 523074 lakhs {March 37, Dt ¢ Juna 2%, 2021 Diate : June 25, 2021
2020 Ra. 1229 .68 lakhs) for Choice Capetal Advizors Private Limited is Rs. 94 32 lakhs/-{March 31, 2020: Rs.98.0/ lakhs-) and for
Chsjoe Consultoncy Services Private Limited is Rs. 961,48 lakhs (March 31, 2020; Rs995.3% lakhs]. Howeyer the overall
sanction amowntis Bs. 222000 lakhs(March 31, 2020 Rs 10720004 [akhes ).
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appoantment , be and hereby apponted a5 Non - Expoutwe
Imdepandant [irector of the Company to haold office fora term of
fivie years - S)commencing with effect from Februany 12, 2029 and
shall mot be liable to retire by rotaton.”

RESOIVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Ditectods of the
Company be and is hereby authorized o do all sech acts, deads,
mistters and things as miay be consichered necsary, desirable or
gapedient o gee effect ko this resolution.

Regulansation of Appomtment of Addtional Director, Mrs. Sudha
Bhushan (DIN: 01 A0} by appointing her a5 Non - Exeostve
Independent Director of the Company [ Chdinary Resaluticon)

To consader and, i thought 11, 1o pass, the following resokitkon as
an orelinary resalution;

TRESOLVED THAT, pursuant to provision of Seclion 149,150, 153
read with Schedule IV o the Companies Act, 2003 | and all other
applicable provisions of the Compankes Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Chupliicatson of Direchors)
Hubes, 2014 {including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereol lor the tene being i force) and Regulation 17
of SEBI {Listing Obbigation and Disclosyre Reguinements)
Hegukations, 20145, Mis, Sudha Bhwshan{DiN: 09 249008) whowas
wppoanted as anddditional Mon - Executive Independent Director
of the Company weef 17th  February 2021 in torms of Section
161(1) of the Companies Act. 2013 and Arsche of Aszociation of
the Company and who holds office up 1o the date of this Annual
General Mosting and in respect of whom the Company has
recewd A natice inownbng under section 140 of the Ao
proposing his candidsture for the office of the Drecior and
dsclaration that sho meets the oiteda lor indepondonce as
proveded in Section TAHA) of the A and who s eligible Tor
appointment , be and beroby sppointed a5 WNanEoecutve
Independent Director of the Company to hold office for fhee (5)
consoculne yweas  commencing with offect from February 12,
20021 v shall ot be Falvke bo etene by rotation®

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Bosd of Deeclors of the
Company be and i hereby authorized 1o do all such acls, deeds,
rotirs and things as may be considernd nocessary, desimble o
imggiechiont i o effect fo this resalution,

1o approve the Be-appointmants of M, Ashok Kumar Thatkur {Din
Mo, G757 3724) a8 {Non- Exscutive] Independent Director of the
compary for 3 second term of five consecutive years (Special
Resclution)

To considerand, { thowght Fit, to pass, the fellowing resolution as
aspecis resolution:

*RESCHVED THAT preizuant torthe paeedsions of Sectuons T45% 110,
150 and 152 of the Compames Act, 2013 read with Schedubs IV of
thir Campanses Act, 13 and the Companies Amondmment) A,
2010 Cact'y read with the Companies (Appointment 2nd
Chedifications of Dirscions) Rubes, 2014 (ncludimg any statutory
modificatioms) of pe-enactmead thereof few the Bme being in
force) and on the mcommendation of the Nomination and
Remunesation Committée | the Boand of Deectoss, M Ashik
Kumar Thakur (DN Mo, OF573726) Additional Non Excculve
Independent Director of the Company  who has submitted a
declaraton that he mests the critéena of Independence as
provided in Section 1496} of the Companios Act, 2013 andwhois
ehigitle for ro-appoantment, be and is hereby reappolnied as an
Mon - Executive Independent Chrector on the Board of the
Comparny, for a second teim ol v conseculive yoars
eearmsimencing with effect iom by 14, 2021 and shall not beliable
po reotire bvy rotation

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Hoard of Directors of the
Cevmpaany be and & hereby authodired 1o do all sech Gcts, deeds,
rtters and things as may be considered necessany, desiabla o
eapririont i give wffect o this resalution,
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8 Toapprove the Re-appointments of Mr. Kanhaiya Lal Berwal (Din

Mo, 07535424) a5 (Non- Executive] Independent Director of the
comparty for @ second term of five consecutie years (Special
Resolition)

To considerand, if thought fit, to pass, the following esolution as
aspeclal resolution:

*RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the prawisions of Sections 149 10),
150 and 152 ofthe Companses Act, 013 read with Schadule IV ol
the Compames Act, 2013 and the Compsanies (Amendment) Act,
2007 (“Act'} read with the Compantes {Appaintment and
Chualilications ol Diroctors) Roles, 2074 [including any statutong
modibcation(s) of re-enactment thereol for this tima being in
torce)] and  the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Commimes and the Bosrd of Direciors, Mr,
Kanhaya Lal Beswal (DM Mo, 07535424) Additional Mono -
Feocutive Independent Director of the Company who has
submitted a declaration that he meets the critena for
independence as prowded in Section 149456} of the Companies
Act, 201 3 andd who is eligible for re-appaintment, beand s boreby
re-apponted as an Non - Expoutive Independent Direcior on the
Hosndd of th Company, for a second term of five consootive years
commmencing with efoct from 14th July, 2001 and shall not liakde
T refee by retalion.”

RESQOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors ol the
Company be and is hereby authorired o do all such acts, deeds,
meattors and things as may be considered necessary, dosivablo or
axpedeent to gea eflect (o this msolution”

Appoaintment of Mr. Sunil Bami Patodia (BN

- D0751941) as Mon -Executive Mon Independent Chairman

Directorof the Campany (Ordinary Resolution)

To consider and, if thought fit, to pasa, the following esoluion as
an ordinary reschitlon:

"RESOLVED THAT, on the recommendation of Nomination &
Remynoralion . Commiltes and on spproval of the Board of
[hirector of tho Company and in aceomdance with the pronision af
Section 152 and all ather spplicable provisions of the Companieg
At 2013 and the Compans (Appomimant and Cualication of
Darectois) Ruldes 2014 (sncledig any statutony modflcatiards) ol
re-enactment thereof for the time being in forcel and in
scoordance with the applicable  provisions  of SEBI (Listing
Oblsgation and Mheclosure Requirements) Regulabons 2015, Me
Sunil Kumar Patodia (DM: 00751941} appointed as  Additionz]
Mon - Executive Mon-Independent Chalrman of the Company
woael 13th  August 2021 in terms of Section 14101} of tho
Companies Act, 2013 and Articke of Associztion of the Company
and who holds oftice up 1o the date of this Annual General
Mowting and in mspedt of whom the Company has morved
aticn s owiiling under section 140 ol the A proposiog his
candidature for the office of the Deiectod and sl i eligible for
appostment | be and s hereby appointed @ an Non - Executive
Mon-independant Chairman of the Company for s Term of 5 Years
commencing with offect from Auegust 13, 2021 | labde to retire by
reation or the folbowing terms & cond#sons |

2) Remuneration/Commission 10 boe payable in sdddion to
siting fecs for atending  the meotmgs o the Board of
Daectors thereaf | a5 may be determined by the Board of
Directors of the Company |, provided that the agoregate
amount 5o pad shall comply with the stpulations in tenms of
the section 197 of the Companias Act and computed in the
marns refarred toon section 198 of the Companies Act, 2083

b} Reimbursement of ravel, stay and enteranment ccpenses
actually and propedy incured in the course of business ag per
the Company's Policy .

* RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors ke and is
heweby autharized 1o do all sech ecs | doeds s thimgs and
exetute all such documents | enstruments and wotings &5 may be
regjuired and 1o delegate all or any of 45 powers heresn cosenned
to any commmites of Directars or Divecionrs 1o give effed 1o the
abreanid pesohation

10 Approval for Related Party Transactions (Qrdinary Rescbtion )

11.

T consider and, i thought fit, 1 pass, the following resclution as
anvardfinany sesoiulsn;

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant tothe provisians of Socteon B8 ol tha
Companies Act, 2013 (PAc™] and ather apphcable prosssions, o
any, mad with Fude 15 of the Companses (Meetinga ol Board and
s Powined) Rules, 2014, as amended vl date, Requlation 2304) of
the Securites and Exchange Board of India {Listing Claligsons
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulstions, 015 {"Linting
Rogulations™) and the Company's policy on Related Party
tramsactionis), approval of Shareholders be and & hereby
accordid Lo the Board of Directons ol the Company 1o entor into
contract{i) arrangements) iransechongi) with Chosce bisarancs
Broking Private Lamited. & relited party withan the meaning of
Section 20H) of the Act and Regulstion 211k ol the Listng
Hejulations, tor acguining 50% Stake m Choro Ingurance Heslkong
Private Limited, on such tenms and conditions as the Board ol
Diractars may desm fit, or an consideration mol ssceading F
G000, 000 [ R Siuty Lakhs), proseidiod thit the cmd contract sy
arrangements i trinsactionds) so caried out shall ba & arrm's
longth basis and in the ordirary coune of business of the
Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Hoard of Dimctors be and i
hesrsrby authorised o debegate all o any of the powerns confemed
on it by ar under thes resoluton 1o any Committes of Direcions of
the Company and 1o de all acts and Lske such sleps a8 may be
condidered necesiry oF expedie 1o g sffect 1o the aioresasd
resolution”

TO APPROVE THE REVISION IN REMUMERATION OF MR.
KAMAL PODDAR, MANAGING DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY
{Spedal Resclution)

T considerand, if thought fit, to par, the fallawing resaiution a3
anspadial resolutlon:

*RESOLVED THAT pursuant 1o the provisions of Section 196, 197,
203 andd Schediibe Vo the Companees Act, 2013 “the Act®) resd
with Cormpanios {Appointment and Bomunasation to Mansagorial
Perscmnel] Rules, 2014 {including sny statetory moddficmtionis) o
ie-priactment thaseol, for the imetssng in foroe and Rules msd
thers undor 1o tho gxtont appicables, on the rocommanedation of
Momnatioon & Bemunoration Committes and in furtherance of the
Spooal Resolution passed in the 26th Anmesl Goeneral Mestmg
hold an September 27, 2019 [“2th AGM™) and subjoct 1o sech
othser gpproseals as may be neceseasry, oonsent of the Mernbeers be
and s hewby sccordod 10 mvise the remuneration of kM, Kamal
Poddar [DIN: 01518/00) Managing Dirgctar ol the Company
froem o 60 Lakha Poe annom toRa 130 Lakh Per snnom eath oifiect
from Oetobor 1, 20621 for remsning duration of ks tenue
troem the effective date, notwithstanding that such remaneraton
may exceed 5% (e poicent) being the limit specilied andes
Section 197 and Schedule Y 1o the Companies Act, 2013

RESDLVED FURTHER THAT ihe Hoard of Directors and the
Momimtion & Remuneration Committoe be and w hoeby
authorized [o vary or incneaso the senmeneration specifiod abovo
from e 1o dme 10 the ectend the Board of Directors may deem
apspreap e, notwithstadsng thit such romuneation may escoesd
5% [ flve percent) being the limit speciied under Sectian 196,197,
A and Schedule Y 1o the Companses Act, 2013 subject o any
armendrmont in the prossions of th afonessid secticans

Meitca

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Managing Dwector shall be
antitied to raimbursemant of all expenses incurred for the
e pose of this busmiess of the Company and shall nest be enbithod
10 B0y siting fees fo aftending meeting of the Board of Direciors
gnd Commitles (4] thoieol and the sbove-mentianed
remunesation will be the total consideration payable by the
ey aind ifs Substidiany Companies

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the evinl i amy financal yea
durimy the tenune of the Managing Dsecior, the Company Jnea
not eam any prodits or eams inadequate profits as contemplated
under the prosresiong of Sehodube Vo the Compamios Sct, A013,
the Company or throwgh its Subsidiares may payto the Managing
Birector the sbove emumerston exchding commession smoun
payable on tho minimam emeneration by way of salary,
Pevequissitees smved Onhar tormis & Condtions os spocified abiows,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purposs of giving effact tothis
residulicen, any Ditector o the Company Secretary Board of
[Nredors of the Company be and s horeby suthoraed 1o do all
such acts, deeds, matters and things as they may in their abaolute
discretion desm necessary, sapedient, wsual and proper in the
bt interestof the Company.”

Piace: Mumbai By Oraderofthe Boprd of Directors
it :August 1.3, 2027 =1
[Karshma Shah)
Cormpany Secitary
R gistered Cffice:
Choice House, Shree Shakambhari Corporate Park,
PiotNo, 156-158,L8. Nagar,
AndhacEast),

Mkl - 400 0959 %,
Emailld sinfofchoicaindiacem
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MROTES

Ceigrvaral idtiactions for accessing and paicipatine in the 28th AGM
throwgh VOOMM Faclily and voting thiough elecironic moans
including remote e-Moting:

1,

I wviowe ol the comleuing Cond 19 pandemic, the Ministoy of
Corporate Affairs ("NCA") has vidde its circular dated Sth May, 2020
read with circular dated Bth Aprid, 2020 and 13th Apl, 2020,
January 2021 [collectiviely relorred te as {"MCA cincular™)
jpermetted the hodding of the Aatwal General Maetioeg (SAGMT)
through YC / OAVN, without the physical presence of the
Members a1 a common venue. In compliance with the prosvisions
of the Companses Act, 2003 (“Ac™), SEBI (Listing Obligaticn and
Disclosure Haquirements) Reguiatrons, 2015 {*5EBI Listing
Oblgations™) and MCA Ciroulars, the AGM of the Company =8
being held throwgh VT DR

In continuation of this Manistrys General Circular Mo, 2002020,
dater] Obih May, 2000 and after dus esamination, i has beon
decided to-allow compansss whose AGMs were due o be hald in
the wear 20640, or bacome due in the year 2061, to condhct their
AGMs on or belore 31122021, in sccordance with the
iequirements provided in paregraphs 3 and 4 of the General
Ciroular No. 2002000 as par MCA circular noe 0202021 dated
danuary 13,2027,

In continuation of this Ministry's. Genesal Cimular Mo, 2000000,
dated H5th May, 2020 and sfter due esaminalion, § has been
decided 1o allow companses whase AGMs wore due to be el in
the year 2080, or bacome dus-in the year 2021, to conduct thsar
AGMs on of before 31122021, in accordance with the
wquiremerts peovided in parsgraphs 3 and 4 ol the Genoral
Cireglar Mo 2079020 as per MCA cireglar o, 027021 dated
Jariaiy, 13, 20001

Since the AGM s baing held purswant to the MOA cirnculars through
WO OVAM, physical sttendancs of members has baon dispensed
with. Actordingly, the Facility for sppositment o prosies will not
Prowy Form and Aftendance Shp aro not annesed to this Natice

Corporste Membors are regueed 1o send o scanned copy
(POF/IPG Format) of its Board or govarneng body Resoluton /
Aaithodization, el authorizing it ropresentatvn 1o attend the AGM
through VT / CAVM on its behalf and tovote though wemote e
voting 1o the scrufiniger by emad through as registered amail
acidress tomfoBchoicendia.com

_in ling with the Ministry. of Corporate Affaes (MCA) Croular Mo

177030 datod April 13, 2020, the Motice callng the A6 has boan
uploaded on the website of the Company =1 wwwchocaindia.com
Tha Natice can also b acoessed fromm the wobnites of the Stock
Emchancrs 0. BSE Lamitid it wenw bresinddiacom, The AGM Nolice s
also dissemsnated on the wabsito of COSL (agency for providing the
Bemote oVoting facility and a-sting systen during the AGKM) Lo
wnoalspeilineedia com

Members hobding shares m o electronic form aro moegquested 10
1egeier [ update their postal addiess, omail address, telophonss
mobile numbaors, Pormanent Account Mamber (PAN} mandatos,
normimaticns, power of aflomey . bank details such as mane of
bank and Branch dotails, bank account nember, MICE Code, iF5C
Code ete, to thoa Depotitory Participants, with whom thoey  are
mmeakaining Deemat Accounts

Mazmbirs holbding shares in physical form aro requesiad (o reglstor
4 update their postal addsess. omail address telephaoned mabile
nurmberes, PAN, mandates, nominations, power of Allomay, bank
dotails such as name of the bank and Branch dotails, bank
accounts numbar, MICR codo, IF5C codo, efe., with the Registrar
amd Transfer Agent oo Link nlime ndia Pricate Limibed by
seniteng an ermail temumbadlinkinbme coan

8

(LR

1.

12.

13

14,

15,

14,

"7

Mo - Resdent Indiagn members are requasted 1o infosm Link
EnTime bnclia Private Limited immediately on

A, The Change i the readential status on retuin o Indsa Tor
permanent settlemant; 2nd

b, Thar parteculars of the bank account(s) umbor and addreis of
thie baink, if mot fernished earier.

Memboms sttercding the AR thiough YO/ M08 shall be cournitesd
o thee purpose of reckoning the guomm under Section 103 ofthe At

Since the AGM will ba hald throwgh W0 QM. the Route Mapis
miet phnexed inthis notice:

As mandated by SEDL effective from Apail 1, 2009 thal secunties
of Issted Companss Shall b transtermed only in dematerialised
fearrm. In crdes fo Facilitate tanston of hareis invies of the alices
and 1o avail vanous bepefits of dematevialisation, Membors are
achvisod to domatenislise shans | hadd by them in physical form,

A pe SEBI Chreular dated nh Apnl, 201 8 Sharehaldérs whoss
PAM and Bank detads are not mapped; -

= Shareholders holding shares in physical mode ara
requested to compuisorily fumash the details to the Share
DepatmontfRiegistrar & Sharme Transfer Agent.

¢ Shareholders holding shares in elecironic mode ame
requiested Lo furnish The details to their respective
Dapasitony Particapant {4

Irh casa ol Joint holders, the Membor whode name appeans as
the first hobder in the order of names as per the B Members of
the Company will b prtiflod bo vote of theAG M,

Pursuant to th provisions ol Section OB af thi Comparnoes Act,
20713 read with Rule 20 of the Companes (Manegement and
Acirministration) Rubes, 2004 {as amended b aomd Regulation 44 of
SEEI {tisting Obligations & Disclosuro Rogquirements)
Hogulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Cleculans datod Apr)
08, 2020, Aprd 13, 2020 and May 0, 220 the Company i
pritetdaneg facility of rennobe eswating toits Membsers @ respoct of
the businass to be transacted at the AGM, For thes purpose, the
Company has entered inte an agresment with Central
Depositony Services (India) Limed [COSL) for facildating voting
throwsgh soctronic moans, as the suthoreed e Voting’s agoney,
The facility of casting woles by a member using remate e voting
a5 woll 35 tho svoting systom on the date of the AGM will Be
prowedod by CLOSE

The Membess can josn the AGM n the WEROBVM mode 15
minutes before and alter the scheduled tima of the
commencement of the Mesting by following the procedurs
menticaed in the Motice. The facildy of participation st the AGM
throwgh VWEAOAVM will bo made available jo sthesst 1000
rermbeds an st come st served bacs, This will not indude
large Sharoholdeds (Shameholdars hokding 2% or more
shareholdawg), Promaoters, Institutional Inmaions, inoctors, Koy
Managerial Personnol, the Chairporsons of the Audit
Commates, Momination and Kemunesation Commities and
Stakeholders Relationship Commattes, Auditons eto. who are
allowed (o atbend the AG8 without restriction on account of first
come lrst seseed basis

The attendance ol the Members attending the AGM theough
WO will o courfed Toar this purposs: of ascortaining tho
cpuiinem under Section 103 of the Compomies Ao, 2013

The AGM oz been cormened throwgh VE OAVM in compliance
with applicablo provisions ol the Companies Act, 2013 mad with
MICA Circular Mo, in continuation of ths. Minsty's General
Circular Moo 2002020, dated 04th May, 2020 & in sccordance
wilh tha recquireminis prowided in parsgraphs 3 and 4 of the
General Circular Mo, 2004020 a5 per MCA circulas no 0272021
datod January, 13, 7521
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24,

The Copuity Share Transfer Registers will remain closed feom Friday
Seplomber 17, 2021 10 Thursday, Soptember 23, 2071 (Bath days
Inchusnoe)ion the purpose of Annuol Genemal Mesting

Generally, i member entithed to attend and vote at thi= meeting
i'lhﬂli!lﬂ'dluﬂrﬁrﬂiﬁlaPtmrh&ﬂﬂ&ﬁdlﬁdwlﬂﬂnh IVirtesad
of himself and the prosy need not be a i of tha
Company. Since this AGM 15 baing held through VI 7 DAV
piesant bo the MOCA Ciricualars, physical ptendance of rembers
has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility lor
appeintmient of promies by the members will nol be avadalide for
e AN and hence the Prosy Form and Attendance Slip are pot
ansgwod] horato:

/S R M Mimani & Associstes LLP Company, Pracicing
Company Secretanies, has been appointed as the Sorutiizer o
scrutinge the rermote e-voling process s wall as the avoling system
o the date of 2AthAG M in b fae and irnsparent mane,

The Member whe hove cast thes vote by emote 8ovoling pooe
tes ther AGM may abio sitend fparticipate in AGM thiough VC
DA bt shaall ot b entithe to cosr ther wote again.

The Vating nght of Members shall be proportion to thesr shares n
thr e up scquity shars cagital of the Company asonout il date

Sy persan, wiho accuires shares of the Compatry and becomes
a Momber of the Company afier sending of the Notce and
holding shares as of the cut-off date, should follow the sana
procedure for e Voting as mentianed below

The wvoting results will be declared on receipt of Sondinizerns
Raport, The voting results along with the Sciatiniaos Reipor will
be placed on the website of the agency waw.evistsngsndi com
and alsoon the website of the Company www chosceindia.com,
withay 48 hours after the conclusion ol tha 28ih AGM ol the
Company and will ateo be submitied to thie BSE Limined {RSE)
ke thi shargs of tho Companky ane listed

THE INTRLUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-
VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING AGM/EGM AND JOINING
MEE TING THROUGH WE/OAVM ARE ASUMNDER:

{1 Thewating period begins on Monday, Septamber 20, 2071 @
000 AW and ends on Wednesday | Seplember 32, 2027 @
5. PM. During this poriod shareholders’ of the

[}
Meitca ﬁ
i |

Company, halding shares sither in physical form or in
damaterialized form, as on the cut-ofi date [record date] of

(i}

Lim]

{iw)

September 16, 20021 may cast thewr vote elechonically. Thi e
voting module shall be dissbled by COSL for voting
thermafior

Shareholders whohave already voted prion to the meeting
dlatiz woukd not be entmod 1o eots ot this mdelinog i,

Pursuant tao S5EB|] Circular Ng.
SEBUVHOVCFINCMOSCIRPAZ0207242 dated 09122020,
wider Regulation 44 of Secorties and Exchange Board of
India {Listing Obligations and [Hsclosun Redquiraments)
Regulations, 2015, lised entitios am required 1o provide
remsate e-voting facility 1o its shareholders, in mspect of all
shasehobders’ resolothons. Howdreer d has boon shesmaed
that the participation by the publc non-anstitutians
sharehokdardretal sharatoldirses at a vegligibbe el

Cupmptly, Ehone i multiples voling seryice prosders (E5Ps)
previcling evotimg Tacdity bo lsted entities i india. This
rpcirsate registration on varsous E5PS and maintohanecs ol
musltipdo uses 105 and pesswords by the sharoholdiers.

In ey to wecroase the efficiency of the voting peocess,
il b 4 public consultation, It has been decided to
erniabib i vating foall the dirmast account holders, by way of 2
single login credential, through their demal acoounts/
sites of Depositones’ Dopository Particspants. Dermat
account holders would be able o cast then vote withou
having to reqgister again with tha ESPs, themhy, not only
facilitating séamless authentication but alse enhancing #ase
] i b o Pt g st In oowbbineg prooess

In tetms al SEH] clicular nd.
SERBMCHCFOAMIVCIRF/020/ M2 dated December 7,
2020 on e Noting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholdedss halding securties in demat modo
aie allowed 1o vole thiough thesr demal account makntained
with Depositonos and Depositony Batcipants. Shaichakdors
are advised 1o updsle their mobile number and emall id in
tinzir deimat dcoounts i ordes 0 aocess e Voting facility,

Pursuant toe abowessaid SEBI Carculan, Login method o &
Woting and joining virtual maetings ko indivichial shareholdens
holding securitesinDemat mods & given balow,

Typaof sharshaldes

Individual Shareholders holding
socuritees in domEt modo witkh COs

Lagin Method

11 Usorswho have optod for COGL Ees f Easiost (ecility, can login securition s Dormal modewith
CESLtbueyh e ity userkd and password. Optionwill be made aeailable 1o each &

Voting pagewdhout any lurther authentication. The LRL forusers fo login to Bz Easiest am
hitpsst b colshndia comdmypeasiomefoon or wsit sl cdstinda.com and chick on
Lesgioy icaan andd solact Mow System Myoasi.

21 Al successlulboom the Eas § Easest wseywill e able tosen the o Voting option tor ebogilble
companies whise the evoting i in progroess as per thie informastion prosded by company: On
chicking the eviting optan, the usswill beableio see e-Vating page of the e-Voting setvice
provider inrcasting yourvote during the remots e-Voting penod or joining wireal mesting &
voring durineg the meeting Additmnalky, theee s sholinks prossded 1o access the systiom ol all ¢
Voting Service Pronddbeni b e, COSLANSDLACARVY LIMEINTIME, o that the user can wisit the &
Wiy service prowidons wiske e discthy,

3 I the wser |5 nol registerad for EasiEasies), option 1o register s available at
hitps:/fweks coslindia comimyeasiRogistration/Easifegisiration

4) Alternatively, theuser can directly acoess. eMating pege by pioviding Demat Account
MNumber and PAN N, from a e-Voting link avadlable on www cdslindia.com home page, The
systemwill suthenticato the user by sending OTP on tegateasd Mobibe & Ermal as recondod
in the Demat Accownt, After surcessiul authentcston, user will be gble o see the e-Voting
ogrtici wilsee thie ereofinsd 1@ in progresd and sléo abibe to direcly scoéss the systeom of all &

Voting Semvice
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Individual Shareholders halding 1} Wyou are abready regestered forNSDLIDeAS Bcildy, please visitthe s-Services website of

securites indemat mode with NSDL NSDL. Openweh browser by typing the doliowing URL: htips:/feservices nsdl com edher on
a Personal Computer of on a mobile, Onoe the home page of e-Sensces is anched, elck on
e "Renalicial Owiner™ icon wider “Login® which & avadable undes 10805 secton. A pew
screan will open. You will have 1o enter your User 10 and Puessword. Alter secoessiul
authsntication, you will b ableto see & Yoting services. Clhick on "&coeas to o Volng ™ under
eNaling sorvices and you will be able 19 see o Voting page. Click on company names or &
Woting senvce providers name and you will be o directed e Voling service. prowveder
website for casting your wobe during the remiote 8-Voling penod or jpining izl mesting &
voling during the meeting

2000 the usar s pot regetensd for IDedS oServces, option (o register & awdable ar
hitps feservices.nsdl.com, Select “Register Online for [DeAS *Portal or click al
hitps: i eservices nsdi comiSecureWebldessDireciReg . sp

3y Visitthe e-Voting websiteof NSBL. Open web browier by typing the following URL:
b A wweaciaating nsdl comy sither on o Pemonal Compation o0 on o mabie, Goce the
o pag of & Voting system s lsunched, click on the son "Login™ which is availabln undip
‘Shareholder/Member’ saction. A new screen will open, You will have to entor your Liser 1D
(Lo, your sistoen digif demat sccount number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and 5
Verification Code as shownonthe screen, After successful authentication, you will be
vederectod to NSOL Deposilory site whsrek you can sea o Votesg pago. Click on company
nane of &-oting secvice proyeder npms and you vl be redirecied to eVaoting service
providerwebsite for cagting your vole during the emole &-Voting petiod or joining wiual
mtang B wvoting durng the mooting

Indivichical Sharoholders
thokdimg secunitses in demat mode)
logen throwegh their Deposdorny Participants

Yems can st login wsing thi bogin credentists of your demat accoant throwgh yoir
Participants Depository Participant registerad with NSOLACDSL for e-Voting faclity. After
Susccessful logm, you will be able to see e-Voting opthon. Onoeyou click on e-Voting ogtion,
you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successiul suthenticateon,
wilierein pou can see o Voting feature. Click on campany name of & Vating serace prossdes
riam ey will be redeaected oo Voling seraoce providern websde for cagtindg your wols
during the remste a-Voling peviod o jomeng villual meeling & voling duting the meeting

important pote: Mambers wha sre unabile 1o el iove Ussr DY Pareoscond aro advissd 10 wese Foagat Liser 10 and Forged Passwosd option available
& ahowermentioned websitia

Helpdaek for Individ sal Shareho|ders holding securitios in demat mode for any technical issues relsted to login through Depository Le. CD5L
and NSDL

Indiwiclhual Shambolders

holding securiies i Demat
rrigde with CO5L

Inddivichasd Sharehalders holding
secuitiesin Domat made with M5O

Muembsors facing any technical issue in bogan can comtact COSL helpdesk by sending a raguest al
holpdesk avoting@Bodslindia comor contact al 022 F30547 38 and 27 2305854343

Mambiers facindg sy technical s5us nogen cancontact NSO helpdesk by sending 3
rixquest al evotiogg@rsd] codnar call &t toll free no. TEOD 1020 9900 1RO0 22 44 30

vl Login methad foro-Yoting and joining virtusl meeting fos sharmholdes othes than ivdividisl sharobolders haldingin Demat form &
physical shashokders.

1} Theshareholdors should kg on to the ewating websito waw. evotingindia.com,
A Chick o “Shoroha lders” modulo
) Mowenter youwr Usar 1D
8. ForCDk: T chgits Deneficiany i,
b For bS8 Charactor T D Toflowed by 8 Digits Claent 10,
. Sherehobders hotding shanes in Physical Fonm shoukd enter Folio Number registened with the Company.
A) Mot enjer the image Venlication as displayed and Click on Login

5) 1 you arg holding shases indomat foam and had logged an 1o waiwswstingindia com and voted on an ealion i woling of any comparry,
then your exEting passwnrd is o beused.
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&) 1 o ave a fivst-tirme uses follow tho seps given Bolow

PAN

Dividdond Bank Details

W)

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAMN issued by Income Tax Department [(Apphcable fod
both demat shareholders as well as physical sharehodders)

& CShareholderssho have nat updated theie PAN with the CompanyDeposaory Pamicipant o
requestod touse the sogquistcs numbsersont by Company TR or contact Company/lTA.

[ it thee Disvicdened Bank Dadaibs or Date of Bath{in dddmmdpegy lormal) as recosded inyog

OF Drate of Barth{DOB) damat zcoount or in the company reconds in order to login
s i both the detsids ao ol recorded with the depesitary or company, please onter the
mesnbersd /oo number in tiie Dividend Bank details field as mentioned ininstruction (1)

After entering these details appropriatoky, click oo “SLFRBAIT b

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will them disectly
reach the Company selection scroen, However, shansholders
biedelbmgy shares i dermat foom will now raach ‘Passwornd Ceation’
ety whiroin thy are requined 1o mandatosily enter thoms login
passwiord in the new possword fiedd. Kiadly note that this
password i to be atso used by the demat halders for veating fos
resolutions of any other company on whch they are eligible o
visle, prowided that company opts lor evoting through CDSL
patfoem. It is strongly recommended mot 1o shae your passyond
with any other person and take wtmost cae 0 keop your
password confidential,

wiill For shareholders hedding shases in plysical form, the dstails can

ba)

L]

)

be uned only for eanting on the reschations contained i this
Matice

Click on the EVEN for the relevant <Company Name:> on which
you chooss o vote

O the vedieg pagge, you will see *RESCLUTION DESCRIPTICN"
and against the same the option *YESANCY for voting, Sedect thi
option YES i MO as desired, The option YES imphes that wou
assent to the Resolution and optaon NG implies that you dissent
i s Resesdirien

Cleck on the "RESOLUTICNS FILE LINE™ Il yon wikh o wsew thi
ontire Retokison details.

After selecting the iesolutiaon, you hawe decided 1o vote on, click
on “SUBMIT & confirmation bos will be displayed. If you wish o
confirmyur viste, click on "R, ohie o change youe vobe, click on
SCAMCEL and accomdennly mcsdify your wote.

witl) O you "CONFIRM® your vote on the reschstion, you will mat be

allevwed Lo modify your vols

ary] Youcan alsotake & pont of the votes cast by clicking on "Chek here

Lo

bo P option on the Yoting page.

If demat sccount hodder hias lorgotten the login password then
Enter the User I and the kmage venfication code and chick on
Farget Passiword & ontor e cotails as promplod by the ssestom.

wap Facility for Non-lndividual Shameholdes and Costodiang

Remote ¥oting

* Non-Indwidusl shaeholdars (.0, otfer than Indiwidals, HUF,
MR ete,] and Custodians are reguired bo log on (o
www evotingindia.com and register thomsalves in the
“Conposates” rivcochale.

= A scanned copy of the Regstration Form bearmg the stamp
and sign of the entity shouwld be emakled 1o
helpdesk eyotmogitedslindia com.

& After recesimg the booin details 3 Compliance User showid
be created wsing the admin login and password. The

Compdiance User would e able o Gk the scooungis) for
whach thesy wish io woto on

» Tha list of sceounts linked i the login should be maiked 10
helpdesk svoting®odshndin com and on appeoval of e
acrosps thiny wold b abdo 1o cast their vole,

# A scanned copy of the Board Hesokstion and Power of
Attormey (FOMA) which they have issusd in favouwr of the
Custodian, il any, should bé uploaded (n POF format in the
systom o the scrutanizorio weify the same.

= Alinmatively Non Individuzl shoreholders ae reguired o
send the relevant Board Besolution! Authority beiier st
ingether with attested specimen signature of the duly
authodzed signatary wha G authoditoed 1o wole, to il
Scrutimaper and 1o the Company ol the email sddmss viz;
infochoiceindia com (designated email address by
company) , if they have soted from indivedual tab & not
uphbsaded sema in the COS0e-woting systorn for the scrating
e s ify the saime.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM/EGM
THROUGH VCOAVM & EVOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS
UNMDER:

1

The procedure foratending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the
AGMS EGM o same as the mstructions mentioned above o
Hermole s-yoiling

Thi link for VEACUAWBA to attond moeting il be avalable wheene
the EWVEN ol Cesmngaaning will b displaped after successful bogan as
per i instructions mentioned abowve for Remotee-vating.

Shareholders who have voted through Remots e-Voting will be
larpkble tey ot the meeting. Howewer, thoy vl nist b edifgibie
toyota it the AGKM/EGM

Shareholders are oncouraged o join the Meoting through
Laptogs / [Pads o betlier sapaienca

Further sharsholders will be reguered 1o abow Camera and use
isternet with a good speed to avoid any destebance durmg T
meating,

Ptease note that Farboipants Connecting from Mobile Devices or
Tablots or tluough Lagtop connecting wia Mobile Hompot may
experience AudiafVideo loss due 1o Fluctaation i thei
regpec e netvwork. It s thereiode ecommaendsd to uge Stk
Wi-Fl or LAN Cosmecton to mitigste any kind of aforesaid
glitches,

Sharchaldors whowoubd e o espress thesr wiows aak questions
during the mesting may mgistor themsabes a5 8 spoaker by
sending ther reguest in advanos atheast 7 days pror o mecting
mentioning their name, demat account numberfiodic number,
armail i, kil nurmber it (company emal i), The sharoholdeis
whin dha nat weesh tospeak during tha AGM but have quiaries may

1 - (]
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send thew quenes. in adeance T days poor to meeting
mianticming their name, demat account numbenfolio numbse,
emisl i, mobile numbser ot (company omail o) These quiorses will
btz revpliod b by the compiany sutabily by smail

.  Those sharsholdems who have registerod themeobves as 2 speaker
will only be allowed 1o express ther views/ask questions during
thi mesting

9. Only those shoreholders, who are prosent in the AGMEGM
through YCAOAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the
Hesolutione through demote eMoling and sre otherwise nod
barred from doing so, shall be eligible towote through = Voting
system available dusing the EGR AT

100 IF any Vofes are cast by the sharehodders through the eovoting
availzbie during the EGMAAGM ard if the same shareholdars
b met prarticapated @ the mesting threogh VOROAVM Eacility,
then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be comsidered
irmealicd g ther Tacihly ol oowoting durineg e mostiog s aailable
oy to the shareholdoers attending the meeting,

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE
NOLARE MOTREGISTERED WATH THE COMPANY /DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- please provde necessary detadls like
Fali Mo, Mame of shareholden, scanned copy of the shanm
costificate (front and back), PAN (sell attested scanned copy o
FAN card), AADHAR (solf affestod scanned copy of Aadhar Card)
by emailto CompanyRTA emailid.

2 For Demal shareholders -, Plesse update your email «d & mobis
e il yeiar sespective Dopiosdong Paiticsparit [[3F)

1 ForIndwidu Demat shareholdess - Phease opdate your amail id
B mobile ne with your respectee Depository Participant [13F)
which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining svines meptings
through Deposatony,

W you haws oy guaries of ispuod egarding sttonding AGM & &
Voting from the COAL eVioting System, you can wnte @0 email o

helpdesk svoting@cdulindiacom or contact o 022- J305B738
and D2 F-FI0LB54 243

Al griovances connectod with the ecility for woling by electronic
mieans may be addrssed 1o M Rakesh Dok, Sr. Manager, (CESL
| Central Deopository Sevices (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor,
Marathan Futures, Mafatlal Mill Compoonds, 8 M Joshi Marg,
Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 of send an smail 1o
hidpcdosk, ovotingdcdedingia,com or call on (02-23058542/41,

Expla natory Statement
[Puarsuant b Sectian 10002 hol the Compamies Aot 201 3]
Tirm Mo 32

But et e Mo 3ol thae Motico, (omeot this luture capital ieguinomam
gl the Company it & proposed 1o increase the existing Authorired
Share Capital of the Company. from B, 40,10,00,000/- (Rupees Forty
Crargs Ton Lakh bio R, 50,10,00,000 / (Rupaes Fity Crores Ton Lakhs)
diveted into 507, 00,0000 (Fve Crom one Lakh) Equity Shaies of
b 1 0 [ Rumpeses Tisn aanly} i s prsthies resoluton

Pursuant 1o secton &1 and 13 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company cannol inaeass it Authonzed Share Capital without the
congend of the members of the Company. Thorefore, i @ proposed o
ohtain the consent of the mambors 1o mcrease it Authorised Shang
Capital

The Board recommends the Resolution tor approval of 1he Members
as an Ordinary Fosolution s 2l outinthe itom oo, 3ol thenatice
Bl o thie Daectons o Eey Mansgenal Personniel of the Comparny
and thesw relatrees-area in any way concerned or interested n the
reseluticon, excagtio the extent of their aharehalding i the Company,
i arwy

Hem Mo, 5, &

Mr. Subodh Agrawal (DI D0553F16), Mr Sandeep Kumar Singh
(N: DRAaTALA0) Mis: Sudha BhushaniDIn: 071749008} wooe
appointed as an Additional Non Eaecutve Indepasndent Daectons of
the Company with offoct from 10th Nowember, 20640, 12th Febauary,
2021 and 12th February, 2021 respectively 1o hold office spto the
date of this Annual General Mosting of the Company pursisant 19
Section 141 of the Companies Act, 300 3 (the “Act®),

The Compamy has recesvad a notice nwiiting frn il members slong
with the depodit of requisite amound ok ieguired under Section 1560 of
the Act proposeng their candidature for the office of Independent
Drirector of the Company,

Mi. Subodh Agrawal, Me. Sandeep Ewmar Singh and Mis, Sodha
Bhashan have given a declaration to the Board of Directors of the
Compainy that they  mat the ciitena ol Independence 8 rodquingd
under Saction 149 of the Act and applicable provisions of SEBHLsting
Ohligations and Declodgpns Requisemeonts) Regulatons, 2015 (Listing
Regulatons®)

M. Subodh Agrawal, Mr. Sandeep Kumar Singh and  Mrs. Sudha
Bhamhan are not daqualified from being appointed a3 Director in
terms of Sactian 164 of the Actand has geven thelr consents to aclas 3
Dt

Preersuant to the proviseons of Section 149 and other apphicable
provisions of the Act with respect 1o appointmant dnd tonue of the
Independent Cirsctors, an Independent Deecior shall be appaointed
{ear moat ey than Bwees Lt o frvo yaars sach and shall not b liablioo
tisbiris Ly iotateon.

On the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Commmittien, the Board ageees that, M Subodh Agrawal, Mr Sandesp
Kumar Simgh and Mrs. Sudha Bhushon fullils the condifions spoecillod
inthe Adt, tulits mado thersundor and thi Listing Requiation: (or thei
appoiniment a5 an Independent Dhrector far & term opto five
CoREBCLlvD yaars

The Board recomanends the Resolutson o agpreroval of the Mombsers
a5 anh Chrdinary Resolution asset oot ir the dem no: 5 and & ol the
notics,

Sowis amcl except Mr. Subodh Agrawal, Mr, Sandean Kumar Singh and
Mrz. Sudha Bhashan being sppointess. angd thee relatives. 1o the
exbent of their lh:lmhuldr.ruﬂ-,ﬂ any, in this Ceempany, nom ol the other
[hirectos and Key Manegenal Personnel of the Companyg and thedr
rolatives are, in iy way, concormied o imedeed, linancialhy o
otherwise, inthe resolutionsatout atitem Mo 4, 5, &, of the Natice.

aem Mo, 7,8

The Brard of Directars-at ils mesting held 14th Juby, 2016 had
appointid M Ashak Kumar Thakue anel M. Eanbapga Ll Berwal 23 an
Additsanal Non- Executive Independent Dimctor of the Company &
both of who's appointement was approved by the Shameholders at thie
Annyal General Meehing of the Company held on September 20,
2014 for atermof 5 Yoars commencing from duly 14, 2016

Accordingly, the tensee of Mr Ashok Eumar Thakar and Me Ksnhanya
Lal Borwal, 2= an Indapondent Diredor wae due forre -appoitmeont |
in July, 021

Intesmsof provisions of section 14N 10} ol the Companes act, 2013, an
incepandent director shall hobd nifice foe a term wp o e cofsecutve
yvaers on the Booard of 4 Company, but shall be sligible. for
teappoantment oo passing of 4 spocial resolution By this Shansholders of
the Company and dizcinsure of such appoinirment i the Bosd's report.

The Company has received the consents from Mr. Ashok Eumar
Thakur and BMr. Kanhaiya Lal Berval 1o ad as the Directors in the
prescribed Form DIR.2 under Section 1545} of the Act and Rule 8 of
the Companrs (Appomibment and Cualifications of Directors] Rules,
2014 slong with the declasation on ciftena of Independence as per
Section 149 bhof the Act.
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After takeng into acoount the performance evaluation, during ther
first termn ol fve years and consideriog the koowledge, acumen,
onpertise and experisnce (n espechve ekds and the sabatantial
cantribution made by Mr, Ashok Kumar Thakur and My Kanhaiya Lal
Borwal duving their tenume a5 an Independent Diecior sinoe their
appntmant, the Momination and Remunerstion Commettes &t its
miseting held on 25th June, 2021 had considersd, approved and
recommended the re-appointment of Mo Ashok KEumar Thaker and
Mr. Kanhaka Lal Berwal as an Independent Direciors for a second
teren ol fhve yoars with effect frem 181 duby 2027 |t the: Board of
Corectors for their approwal

The Board of Directors a1 i meeting beld on 25 June, 2021 has
appiowved the proposal for re-appomtment of M Ashok Kuar
Thakur and Mr. Kanhaeya Lal Berwal as an Independent Director for a
secand torm of five consetutivg year with efiect from Tdh ey, 3021

I lme with the sloeesssd provisions of the Companies Act, 200 3 and in
wiew ‘of long, nch expenience, continued valiable gudance to the
rmanagpsment and strong Board perfarmance of M Ashodk Kumai
Thakur aned My, Eanhaiva Lal Bepwal, the Shareholders are iequested to
approsve (i m-appomtment of M Asbok Kumar Thakue ad b
Kanhaiya Lal Berwal as anaMan Eaecutive - independent Dirsctorns for o
second erm of five consecutive years with offect from 1ath July, 2021

The Board recommeends the Resolution for approval of the Mombars
a5 3 Special Resolulion as =6t owl in theitem ne, P, 5 of the notece.

Excopt Mr, Ashok Eumar Thakin and Me. Kanhatys Lal Berwal, belog
thie appointoe, o alhir Dilector of Eoy Managerial Parsonmg) af the
Cnmpary of their res et relitees i) ae concered or intedested,
financialty of otherwise, in the said Resolution,

Item Mo

M, Sunil Kumar Pstodia (DIN: DO751941) was appointed 22 an
Acdditional Mon-Executive Mon Independent Chairman ol the
Company with effect from 13th August 2021 1o hold office upto the
dater of thi Annual Goneral Meoting of the Compamy pursssant 1o
Secthon 161 of the Companses Act, 2003 (the “Aa ")

i, Suril Burmar Patodia s not disqualified from being appointod a5
Drirescton i tesrng af Section 164 afthe Act and has gneen his Condent to
arctas 3 Director

The seeds of a full-integrated lnancial seraces Finm were sowed by
gl Mulbi Jaceted prommoter,  MoSunid Patodia. A Clrarfonsd
Accomeritant by Profession, M, Fatodia s the Founder Premioeer of the
group * Choice” and under hig advice & guidance the group “Chaice®
has  ewolved itself as & "Corporate Gaent” in the Feancial Senece
Industry. His distinguished exporience of 25 years and achirvoments
irvthis highly compistitive sector has besn looked wpon a5 inspirdEon
by many, 15 hes leadership and vision that epables Choice Group o
lunctican ﬂkn.ﬂqrnll:,

This Board recarmmends the Resohation o spprosal of the Membios

[}
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i |

as an Ordinany Resolution 22 set out inthe ibem no, ¥ofthe notice.

Except Mr Sumil Kumar Patoda, beng the appomiee, no other
Duedor or Koy Mansgerial Porsonnel of the Company or thew
iespacting rplatives 18 G conidernee o interested, Tnancially od
aithisrwisie, i thio said Resokition

Pried Brofide of Mr, Sunil Kumar Patodia s given as Snneee B o fhe
MNotice.

ItEm o, 10

Section 188 of the Act and the applicable Fubes framed thereundes
priveica that sy Rillated Pasty Transaction will requina prios approval
al sharchotdess through Specal resclution, f the agaregsts value of
ransaction(s) amounts to 109 o more of the anme lumdegs of the
Comparey a8 prer 125t gudited linancisl statements of the Compay.

M. Eemal Poddas, Managing Director of your Company holds
Majority Stake and have Significant Influence in Chalce Insurance
Broking Private Limded{"CIBPLL an inswrance Broking . Company
registorod with “lisurance Reguistony Board of India(IRDAF

Accardingly, iransactionu) entensd (nto with CIEAL comes within the
meaning of Related Pary transaction{s} in terms of provisions of the
Act, applicable’ Bules ramed theeunder mad with the Listing
Regulsicns,

Hance, approval of the sharehalders s being soaght for the said
Related Paly Tramsachon(s) proposed (o be eptersd into by youd
Company with CIBPL in the financial year A0 1-22

Pussusnd to Bule 15 of Companias (Mestings of Boand and #s Powars)
Rualizs, 207 4, as amendod Uil date, partioulars of the ransachion{zhwith
CIBPL aro as follows:

Company as per last sudited financial statemants of the Compary

M. Eemal Pockdas, Managmg Dircctor of wour Company holds
kajority Stakie and hawe Siogmilbcant infuence in Chaice Insumanoe
Broking Private Limited{"CIHPL"L an Insusnce Brokang Comparny
reqistered with “Insurance Reguiatony Board of India (IRDMAY

Accordingly, iransactionds} entered into with CIBPL comes within the
meaning of Helated Pty transaction{s) in torms of provisions of the
At

applicable Rules framed thersunder read with the Listing Regulations

Hence, approval of the sharohaolders is bemyg sought for the said
Relued Party Transactionis) proposed o be sntiwed into by you
Company with CIBPL inthe nancial year 202722,

Purswant to Rude 15 of Companies { Meetings of Board snd s Powers )
Rules, 2014, 35 amended 1l date, particulars of the ransadionzbwith
CIBPL ane s ol lomes:

1 Py ol thir Rivtaiiod Party

2 Blame of the Derector o KMP wha s related

3 Matigre of Relztionship

4 Blature, matenal terms, monelany valee and particulars

ail the contract or arrengemenl
L Aary ther indormation felevant or impartant for the

members 1o tabe 2 decison on the proposed resolution

Choice eursnce Broking Private Limited

Mr. Kamal Pocidar

Mr, Kamal Poddar Holds 99995 Paid Lip

Share Cagaital of CIBPL.

Acuasition of H0% Stake

CIBPL tor 7 consideration not exceeding Rs. 60 Lakhs
Thee Traneaction is al Arm's Length Price.
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The Bosrd recomenends the Resaluton for approsal of the Momibors as
a Orclinasy Rrsolution s sot ot i the item na, 10of the notice

Mane of the Daectors and Koy Manageskal Persosned of the Company or
their respactive relatives, other then as mentioned sbove & concemsed
o irlesest e, linancEally i olfueeiss, in the resolelisn.

I Mo 11

It frgghit oo thee eailier resadution passoed, the Board af Dhrectors of the
Company {“the Baasd"}with resped to the approval of members in the
2hth Apnusl Geengral Meeting of comgaiy hald on 27th Seplembse,
2019, me-appointed My, Kamal Poddar (DN 001518200} desigrated s
Manageng Darector oe a further perod of 5 (fee)years Le from Ociobern
1 207 to Septembes A0, 2024 The MNomanation & Remasneration
Cornmities and the Board of Dissctom o i mesting held on Augoest 13,
2027 appecresd the resdsion sremuneration of Br, Kamal Poddar (DN
D BIRFIN designated as Managing Deector of the company with
alfect from Cctober 1, 303 for mmaining duration of his tenume from
e efloctive dabe, mbwithstanding thal swech remumesration miry eacied
E% {fve parcant] baing the limit specifled under Saction 196, 197, 203
st SchseduleV o the Compames Acl, 2013,

M. Karmad Poddar b rich and vared exposiencs in the: industry and
has boen inthe Company fram maore than a decade as the Director of
thie company. [t wonld be bnthe interest of the Company to continu to
awvisdl ol s copsiderable prpeitise and 1o revise the remuaneration of

Porind

Calary

Comrmissican

Medical Expandifurn

Liwen Traved Assistance

Peracnal Accident bl anci

Company's comtrbuton to provident Fund

.

e epoan T

Caratuily
Encashment of leswe
Compainy's Car

= =

m Loave

Coenpany's Contribution o ponsion) sspeannaaton Fund

Telephodmse, cell prhones, fx, computes system vwith intemse
faciities and oiher commamication equipment 3t residence

M. Kimal Poddar s Managing Difeclor, He @ responsiblie fos
Framework lor Operational Planning antd Increasing Organizational
Eftectivenoss. Ho i responsibie for setting the ullimate dinection fos
the cormpany, for reviawing, understanding, 355855, Sid 2pprosing
spiscific strategic dinections and initiatives, and for assessing and
undsrstanding the issues, boroes, and nisks thel define and drive the
coimpany's kang-term pedommance. He is responsibbe for the smooth
and profitnble operalson of a company's affais, He superdses snd
pll:ﬁ.l!rir:s. contultation to management on lrategic planning
docimions & sustaimability. He is alio responsidile 1o poronm such ol
dutias 35 may from timea o time be entrested by the boand.

Reference to the prosision of section 196, 197 and 203 of the
Cormpanies sot, 2003, read with schedule V io the companies act 2013
along with the Ministry of Corporate Affains (MOCA) through its
natification dated 12th September, 2018 notified provisions of the
Companies PAmendment) Act, 20017 (Amendmest Act, 2007 and
armiended scheduleV af Comgansst Act, 0N proseid s fon papment al
managinial remuneration by Companies, mouires membans sppoes
for payment of managerl remeneration o the mansgeral person
Mz Thie Beaard pecoenrmenchs the pesoblicn for member appeionl by
way of specipl resolubion, provided that sech variation or increase in
rarmuneration = with in specilied limil as specified under the relevant
prrovedinis of Soction 196, 197 207 e Schedule V bo the Companies
At 013

Eflesctbots frosm Octobser 01, 2027
s 1,20, 00, DOy

The terrrms aed conditions of paymoent of emunarEtion, pergaisites, sllowances and commission spacifiod beoein above may be onbanced,
andnrged, widened, aftesed or varsd from tme to time by Remoeseration Committee and Boamd of Derector as they may unthel discreton, deem
fit, within the masimum amount payabie to Managing Director in accordance with Schodule o the Companies Act, 201 2 and in canfarmity with
any amendments 1o the relevant prosisions of the Companses Act, 307 3 and o the neles aod regulations made theres wodes from tme to 18me in
tuture andforsuch guidelines and clanfications, 35 may be announced from tme tolmes

The Bexgred tiscoomanenad s e Resodution for appeoval of the MembBers as a Spoecial Besalution ag sed out o thie e nio 1 of the nobion

Except Mr Kamal Poddar being the appormtes & M Hemiatz Poddar Spouse of the appointes, mo other Deiecior or ey Managenal Personnel
ol thie Company of their respectivee rolatives iy areconcemad or intenested, Rancially or othemwise, in the said Resolution

ae® |
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ANNEXURE ATO NOTICE

Meitca

Derails of Directon seeking appomtment/ o appaintment af the Annal General Mesting schoduled o be beld on
Thursday, September 23 2021 -5t .00 PM ST [Pursuant to Regulatbon 3603 of SERI

EListimg Obligaticn snd Delosure Ruquitsmients), Bequiation 2015,
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1. Distailed peolile of she above Dirpctod o gueen s part of the Anniasl Repor. The Directornip, Commines Memberships and Chisirmanships does nat e
prositsahs i foceegn companios, unlisted companies. and presto oompankas, position as sh sdwsony oard membar and position in oompanas under soction
B ol tho Companios Act, 2011 Informalion pestamis to remunarstion paid o the Deocion who sto baing appontediro-sppoirted snd nunbar of Board

Muatinigy stiended by thom dunng thepear JOF0-21 s provided o Cotporile Gosamanos Ropan.

2. Tha praposal Tor applentment re-appantment b B appronsd by the Board pureant o the reoommaraiation of the Nomanatan & Ramshanason
Coarnni oa cishsdeiehn thar skills, espadiants ond biuowlde)e snd gossie outcoise of pafotmsence ovaluston
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ANMMEXURE BTOMNOTICE

Beriod prafilo of Direcions seeking appoirrentre-apgaoantimesy at
the 2Z8TH Annual General Meating to be haid on September 23,
2021

MAr. Ajay Kafriwal {DIN: 03051847)

CA Ajay Eejriwal s a feliow member of the Institute of Charfered
Accountants of India, He also holds a degres of DUL50A, Esued by
EC AL Hehas experionce of mare than 15 gears infinancial markets,
Mr. Ajay Eejriwal has been very influential in stesting the
fechnologcal advancomaent of the greup “Choice®, & “SERFP
registered “Investment Advizer”, a Diploma in “Information Sysytem
Biadit” M Kejriwal has o distinguished knowledge & esperionce in
the field of Finance, Taxation & Managemsant and thus has played a
pivetal mafe in the progress of group "Chowe”

PAr, Subodh Kumar Agrawal (DIMMNo: D0553914):

Mon Esacutiver fndependent Direcor

& Charered Accountant by profession, M Agrawal 2o hokds &
certification on “DA.5SA" from the “Institute of Chartered
Aecourtants o Inchion® (A1), Furtbees to sde 1o his Kb dugeawial
alse: hdds a Chanesed Accountant Degrea from the Institute of
Choitises] Accountants of Australia. A Law graduate iom the
University of Caloutta, M Agrawal has served as the President of
WCAF aned alao has sided BSE & NSE as an Arbifrator in Cagital
Miarked cases

BAr, SandeapSingh [N No. D2814440):

Mon Eeecutiver Independent Direckor

. Sangh i a Post Graduato in Rural Devolopmend friom Xaier
Inatitute of Socsl Sciences, Banchi and has a specializationn Media
Franning envd Genoral Business Managemant

Mi, Singh & cuttently the imernm Chairman of the Board ol
Giowaresor of UM Kashipur™ & alsa on the Advisory Board ol
“Mational Institute of Mass Communication & Joarnalism®
Ahmedabad and Indian “lnstitute of Democratic Ladershp”
Murmbaai

Pa. Sudha Bhushan | DIN Mo, 017 49008):

Moo Fxecutive Independent Diroctar

Ms. Bushan s Chartered Accountant, Company Secratary,
Registored Wailuer by Profeasion, Ms. Bhushan & an expdet i FLA
Polecy & FEMA Regulstions with 15 Years of experience. - An
achvisni o Bankof Bamoda ® lorits NRL& International operations
M. Bhushan have alss authomed vanous books on - FDI, Foreign
Exchargo Managoment Act 8 asation

A Seholar thiroughosat hed Fife Ms, Bhashan has been awarded many

awards & ecognitions.

M. Ashok Kurmar Tha kur | DINMo. O7 5737261

Mon Executive Independent Director

P A K Thakur was the Gesseral Manager of Union Bask of India and
haw exporiencod more than 4D yoars of services in several and
worsed areas like Bankng sendces, HR functions, Marketing, and
management services.

M, Banha byokal Berwal (DIN Ne 07535424

Mon Exevitive Independent Dirsctor

M, Eantsaiya Lal Baecwal s 3 seteed LS and an Ex, Member ol the
Fajasthan Publss Sepace Commessson (RPS5.C). Presently he is the
G D BR Ambodkar foundation, He s associatod with many
Pdga's for the upliftment ol SC/ST and other backwarnd commnities
espaceally inthednbal arcaof Rajasthan

Pr. hn_ﬁlﬁuﬁur?ﬂudhiﬂtﬂ: QOFsI941k

Mo Execantiet Mdan independent Chairmian

A Chartered Accountant by profession, the seeds of & fully-
indacgrated Hinancial semaces Frm wens sowod by our Mulli-lacetod
promoter, CA Sumel Patodia, His dstinguished expenence of 25

CHOECE INTERNATICNGAL LIMITEL | ANNLIAL REPORT 2001

yoars and achisvements i this heghly competitve sector has bean
booked upnon &3 insperstaan by many. i1's his leademhip ond vision
that enables Choice Group to function like a family, Mr. Patodia s
part of many Clubs and Counceils which provide further
opporunities for overyone, regulartly invited 1@ lecture at
prestigicus seminars, advocates the cause of women
empowerment (has helped built o women's hostel) while Jeading
the groug fromatrength tosmength,

Place: Mumbal
Date: Avgust 13,2021
By Order of the Board of Dineclors
Registerad Office:
Cholce Hogee,
Sheee Shaksmb hari
Corpomie Park,
PlotMo. 154158,
J.B. Nagar, S/~
Al i { East ], {Karighma Shah )
Munrhai- 400099 Company Secrotary

Emad ld: infodichoacesnda com

Thanking you
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